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December 22, 2016

Honorable Mayor,
Members of the City Council, and
Citizens of the City of Las Vegas, Nevada

State law requires that all general-purpose local governments publish within six months of the
close of each fiscal year a complete set of financial statements presented in conformance with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants. Pursuant to that
requirement, we hereby issue the comprehensive annual financial report of the City of Las Vegas
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the City of Las
Vegas (City). Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
reliability of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making
these representations, we have established a comprehensive internal control framework that is
designed to both protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse, and to compile
sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the City’s financial statements in conformity
with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City’s
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable, rather
than absolute, assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As
management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is
complete and reliable in all material respects.

Piercy Bowler Taylor & Kern, Certified Public Accountants and Business Advisors, a certified
public accounting firm licensed and qualified to perform audits of state and local governments,
issued an unmodified opinion on the City’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2016.
The independent auditors” report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this
report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the City was part of a broader, federally
mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The
standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only
on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government’s internal
controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and
legal requirements involving administration of federal awards. These reports are available in the
Single Audit Section of this report.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditors’
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial
statements. The MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction
with it.




Profile of the Government

The City was founded in 1905 and incorporated in 1911; it is located in the southern part of the state. The city
currently occupies a land area of 133.2 square miles, serves a population 620,935 and is the largest city in the State of
Nevada, Within statutory limits, the City is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal property
located within its boundaries. It is also empowered by state statute to extend its corporate limits by annexation, which
occurs periodically when deemed appropriate by the City Council.

The City has operated under the council-manager form of government since January 1, 1944, According to the City
Charter, adopted by the State Legislature and in force during the fiscal vear, the citizens elect six City Council
members and a Mayor who comprise the “Council.” The Council is elected on a non-partisan basis. Council members
serve four-year staggered terms, with three members elected every two years. All voters of the city elect the Mayor “at
large,” and each Council member is elected from one of six wards in the city. The Mayor and Council members are
constitutionally limited to serving not more than 12 years. Policymaking and legislative authority are vested in the
Council. The Council is responsible for, among other things, passing ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing
committees and hiring the City Manager, City Attorney and City Auditor. The City Manager is responsible for
carrying out the policies of the Council, and along with two Deputy City Managers and a Chief Financial Officer,
oversees the day-to-day operations of the City, including nineteen major departments of varying sizes. Departments
are further divided into divisions to perform their respective functions. The City provides a full range of services,
including police and fire protection; the construction and maintenance of highways, streets, and other infrastructure;
and recreational activities and cultural events.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself but also the financial activities of the City’s
blended component units: The City of Las Vegas Redevelopment Agency and the City’s Nonprofit Corporations.
These component units are legally separate entities for which the City is financially accountable. The report also
includes three discretely presented component units: The Commission for the Las Vegas Centennial and LVCIC SUB-
CDE I and II, LLC for which the City is legally and operationally separated. For additional information, see the notes
to the financial statements.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City’s financial planning and control. All departments and agencies
of the City are required to submit requests for appropriation to the government’s Finance Department Director on or
before the first Wednesday in February each year. These requests are used as the starting point for developing a
proposed budget. The tentative budget is presented to the Nevada Department of Taxaticn (the “Department of
Taxation™) by April 15. The Council is required to hold public hearings on the tentative budget and adopt a final
budget by no later than June 1. The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function (e.g., public safety), activity
(e.g., fire) and department (e.g,, Fire and Rescue). Department heads may make transfers of appropriations within a
department. Transfers of appropriations between functions, however, require the approval of the City Council.
Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual fund for which an appropriated annual
budget has been adopted.

Budgetary centrols are maintained at the line item level on a departmental basis through the use of a purchase order
and encumbrance system. Additional controls consist of the following: a) City Manager’s office approves all staff
hiring; b) on-going monitoring of expenditures; and ¢) monthly analysis of departmental costs versus budget trends.
Revenue monitoring may lead to curtailment of certain expenditures such as new hires, travel or capital outlay. If new
programs have been initiated or existing programs change or unanticipated revenue realized, it may be necessary to
realign or revise the budget. The City formalizes this procedure by preparing an augmented budget for the current vear,
which reflects both revenue and expenditure adjustments. Following a public hearing, the augmentation is filed with
the Department of Taxation.

Local Economy

The Las Vegas economy continues to show signs of recovery from the recession. Tourism continues to be the primary
draw and economic engine for the city. After hitting a low of 36,35 millien visitors in 2009, visitor count to Las Vegas
has steadily increased. Statistics from the Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority indicate a visitor count of 42.3
millien in 2015 which was up 2.9% or 1.2 million people when compared to 2014. In 2016, the visitor count sits at
32.47 million through September which is a 1.8% increase over the same 2015 period. Nevada Gaming win revenue
has recovered since hitting a low of $10.39 billion in 2009 but has not recovered to the peak level of $12.85 billion



achieved in 2007. Gaming win revenue for the year ended 2015 was $11.1 billion which was up 0.9% when compared
to year 2014. Through September 2016, gaming revenue is up from $8.3 billion in the previous year to $8.4 billion,
Both the City of Las Vegas and Clark County unemployment rates have improved to 5.6% as of September 2016, This
is a significant improvement from highs of 14.8% (City of Las Vegas) and 14.1% (Clark County) reached at the peak
of the recession in 2010,

After peaking at $25 billion in fiscal year 2008, in response to the recession assessed values of real and personal
property decreased significantly over the following years. Assessed values reached a low of approximately $12 billion
for the Fiscal Year 2013. For fiscal year 2016, assessed property values increased approximately 11.8% to $15.4
billion. Despite employment base concentration, the City’s property tax base is very diverse with the 10 largest
taxpayers accounting for 5.7% of assessed value. The number of Trustee Deeds (foreclosures) in the City of Las Vegas
totaled 1,303 for the year ended 2015 which was a significant improvement from the high of 9,219 homes foreclosed
on in 2009. The foreclosure trend downward continues in 2016 with foreclosures trending down 13.7% through
September when compared to the same period in 2015.

Long-term Financial Planning

Detailed requirements for the City’s budget are set forth in State statutes. The City’s budget process begins with
strategic planning. The City Council has developed the City’s vision, mission, priorities, and values. Under the
direction of the City Manager, each department within the City prepares an individual Strategic Business Plan (an
“SBP”) that addresses strategic issues within their programs and operations. Included in the plan are performance
measures relative to input, output, efficiencies, and most importantly, results. The SBPs include revenue and
expenditure data used in the determination of resource allocation relative to program priorities. The SBPs reflect the
City’s commitment to provide services that enhance the quality of life for ifs citizens and visitors while ensuring fiscal
integrity and smart growth, Strategic planning is the comerstone of the budget preparation process and is used to
create focus, consistency and purpose for City departments,

The City Manager’s Office and management of each department are invelved to ensure that the scope and quality of
the services to be funded via the budget are aligned with the needs and desires of the community as reflected in the
Strategic Plan, and that the expenditures required are within the resources available to the City. The Mayor and City
Council participate in an annual workshop designed to fine-tune the resource alignment, and the final budget is
approved and adopted by the City Council and filed with the City Clerk, the County Clerk, and the Department of
Taxation by June 1 of each year.

As part of the budget and planning process, a five-year financial forecast (the model) has been developed to evaluate
the impact of changing economic conditions, revenue and expenditure trends, and the impact of possible action
strategies. An independent citizen panel (Financial Oversight Committee) was formed that includes financial leaders
from both the private and public sectors to assist with the planning process. This committee provides insight in
formulating and reviewing the assumptions used in the model, particularly the revenue forecasts. The model is
reviewed with the City Council semi-annually. City management actively uses this model to assist in negotiations with
collective bargaining units, manage vacant positions, and evaluating possible strategies as the City strives to maintain
fiscal integrity through sound financial policies. If new programs are initiated or existing programs changed, or if
unanticipated revenue is realized, it may be necessary to realign or revise the budget,

Planning and Development

To be successful, and to continue to entice new business, the city must provide the needed infrastructure to meet our
vision. A big step forward in 2016 was the finalization of the new Downtown Master Plan. This plan was one of the
most extensive public outreach efforts conducted by the city to date. A steering committee of key downtown
stakeholders participated in several meetings, and large public oufreach summits were held as well. Care was taken to
ensure the Medical District Plan, Symphony Park Plan and the Mobility Master plans were fully integrated into the
final work product. These plans will set the direction for the mext 25+ vyears for downtown development and
transportation upgrades.

The Downtown Master Plan sets forth the needs of downtown and how those needs are going to be met. From the
addition of more linear parks to complete streets that take into account public transportation and a future with light rail



coming in and out of the city’s core. It takes into account major projects like the ongoing Project Neon that will
improve access to the city, downtown and businesses. The plan addresses how we will move forward with wayfinding
signage and the types of developments that should be embraced to keep the city moving forward. The Downtown
Master Plan sets the stage for us to continue to welcome key projects while reaching for a shared vision for the entire
urban core.

The Las Vegas Medical District Plan was completed and approved. The final decision on the location of the new
medical school in the medical district was made by the County Commission and the Regents. This coming July the
Medical Schoel will accept its charter class after receiving preliminary accreditation and meeting all 12 standards set
forth by the Committee on Medical Education. The School of Medicine I, part of a larger resurgence at UNLV, is
another exciting Las Vegas dream being realized. One of the next steps will be placing a new academic medical clinic
in the city, We are working to bring about a UNLV Medical Center and its expansion within the Las Vegas Medical
District, downtown and even to Symphony Park,

One outgrowth that has already seen from the plan is the establishment of an Innovation District to support smart city
technologies. The city is making investments to improve mobility and safety, provide reliable transportation choices
and showcase technology. We know that the city is quickly becoming a city of technology with the influence of Nellis
and Creech Air Force bases as well as Switch, and of course being the home of the massive Consumer Electronics
Show and other innovation showcases. The University of Phoenix recognized this trend when it opened the RedFlint
Innovation Center downtown. The center’s goal is to spark business innovation, startups and acceleration. Services
offered include business incubator assistance for budding companies, rental work space, business mentoring and
workshops and seminars.

The renavation of the Historic Westside School and the new Supreme Court Building provided positive impacts in our
community as well as around the country, Both the Westside School and the Supreme Court Building took advantage
of federally-funded New Markets Tax Credits that can be used to invest in low-income and underserved communities.
In 2014, the City was awarded $28 million in New Markets Tax Credits from the U.S. Treasury Department. Due to the
success of our city in using those funds for amazing and successful projects, the City was notified that it will receive
$55 million in addition tax credits. This is a game-changer for downtown development. These funds are available for
new projects and they are the energizer we need to continue the momentum that has been established downtown. The
potential of development is without limits in our downtown,

It is well know that more rooftops are nceded downtown. There is a symbiotic relationship between the amenities
found in a city’s core and people living downtown. The Downtown Master Plan estimates adding 5,500 units of
various formats over the next 25+ years, which will help attract quality commercial goods and services to the
downtown area. Already under construction is Fremont 9, consisting of 231 apartments and 15,000-square-feet of
retail at the corner of Fremont and Ninth streets. This development comes from the Downtown Project and Tony Hsieh,
Newland Communities is scheduled to begin construction on 500 housing units on Symphony Park parcels C & N this
spring. This moves the city closer to achieving the residential and mixed-use combination that has always been a part
of the Symphony Park master plan.

The need for this housing is clear with all of the new amenities and businesses coming online. For example, the City
has matched the fundraising by a local group looking to bring a new museum of modern art downtown. There are more
benchmarks to meet, but a new museum at Symphony Park is a very real possibility in our city. It would serve as a
bookend to the Smith Center for the Performing Arts, which is close to welcoming its two millionth visitor.

The City completed a Tourism Improvement District financing package using STAR bonds to assist with funding
infrastructure improvements and a new 1,000-space parking garage at Sympheny Park. The garage will serve as an
added incentive for prospective developers as well as generate new revenue to support building additional parking
garages to support development.

Major Initiatives

The City of Las Vegas is a leader when it comes 1o transparency and getting information out to residents. From KCLV
Channel 2, to the more than 135,000 Twitter followers that the City has following, we provide access. Recently added
programs include the new Vegas TMI pod-cast, the Daily Dose social media broadcast and the television show
Trending Vegas.



Results Vegas is a new city performance management initiative using data to drive results. The City has taken a fresh
look at how it can use data to improve services, make informed decisions and engage the community. Each City
department is setting outcome oriented goals that are aligned to one of the four citywide priorities: growing economy,
neighborhood livability, community risk reduction and high performing government. To make it easy for the public to
access this information, all of the data, including performance indicators, charts and maps, are available on the city
website.

The City Council created the Department of Youth Development and Social Innovation through reorganization of
current resources to promote education reform, coordinate educational activities within the city and research best
practices with the goal of gaining valuable access to premiere institutions and expertise on education. The department
also uses social innovation to encourage the development of new ideas and directions for solving problems creatively
and effectively.

Changes are coming to the Clark County School District, but that is a process, and it will take time. The City is moving
forward to fill in the gaps in our children’s education, and this is being led by our Department of Youth Development
and Social Innovation. We understand that a child’s learning is not limited to when they arrive at school until the
afternoon bell rings. That is why we have developed programs like Safekey, Batteries Included and Strong Start to
teach children during the before- and after-school hours.

We are reinventing schools in our urban core, creating hubs that serve as the center for not only a student’s education
but also a point where a family can access services and programs. Our Downtown Achieves and Las Vegas My
Brother’s Keeper programs now fall under the Relnvent Schools umbrella. By giving children a strong start and
getting them reading before kindergarten we have the chance to improve our high school graduation percentages and
our community.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. The Certificate of Achievement is the highest form of recognition for excellence in
state and local government financial reporting. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City published
an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to
program standards. Such comprehensive annual financial reports must satisfy both GAAP and applicable legal
requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The City has received a Certificate of
Achievement for the last 36 consecutive years (fiscal years 1980-2015). The City believes that this current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements,
and is submitting it to the GFOA.

The preparation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report was made possible by the dedicated service of the staff
of the Finance Department. Each member of the department has our sincere appreciation for the contributions made in
the preparation of this report. Credit also must be given to the Mayor and City Council for their unfailing support for
maintaining the highest standards of professionalism in the management of the City’s finances.

Respectfully submitted,
LTS Ooretta_ Qoo

Elizabgfh N. Fretwell Venetta Appleyard
City Manager Finance Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Members of the City Council
City of Las Vegas, Nevada

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City
of Las Vegas (the City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

An audit performed in accordance with applicable professional standards is a process designed to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the City's basic financial statements are free from material misstatement. This process involves
performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the basic financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
basic financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the City's preparation and fair presentation of the basic financial statements to enable the design of audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as the overall presentation of the basic financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements. Management is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the basic financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of basic financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the basic financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the basic financial statements are free from material misstatement.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion. In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component
units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2016, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, and the budgetary comparison information for the
general fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.
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Other Matters. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis, postemployment benefits other than pensions, schedule of funding progress, proportionate share of
the collective net pension liability information, proportionate share of statutorily required pension contribution information,
and budgetary comparison information on pages 19-29 and 111-112 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming our opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The introductory section, other supplementary information, as
listed in the table of contents, statistical section and schedule of business license fees are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The other supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the other supplementary information as listed in the table of contents is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory section, statistical section and schedule of business license fees have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards. In accordance with Government Auditing Standards,
we have also issued our report dated December 22, 2016, on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the City's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

PosyBrabaiogled ken

Las Vegas, Nevada
December 22,2016
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSI¢
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDEL JUNE 30, 201

As management of th€ity of Las Vegas, Neva: (the City), we offer readers of the City's basicahcial
statements this narrative overview and analysithefCity’s financial activities as of and for theay ended
June 30, 201. We encourage readers to consider the informgtiesented here in conjunction with additional
information that we have furnished in our lettetrafhsmittal, which can be found on page 5 of tamrt.

Financial Highlights
Government-wide

. The assets and deferred outflows of resourceseo€tty exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflow
of resources at the close of fiscal year endade 30, 201, by $3,637,506,0¢ (net position).
Governmental activities represe$?,815,508,51 of the total net position ar$i821,997,58 is from
business-type activities. Of this amou$s. € billion is net investment in capital asset824." million
is restricted for various purposes, and unresttiatet position is a deficit o$454.« million.
Unrestricted net position has been used to meegitlyss ongoing obligation to citizens and credgor

. Government-wide total governmental expenses $&@2,214,71. The major expense functions were
Public Safety a$378,364,95, Public Works at$82,163,89, General Government &75,140,26,
and Culture and Recreation$84,801,15. Business-type activitigproprietary fundspperating and
non-operating expenses totaled $114,054,596.

. The City’'s primary revenue sources are ad valorgoperty) taxes of$112,261,77 and
intergovernmental-consolidated taxes $#71,991,61. Combined, these two sources represent 52
percent of the total governmental activities reveafi$744,724,215 from the statement of activities.

Fund Level:

. At the close of Fiscal Yea201¢, the City’s governmental funds reported combinedimg fund
balances 0f614,000,04. Of this amount$54,021,33 is nonspendable$362,301,64 is restricted,
$20,489,018 is committed, $94,114,369 is assignddb&3,073,667 is unassigned.

. The general fund had a total fund balancé126,299,34 at June 30, 201, which representel5
percent of total General Fund revenues. The as$ignd unassigned fund balance \$8%,992,32.
It is the City’s fiscal policy to maintain a totahding fund balance in the general fund of at |&&st
percent of operating revenues.

Long-term Debt:

. The City's total debt had a netncreas of $181,585,77, excluding premiums and discounts.
Contributing factors were bond issues of $211,608,0Current Refunding Bonds issued of
$69,825,000 and Advance Refunding Bonds issued 88,500,000, which includes $83,400,000 for
the City of Las Vegas Redevelopment Agency (thenggp (a component unit). The City paid
$33,042,423 in debt payments and $268,733,073rnercuand advance refundings to escrow agents.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis serves as an intrimauttd the City’s basic financial statements. Thg/'€ basic
financial statements are comprised of three commsnel) government-wide financial statements, 2)dfu
financial statements, and 3) notes to the basianfirml statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the bdsiancial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements The government-wide financial statemermi®e designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the City’s finasida a manner similar to private-sector business.

The statement of net positigoresents information on all of the City’s asseisferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources,hiite difference between the two reportedi@isposition Over
time, increases or decreases in net position ntaye s a useful indicator of whether the finanpiasition of
the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activitiegresents information showing how the governmemtisposition changed during the
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSI¢
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDEL JUNE 30, 201

most recent fiscal year. All changes in net positioe reported as soon as the underlying evemgiise to
the change occursegardless of the timing of related cash floWhus, revenues and expenses are reported in
this statement for some items that will only resultash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uitexed taxes
and earned but unused vacation and sick leaveh &dthe government-wide financial statements wligtish
functions of the City that are principally suppaktby taxes and intergovernmental revenugs/érnmental
activitieg from other functions that are intended to recoaféror a significant portion of their costs thrdug
user fees and chargebuginess-type activitips The governmental activities of the City includeneral
government, judicial, public safety, public workselfare, health, culture and recreation, economic
development and assistance, transit systems, tew@sh on long-term debt. The business-type aetsvitf the
City include operations of its water pollution cantfacility (sanitation), municipal golf course,umicipal
parking, building permits and inspections, and mofipcorporation activities.

The government-wide financial statements includeamby the City itself (known as thgrimary government

but also the activities of legally separate compomits: City of Las Vegas Redevelopment Agenayl Bon-
Profit Corporations. Because the City Council axdghe governing board or has oversight power dch ef
these component units, their activities are blenditdl those of the primary government because fhiegtion

as part of the City. The City also reports threscditely presented component units; The Commidsiothe
Las Vegas Centennial and LVCIC-SUB CDE | and II,d_which are all legally and operationally separate
from the City.

By Nevada state statute, the City and Clark Co(@tunty) are partners in a joint venture that @éahe Las
Vegas Metropolitan Police Department (LVMPD). A dimember fiscal affairs committee approves the
LVMPD budget and related business matters. The dtigeris composed of two appointees each from ihe C
and the County, and one appointee from the gepetalic. The statute defines the funding formularsteby
the City and the County. Complete financial infotima for the LVMPD is included in the comprehensive
annual financial report of Clark County, Nevada.

Additional information on the LVMPD joint ventur@e be found in the notes to the government-widaniial
statements on page of this report. In additiofutaling its share of the LVMPD, the City maintaits own
detention facility and a small police force (Cityarshals) that has jurisdiction over City propeggpecially
parks and recreation facilities.

The government-wide financial statements can bedan pages 34-37 of this report.

Fund financial statements A fundis a grouping of related accounts that is used antain control over
resources that have been segregated for spectfigtias or objectives. The City, like other staad local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure andort#rate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the City can lieidkd into three categories: governmental fundeppetary
funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental fundsGovernmental fundare used to account for essentially the same ibnstreported as
governmental activitiesn the government-wide financial statements. Havewunlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financiatesnents focus omear-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resourceas well as oibalances of spendable resoureailable at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating the Citytsar-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrdiager that of the government-wide financial statetseit

is useful to compare the information presentedgimrernmental fundsith similar information presented for

governmental activitiesn the government-wide financial statements. Byindoso, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the City's nieam financing decisions. Both the governmentaldfun
balance sheet and the governmental fund statenfierevenues, expenditures and changes in fund badanc
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comzam betweeigovernmental fundandgovernmental activities.

The City maintains several individual governmentahds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the goverahéund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances for the General FundCityeof Las Vegas debt service fund, the Road dodd-
capital projects fund, and the Sanitation enteepfisid. Each of these funds is considered to bajarnfund.
Data from the other governmental funds are combintwa single, aggregated presentation. Individuadt
data for each of the non-major governmental furglgriovided in the Combining and Individual Funds
Statements and Schedules subsections of this report
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSI¢
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The City adopts an annual appropriated budgett$ogeneral fund and each of its special revenudsfudebt
service funds, and capital project funds and itsna@ent fund. A budgetary comparison statementdsiged

for each of the City's governmental funds to demt@te compliance with this budget. The budgetary
comparison schedules for the General Fund is Idcitehe basic financial statements; the Road dndd~
major Capital Projects Fund and other Non-majoregomental funds are included in the Combining and
Individual Fund Statements and Schedules subseatitinis report.

The basic governmental fund financial statememsbeafound on pages 38 and 40 of this report.
Proprietary funds. The City maintains two different types of propaigy funds.

1. Enterprise funds are used to report the sametifunscpresented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The City ws#erprise funds to account for its municipal golf
course, sewer (sanitation), municipal parking, baiiding and safety (development services), as well
as its non-profit corporations.

2. Internal service funds are used to accumulateadindate costs internally among the City’s various
functions. The City uses internal service fundadoount for the following activities:

. Emergency dispatch services

. Reprographics equipment and operations

. Vehicle, computer and phone management

. Self-insurance activities, including:
O Liability insurance and property damage
O Employee benefits

. Facilities maintenance and custodial services

Because these services predominantly benefit goatal rather than business-type functions, the lheen
included within governmental activities in the govaent-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of inforamatis the government-wide financial statementg; on
more detail. The basic proprietary fund financi@tements provide separate information for the t&on
Enterprise Fund, which is considered a major fuhdhe City. Conversely, the internal service furate
combined into a single, aggregated presentatiathénproprietary fund financial statements. Indiadéund
data for the internal service funds and non-majdemrise funds is provided in the Combining andividual
Funds Statements and Schedules subsections oéfius.

The basic proprietary fund financial statementstoafound on pages 44-48 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resouhedd for the benefit of parties outside the
government. The City’s Fiduciary funds consistloke Agency funds. Fiduciary funds are not refiédtethe
government-wide financial statements because theurees of those funds are not available to suppert
City’s own programs.

The basic fiduciary funds financial statement caridund on page 49 of this report.

Notes to the basic financial statementsThe notes provide additional information thaegsential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the govertméaste and fund financial statements. The noteshto
basic financial statements can be found on pagd9B®f this report.

Required supplementary information. This section has additional information to suppbe basic financial
statement. It includes a schedule of funding pregréor the City's postemployment health care plan,
reconciliation to combine the General Fund andRiseal Stabilization Special Revenue Fund, and didis
related to the City's proportionate share of charigehe Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS)
pension liability and schedule of contributionseTequired supplementary information can be foumgpages
111-112 of this report.
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Other information . In addition to the basic financial statements andompanying notes, the report also
presents a subsection titted Combining and Indafideunds Statements and Schedules Section, which
includes the schedules for the City’s major governtal funds — budget and actual, non-major goventzhe
funds, major proprietary funds - budget and actnah-major proprietary funds, internal service fairathd
fiduciary funds, together with information on capiassets used in the operation of governmentalsfun
(those not included in internal service funds). Garimg and individual fund statements and schedcéesbe
found on pages 115 - 210 of this report

The Statistical section can be found on pa@#8-23¢ of this report. This section includes schedules on
statistical information provided on a trend basisHfistorical analysis.

The Compliance and Supplementary Information seaten be found on pagé&€9-11: of this report. This
section includes a schedule in compliance witfesttdtutes.

The Single Audit section can be found on pa@#s - 25! of this report. This section presents a schedille o
expenditures of federal awards for the City, relatetes and a schedule of findings and questioosts.c

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over tawse useful indicator of a government’s financiaipon.
In the case of the City, assets and deferred augfiof resources exceeded liabilities and defemédws of
resources by $3,637,506,099 at the close of the raoent fiscal year.

The largest portion of the city’s net positidr08.€¢ percent) reflects its investment in capital aséets., land,
buildings, infrastructure, machinery and equipmett,), less accumulated depreciation and anyeldébt
used to acquire those assets that is still outstgn@he City uses these capital assets to proségeices to
citizens; consequently, these assetsnateavailable for future spending. Although the Cityisestment in
capital assets is reported net of related delshould be noted that the resources needed to thsagiebt
must be provided from other sources, since thetalapssets themselves cannot be used to liquitiatet
liabilities. Total net position increased by 1.3qant or $59,043,787.

City of Las Vegas, Neva

Summary Schedule of Net Posit
As of June 30, 201 and201&

Governmentz Business-typ Total
201¢€ 201¢ 201¢€ 201¢ 201¢€ 201¢
(restatec (restatec
Current and other ass $ 732,225,81 $ 502,318,65 $ 165,705,69 $ 16845854 $ 897,931,51 $ 670,777,20
Net capital asse 3,726,718,73 3,731,19567  839,807,89  819,707,88 4,566,526,63 4,550,903,56
Total assets 4,458,944,55 4,233,514,33 1,005513,59  988,166,43 5,464,458,14 5,221,680,76
Deferred outflows of resourc 98,750,09 58,576,42 10,110,64 8,626,63! 108,860,74 67,203,06
Long-term liabilitie: 1,638,027,67 1,340,471,09 177,247,61  182,686,01 1,81527529 1,523,157,10
Other liabilities 51,638,410 61,942,76 9,598,53 19,971,93 61,236,94 81,914,70
Total liabilities 1,689,666,08 1,402,413,85 186,846,15  202,657,95 1,876,512,24 1,605,071,80
Deferred inflows of resourc 52,520,05 93,197,88. 6,780,49 12,151,82 59,300,54  105,349,70
Net position
Net investment in capital ass 3,033,558,34 3,226,775,19  733,647,93  741,024,81 3,767,206,28 3,967,800,01
Restrictel 324,677,25  130,570,18 324,677,25  130,570,18
Unrestricted (Deficit (542,727,081 (560,866,36¢ 88,349,64 40,958,48  (454,377,43¢ (519,907,88¢
Total net position $2,815,508,51 $2,796,479,01 $ 821,997,58 $ 781,983,29 $ 3,637,506,09 $3,578,462,31

The City’s total net position i$3,637,506,0¢, of which$(454,377,43¢ is unrestricted deficit net position
An additional portion of the City’s net positionpresents resources that are subject to externattiesms on

how they may be used. Of the total restricted nsttjpn of $324,677,255, 5.2 percent is for corettan and

maintenance of capital projects, 63.6 percent isrépayment of long-term debt, 9.7 percent is foeet

maintenance, and 15.2 percent is for economic dpuant and assistance.
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At the end of the current fiscal year, the Cityide to report positive balances in two of the éhrategories
of its net position, for the governmental acti\stend business-type activities.

Governmental activities Governmental activitiedecrease the City’s net position by $19,029,498. There
was a prior period adjustment of 11,271,544 thatefesed the City's beginning net position. Keynelets

of this decrease are as follows:

Revenue:
Program revenue
Charges for servic
Operating grants and contributic
Capital grants and contributic
General revenue
Consolidated te
Property taxe
Room ta:
Residential construction t
Motor vehicle fuel ta
Unrestricted investment earnit
Gain on disposal of capital ass
Total revenue

Expense:
General governme
Judicia
Public safet
Public work:
Welfare
Healtk
Culture and recreatit
Economic development and assiste
Transit systemn
Interest on long-term de
Sanitatiol
Development servic
Parking
Golf courst
Land developmel

Total expense

Change in net position before trans
Transfers in (ou
Change in net positic

Net position - July 1, as previou
reporte
Prior period adjustme

Net position - July 1, as resta

Net position - June !

City of Las Vegas, Neva
Changes in Net Positi

For the Fiscal Year Ende June 30, 201 and201%

Governmentz

201¢

201¢

Business-typ

201¢

201¢

Total

201¢

201¢

$ 185,544,37 $ 182,528,888 $ 121,255,93 $ 105,966,93 $ 306,800,30 $ 288,495,81

17,623,01 13,098,84 17,907,03 14,286,48 35,530,04 27,385,32
135,961,94 144,082,99 10,861,02 12,569,18 146,822,97 156,652,17
271,991,61 261,542,20 271,991,61 261,542,20
112,261,77 106,579,22 112,261,77 106,579,22

2,872,50: 4,552,41: 2,872,50: 4,552,41:
1,079,96:. 963,40¢ 1,079,96:. 963,40¢
9,806,06! 8,826,96: 9,806,06! 8,826,96:
6,932,87. 3,331,86: 2,564,88! 1,069,06: 9,497,76. 4,400,92.
650,10( 1,854,18: 650,10( 1,854,18
744,724,21 727,360,99 152,588,88 133,891,65 897,313,10 861,252,64

75,140,26 72,289,01 75,140,26 72,289,01

28,497,88 27,459,62 28,497,88 27,459,62
378,364,95 275,512,13 378,364,95 275,512,13

82,163,89 79,774,10 82,163,89 79,774,10

305,33! 280,15 305,33! 280,15
4,371,35: 4,316,00: 4,371,35: 4,316,00:
84,801,15 80,989,42 84,801,15 80,989,42
30,795,18 24,845,07 30,795,18 24,845,07
941 954 941 954
39,773,74 34,557,02 39,773,74 34,557,02
92,803,66 90,258,11 92,803,66 90,258,11

9,658,971 10,712,86 9,658,971 10,712,86

8,005,54: 7,371,38. 8,005,54: 7,371,38.

2,539,92- 2,560,15! 2,539,92. 2,560,15!

1,046,48 1,494,79. 1,046,48 1,494,79.

724,214,71 600,023,51 114,054,59 112,397,31 838,269,31 712,420,82

20,509,49 127,337,47 38,534,28 21,494,34 59,043,78 148,831,81

(1,480,000  (63,627,06& 1,480,001 63,627,06

19,029,49 63,710,41 40,014,28 85,121,40 59,043,78 148,831,81

2,807,750,56 2,744,040,14 781,983,29 696,861,89 3,589,733,85 3,440,902,03
(11,271,544 (11,271,544
2,796,479,01 2,744,040,14 781,983,29 696,861,89 3,578,462,31 3,440,902,03

$ 2,815,508,51 $2,807,750,56 $ 821,997,58 $ 781,983,29 $ 3,637,506,09 $3,589,733,85

23
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Program revenues for governmental activities inelwtharges for services, licenses and permits, apeci
assessments, inter-governmental fines and forésituand both operating and capital grants andibations.
Program revenues of the governmental activitievigea 45.5 percent of the resources necessary to pay the
cost of providing program services. The remainimggpam costs were financed from general revenues.
Operating grants and contributions hawverease $4.5 million to $17.€ million. Capital grants and
contributions decreased 5.6 percent over the gear to approximately $136.0 million.

The largest general revenues are consolidated ft$2701,991,61 and Ad Valorem tax (property tax) of
$112,261,77, representings?2 percent of total governmental revenues. Consdiiatx increase 4.C
percent from anincreas in taxable sales. Property taxes hamerease $5,682,54 during the vyear,
attributable to a 12 percent increase in assessgukbqty values city-wide and a 17.8 percent inczeias
assessed property values within the City’s Red@weént Agency tax increment area.

Expenses in public safety #878,364,95 and public works 0$82,163,89 represent3.€ percent of the
total governmental expenses. Public Works majoeegps consist of planning and engineering of tig<Ci
arterial street and floodwater conveyance syst@ublic Safety’s major expenses increased by 37epé&ror
approximately $103 million. Reasons for the insednclude increased Other Post-Employment Benefits
(OPEB) and LVMPD pension liability.

Expenses & Revenues - Governmental Activities (irhbusands)

2016 015

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities

2016 2015

048 RoamT

L u—

01 Dcl‘?o-r |.:Tlﬂ=':‘l_':’=;“ i 0180 Residentid
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Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City's pesition by $40,014,289.
Sanitation revenue increased by $10 million dusewer connection charges increasing $1.5 millich4 .8
million increase in developer contributions and3a5$million increase in investment earnings. Mipat
parking revenues increased by $1.3 million duertation of metered parking lots. Nonprofit corpmna
revenues increased by $8.5 million from a judgemsettiement from Union Pacific Railroad for
environmental clean up. There was also a $7.4amilllecrease in the investment in capital asset$,aa
$47.4 million increase in unrestricted net position

Sanitation-related operating expenses represedt [@rcent of total operating expenses for busitygss-
activities. These expensaggrease by 2.€ percent in201¢€ due to software updgrade costs of $1.5 million,
increased consultant costs of $1 million, fleetitidids of $700,000 and increased debt interest rsp®f
$1.2 million.

Business-type activities program revenues provitBIpercent of the resources to finance their dijpers

Expenses & Program Revenues - Business type Actieis

2016 2015
Expansas Program Favanua Expansas Program Favanua
$150,000 e = $150,000 e =
$120,000 $120,000
00,000 00,000
$60,000 $60,000
530,000 530,000
] ]
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Revenues by Source - Business type Activities
2016 2015
Unsestrictad investment szmins 280
Operating Grants 1280
and Contributians
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Financial Analysis of City’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accountingrisure and demonstrate compliance with financelaitegl
legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City'ggovernmental fundss to provide information on current
inflows, outflows, and balances ependableresources. Such information is useful in assessiagCity’s
financing requirements. In particulaynassigned fund balancenay serve as a useful measure of a
government’s net resources available for spenditigeaend of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Gitgovernmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances 0$614.( million, anincreas of $248.t million from the prior year. Approximately177.Z million,

or 28.¢€ percent of the total fund balance, constituteassigned and unassigned fund balance. Approximately
$436.8 million, or71.1 percent of the total fund balance is either nondpble ($54.0 million), restricted
($362.3 million) or committed ($20.5 million).

The general fund is the primary operating fundhef City. At the end of the current fiscal year, &ssigned
and unassigned fund balance in the General Fund$@&< million and total fund balance w&l26.:
million. As a measure of the general fund’s ligtydiit may be useful to compare both an assigneti an
unassigned fund balance and total fund balancet#b fund expenditures. An assigned and unassifmed
balance represents 21 percent of total fund expaedi and transfers out, while total fund balamgesents
27 percent of that same amount.

The general fund also h&30.: million in nonspendable fund balance, consistiig$@7.< million in
noncurrent loans receivable and $2.7 million ireimories and prepaids of $215,000.

The fund balance of the City’s General Fund incedaly $5,470,090 during the current fiscal yeary Ke
factors in this change are as follows:

. Total revenue increased from the prior year by $18illion or 2.8 percent. Changes were mixed
among major categories, with the largest increasm $0 intergovernmental revenue (consolidated
tax) which increased $11.8 million.

. Total expenditures d$488.: million increased from the prior year by 18.8 roifl or 3.9 percent.
This increase was driven primarily by increasedt @ogublic safety (employee benefit costs) of
15.9 million or 4.8 percent.

. Transfers out decreased by $12 million or 30 percen

The Road and Flood capital projects fund has & fustal balance 0$10.Z million; $2.2 million was assigned
for construction projects for road improvementsvbich $7.€ million was restricted for road improvements.
The net decrease in fund balance during the cuyeartwas $4.7 million. The fund receiv80.1 million in
revenues from other governmental reimbursementhaddexpenditures for capital projectssdD.¢ million.
The fund had a net transfer in of $2.8 million frother nonmajor governmental funds.

The City of Las Vegas Debt Service fund has a toiadl balance of $202.7 million of which $200.2 Iroih
was restricted for debt payments. The net increatie fund balance during the year was $176.4anil

Other non-major governmental funds had a total foahnce of$274.¢ million, of which $23.7 million is
nonspendable$154.: million is restricted,$20.5 million is committed and76.1 million is assignedSet
Note 1. G. 11 for a complete breakdown.

Enterprise Funds. The City's enterprise funds statements providestirae type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in ma&idl Net position of the proprietary funds tothf821.7
million, of which the Sanitation Fund had $715.8liom in net position. The net position of the prigpary
funds increased by $39.1 million. Capital contribns of $10.9 million to Sanitation contributed the
increase. The Sanitation Fund was established ¢ouat for the City-owned and operated sewer system.
Other factors concerning the finances of the peipry funds have already been addressed in thasdisn

of the City’s business-type activities.
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Internal Service Funds. The City's internal service funds are used to audate and allocate costs internally
among the City’s various functions. The City usggrinal service funds to account for its compuésvises,
communications, graphic arts and automotive oparatiThe City also uses internal service fundsctmant

for its self-insurance activities, including liabjl insurance, workers’ compensation, property dgena
insurance and employee benefits. Because theseesmpredominately benefit governmental rather than
business-type functions, they have been includgtiirwigovernmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. Other factors concerningfif@nces of the internal service funds have alreaeign
addressed in the discussion of the City's govertatetivities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

During the year, the General Fund was amended dmease original estimated revenues and original
budgeted appropriations. The City also made an dment to reallocate appropriations among deparsnent
Generally, the movement of the appropriations betwaepartments wamt significant.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets The City and its blended component units’ netitehpassets for its governmental and
business-type activities amounts to $4,566,526,68tof accumulated depreciation of $2,016,530,383f
June 30, 201. Capital assets include land, buildings, improvetsiemachinery and equipment and vehicles,
wastewater systems, infrastructure (roadways,igraf§nals and lighting, signage, pavement mark&tsm
drainage and sanitary sewer lines) and construdtigorogress. For the current fiscal year, the '€ityet
increas in capital assets wa&.t percent before depreciation and after retiremd@tspercent for
governmental activities4.C percent for business-type activities). The citjireel $14,890,918 in capital
assets, which includes $11,271,544 of assets digpgagrior years.

The City has an aggressive capital improvementraragotaling over $1.3 billion over the next fiveays
(the City budgets its capital program in rollingy&ar increments). The City budgets these projettsix
categories: general government, public safety tatom, public works, culture and recreation, andremic
development and assistance. Among these categtr@snajor projects include park and leisure faesi
(55.6 million), sanitation facilities ($215.7 mdh), road and flood channel construction ($354.8ian},
and city facilities ($91.1 million).

Major capital asset events during the current fischyear included the following:

Construction in progress (Clfcrease by a net$42,142,94. Fiscal year201€¢ additions to CIP were
$65,088,67. The major additions to CIP were $65.1 million sgwer lines and repairs, $5.2 million on
buildings and building improvements, $5.9 milliaar fand improvement, $20.1 million on roadways, $10
million on storm drains, and $18.9 million on otlsewer improvements. The City completed and plaated
service $107,231,61 of projects, and transferred them from construciio progress to the appropriate
capital asset category.

Additional information on capital assets can benfibin Note 7.on pages 70-72 of this report.
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City of Las Vegas, Neva
Capital Asset
(net of depreciatiol
As of June 30, 201 andJune 30, 201

Governmentz Business-typ Total
201¢ 201t 201¢ 201t 201¢ 201t
(restatec (restatec
Lanc $1,157,160,48 $1,147,314,45 $ 82,529,991 $ 82,394,20 $1,239,690,39 $1,229,708,66
Construction in progre 103,253,89 141,263,06 146,056,10 150,189,87 249,309,99 291,452,94
Land improvemen 314,531,12 330,233,88 26,386,61 28,370,65 340,917,74 358,604,54
Sewer plant improvemer 191,630,98 206,955,32 191,630,98 206,955,32
Buildings 534,441,24 543,672,23 41,406,66! 42,914,34 575,847,90 586,586,57
Building improvement 105,288,54 112,712,18 1,150,55! 1,223,311 106,439,10 113,935,49
Sewer line 348,752,76 305,594,74 348,752,76 305,594,74
Machinery and equipme 15,694,84 17,339,83 1,894,29: 2,065,42. 17,589,13 19,405,25.
Vehicles 17,334,68 17,220,69 17,334,68 17,220,69
Roadway 766,729,26 734,951,22 766,729,26 734,951,22
Traffic pavement marke 761,02: 513,99( 761,02 513,99(
Traffic signals and lightir 56,455,92 54,017,87 56,455,92 54,017,87
Traffic signag 1,409,44. 1,514,14. 1,409,44. 1,514,14.
Storm drainac 653,658,25 630,442,08 653,658,25 630,442,08
Total capital assets $3,726,718,73 $3,731,195,67 $ 839,807,89 $ 819,707,88 $ 4,566,526,63 $4,550,903,56

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the Citgldts blended component units’ total bonded
debt outstanding wa$804,561,38, exclusive of deferred issuance costs, and premiand discounts. Of
this amount,$439,080,00 comprises general obligation debt backed by thHeféith and credit of the
government,$139,325,00 of general obligation debts additionally securgdspecified revenue sources,
$4,320,96 of special assessment debt for which the Citybiggated in the event of default by the bonded
property owners$188,240,00 of Certificates of Participation (COP®)7,661,28 of Installment Purchases,
$24,800,000 of sales tax increment revenue bomds$s,134,136 of revenue bonds.
City of Las Vegas, Neva
General Obligation and Revenue Bc

(before amortization of premiums, discounts andmoréized debt refunding transacti
As of June 30, 201 and201¢

Government: Business-typ Total
201€ 201¢ 201€ 201¢ 201€ 201¢

General obligation mediut

term bond $ 5592500 % 36,230,00 $ $ $ 5592500 $ 36,230,00
General obligation te

increment revenue bor 83,400,00 81,965,00 83,400,00 81,965,00
Certificates of Participatic

(CoPs 188,240,00 188,255,00 188,240,00 188,255,00
Installment Purchas 7,661,28 8,328,81. 7,661,28 8,328,81.
Special assessment bo 4,320,96! 4,808,87! 4,320,96! 4,808,87!
Sales Tax Increment bor 24,800,00 24,800,00
Revenue bonc 1,134,13 1,207,92: 1,134,131 1,207,92:
General obligation reven

bond: 338,810,00 191,610,00 100,270,00 110,570,00 439,080,00 302,180,00
Total $ 704,291,38 $ 512,405,61 $ 100,270,00 $ 110,570,00 $ 804,561,38 $ 622,975,61

The City and its blended component units added deivt 0f$454,930,00 during the current fiscal year. The
increas resulted from the issuance of $16,145,000 of G#r@bligation Sewer and Sewer Refunding Bonds,
$26,000,000 in General Obligation Parking RefundiBgnds, $227,180,000 in General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, $24,800,000 in Sales Tax Increnfgeenue Bonds, and $160,805,000 in General
Obligation City Hall Bonds. The City's debt prinaippayments totaled $33,042,423 and $240,301,803 in
bond refundings for fiscal year ended June 30, 2f8ilting in a net increase in total debt of $585,774.

State statutes and City Charter limit the amourgesferal obligation debt a governmental entity isaye to
20 percent of its total assessed valuation. Theentidebt limitation for the City is $3.1 billiorsd¢e page
229), which is significantly in excess of the Ci#tyutstanding general obligation debt.
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The City maintains an AA rating from Fitch, an Aating from Standard and Poors (S&P) Corporatiod, an
an AA2 rating from Moody’s Investors Service. Theatngs apply to all of the City’s bond issuesepicfor
the Redevelopment Agency whose S&P rating is BB+.

Additional information on the City’s long-term detr#n be found ilNote 10 on pages 80-93 of this report.
Economic Factors

For fiscal year2017, the assessed valuation of the City is $16,5781486 an increase of $1,058,378,166
over fiscal year201¢, with a combined tax rate of $0.7715 apportionedhe City per $100 of assessed
value. This is the fourth annual increase in agskgalues since the downturn in the economy whictsed a
dramatic decrease in property values in the City.

Requests for Information

The financial report is designed to provide a gahewerview of the City finances for all those witim
interest. Questions concerning any of the inforamatprovided in this report or requests for addion
financial information should be addressed to thpddenent of Finance, 495 S. Main St., Las Vegasala,
89101.
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ASSETS
Pooled cash, cash equivalents
investments, unrestrict
Receivables net of allowan
Property taxe
Consolidated tax
Accountt
Interes
Loan:
Special assessme
Intergovernment
Internal balance
Land held for resa
Inventorie:
Property held for rese
Prepaid iterr
Deposit:
Restricted investmer
Capital asset
Land and construction in progr
Depreciable improvements, buildin
machinery and equipment, a
infrastructure, net of depreciati

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES

Deferred charges on refund
Deferred amounts related to pens

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES

The notes to the basic financial statements aratagral part of this statement.

CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

JUNE 30, 201

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES

BUSINESS
TYPE
ACTIVITIES

STATEMENT OF NET POSITIOI

TOTAL

COMPONENT UNIT¢
COMMISSION
FOR THE LAS LVCIC Sub-
VEGAS CDE land Il
CENTENNIAL LLC

387,409,72 $ 138,288,551 $ 525,69824 $ 1,716,75 $ 14,18¢
2,580,85! 2,580,85!
48,109,71 48,109,71
9,036,55 2,333,92. 11,370,47 67,27
1,541,08: 395,09¢ 1,936,171 6,17¢
19,746,34 9,443,92! 29,190,27 20,519,00
4,823,93 4,823,93
29,856,72 8,247,28 38,104,01 1,445,04.
(3,320,598 3,320,59!
4,123,06: 4,123,06:
3,576,47 3,125,54! 6,702,02!
16,129,06 16,129,06
251,53: 224,61: 476,14. 532,96:
326,19: 326,19:
208,361,32 208,361,32
1,260,414,37 228,586,02 1,489,000,39
2,466,304,36 611,221,87 3,077,526,24
4,458,944,55  1,005,513,59 5,464,458,14 3,161,791 21,139,60
27,714,51 830,90¢ 28,545,41
71,035,58 9,279,74. 80,315,32
98,750,09 10,110,64 108,860,74
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LIABILITIES

Accounts payab
Salaries payab
Deposits payab
Interest payab
Contracts payab

Intergovernmental payat
Claims and judgments paya
Unearned reveni
Noncurrent liabilities
Current portion due or payable wit|

one yeal

Bonds payab

Benefits payab

Compensated absences pay

Heart lung presumptive liabili
Long-term portion due or payable a

one yeal

Bonds payab

Benefits payab

Compensated absences pay
Unearned reveni

Arbitrage rebate payat

Unfunded Metropolitan Police OPI

liability

Unfunded Metropolitan Police r
pension liabilit

Net pension liabilit

OPERB liability

Heart lung presumptive liabili

TOTAL LIABILITIES

CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
STATEMENT OF NET POSITIOI
JUNE 30, 201

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

COMPONENT UNIT¢

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred gain on refundil
Deferred amounts related to pen
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES

NET POSITIOMN

Net investment in capital ass

Restricted fol
Debt servic
Capital project

Economic development and assist:
Street maintenan

Judicia

Culture and recreatit

Public safet

Darling tennis endowme
Cemetery perpetual care-nonexpend
Unrestricted (defici

TOTAL NET POSITION

COMMISSION
BUSINESS FOR THE LAS LVCIC Sub-
GOVERNMENTAL TYPE VEGAS CDE land Il
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL CENTENNIAL LLC

29,944,11 6,928,82! 36,872,94 146,16¢ 73,61
5,779,41. 715,89: 6,495,30:
1,138,91. 521,61( 1,660,52.
9,627,01 718,48: 10,345,49
790,40° 712,11: 1,502,51
2,375,533 1,61¢ 2,377,14:
435,97! 435,97!
1,547,04. 1,547,04.
23,366,39 10,261,91 33,628,30
7,298,53. 7,298,53.
29,557,87 3,412,67. 32,970,54
3,967,59: 3,967,59:
726,136,18 98,301,60 824,437,79
597,93¢ 597,93¢
14,890,05 1,719,16 16,609,22
1,605,33. 1,605,33.
71,08¢ 71,08¢
28,899,56 28,899,56
304,322,20 304,322,20
404,618,93 52,802,62 457,421,55
48,275,96 9,144,31 57,420,28
46,025,35 46,025,35

1,689,666,08 186,846,15 1,876,512,24 146,16¢ 73,61
5,58¢ 5,58¢
52,520,05 6,774,91. 59,294,96
52,520,05 6,780,49 59,300,54
3,033,558,34 733,647,93 3,767,206,28
206,195,54 206,195,54
16,907,80 16,907,80
56,891,19 56,891,19
31,547,56 31,547,56
35,70¢ 35,70¢
824,29¢ 824,29¢
9,686,41 9,686,41
750,00( 750,00(
1,838,73. 1,838,73.

(542,727,081 88,349,64 (454,377,43¢ 3,015,63! 21,065,99

$ 2,815,508,51 $ 821,997,58 $ 3,637,506,09 $ 3,015,631 $ 21,065,99
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FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
Primary Governmer
Governmental Activitie:
General governme
Judicia
Public safet
Public work:
Welfare
Healtk
Culture and recreatit
Economic development and assiste
Transit systemn
Interest on long-term de
Total governmental activiti

Business-type activitie
Sanitatiol
Development servic
Parking
Golf courst
Land developmel
Total business-type activiti
Total primary governme
Component unit:
Commission for the Las Vegas Center
LVCIC SUB CDE | and II, LLC
Total component uni

CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

PROGRAN
OPERATINC
CHARGES FOt GRANTS ANC
EXPENSE! SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS
$ 75,140,26 $ 101,552,62 $ 225,07¢
28,497,88 21,282,76 501,25:
378,364,95 33,217,09 2,834,30:
82,163,89 3,685,00: 970,50:
305,33¢ 2,64t 287,49t
4,371,35: 532,03¢
84,801,15 20,441,21 201,16¢
30,795,18 4,830,99: 12,603,21
941
39,773,74
724,214,71 185,544,37 17,623,01
92,803,66! 88,816,75 17,907,03
9,658,971 11,374,71
8,005,54: 9,184,76!
2,539,92- 1,823,591
1,046,48! 10,056,10
114,054,59 121,255,93 17,907,03
$ 838,269,31 $ 306,800,30 $ 35,530,04
$ 1,558,11: $ 1,979,63 $
272,60! 196,23t 9,858, 75:
$ 1,830,71 $ 2,175,86' $ 9,858,75:

The notes to the basic financial statements aratagral part of this statement.
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NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE ANI

REVENUES CHANGES IN NET POSITIOI
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT COMPONENT UNIT¢
COMMISSION FOF
CAPITAL GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPI THE LAS VEGAS  LVCIC SUB-CDE
GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL CENTENNIAL AND II, LLC
$ 6,881,22° $ 33,518,66' $ $ 33,518,66'
(6,713,876 (6,713,876
4,839,23! (337,474,321 (337,474,321
109,212,62 31,704,23 31,704,23
(15,194 (15,194
(3,839,317 (3,839,317
10,444,05 (53,714,72¢ (53,714,72¢
4,584,81. (8,776,158 (8,776,158
(941, (941,
(39,773,742 (39,773,742
135,961,94 (385,085,38- (385,085,382
10,861,02 24,781,16 24,781,16
1,715,74. 1,715,74.
1,179,21 1,179,21
(716,334 (716,334
9,009,61. 9,009,61.
10,861,02 35,969,40 35,969,40
$ 146,822,97 (385,085,382 35,969,40 (349,115,987
$ 421,52:
9,782,38.
$ 421,52: 9,782,38.
General revenue
Intergovernmental revenu
consolidated te 271,991,61 271,991,61
Property taxe 112,261,77 112,261,77
Room ta: 2,872,50. 2,872,50.
Residential construction t 1,079,96: 1,079,96:
Motor vehicle fuel ta 9,806,06! 9,806,06!
Unrestricted investment earnit 6,932,87. 2,564,88! 9,497,76: 142,31:
Gain on disposal of capital ass 650,10( 650,10(
Transfer (1,480,000 1,480,001
Total general revenues and trans 404,114,88 4,044,88! 408,159,76 142,31:
Change in net position 19,029,49 40,014,28 59,043,78 421,52: 9,924,69!
Net position - July 2,807,750,56 781,983,29 3,589,733,85 2,594,10! 11,141,30
as previously reportt
Prior period adjustme (11,271,544 (11,271,544
Net position - July 1, as resta 2,796,479,01 781,983,29 3,578,462,31 2,594,10! 11,141,30
Net position - June ! $ 2,815,508,51 $ 821,997,58 $ 3,637,506,09 $ 3,015,63! 21,065,99
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 201
Othe
City of Las Non-Majol
Vegas Det Governmentz
Genere Road and Floc Service Fund: Total
ASSETS
Pooled cash, cash equivalents and investn
unrestricted $ 6895691 $ 7,328,84" $ 686,02: $ 243,171,90 $ 320,143,69
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles)
Property tax 1,627,19 351 953,30¢ 2,580,85!
Consolidated tax 48,109,71 48,109,71
Accounts 7,117,76. 50,00( 339,10¢ 7,506,87:
Interest 351,19¢ 783,79 289,82: 1,424,811
Loans 27,378,56 11,104,14 38,482,70
Special assessments 4,823,93 4,823,93
Intergovernmental 906,13¢ 11,729,93 17,220,65 29,856,72
Due from other funds 8,99t 1,000,001 51,64t 1,060,64t
Land held for resale 4,123,06: 4,123,06:
Inventories 2,713,85! 2,713,85!
Property held for resale 16,129,06 16,129,06
Prepaid items 214,60( 36,93! 251,53
Restricted investments 200,183,90 8,177,41:  208,361,32
Total assets $ 157,384,94 $ 19,058,78 $ 202,704,08 $ 306,420,99 $ 685,568,80
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 6,499,700 $ 8,502,22' $ 52,06¢ $ 11,775,66 $ 26,829,66
Salaries payable 5,131,36- 85,12: 5,216,48!
Due to other funds 1,058,62: 1,058,62.
Deposits payable 688,45° 443,77¢ 1,132,231
Contracts payable 376,09¢ 414,31 790,40°
Loans payable 811,53¢ 811,53¢
Intergovernmental payable 930,49( 1,445,04. 2,375,53.
Unearned revenue 826,21¢ 720,82: 1,547,04.
Total liabilities 14,887,77 8,878,32. 52,06¢ 15,943,36 39,761,52
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - property tax 1,197,83 351 595,15¢ 1,793,341
Unavailable revenue - loans 15,000,00 10,211,92 25,211,92
Unavailable revenue - special assessments 4,801,971 4,801,971
Total deferred inflows of resources 16,197,83 351 15,609,06 31,807,24
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resour 31,085,60 8,878,32: 52,415 31,552,42 71,568,76
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendab 30,307,01 23,714,32 54,021,33
Restricted 7,854,21! 200,183,90 154,263,52  362,301,64
Committed 20,489,01 20,489,01
Assigned 13,211,46 2,326,24. 2,467,75! 76,108,90 94,114,36
Unassigned 82,780,86' 292,80° 83,073,66
Total fund balances 126,299,34 10,180,45 202,651,66 274,868,57 _ 614,000,04
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resourcesdaiunc
balances $ 157,384,94 $ 19,058,78 $ 202,704,08 $ 306,420,99 $ 685,568,80

The notes to the basic financial statements aratagral part of this statement.

38



CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAEUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITIOI
JUNE 30, 201

Amounts reported for governmental activities in sketement of net position (pages 34 - 35) arewifft because:

Total fund balances - total governmental fu (page4Q) $ 614,000,04

Capital assets used in governmental activitiesiatdinancial resources ai
therefore, are not reported in the funds. Capg&aéts consist of governmet
assets of $3,713,352,233 and internal service &sséts of $13,366,5( 3,726,718,73

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, am due and payable in1
current period and, therefore, are not reportetiénfunds (1,530,222,98:

Other long-term assets are not available to pagdarent-period expenditures a
therefore, are deferred in the fur 10,813,78

Internal service funds are used by managementametthe costs of varic
services to individual funds. The assets and it#sl of the internal service fur
are included in governmental activities in theestant of net position. Total t
position in the internal service funds is $7,812,42ss$253,98 to reflec
consolidation of internal service fund activitiesrelated enterprise funds; and
$13,366,501 of internal service fund net capitak&sreflected in governmer
activities (5,801,065

Net position of governmental activiti (page 35) $ 2,815,508,51

The notes to the basic financial statements aratagral part of this statement.
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Revenues
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Special assessments
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:
General government
Judicial
Public safety
Public works
Health
Welfare
Culture and recreation
Economic development and assistance
Debt Service:
Principal retirement
Payment to current bond refunding agent
Interest and fiscal charges
Capital outlay:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Economic development and assistance
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (un
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Payment to advance refunding bond es
agent
Proceeds from bonds issued
Premium on bond issued
Discounts on bond issued
Proceeds from refunding bonds issued
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net changes in fund balan

Fund balances, July 1

Fund balances, June 30

CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IRUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Othe
City of Las Non-Majol Total
Vegas Det Government: Government:

Genere Road and Floc Service Fund: Fund:
$ 8737832 $ 38,682,44 126,060,76
86,467,48 725,59:. 87,193,07
277,973,97 50,011,95. 4,570,69! 41,863,10 374,419,72
42,282,63 6,781,20- 49,063,83
13,053,84 151,36( 13,205,20.
30,413,09 30,413,09
1,460,96! 1,898,72. 2,519,18: 5,878,87
3,182,58. 55,69¢ 500,00( 14,184,39 17,922,67.
511,799,80 50,067,65 6,969,41! 135,320,38 704,157,25
53,152,37 5,581,81. 58,734,18
26,109,55 2,605,98: 28,715,54
345,000,88 2,852,721 347,853,60
11,035,56 4,333,47. 5,468,27. 20,837,31.
4,149,91! 309,29¢ 4,459,21°
305,33! 305,33!
43,936,74 8,492,70: 52,429,44
4,524,971 23,884,11 28,409,08
21,812,06 2,285,58! 24,097,65
57,435,00 57,435,00
28,866,54 10,069,12 38,935,66
31,194 1,865,26' 1,896,46:
50,54 7,300,90: 7,351,44.
46,89( 50,801,07 9,006,35 59,854,32
234,50: 12,623,52 12,858,03
46,88: 1,068,95! 1,115,83i
488,320,02 55,134,55 108,113,60 93,719,96 745,288,13
23,479,78 (5,066,897 (101,144,18: 41,600,41 (41,130,88<
10,021,26 2,814,63: 34,911,41 45,096,45 92,843,76.
(28,030,95C (2,442,892 (65,305,147 (95,778,98¢
152,87" 152,87"
(98,297,021 (95,500,82¢ (193,797,84¢
160,805,00 50,800,00 211,605,00
36,380,51 11,254,12 47,634,63
(163,175 (163,175
143,780,00 83,400,00 227,180,00
(18,009,69C 371,74t 277,579,91 29,734,30 289,676,27
5,470,09! (4,695,151  176,435,72 71,334,71 248,545,38
120,829,25 14,875,61 26,215,93 203,533,85 365,454,65
$ 126,29934 $ 10,180,45 $ 202,651,66 $ 274,868,57 $ 614,000,04

The notes to the basic financial statements aratagral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TOHE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Amounts reported for governmental activities in sketement of activities (page 36 - 37) are difielzecause:

Net changes in fund balances - total governmentald(page 4C $ 248,545,38

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expgene. However, in the statem
of activities the cost of those assets is allocatest their estimated useful liv
and reported as depreciation expense. This isnttoaiat by which depreciatii
exceeds capital outlay in the current pel

The net effect of various transactions involvingita assets (i.e., sales, trade-
transfers, and donations) is to increase net po:s

Property tax revenue and special assessments eirethe statement of activit
that do not provide current financial resourcesratereported as revenues in
funds

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds) pes/@irrent financial resource:
governmental funds, while the repayment of thegipial of long-term del
consumes the current financial resources of goventahfunds. Neithi
transaction, however, has any effect on net pasi#idso, governmental fun
report the effect of premiums, discounts, and simtems when debt is fil
issued, whereas these amounts are deferred antizzdan the statement
activities. This amount is the net effect of thdgterences in the treatment
long-term debt and related itel

Some expenses reported in the statement of aesivdtd not require the use
current financial resources and, therefore, argemirted as expenditures
governmental fund

Internal service funds are used by managementametthe costs of a variety
services (i.e., fleet, graphic reproduction, pusehand maintenance of comput
maintenance of radios, pagers, cellular, and teleg$, etc.) to individual func
The net revenue of certain activities of interrabgce funds is reported w
governmental activitie

(36,745,41¢

30,477,69

(1,031,571

(239,357,23¢

20,466,25

(3,325,611

Change in net position of governmental activi(page37) $

19,029,49

The notes to the basic financial statements aratagral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
GENERAL FUNLC
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGHE BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

42

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge
Revenue:
Taxe: $ 8753750 $ 8753750 $ 87,378,32 $ (159,178
Licenses and perm 86,841,93 86,841,93 86,467,48 (374,455
Intergovernment 278,298,21  278,298,21 277,973,97 (324,246
Charges for servic 40,914,06 40,914,06 42,282,63 1,368,571
Fines and forfei 15,069,12 15,069,12 13,053,84 (2,015,277
Interes 746,00( 746,00( 1,237,88! 491,88(
Miscellaneou 2,485,00. 2,485,00. 3,182,58. 697,58:
Total revenue 511,891,83  511,891,83 511,576,71 (315,123
Expenditures
General governme
Legislative 3,702,18 3,702,18 3,578,42 123,75!
Executive 10,912,44. 10,912,44. 9,955,69 956,74
Financial administratic 20,532,64 20,532,64 18,829,28 1,703,35!
Othel 25,928,27 24,128,27 20,809,35 3,318,91.
Total general governme 61,075,54 59,275,54 53,172,76 6,102,77!
Judicia
Municipal cour 22,690,46 22,290,46 21,300,25 990,21
City attorney - criminal divisic 4,170,28 4,170,28 3,956,20: 214,08
Public defende 728,58. 728,58. 853,09: (124,511
Total judicia 27,589,33 27,189,33 26,109,55 1,079,78
Public safet
Police 145,457,13  145,897,13 146,540,18 (643,053
Fire 120,540,86  124,340,86 123,884,06 456,79!
Correction 54,938,80 55,638,80 53,818,50 1,820,29!
Protective inspectic 6,143,01 5,343,01i 5,263,56! 79,44¢
Other protectio 17,005,69 16,765,69 15,545,09 1,220,59
Total public safet 344,085,50  347,985,50 345,051,42 2,934,08.
Public work:
Administratior 705,39( 705,39( 619,01° 86,37:
Engineering and planni 8,398,97 8,398,97 8,009,451 389,51¢
Right of way 1,069,571 1,069,571 1,002,82: 66,741
Paved stree 1,413,32! 1,413,32! 1,451,16: (37,843
Total public work 11,587,25 11,587,25 11,082,45 504, 79!
Healtt
Animal contro 4,486,78. 4,486,78. 4,067,55: 419,23:
Cemetery operatic 150,00( 150,00( 56,12: 93,87¢
Communicable disease con 25,00( 25,00( 26,24t (1,245
Total healtl 4,661,78. 4,661,78 4,149,91! 511,86«
Continued



CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

GENERAL FUNLC

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGE BASIS - CONTINUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Culture and recreatit
Culture and recreation administrat
Participant recreatic
Park:
Total culture and recreati
Economic development and assiste
Office of business developm:
Neighborhood servic
Total economic development and assist
Total expenditure

Excess of revenues over expendit

Other financing sources (us
Transfers i
Transfers ot

Total other financing sources (us

Net changes in fund balan:

Fund balances, July

Fund balances, June

Budgeted Amoun

Reconciliation of budget basis reporting to GAAPa#ing

Fund balance of fiscal stabilization special rexeefunc (pagesl2€ and16¢)

Fund balances, June 30 GAAP b

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge
$ 7,581,02. $ 7,581,02. $ 6,684,97. $ 896,05(
17,633,63 16,933,63 16,244,51 689,12:
22,702,23 21,702,23 21,241,75 460,47"
47,916,89 46,216,89 44,171,24 2,045,64:
1,116,62! 1,116,621 957,21t 159,41(
3,775,96 3,775,96. 3,614,63 161,32¢
4,892,59 4,892,59 4,571,85. 320,73t
501,808,90 _ 501,808,90 488,309,21 13,499,69
10,082,93 10,082,93 23,267,49 13,184,56
10,020,00 10,020,00 10,021,26 1,26(
(19,100,00C  (19,100,00C (28,030,95C (8,930,950
(9,080,000 (9,080,000 (18,009,69C (8,929,690
1,002,931 1,002,933 5,257,80: 4,254,87.
98,728,82 98,728,82 107,830,06 9,101,23!
$ 99,731,75 $ 99,731,75 113,087,87 $ 13,356,11
13,211,46
$ 126,299,34

The notes to the basic financial statements aratagral part of this statement.
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ASSET¢

Current asset
Pooled cash, cash equivalents
investments, unrestricted

Other investments
Receivables (net of allowances
uncollectibles
Accounts
Interest
Loans
Intergovernmental
Inventories
Prepaid items
Deposits
Total current assets

Noncurrent asse

Capital asset
Land
Land improvements
Sewer plant improvements
Buildings
Building improvements
Sewer lines
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets (net of accumul
depreciation)

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURC
Deferred charges on refunding
Deferred amounts related to pensions

Total deferred outflows of resources

CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
PROPRIETARY FUND:
STATEMENT OF NET POSITIOI
JUNE 30, 201

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Func

Governmentz
Non-Majol Activities -
Proprietar Internal Servic
Sanitatiol Fund: Total Fund:
103,097,72 $ 35,190,79 $ 138,288,51 $ 67,266,03
15,472,19 15,472,19
1,997,46: 336,46( 2,333,92. 1,529,68!
365,03° 30,05¢ 395,09¢ 116,26°
12,225,37 12,225,37
8,247,28! 8,247,28!
3,046,55: 78,997 3,125,54! 862,62¢
3,17¢ 221,43¢ 224,61.
326,19: 326,19:
132,229,42 48,409,31 180,638,73 69,774,60
12,522,13 70,007,78 82,529,91
29,295,45 14,111,70 43,407,16 257,07"
462,651,95 462,651,95
15,484,39 47,029,44 62,513,83 3,586,98!
3,241,22! 935,29: 4,176,51: 4,409,801
473,696,93 473,696,93
2,083,77! 2,689,76: 4,773,53 5,704,611
37,183,34
145,844,63 211,47 146,056,10
(412,189,387 (27,808,691 (439,998,07¢ (37,775,31¢
732,631,12  107,176,77 839,807,89 13,366,50
864,860,54  155,586,08 1,020,446,63 83,141,11
823,26t 7,63t 830,90:
6,768,40! 2,511,34: 9,279,74: 6,614,72.
7,591,66: 2,518,97 10,110,64 6,614,72.
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
PROPRIETARY FUND:
STATEMENT OF NET POSITIOI (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 201

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Func

Governmentz
Non-Majol Activities -
Proprietar Internal Servic
Sanitatiol Fund: Total Fund:
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable $ 6,552,66/ $ 376,16¢ $ 6,928,821 $  3,114,45I
Salaries payable 512,59° 203,29! 715,89. 562,92¢
Compensated absences payable 2,318,79; 1,093,88. 3,412,67. 1,890,51
Deposits payable 521,61( 521,61( 6,67
Due to other funds 2,01¢ 2,01¢
Benefits payable 7,298,53.
Claims and judgments payable 435,97¢
Heart lung presumptive liability 3,967,59:
General obligation revenue bonds payable 9,082,61. 1,179,29! 10,261,91
Interest payable 658,93° 59,54« 718,48
Contracts payable 712,11 712,11
Intergovernmental payable 1,61¢€ 1,61¢€
Total current liabilities 19,837,70 3,437,43. 23,275,13 17,276,66
Noncurrent liabilities
Compensated absences payable 1,168,11; 551,05! 1,719,161 952,36¢
Benefits payable 597,93«
General obligation revenue bonds payable 85,540,82 12,760,78 98,301,60
Loans payable 15,185,01 15,185,01
Unearned revenue 1,605,33: 1,605,33:
OPEB liability 6,525,93I 2,618,38. 9,144,31. 5,515,201
Heart lung presumptive liability 14,901,43
Net pension liabilit 38,627,09. 14,175,52 52,802,62! 37,726,02
Total noncurrent liabilities 131,861,95 46,896,08 178,758,04 59,692,97
Total liabilities 151,699,66 50,333,51 202,033,18 76,969,64
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCI
Deferred gain on refunding 5,58¢ 5,58¢
Deferred amounts related to pensions 5,120,75! 1,654,15 6,774,91. 4,966,76:
Total deferred inflows of resources 5,120,75! 1,659,74. 6,780,49 4,966,76!
NET POSITIOM
Net investment in capital ass 640,411,24 93,236,69 733,647,93 13,366,50
Unrestricted 75,220,55 12,875,10 88,095,65 (5,547,079
Total net position $ 715,631,79 $ 106,111,80 821,743,559 $ 7,819,42;
Adjustment to reflect the consolidatior
internal service fund activities relatec
enterprise funds (page 39)(Note 2c page 64) 253,98¢
Net position of business-type activit
(page 34) $ 821,997,58

The notes to the basic financial statements aratagral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
PROPRIETARY FUND:
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NPDSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Func

Government:
Non-Majoi Activities -
Proprietar Internal Servic
Sanitatiol Fund: Total Fund:
Operating revenues:

Licenses and perm $ $ 10,586,09 $ 10,586,09 $

Charges for servic 88,768,99. 7,063,18: 95,832,18 217,077,80

Fines and forfeit 2,829,50: 2,829,50:

Miscellaneou 47,76¢ 11,960,39 12,008,15 1,124,86:
Total operating revenu 88,816,76 32,439,17 121,255,93 218,202,66
Operating expenses:

Salaries and employee bene 24,496,58 10,042,55 34,539,13 154,508,86

Services and suppli 38,709,15 8,272,58: 46,981,73 26,539,20

Cost of stores issu 90,26¢ 90,26¢ 2,480,55-

Insurance clairn 5,170,25

Insurance premiun 31,371,53

Depreciatiol 27,660,13 1,978,04. 29,638,17 2,095,00.
Total operating expens 90,865,86 20,383,45 111,249,31 222,165,41
Operating income (los (2,049,107 12,055,72 10,006,61 (3,962,753
Nonoperating revenues (expens

Interest revent 2,191,411 373,47¢ 2,564,88! 1,053,991

Interest expen: (2,851,552 (445,276 (3,296,828

Sewer connection charg 10,384,86 10,384,86

Gain (loss) on sale of capital as: (3,874 (319,689 (323,563 564,16¢

Intergovernmental reven 7,522,171 7,522,171

Intergovernmental exper (65,079 (34,795 (99,874 (1,521,260
Total nonoperating revenues (expen 17,177,94 (426,281 16,751,66 96,90«
Income (loss) before contributions ¢

transfer 15,128,83 11,629,44 26,758,27 (3,865,849

Capital contribution 10,861,02 10,861,02

Transfers i 1,480,001 1,480,001 2,454,43!

Transfers ot (999,210
Changes in net position 25,989,86 13,109,44 39,099,30. (2,410,624
Net position, July 689,641,93 93,002,36 10,230,04
Net position, June ! $ 715,631,79 $ 106,111,80 $ 7,819,42:

Adjustment to reflect the consolidatior
internal service fund activities relatec

enterprise func (Note 2c page 63) 914,98!
Changes in net position of business-
activities (page 36) $ 40,014,28

The notes to the basic financial statements aratagral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
PROPRIETARY FUND:
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW.

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Func

Governmentz
Non-Majol Activities -
Proprietar Interna
Sanitatiol Fund Total Service Func
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from custom $ 90,130,14 $ 31,874,52 $122,004,67 $ 10,089,07
Cash received from internal services prov 207,918,40
Cash payments to supplies for goods and sel (39,663,29¢ (8,443,006 (48,106,304 (64,023,28¢

Cash payments to employees for salaries and bg (25,254,111 (10,207,901 (35,462,012 (155,156,59¢
Net cash provided by (used in) opera

activities 25,212,73 13,223,61 38,436,35 (1,172,406
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Reimbursements from other governm 12,50( 12,50(
Cash received from other fur 109,16 109,16
Transfers in from other fun 1,480,001 1,480,001 2,454,43!
Transfers out to other fun (4,065,717 (4,065,717 (999,210
Subsidies paid to other governme (1,521,260
Contributions to other governme (65,079 (34,795 (99,874
Net cash provided by (used in) noncaj
financing activitie 56,58¢ (2,620,512 (2,563,928 (66,035
Cash flows from capital and related financing atés:
Acquisition and construction of capital as (41,933,444 (258,384 (42,191,82¢ (3,694,363
Sewer connection charg 10,384,86 10,384,86
Proceeds from sale of capital as 746,86¢
Proceeds from bon 17,623,33 118,25! 17,741,58
Payment to refunded bond escrow a (17,500,227 (17,500,227
SNWA infrastructure fun 8,223,85! 8,223,85i
Principal paid on bon (7,814,773 (1,130,000 (8,944,773
Arbitrage rebate pa (403 (403
Interest paid on bon (4,564,050 (467,532 (5,031,582
Purchase of lar (576,028 (576,028
Net cash used in capital and related finar
activities (35,580,434 (2,314,094  (37,894,52¢ (2,947,494
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest and dividends on investme 2,147,94 364,92! 2,512,87. 1,081,09:

Net change in pooled cash, cash equivalent

investments (8,163,164  8,653,93: 490,77: (3,104,842
Pooled cash, cash equivalents and investmentsl 111,260,88 26,536,85 137,797,74 70,370,87

Pooled CaSh, cash equivalents and investments,?;llh@ 103,097,72 $ 35,190,79 $138,28851 $ 67,266,03

Continued
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
PROPRIETARY FUND:
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW. (CONTINUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Func

Government:
Non-Majol Activities -
Proprietar Interna
Sanitatiol Fund Total Service Func
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to netita
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Operating income (los $ (2,049,107 $ 12,055,72 $ 10,006,61 $ (3,962,753
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (los
net cash provided by (used in) operating activ
Depreciatiol 27,660,13 1,978,04. 29,638,17 2,095,00:
Change in assets and liabiliti
(Increase) decrease in accounts recei' 1,313,38! 95,94¢ 1,409,33 (141,926
Increase in loans receiva (84,237 (84,237
Increase in intergovernmental receivi (53,543
Decrease in due from other fui 40,14+ 40,14+ 28¢
Increase in inventori (47,748 (25,526 (73,274 (105,090
Increase in prepaid itel (46,728 (46,728
Increase in depos (300,000 (300,000
Increase (decrease) in accounts pa) (906,401 73,93 (832,469 506,30:
Increase in salaries paya 122,44t 56,84¢ 179,29: 136,39¢
Increase (decrease) in compensated abs
payabl (37,386 175,82: 138,43! 116,68t
Increase in benefits paya 985,19:
Increase in claims and judgments pay 151,86!
Decrease in unearned reve (787,963 (787,963
Decrease in intergovernmental pay: (37,741 (37,741
Decrease in PERS pension liab (996,857 (412,179 (1,409,036
Increase in OPEB liabili 154,26t 14,17( 168,43t 79,89
Increase (decrease) in customer dep 427,36° 427,36° (980,715

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activ $ 25,212,73 $ 13,223,61 $ 38,436,35 $ (1,172,406

Schedule of noncash investing, capital, and finameictivities:

Contributions of capital assets from develo $ 10,861,02 $ 10,861,02
Decrease in fair value of investme $ $ $ $ (534,995

The notes to the basic financial statements aratagral part of this statement.
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Total
Agency Fund
ASSETS
Pooled cash, cash equivalents and investmentssttinted $ 20,121,91
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles)
Interest 581
Total assets $ 20,122,50
LIABILITIES
Deposits payable $ 18,941,22
Outstanding bail payable 1,143,411
Unclaimed monies payable 37,86.
Total liabilities $ 20,122,50

The notes to the basic financial statements aratagral part of this statement.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
A. Description of government-wide financial statemets

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., st@ement of net position and the statement oiviaes) report
information on all of the nonfiduciary activitie$ the primary government and its component unité fiuciary activities
are reported only in the fund financial statemeftse financial statements of the City of Las Vedésyada, (the City) have
been prepared in conformity with accounting prifespgenerally accepted in the United States (GAA®)applied to
governmental entities. The Governmental Accounstgndards Board (GASB) is the accepted standatidesdtody for
establishing governmental accounting and finanecggdorting principles.Governmental activitieswhich normally are
supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenueso#rel nonexchange transactions, are reported atepafrombusiness-
type activitieswhich rely to a significant extent on fees andrges to external customers for support. Likewtiseprimary
governmentis reported separately from certain legally sefgaceamponent unitdor which the primary government is
financially accountable.

B. Reporting entity

The City was incorporated in 1911. The City proside full range of municipal services as directedstatute. Services
provided include public safety (police and firgfest construction and maintenance, sanitationyibnd recreation, public
improvements, planning and zoning, and general @idtrition and services. The City has a Council-dggm form of
government. The Mayor is elected by the votershefQity at large for a four-year term. The Cityigided into six wards.
Voters of each ward elect a member of the Coucilaf four-year term. The Mayor and City Council &ngited to three
four-year terms, or a total of twelve years. Patieking and legislative authority are vested in @muncil. The City’s
officials are also responsible for appointing thermbers of the boards of other organizations, itity’s accountability for
these organizations does not extend beyond makm@ppointments. City officials appoint board merslie the Southern
Nevada Health District, Las Vegas Convention anditdlis Authority, Regional Flood Control DistricRegional
Transportation Commission, Southern Nevada RegiBlzaining Coalition, and the Southern Nevada Watehority.

In evaluating how to define the financial reportiegtity, management considered all potential corapbmnits using the
standards prescribed under GASB Statement No.TB&, Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus an amendn@&nGASB
Statements No. 14 and No. &bmponent units would include any legally sepacagnizations for which the City Council
is financially accountable. Financial accountapilitould result where the City Council appoints ding majority of the
organization’s governing body and (1) is able tgpase its will on that organization, or (2) thereaigpotential for the
organization to provide specific financial benefis, or impose specific financial burdens on theyCiFinancial
accountability may also result where an organizai® fiscally dependent on the City. Based uporseéheriteria, no
component units or other reportable organizatidherahan those discussed below were identified.

The accompanying basic financial statements preberfinancial position of the City (primary goverant) and its blended
component units for which the City is considered#ofinancially accountable. Blended componentsurgtthough legally
separate entities, are in substance, part of ttygs@iperations. The blended component units dsedidelow are included in
the City’s reporting entity because of the sigrifice of their operation or financial relationshighvthe City. The City’s
discretely presented component units are repontegparate columns in the government-wide finarstetements (see note
below for description) to emphasize that they arerationally separate from the City.

Blended component units

On March 5, 1986, the Official Redevelopment Plas wdopted to facilitate urban redevelopment effint the downtown
area. The City of Las Vegas Redevelopment Agenggfiy) has the same elected governing board aGityhecomprised of
the six city council persons and the City mayore Thanagement of the City also manage the activitiehe Agency in
essentially the same manner as it manages the aityivities. The Agency exists to benefit the Gibhd its citizens through
redevelopment and revitalization of the city’s déown areas. This revitalization is based on thg'S€itedevelopment plan
which aligns the Agency’s efforts with the City'sion for downtown

The Nonprofit Corporations exclusively promote trealth and welfare of the City, and therefore, reqported as blended
component units. The services of the non-profipooaitions are provided entirely to the City (tharary government). Their
services include the acquisition and dispositiopmiperty for public purposes, or the distributminthe proceeds from the
disposition thereof, to the City. The City is firgally accountable as follows: The Nonprofit Corgiions are governed by a
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENT
JUNE 30, 201

Summary of significant accounting policies (contiued)
B. Reporting entity (continued)

Blended component units (continued)
two-member board of directors appointed by the Magad ratified by the Las Vegas City Council, ahe Nonprofit
Corporations are also fully dependent on the Qityfiscal and operational support.

Discretely presented component units

The Commission for the Las Vegas Centennial (then@ssion) is a nonprofit corporation formed on M2g, 2004, to
advance, support and promote the health and soeilidre of the City and its citizens for the City190 year birthday
celebration (centennial). The Commission is goverbg a twelve member Board of Directors (Board) clihprovides
management for the business and affairs of the Gssion. The City of Las Vegas is financially acctalne because all
members of the Board are appointed by the MayahefCity and ratified by the Las Vegas City Coungihe financial
operations of the commission are reported as aapeolumn in the basic financial statements tpleamsize that it is legally
and operationally separate from the City. All gsamter $100,000 must be approved by the City Chunci

LVCIC SUB-CDE | and Il, LLC (the Companies), Nevadan-profit corporations, were incorporated Maréh 2013. The
Companies were formed to obtain Qualified Equityelstments (QEI) from investors and make qualifiedestments in
qualified Active Low-Income Community Business trardance with the terms under the New MarketsQigdit (NMTC)
Program pursuant to Section 450 of the InternaleRae Code. The Companies principal business dgeist to provide
nontraditional investment capital to underservedkeis and enhance the return on said investmentsdwding its investor
member with NMTC. This mission is accomplished pmoviding loans to qualified businesses in the Ineeme
communities of the City's service area. The Cjipants the three member board of the SUB-CDE'ke Tity has the
financial management responsibilities over the afi@ns of the SUB-CDE's and also are legally esdiio the assets and
have current access to them.

Complete financial statements of the Agency, thapofit Corporations, the Commission, and LVCIC SGBE | and II,
LLC can be obtained from the City of Las Vegas D#&pant of Finance, 4th Floor, 495 South Main Stréets Vegas,
Nevada, 89101.

C. Basis of presentation - government-wide and funfinancial statements

While separate government-wide and fund financtatesnents are presented, they are interrelated. gbwernmental
activities column incorporates data from governrakriinds and internal service funds, while busingps activities
incorporate data from the government’s enterprisel§. Separate financial statements are providegdeernmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even thotlghlatter are excluded from the government-widarfcial statements.

As discussed earlier, the City has two discretedspnted component units. While neither the Comarider the Las Vegas
Centennial nor LVCIC SUB-CDE |, LLC are consideredbe major component units, they are, neverthekdsswn in
separate columns in the government-wide finantééments.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activitgs been eliminated from the government-wide firnstatements.

Exceptions to this general rule are charges betwemigovernment’s sanitation and municipal paringctions and various

other functions of the government. Elimination loése charges would distort the direct costs angrano revenues reported
for the various functions concerned.

D. Basis of presentation - fund financial statements

The fund financial statements provide informatidmowt the City's funds, including its fiduciary fumdand blended

component units. Separate statements for eachdatedjory — governmental, proprietary, and fiduciagre presented. The
emphasis of fund financial statements is on majmegimental and enterprise funds, each displayadsgparate column. All
remaining governmental and enterprise funds aresggted and reported as nonmajor funds. Major iddal governmental

and enterprise funds are reported as separate gslimthe fund financial statements.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (contiued)
D. Basis of presentation - fund financial statementécontinued)
The City reports the following major governmentahds:

The General fundis the City’s primary operating fund. It accoufiss all financial resources of the general governine
except those accounted for in another fund.

The Debt Service funis used to account for the accumulation of resaufeg and the payment of, long-term debt principal
and interest from governmental resources and dpags@ssment bond principal and interest from apasisessment levies
when the government is obligated in some mannathtédebt payments.

The Road and Flood capital projects fuisdused to account for major infrastructure imgmoents to the City’s arterial street
system and floodwater conveyance systems. Finansipgovided primarily by Clark County, the Regibfi@aansportation
Commission and the Clark County Regional Flood @imistrict.

The City reports the following major enterprisedun

The Sanitation enterprise fun@ccounts for the City's sewage treatment planijage pumping stations and collection
systems and the wastewater distribution system.

Additionally, the City reports the following fungiges:

Internal service fundsiccount for a variety of services provided to ottlepartments or agencies of the City on a cost
reimbursement basis. These services include grampeooduction, purchase and maintenance of persooiputers,
emergency dispatch services, purchase and maimter@nradios, pagers, cellular and telephone ecgmpmautomotive
operations, city facilities, employee benefits, kas compensation insurance, and liability and prigpdamage insurance.

Agency fundsre used to account for assets held by the Citgnaagent for individuals, private organizationsd ather
governments. These funds are custodial in natudedannot involve measurement of operations. Thendgdunds are
merely clearing accounts and have no fund equitg 8gency funds consist of a deposits fund, mualicpurt bail fund and
developer special assessment fund.

During the course of operations, the City has #gtivetween funds for various purposes. Any redithadances outstanding
at year end are reported as due from/to other fandsadvances to/from other funds. While theserioek are reported in
fund financial statements, certain eliminations arade in the preparation of the government-widarfaial statements.
Balances between the funds included in governmeattlities (i.e., the governmental and internalviee funds) are
eliminated so that only the net amount is includsdinternal balances in the governmental activitielsmn. Similarly,
balances between the funds included in businegsdgfivities (i.e., the enterprise funds) are elatéd so that only the net
amount is included as internal balances in thenessi-type activities column.

Further, certain activity occurs during the yearoiwing transfers of resources between funds. hdffinancial statements,
these amounts are reported at gross amounts asfenrsrin/out. While reported in fund financial staents, certain
eliminations are made in the preparation of theegoment-wide financial statements. Transfers antbadunds included in
governmental activities are eliminated so that dhly net amount is included as transfers in theegowental activities
column. Similarly, transfers among the funds ineldidn business-type activities are eliminated s ¢imly the net amount is
included as transfers in the business-type ac#/itblumn.

E. Measurement focus, basis of accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatmemtatermined by the applicable measurement focusasis of accounting.
Measurement focus indicates the type of resoure@sgbmeasured such asirrent financial resource®r economic
resourcesThe basis of accounting indicates the timingah$actions or events for recognition in the finalnstatements.

The government-wide financial statements are regousing theeconomic resources measurement foand theaccrual
basis of accountingas are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fundaficial statements, except agency funds that have no
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Summary of significant accounting policies (contiued)

E. Measurement focus, basis of accounting (continugd

measurement focus. Revenues are recorded wherdemmndeexpenses are recorded when a liability igried, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes rcognized as revenues in the year for which éineylevied. Grants and
similar items are recognized as revenue as soal elgibility requirements have been met.

Government fund financial statements are reportdguthecurrent financial resources measurement foansl modified
accrual basis of accountingRevenues are recognized as soon as they arentesiburable and available. Revenues are
considered to bavailablewhen they are collectible within the current pdrimr soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of
the current period. For this purpose, the goverriroensiders revenues to be available if they alleated within 60 days of
the end of the current fiscal period. Grant revenale recognized when earned and billable to thatgwarding agency.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a ligbilt incurred, as under accrual accounting. Howedebt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures relatedaimsland judgments, are recorded only when payisehie.

Property taxes, and other taxpayer-assessed t@nues (franchise fees, intergovernmental conselidaéx, room tax,
residential construction tax, and motor vehicld tag), licenses, and interest associated withctireent fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and hase tezognized as revenues of the current fiscabge®nly the portion of
special assessments receivable due within therduiseal period is considered to be susceptibladcrual as revenue of the
current period. All other revenue items are congideo be measurable and available only when casdceived.

The City reports unearned revenue in the fund firrstatements. Unearned revenues arise whent@btesvenue does not
meet both the measurable and available criteriadoognition in the current period. Unearned reesnare recorded when
resources are received by the government befdrasita legal claim to them, as when grant moniesemeved prior to the
incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequesrtiods, when both revenue recognition criteria met, or when the
government has a legal claim to the resourceslidbdity for unearned revenue is removed from thedance sheet and
revenue is recognized.

The proprietary fund financial statements are regubusing theconomic resources measurement fam theaccrual basis
of accounting.The agency funds have no measurement focus Hizeutive accrual basis of accountinfpr reporting its
assets and liabilities.

F. Budgetary information
1. Budgetary basis of accounting

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with GA#Rual appropriated budgets are adopted for é#meal, special
revenue, capital projects, and debt service fuAadsannual budget report is filed with the Nevadap&wment of
Taxation, a branch of the state government changgidthe responsibility to oversee local governnfarnces.

The City's budgeting process consists of a seffi@sviews and analyses of budget requests thaswmitted by the
various departments by February 1 of each yeay.@d@inagement and budget office staff compile amatipze all data,

with the objective of aligning budget resourceswitite City Council’s strategic plan objectives bxsely as possible. A
series of public hearings are held for the City @mluand the general public on budget recommendatidhe final

budget is approved and adopted by the Mayor ang @iuncil and filed with the City Clerk, County @teand the

Nevada Department of Taxation by June 1.

The annual appropriated budgets approved by the @itincil are controlled at the function level, ahiis the legal
level of budgetary control. The revenue classifarat and expenditure functions shown in the basantial statements
are those prescribed by the Nevada Department xdtiba. An amended budget is one in which intemadifications
are made but the total resources and expenditareain the same as the original. Per Nevada lawCityeManager
may amend the budget by transferring appropriatieitin any function or program or between any fimT or
program within a fund, and may authorize the tranef appropriations between funds at any timbef€ity Council is
advised of the action at a Council meeting andhttten is recorded in the official minutes of theeting.

An augmented budget is approved by the City Cowardil filed with the Nevada Department of Taxatidrewthe total
revenues and corresponding expenditures incredisenual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (contiued)

F.

Budgetary information (continued)
1. Budgetary basis of accounting (continued)

Non-appropriated budgets are prepared for all petgoy type funds as a guide to levels of operagixgenses. Budgets
are not required for agency (fiduciary) type funds.

For the fiscal year endedune 30, 201, funds were augmented and realigned between angctto provide for
additional expenditures for new and expanded prograNon-appropriated budgets for proprietary typeds were
augmented and filed with the Nevada Departmentaog&iion for informational purposes, according tovhta law. The
following governmental funds were augmented froruaicbeginning fund balance in excess of the oalgbudgeted
amount to increase total appropriations (expengstuother financing uses).

Original Budge Adjustmen Final Budge
Fremont Street room tax special revenue $ 2511221 % 75,000 $ 2,586,220
Municipal golf course enterprise fu 2,619,26' 120,00( 2,739,26'
Municipal parking enterprise fu 7,708,26! 500,00( 8,208,26!
Fire communication internal service ft 10,243,49 110,00( 10,353,49
Print media internal service fu 925,19! 760,00( 1,685,19!
Employee benefit internal service ft 159,872,97 6,800,001 166,672,97

For budgetary control purposes, the City recoradsiemrances for purchase orders, contracts and ctimemitments in
memorandum accounts. Since they do not constitataah liabilities of the City in accordance with @R,
encumbrances are not reported in the basic finestegitements.

2. Excessof expenditures over appropriations

The City of Las Vegas Debt Service Fund expenditeseceeded appropriations in debt service by $4892 due to
payments to bond refunding agents and bond costiassd with the new bonds. Nevada Revised St354e626(1)
states that expenditures for debt repayment doesomgtitute a violation of law.

The Employee Benefit Internal Service Fund expemei exceeded appropriations$8,621,25. The excess was for
the City increases in medical and liability inswrarcosts.

The Multipurpose Special Revenue Fund expenditexeseded appropriations by $2,045,412. The exseasftset by
miscellaneous revenue. The City acts as a pagaghragent between US Bank and Westside School Bograying
construction costs.

Assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows ofesources, and net position/fund balance

1. Pooled cash, cash equivalents and investments

The City maintains a cash and investment pool ihatvailable for use by all funds. Monies that ao¢ required for
immediate obligations are invested. Pooled cas$h eguivalents and investments include currenchand, demand
deposits with banks or other financial institutioaad highly liquid short-term investments withginal maturities of
three months or less from date of acquisition.

The City's investment policies are governed byestdatutes and its own written policies. Permissibnivestments

include obligations of the U.S. Treasury and Ugereies, bankers acceptances, corporate, statégaaidjovernment
bonds, repurchase agreements, commercial papenamely market mutual funds.
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (contiued)

G.

Assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows ofesources, and net position/fund balance (continuk

1. Pooled cash, cash equivalents and investments (continued)

dates ranging from six months to 47 years. Investsnare stated at fair value, determined by usimgted market
prices provided by a nationally recognized indepemdank, or amortized cost for investments thattearemaining
maturity at time of purchase of one year or less.

The City's cash equivalents are considered to Isé cm hand and short-term investments with originaturities of
three months or less from the date of acquisition.

2. Receivables and payables

Activity between funds that are representativeesfding/borrowing arrangements outstanding at tlte afrthe fiscal

year are referred to as either “due to/from othud§” (i.e., current portion of interfund loans) “advances to/from
other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of nfited loans). All other outstanding balances betwiesds are reported
as “due to/from other funds.” Any residual balancegstanding between governmental activities ansiness-type
activities are reported in the government-wideriirial statements as “internal balances.”

Receivables are reported at their gross value w&hdre appropriate, are shown net of an allowanceirficollectible
accounts. General fund accounts receivable corsfi$ig,117,764 and other non major government furfd339,108.
Accounting operations division reviews outstandmegeivables twice a year to determine uncollectiglecivables.
Accounts deemed uncollectible are then written asffreserved via an allowance. The allowance foroliectible
accounts for the General Fund was $4,040,734=¢ 30, 201.

3. Inventories and prepaid items

Inventories in the internal service and enterpfis&ls consist of expendable supplies held for coyion and are
stated at cost, which approximates market valumguke first-in, first-out method. The balances determined by
physical count. Inventories in governmental funds eecorded as expenditures when consumed rather winen
purchased.

Payments made to vendors for services that wilebefuture periods are recorded as prepaid itenisoth government-
wide and fund financial statements. In fund finahstatements, a portion of fund balance equadttd prepaid items is
reflected as nonspendable.

4., Restricted investments

Cemetery Operations Permanent FundRestricted investments in this fund are derifiein the endowment care
portion of the fee charged for a cemetery lot. Wenies are invested and the interest income is fasetie perpetual
care and maintenance of the cemetery in accordastbethe cemetery system’s lease agreement (Ndtg @n
independent trustee manages the fundlule 30, 207, the restricted investments webe,838,73.

Other Funds The City also has restricted investments inRedevelopment Agency Debt Service Fund for $5,588,6
and $200,183,909 in the City's Debt Service Funothbare debt reserves. An amount of $750,000 igh&n
Multipurpose Special Revenue Fund for the Darlirgnfiis Foundation and $422,948 in the Symphony Patkism
Improvement District. Total restricted investmeedgial $208,361,327 as &ine 30, 201.

5. Capital assets

Capital assets, which include land, buildings, land building improvements, equipment, and infradtrre assets (e.g.,
roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), reported in the applicable governmental or bushtgss activities
columns in the government-wide financial statemente City defines capital assets as assets withitai, individual
cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated uséuinliexcess of two years. Such assets are recatdeidtorical cost
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (contiued)

G.

Assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows ofesources, and net position/fund balance (continuk

5. Capital assets (continued)
or estimated historical cost if purchased or caeséd. Donated capital assets are reported atatstinfiair value at the
date of donation.

Improvements are capitalized and depreciated dveregmaining useful lives of the related capitakss as applicable.
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs thaotiadd to the value of the asset or materialtgrek asset lives are
not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvemengscapitalized as projects are constructed. Prp@erd equipment
acquired by proprietary funds are reported in thiosels at cost or estimated fair value at the tohe&lonation. In
enterprise funds, interest expense on bonds iskwecbnstruction of capital assets is netted agamntsrest revenue
earned on the investment of bond proceeds, aretéfiohined to be immaterial will not be capitalized.

Capital assets of the primary government, as vgetha component units, are depreciated using thlst line method
over the following estimated useful lives:

Storm drain 50 year Building improvement 10-20 year
Roadway 30 year Vehicles 3-10 year
Buildings 20-40 year  Traffic signag 10 year
Land and sewer plant improveme 20-24 year  Machinery and equipme 7-10 year
Traffic signals and lightir 20 year Traffic pavement marke 4 year.

6. Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

Deferred outflows of resourcespresent a consumption of net position that apglh a future period(s) and so wibt
be recognized as an outflow of resources (expexeneiture) until then. The City has two items thaglify for
reporting in this category. A deferred charge donding is reported in the government wide stateamoémet position.
A deferred charge on refunding results from théedéince in the carrying value of refunded debt imdeacquisition
price. This amount is deferred and amortized olwvershorter of the life of the refunded or refunditedpt. The City also
reports deferred amounts related to pensions ferctimnges in the difference between the City's agbension
contributions and the City’s actuarial share ofg@n contributions. This amount is deferred aneizred over the
average expected remaining service lives of allleyegs, active, inactive and retirees. Deferretlaus are also
recorded for city contributions made subsequetihéomeasurement date of the net pension liabifity lsefore the end
of the City’s fiscal year.

Deferred inflows of resourcespresent an acquisition of net position that i@spb a future period(s) and so wilht be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) thrdt time. The City has two items that qualify feporting in this
category. Accordingly, the itenynavailable revenueis reported only in the governmental funds badaskeet. The
governmental funds report unavailable revenues ftlorae resources: property taxes, special assetsmed loans
receivable. These amounts are deferred and re@ihai an inflow of resources in the period thatatimeunts become
available. The City also has deferred inflows foe difference between expected and actual pens&ongxperience
with economic factors and the effect of changeassumptions about future economic factors, whiehdsferred and
amortized over the average expected service lifealloemployees that are provided pension beneditd the
recognition of deferrals attributable to differead®tween projected and actual earnings on plasiments, which are
amortized over five years.

7. Compensated absences
It is the City’s policy to permit employees to aguulate earned, but unused vacation (including fmésu of (TILO)
and Executive Severance) and sick pay benefits hwhie collectively referred to as compensated afesen

Compensated absences paid or accrued due to engslbyerminations within the current year are regbras an
expenditure in governmental fund types. The esBohdbng-term liability of vested or accumulated pamsated
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Summary of significant accounting policies (contiued)

G.

Assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows ofesources, and net position/fund balance (continuk

7. Compensated absences (continued)

absences that is not expected to be liquidatedniitie current year is accounted for in the govemmtawide financial
statements. Vested or accumulated compensatedcaissehproprietary funds is recorded as an expanddiability of
those funds as the benefits accrue to the employees

8. Long-term obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, angroprietary fund type financial statements, loag¥t debt and other
long-term obligations are reported as liabilitiestihe applicable governmental activities, busirtgps- activities, or
proprietary fund type statement of net positionn&g@remiums and discounts are deferred and amdrtzénterest
expense over the life of the bonds. Bonds payaieleeported net of the applicable bond premiumiscalint.

In the fund financial statements, governmental ftyjkes recognize bond premiums and discounts, #isawebond
issuance costs, during the period issued. The #mweunt of debt issued is reported as other fingnsiources.
Premiums received on debt issuances are reportedhas financing sources, while discounts on debuance are
reported as other financing uses. Issuance cosesther or not withheld from the actual debt proseesteived, are
reported as debt service expenditures.

An arbitrage rebate payable is recorded as a ilyalid account for arbitrage amounts to be rebdtedhe federal
government that result from interest earned in &xa# the interest costs on the monies invested fle proceeds of
bond issues.

The City and Clark County (a joint venture) botloyide financing for the Las Vegas Metropolitan PelDepartment
Self Insurance internal service fund. In the Cigdwernment-wide financial statements, the Cityorepits portion of
the unfunded Las Vegas Metroplitan Police OPEB ilitgland Pension Liability in governmental actieis.

9. Net position flow assumption

Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a partaulpurpose from both restricted (e.g., restrictethidoor grant
proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In orderakoulate the amounts of net position to report estricted and
unrestricted in the government-wide and propriefand financial statements, a flow assumption ningsmade about
the order in which the resources are considerdud tapplied. It is the City’s policy to considertrated net position to
have been depleted before unrestricted net posgiapplied.

10. Fund balance flow assumptions

Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a parteupurpose from both restricted and unrestrictedusces (the total of
committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balahcejder to calculate the amounts to report asicdstl, committed,
assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the goeettal fund financial statements, a flow assumptist be made
about the order in which the resources are coreidey be applied. It is the City's policy to coreidestricted fund
balance to have been depleted before using anpeoicdmponents of unrestricted fund balance. Unasdigund

balance is applied last.

11. Fund balance components

The fund balance amounts for governmental fundschssified in accordance with GASB Statement N&.Fund
Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Dtafimg, as follows:

. Non-spendabldund balances include items that cannot be spems includes amounts that are not in a
spendable form (inventories, prepaid amounts, tengr portion of loans/notes receivable, or propheid for
resale unless the proceeds are restricted, condnaittassigned) and amounts that are legally orraotually
required to remain intact, such as a principalf@dan a permanent fund.
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (contiued)

G.

Assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows ofesources, and net position/fund balance (continuk

11. Fund balance components (continued)

Restrictedfund balances have constraints placed upon thefude resources either by an external party or
imposed by law through a constitutional provisiorstate enabling legislation.

Committedfund balances can be used only for specific puepgrirsuant to constraints imposed by a formal
action of the Mayor and City Council, the city’ghest level of decision-making authority. This fatraction
is the passage of ordinances creating, modifyingescinding committed resources.

Assignedfund balances include amounts that are constraiyethe City’s intent to be used for a specific
purpose, but are neither restricted nor commitiédae City's Chief Financial Officer is authorized &ssign
amounts to a specific purpose based on the Citlisyp(see below).

Unassignedfund balances are the residual amount not includeatie four categories described above. The
general fund is the only fund that can report atpesunassigned fund balance and any deficit fhathnces
with the other governmental fund types are repoatednassigned.

It is the City’s policy when both restricted andrestricted resources are available for specifiousses, restricted
resources are considered spent before unrestriesedirces. Within unrestricted resources, commeétati assigned are
considered spent (if available) before unassigmeauats.

It is the City’s fiscal policy to maintain a totahding fund balance in the General Fund of at Ie2giercent of General
Fund operating revenues.

The following schedule shows the composition of filned balances of the governmental funds for ther yadedlune
30, 201¢
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (contiued)

G. Assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows ofesources, and net position/fund balance (continag

11. Fund balance components (continued)

Fund Balance
Nonspendabl
Inventorie:
Prepaid iterr
Noncurrent loans receival
Land/Property held for res:
Loans receivab
Cemetery perpetual ci
Endowment principi
Total nonspendak
Restrictec
Debt servic
Econ Dev and Assistar
Public Works - Road and Flo
Public Safety - Fir
Public Safety - Traffi
Public Safety - Detentic
Parks Projec
City Facilities
Special Improveme
Judicia
Culture and Recreati
Total Restricte
Committed
Public Works - Road and Flo
Parks Projec
Special Improveme
Total Committe:
Assigne(
Debt servic
Fiscal Stabilizatio
Public Works - Road and Flo
Econ Dev and Assistar
City Facilities
Public Safety - Fir
Public Safety - Traffi
Public Safety - Detentic
Parks Projec
Culture and Recreati
General Governme
Total Assigne
Unassigne

12. Estimates

Major Governmental Fun

Non Major Governmental Fun

City of Las
Vegas Det  Special Revent Debt Servic  Capital Projec
General Fun_ Road and Floc Service Fund: Fund: Fund: Permanent Fur Tota
$ 2,713,85 $ $ $ $ $ $ 2,713,85!
214,601 36,93: 251,53
27,378,56 27,378,56
20,252,12 20,252,12
836,53: 836,53:
1,838,73 1,838,73
750,00( 750,00(
30,307,01 21,875,59 1,838,73 54,021,33
200,183,90 422,94t 5,588,68! 206,195,54
17,475,75 23,286,37 40,762,13
7,854,21! 23,250,91 442,44: 31,547,56
968,46 3,660,43! 4,628,90:
4,121,74: 4,121,74:
935,75¢ 935,75¢
33,337,34 33,337,34
734,80: 734,80:
39,177,84 39,177,84
35,70¢ 35,70¢
824,29t 824,29t
7,854,21! 200,183,90 43,913,84 5,588,68! 104,760,99 362,301,64
47,72( 47,72(
5,955,36: 5,955,36:
14,485,93 14,485,93
14,485,93 6,003,08: 20,489,01
2,467,75! 11,74¢ 2,479,50
13,211,46 13,211,46
2,326,24. 4,007,14 6,333,39
6,586,86: 2,942,10 9,528,97!
88,76« 19,529,72 19,618,49
6,807,86: 6,807,86:
5,911,40 5,911,40
98,43« 7,539,111 7,637,541
17,427,74 17,427,74
1,986,47 1,986,47
3,171,52 3,171,52
13,211,46 2,326,24. 2,467,75! 11,932,05 11,74¢ 64,165,09 $ 94,114,36
82,780,86 292,80° 83,073,66
$ 126,299,34 $ 10,180,45 $ 202,651,66 $ 92,500,24 $ 5,600,43. $ 174,929,17 $ 1,838,73_ $ 614,000,04

The preparation of basic financial statements infmwnance with accounting principles generally ated in the
United States requires management to make estirmattassumptions that affect the amounts repontéidei financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual resalgsdiffer from those estimates.

13. Grant portion of intergovernmental revenues

Grant revenues and expenditures are generally dedoin special revenue funds. If an expenditurenohies by a
grantee is the prime factor for determining theeask of grant funds, revenue is recognized atithe of the

expenditure. If release of grant funds is not eagent upon expenditure of monies, revenue is recbwehen received
or when the grant becomes an obligation of thetgran

59



CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENT
JUNE 30, 201

1. Summary of significant accounting policies (contiued)

G.

Assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows ofesources, and net position/fund balance (continuk
14. Interfund transactions

During the course of normal operations, the Citg hamerous transactions between funds, which iecttehsfers of
resources from one fund to another. The fund firnstatements reflect such transactions as tremsfeertain
receivable/payable balances between the primargrgavent and blended component units are eliminfatefinancial
statement presentation. Internal service fundsrdecbarges for services to all City departmentsfands as operating
revenue. All City funds record these payments éoititernal service funds as operating expenditexpghses.

15. Fiscal Stabilization Fund

The City Council through Resolution establisheghecgal revenue fund whose purpose is to providéheistabilization
of operations during periods of economic downtamfor the mitigation of the effects of disastansaiccordance with
NRS 354.6115. The ending fund balance of the FiStabilization Special Revenue FundJamne 30, 201 was

$13,211,46.

A transfer of available resources from the gentenadl, special revenue funds, internal service fuamts capital project
funds was used to establish the fund. The fundmélintain a fund balance not to exceed ten ped®€86) of the prior
year’s general fund expenditures. The general frantsfer will be 20% of the excess actual auditedireg fund balance
over the budgeted ending fund balance to the fumtitl such time as the maximum fund balance is redch

The fund balance will not be used to finance raitiperations. Revenues will be realized only thhowgnsfers in from
other funds and interest earnings. Expenditures$ lvél limited to transfers out to other funds to \pde for the
stabilization of operations under the following ddions:

A) If the total actual revenue of the City falls shof the total anticipated revenue in the gennad for
the fiscal year in which the local government ubas money, and

1. The revenue shortfall is the result of an ecdn@went that could not be anticipated, and
2. The resulting general fund balance will falld®|10% of the anticipated expenditures, or

B) To pay expenses incurred by the City to mitigateeffects of a natural disaster or act of
terrorism.

At June 30, 201, based on the requirements of GASB 54, the CHissal Stabilization Special Revenue Fund did not
meet the reporting requirements to be presentea sgecial revenue fund, and is, therefore, predesmtepart of the
City’'s General Fund. However, the City budgeted thind as a Special Revenue Fund (see recongciliatipagel 2€).

16. Pension

For purposes of measuring the net pension liabitigferred outflows of resources and deferred welof resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, infosmatbout the fiduciary net position of Public Enydes' Retirement
System of Nevada (PERS) and additions to/deducfimms PERS fiduciary net position have been deteedhion the
same basis as they are reported by PERS. Foruhi®ge, benefit payments are recognized when ddgayable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investmentseperted at fair value.
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (contiued)

H.

Revenues and expenditures/expenses
1. Program revenues

Amounts reported agrogram revenuegclude: (1) charges to customers or applicants pdrchase, use, or directly
benefit from goods, services, or privileges prodidgy a given function or segment and (2) grants @mtributions
(including special assessments) that are restrittiegheeting the operational or capital requiremesita particular
function or segment. All taxes, including thoseidatkd for specific purposes, and other internddidicated resources
are reported as general revenues rather than geapraevenues.

2. Proprietary funds operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses

Proprietary funds distinguisbperating revenues and expenses fraranoperatingitems. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing serviaas$ producing and delivering goods in connectiorhitproprietary
fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principglerating revenues of the Sanitation Fund are elsatg customers
for sales and services. Operating expenses forpgise funds and internal service funds includedbst of sales and
services, administrative expenses, and depreciatiorcapital assets. All revenues and expenses eetimy this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenudseapenses.

2. Reconciliation of government-wide and fund finanial statements

A.

Explanation of certain differences between the ge@rnmental fund balance sheet and the government-dé

statement of net position

The governmental fund balance sheet includes anod@iion between fund balance — total governmiefitads and net
position — governmental activities as reported e government-wide statement of net position. Oleenent of that
reconciliation explains, “long-term liabilities, dluding bonds payable, are not due and payabléednctirrent period and
therefore are not reported in the funds.” The teetHithe$1,530,222,98 difference are as follows:

Bonds payable, net of unamortized premium and disis $ 749,502,58
Deferred charges on refunding (to be amortizesi@sast expense and fiscal char (27,714,51¢
Accrued interest payal 9,627,01
Arbitrage rebate payat 71,08¢
Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department OPERB liityt 28,899,56
Compensated absen 41,605,04
City OPEB liability 42,760,76
Heart lung presumptive liabili 31,123,91
Net pension liabilit 366,892,90
Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department net penkidility 304,322,20
Deferred amounts related to pens 47,553,28
Deferred amounts related to pens (64,420,86C
Net adjustment to reduce fund balance - total gowental fund $ 1,530,222,98
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Reconciliation of government-wide and fund finanial statements (continued)

B. Explanation of certain differences between the g@rnmental fund statement of revenues, expenditureand
changes in fund balances and the government-wideasément of activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, exjpeas, and changes in fund balances includesanodiation between

net changes in fund balances — total governmentad$andchanges in net assets of governmental activdgeseported in

the government-wide statement of activities. Oremeint of that reconciliation explains that “Goveemtal funds report
capital outlays as expenditures. However, in thtestent of activities the cost of those assetideaded over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expefde details of th&(36,745,41¢ difference are as follows:

Capital outla $ 83,076,09
Depreciation expense (Note (119,821,517
Net adjustment to decrease net changes in funchbalatotal government $ (36,745,41¢

Another element of that reconciliation states tkta¢ net effect of various miscellaneous transagimvolving capital assets
(i.e., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to m&eaet assets.” The details of #39,477,69 difference are as follows:

Donations of capital assets increase net ass#is statement
activities, but do not appear in the governmentati§ becau:
they are not financial resourc $ 30,455,94.

Capital assets transferred from internal serviceld 23,34:

The statement of activities reports losses frontibposal ¢

trade-in of existing capital assets to acquire napital asset

Conversely, governmental funds do not report atiry galoss o

the trade-in of capital asse (1,591

Net adjustment to increase net chaiin fund balance - tot
governmental funds to arrive at changes in nettjosk
governmental activitie $ 30,477,69

Another element of the reconciliation states thihe “issuance of long-term dele.q., bonds, leases) provides current
financial resources to the governmental funds, evtiie repayment of the principal of long-term detrisumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. Neitin@nsaction, however, has any effect on net pasitidso, governmental
funds report the effect of premiums, discounts, sindlar items when debt is first issued, wheré@sé amounts are deferred
and amortized in the statement of activities. Taits of this$(239,357,23¢ difference are as follows:

Principal repayment

Bond principal repaymer $ 24,097,65
Proceeds from refunding bonds iss (227,180,00(
Payments to advance refunding bonds escrow 165,366,57
Payments to current bonds refunding a 57,435,00
Discounts on bonds isst 163,17!
Premiums on bonds isst (47,634,63¢
Proceeds from bonds issi (211,605,00(

Net adjustment to decrei net changes in fund balar
total governmental funds to arrive at changes it
position - governmental activiti $ (239,357,23¢
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Reconciliation of government-wide and fund finanial statements (continued)

B. Explanation of certain differences between the g@rnmental fund statement of revenues, expenditureand
changes in fund balances and the government-wideasément of activities (continued)

Another element of the reconciliation states tisminie expenses reported in the statement of aefiwdid not require the use
of current financial resources and therefore areraported as expenditures in governmental fun@isé details of this
$20,466,25 difference are as follows:

Change in City OPEB liabili $ (189,026
Change in Net pension liabil 9,691,971
Change in Heart lung presumptive liabi 17,327,31
Change in Compensated abse (2,652,112
Change in Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Departr@dEB liability 3,709,47
Change in Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Departmehpension liabilit (35,014,561
Change in Accrued inter¢ (2,386,960
Amortization of bond discour (393,010
Amortization of bond premiur 3,436,121
Amortization of debt refundir 26,937,03

Net adjustment to incree net changes in fund balance - tc
governmental funds to arrive at changes in nettjosk
governmental activitie $ 20,466,25

Another element of the reconciliation states tlwme revenue reported in the statement of activitees not provide current
financial resources and therefore is not reporterkgenue in governmental funds. The details of$ifi,031,571 difference
are as follows:

Deferred loan procee $ (356,276
Property tax reveni (40,473
Special assessme (634,822

Net adjustment to decrei net changes in fund balance - t
governmental funds to arrive at changes in nettjosk
governmental activitie $ (1,031,571

Another element of the reconciliation states tmiérinal service funds are used by management tmelthe costs of a
variety of services: fleet, graphic reproductioryrghase and maintenance of computers, maintenahcadms and
telephones, employee benefits, property damagéitiéc maintenance and fire equipment acquisitiorindividual funds.
The net revenue of certain activities of internatv&e funds is reported with government activiti#se details of this
$(3,325,611 difference are as follows:

Change in net position of the internal serviceslf $ (2,410,626
Gain from charges to business-type activ (914,985
Net adjustment to decre: net changes in fund balance - total governm

funds to arrive at changes in net position - goveental activitie $____ (3.325,611)
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2. Reconciliation of government-wide and fund finanial statements (continued)

C. Explanation of certain differences between the mprietary fund statement of net position and the geernment-
wide statement of net position

The proprietary fund statement of net positionudels a reconciliation betweaet position - total enterprise fun@éndnet
position of business-typactivities as reported in the government-wideestant of net position. The description of the sole
element of that reconciliation is “Adjustment tdleet the consolidation of internal service fundivties related to enterprise
funds.” The details of thi$253,98! difference are as follows:

Internal receivable representing charges in exakssst to business-ty

activities - prior yeal $ (660,999
Internal receivables representing charges in exalessst to business-ty
activities - current ye, 914,98!

Net adjustment to incree net position - total enterprise funds to arrivi
Net position - business-type activi $ 253,98t

3. Pooled cash, cash equivalents and investments
As of June 30, 201, the City had the following pooled cash, cash egjents and investments:

Pooled cash and investments reconciled to goverrawiee financial statements:

Total cash equivalents and investm $ 700,883,08
Add: Cash in checking accou 53,298,40
754,181,49

Less: Cash and cash equivalents in agency (20,121,91¢
Pooled cash, cash equivalents and investmentserigoent wid $ 734,059,57

GASB Statement 31 requires short-term money mankestments, such as commercial paper and U.Ssiingand agency

obligations that have a remaining maturity at tiofigpurchase of one year or less, to be reportezhwtrtized cost (book
value). All other investments are reported at tfadirvalue.

Weighted
Average
Maturity
Type of Investmen Book Value Fair Value Total Value (Years
U.S. Treasur $ 18,499,35 $ 232,136,08 $ 250,635,44 2.66¢
U.S. Agencie 5,247,04: 140,404,622 145,651,67 2.46°
Corporate Bonc 43,762,97 43,762,97 2.09(
Commercial Pap 9,982,28 9,982,28 0.247
Local Government Investment P 101,393,88 101,393,88 0.00¢
Money Market Func 81,149,68 81,149,68 0.00:
Capital Managemer
U.S. Agency Mortgaged Back
Securitie 42,264,48 42,264,48 3.11:
Commercial Mortgaged Back
Securitie 8,557,25. 8,557,25. 1.432
Asset Backed Securiti 16,209,92 16,209,92 1.751
Corporate Bonc 953,55¢ 953,55¢ 2.331
Money Market Fun 321,92: 321,92: 0.00:
Total Value $ 33,728,68 $ 667,154,39 $ 700,883,08
Portfolio weighted-average matul 1.85(
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3. Pooled cash, cash equivalents and investmentsrftinued)

The City categorizes its fair value measurementisimihe fair value hierarchy established by gelhesccepted accounting
principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuaitiputs used to measure the fair value of the aksgel 1 inputs are quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets; Le&énputs are significant other observable inputsyel 3 inputs are
significant unobservable inputs.

The City has the following recurring fair value raeeements as of June ZM1¢
Fair Value Measurements Us

Quoted Prices
Active Markets fo Significant Othe Significan
Identical Asset Observable Inpu  Unobservabl

June 30, 201 (Level 1’ (Level 2° Inputs (Level 3
Type of Investments
U.S. Treasur $ 232,136,08 $ 53,721,34 $ $ 178,414,74
U.S. Agencie 140,404,622 132,401,35 8,003,27!
Corporate Bonc 43,762,97 43,762,97
Local Government Investment P 101,393,88 101,393,88
Money Market Func 81,149,68 81,149,68
Capital Managemer
U.S. Agency Mortgaged Backed Securi 42,264,48 42,264,48
Commercial Mortgaged Backed Securi 8,557,25. 8,557,25.
Asset Backed Securiti 16,209,92 16,209,92
Corporate Bonc 953,55¢ 953,55¢
Money Market Fun 321,92: 321,92:
Total Investments by Fair Value Le $ 667,15439 $§ 368,988,19 $§ 119,751,46 $ 178,414,74
Investment Maturitie
366 Days to 5Yearstol
Type of Investmen Amount 1 to 30 Day 31 to 60 Day 61 to 365 Day Years Years
U.S. Treasur $ 250,635,44 $ $ 18,499,35 $ 11,833,19 $ 220,302,89 $
U.S. Agencie 145,651,67 249,84¢ 10,014,45 135,387,37
Corporate Bonc 43,762,97 1,855,58! 5,033,301 36,874,09
Commercial Pap 9,982,28: 9,982,28:
Local Governmel
Investment Po 101,393,88 101,393,88
Money Market Func 81,149,68 81,149,68
Capital Managemer
U.S. Agency Mortgage
Backed Securitie 42,264,48. 39,69¢ 2,83¢ 3,741,601 31,936,74 6,543,601
Commercial Mortgage
Backed Securitie 8,557,25. 3,219,67! 5,337,57!
Asset Backed Securiti 16,209,92/ 3,315,03! 12,894,88
Corporate Bonc 953,55¢ 953,55¢
Money Market Fun 321,92! 321,92!
Total Investmen $ 700,883,08 $ 184,760,77 $ 18,752,04 $ 47,13954 $ 443,687,12 $ 6,543,601

Interest Rate Risk: In accordance with its investment policy, the Qitanages its exposure to declines in fair value by
limiting the weighted-average maturity of its intrasnt portfolio to less than thirty months.

Some of the U.S. agency investments have call ogtighich, if exercised, could shorten the maturityhese investments.

The asset-backed securities are backed by mortdglagieare subject to prepayment risk which cousth shorten the maturity
of these investments.
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Pooled cash, cash equivalents and investmentsrftioued)

Credit Risk: Statutes authorize the City to invest in obligasi@f the U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies (i.eMAN-HLB,
etc.), corporate bonds rated “A” or better by daretlly recognized rating service, commercial pajpéed “A-1,” “P-1" by a
nationally recognized rating service, repurchaseagents, certificates of deposit, money marketaidtinds rated “AAA”
by a nationally recognized rating service or othexurities in which banking institutions may legativest, State of Nevada
Local Government Pooled Funds or collateralizededtment contracts. The City has adopted the statates for its
investing policies to help minimize its credit risk

As of June 30, 201, more than 5% of the City’s investments are indfadHome Loan Mortgage Corporation, Federal
National Mortgage Association, Local Governmentelstment Pool, Morgan Stanley Institutional Moneyrkéa Fund and
U.S. Treasuries. These investments are 7%, 9%, T%pand 36% respectively, of the total investments

Custodial Credit Risk: Custodial credit risk frordepositds the risk that, in the event of the failure alepository financial
institution, the City will not be able to recoves ideposits or will not be able to recover collatesecurities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The custodialitcrestt for investments is the risk that in the evef the failure of the
conterparty to a transaction, the City will notddge to recover the value of its investment oratellal securities that are in
the possession of another party. At year endCihgs investment pool and specific investments hadecurties exposed to
custodial credit risk.

Rating as of Year Ei

Minimum
Lega Exempt Fror
Type of Investmen Amount Ratinc Disclosurt AAA AA A A-1/P-1 Not Rate!
U.S. Treasut $250,635,44 N/A $ 250,635,44 $ $ $ $ $
U.S. Agencie 145,651,67 N/A 140,404,62 249,84¢ 4,997,201
Corporate Bonc 43,762,97 A 26,732,94 15,174,45 1,855,58!
Commercial Pap 9,982,28: A-1/P-1 9,982,28:
Local Governmet
Investment Por 101,393,88 N/A 101,393,88
Money Market Func 81,149,68 AAA 81,149,68
Capital Managemer
U.S. Agenc
Mortgage(
Backed Securitic  42,264,48 AAA 42,264,48
Commercie
Mortgage(
Backed Securiti¢ 8,557,25. AAA 8,557,25.
Asset Backe
Securitie 16,209,922 AAA 16,062,46 147,45
Corporate Bonc 953,55¢ A 953,55¢
Money Market Fun 321,92: AAA 321,92:
Total Investmen  $700,883,08 $ 250,957,36 $ 148,987,44 $ 167,137,56 $15,174,45 $ 10,232,13 $108,394,13

Concentration of Credit Risk: The City’s investment policy allows for investmeras follows: (1) U.S. Treasury, money
market funds and agencies, State of Nevada locargment pooled funds, no limit; (2) repurchaseeagrents20% of
portfolio; (3) commercial pape0% of portfolio with a10% per issue limit; (4) corporate noteX)% of portfolio with a
25% per issue limit; and (5) certificates of depo%$i1,00,00( per institution. Collateralized investment contsamay be
utilized on bond proceeds for which the originaloamt of the principal of the original issuance #a§,000,00 or more. To
reduce the overall portfolio risks, the City willvdrsify its investments by security type and ington. With the exception of
U.S. Treasuries and government agency securitiesjare tharb0% of the City’s total investment portfolio will bevested

in a single security type or with a single finahafestitution.

Related Party Investment: The Sanitation Enterprise fund holds an investnieithe Redevelopment Agency, which is a
blended component unit of the City. The Redevelapmgency Tax Increment Revenue Subordinate LiendB®eries 2011
is due February 17, 2021. The investment is¥b5,472,19. This investment is eliminated and reflected ia thternal
balances in the Statement of Net Position.
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Property taxes

By December 31 of each year, all property in Cl@dunty is assessed by parcel for property tax mapdy the Clark
County Assessor. The assessment valuation roluldighed in a local newspaper for the informatidrabh taxpayers. If
desired, property owners have until January 15pipeal the valuation to the Clark County Board olL&ization. Any
taxpayer not agreeing with the decision of the @pWoard of Equalization may file an appeal witte tBtate Board of
Equalization no later than the first Monday of Marc

The Nevada Department of Taxation provides the mami allowable tax rates for operating purpose®tall governments
for inclusion in their budgets. Each local governinthat receives property taxes must file a budgebr before June 1,
which provides for the allowed tax rate for the tfiscal year. The Nevada Tax Commission must fyeatl tax rates on June
25, the levy date, and property is liened on Julytbperty taxes are then payable to the Countasimer in four equal
installments, due the third Monday of August, alnel first Monday of October, January and March. Afipopment of taxes
by Clark County to th€ity of Las Vegas, Neva is made in the calendar quarters of Septembermibeer, March and June.

The actual rates, which were levied for June 30eves follows:

201¢€ 201%
Genere 0.676¢ 0.676¢
Specia 0.095( 0.095(
Total Taw 0.771¢ 0.771¢

Amounts per $100 of assessed v
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5. Intergovernmental receivables

JUNE 30, 201

The following schedule details the intergovernmergeeivables as afune 30, 201:

Governmental Funds

Business-type

Major Governmental Fun Activities
Non-Majol
Road an Government: Sanitatioo  Governmeni
General Fun Flooc Fund: Total Func Wide Tota
City of Boulde $ 29€¢ $ $ $ 29€¢ $ $ 29¢€
City of North Las Vege 729,76 729,76 729,76
Clark Count 7,362 6,691,54. 6,698,901 2,954,71. 9,653,61!
Clark County Regional Flood Cont
District 4,569,34. 4,569,34. 4,569,34
Clark County Regional Transportat
Commissiol 4,817,48 2,331,87! 7,149,36. 7,149,36.
Clark County School Distri 15¢€ 15¢€ 15¢€
Commission for the LV Centenn 363,45¢ 363,45¢ 363,45¢
Corporation for National and Commur
Service 46,20¢ 46,20¢ 46,20¢
Las Vegas Convention and Visit
Authority 1,285,59. 1,285,59. 1,285,59.
Nevada Dept of Transportati 2,343,10. 90,80¢ 2,433,90! 2,433,90!
Southern Nevada Water Authol 5,292,57. 5,292,57.
State of Nevac 2,251,99! 2,251,99! 2,251,99!
U.S. Department of Commel 77,20¢ 77,20¢ 77,20¢
U. S. Dept of Justic 46,21¢ 46,21¢ 46,21«
U.S. Department of Housing and Url
Developmer 1,752,35 1,752,35 1,752,35.
U.S. Department of Interior (Bureau
Land Managemer 1,984,89! 1,984,89! 1,984,89!
U.S. Department of Homeland Secu 165,64¢ 298,49¢ 464,14 464,14t
U. S. Marshall Servic 2,90¢ 2,90¢ 2,90¢
$ 906,13¢ $11,729,93 $ 17,220,65 $29,856,72 $ 8,247,28 $38,104,01

Payments of intergovernmental receivables are éggdo be received and available soon enough péi@r-end to finance
expenditures of the year endddne 30, 201. In addition, the City has resources availablenfrine U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development through the Commubigyelopment Block Grant Program totalif®,487,03, the
Housing Opportunities for Persons With AIDS totgli$790,64!, HOME Investment Program totalin§2,109,89,
Emergency Solutions Grant totalirfl7,11( and Neighborhood Stabilization Program total®y,260,37, which are
available to reimburse the City for qualifying ergdéures.

68



CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENT
JUNE 30, 201

Joint Venture

A. Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department (Metro)

The City is a participant in a joint venture witha@k County created by a special financing relafop for the Las Vegas
Metropolitan Police Department (Metro) establisihgdstate statute. A five-member committee compadadio appointees

each from the City and the County, and one appeifiten the general public approves Metro’s budget.

State statute mandates apportionment of costs athengarticipating political subdivisions based m@opercentage of the
permanent population and the total number of dalisservice within each subdivision. Complete fici@h information for
Metro is included in the comprehensive annual fom@report of Clark County, Nevada. The followisaghedule presents a

two-year summary of condensed financial informafmmMetro, as of and for the years ended June 30:

201€ 201¢

Asset: $ 61,935,86 $ 51,763,39
Liabilities (25,709,247 (20,530,214
Deferred inflow (1,511,770 (1,712,685
Fund balanc 34,714,84 29,520,49
Revenue 310,643,73 286,205,67
Expenditure (530,075,71% (485,695,231

(219,431,97¢ (199,489,55¢
Other financing sourc 225,804,07 216,504,30
Other financing ust (1,177,781
Change in fund balan $ 5,194,32 $ 17,014,75
Political Subdivision Funding Percenta
Clark Count 62.4% 63.0%
City of Las Vega 37.6% 37.0%
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Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year endrohe 30, 201, was as follows:

Primary Government

Restated Balan Balanct
June 30, 201 Additions Transfer Deletion: June 30, 201
Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Lanc $1,147,314,45 $ 9,846,02. $ $ $ 1,157,160,48
Construction in progre 141,263,06 34,867,74 (72,876,91¢ 103,253,89
Total capital assets, not be
depreciate 1,288,577,52 44.713,76 (72,876,91¢ 1,260,414,37
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvemen 511,772,88 3,183,36! 4,919,39; 519,875,63
Buildings 652,060,61 7,097,51i (499,416 658,658,71
Building improvement 177,985,98 219,40: 731,17( (78,535 178,858,02
Machinery and equipme 54,099,30 924,66’ 183,48: (532,148 54,675,30
Vehicles 72,333,41 3,592,77. (4,506,067 71,420,12
Roadway 1,431,359,05 28,081,27 48,617,75 1,508,058,08
Traffic pavement marke 2,904,15 419,94¢ 5,69t 3,329,80.
Traffic signals and lightin 189,870,81 2,118,06! 5,886,14. 197,875,01
Traffic signag 3,190,56' 111,20! 38,34¢ 3,340,12!
Storm drainag 807,112,36 27,138,54 12,494,93 846,745,84
Total capital assets, bei
depreciate 3,902,689,15 72,886,76 72,876,91 (5,616,166 4,042,836,66
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvemen (181,538,994 (23,805,517 (205,344,511
Buildings (108,388,37¢ (16,221,34C 392,24¢ (124,217,47C
Building improvement (65,273,80¢< (8,374,214 78,53 (73,569,482
Machinery and equipme (36,759,47C (2,745,720 524,72¢ (38,980,461
Vehicles (55,112,727 (3,432,406 4,459,69: (54,085,43¢E
Roadway (696,407,82¢ (44,920,98¢ (741,328,81:
Traffic pavement marke (2,390,167 (178,610 (2,568,777
Traffic signals and lightin (135,852,93¢ (5,566,158 (141,419,09:
Traffic signag (1,676,424 (254,252 (1,930,676
Storm drainag (176,670,27¢ (16,417,318 (193,087,587
Total accumulated depreciat (1,460,070,99¢ (121,916,51¢ 5,455,21. (1,576,532,30¢
Total capital assets, being depreciated  2,442,618,15 (49,029,753 72,876,91 (160,955 2,466,304,36
Governmental activities capital assets $3,731,195,67 $ (4,315,987 $ $ (160,955$ 3,726,718,73

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/progrof the primary government as follo

Governmental activitie

General governme
Judicia

Public safet

Public work:

Healtk

Culture and recreatis

Economic developme

Transit systen
Subtota

Capital assets held by the government's intermalcgefunds are charged
the various functions based on the usage of theds
Total depreciation expense-governmental actiy
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9,289,65:

5,122

13,630,69
61,392,47
17,54(
33,179,37
2,305,71.

941

119,821,51

2,095,00.

$

121,916,51




Capital Assets (continued)

Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being deprecie
Lanc
Construction in progre
Total capital assets, not be
depreciate

Capital assets, being deprecia
Land improvemen
Sewer plant improvemer
Buildings
Building improvement
Sewer line
Machinery and equipme
Total capital assets, bei
depreciate

Less accumulated depreciation
Land improvemen
Sewer plant improvemer
Buildings
Building improvement
Sewer line
Machinery and equipme
Total accumulated depreciat

Total capital assets, being deprecie
ne

Business-type activities capital ass
ne

Business-type activitie
Sanitatiot
Municipal Parkin
Municipal Golf Cours
Building and Safet

CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENT

JUNE 30, 201
Balanct Balanct

June 30, 201  Additions Transfer Deletion: June 30, 201
$ 82,394,20 $ 576,02t $ (440,324 $ 82,529,91
150,189,87 30,220,93  (34,354,69¢ 146,056,10
232,584,08 30,796,96  (34,354,69¢ (440,324 228,586,02
43,371,04 36,12: 43,407,16
461,277,65 256,15: 1,118,15. 462,651,95
62,513,83 62,513,83
4,148,80! 27,71 4,176,511
421,568,41 18,919,69 33,208,83 473,696,93
4,668,21. 171,07 (65,754 4,773,53
997,547,96 19,383,04 34,354,69 (65,754 1,051,219,95
(15,000,38¢ (2,020,164 (17,020,552
(254,322,32¢ (16,698,64¢ (271,020,97¢
(19,599,49¢ (1,507,681 (21,107,17¢
(2,925,494 (100,468 (3,025,962
(115,973,662 (8,970,506 (124,944,16¢
(2,602,790 (340,711 64,26 (2,879,239
(410,424,161 (29,638,17¢ 64,26 (439,998,07¢
587,123,80 (10,255,13  34,354,69 (1,492 611,221,87

$819,707,88 $ 20,541,82 $

(441,816 $ 839,807,89

Total depreciation expenses business-type act
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11,85(
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Capital Assets (continued)
Construction Commitments

The City of Las Vegas, Neva has active construction projects aslofe 30, 201. The projects include buildings, building
improvements, land improvements (associated withioua parks), machinery and equipment (mainly assed with
upgrades to technology in progress), roadwaysnmsteewers (widening, construction of new and exgstitreets and
detention basin and drainage facilities), traffignals and streetlights in progress. The City isoain the process of
constructing sewer plant improvements and sangavyer lines. At year end, the City commitments wibintractors are as
follows:

Remaininy

Projects - Governmental fur Spent to dai Commitmen

Buildings $ 3,341,38. $ 234,11
Building improvement 6,238,61 11,960,61
Land improvemen 12,829,02 7,217,99i
Machinery and equipme 330,64¢ 978,94!
Roadway 53,651,10 67,266,58
Vehicles 4,182,80
Storm drain 24,002,79 24,970,78
Traffic signals, lighting, signs and mark 2,860,32. 971,62¢

$ 103,253,89 $ 117,783,47

Projects - Proprietary fun

Buildings $ 149,55’ $ 20,38(
Building improvement 278,49( 108,34:
Land improvemen 151,29¢ 895,73.
Machinery and equipme 4,242,071
Sanitation plant improvemel 50,600,52 17,253,15
Sanitation sewer lin 94,876,24 5,933,37!

$ 146,056,10 $ 28,453,05

The major financing for roadways and storm sewerjgats includes reimbursements from the Regionan3portation

Commission of Southern Nevada (RTC), Clark Cou@itark County Regional Flood Control District, NegwalDepartment of
Transportation, Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax, specialesssents, and bond issuances. Sanitation sewsrdintesanitation plant
improvements are financed by sewer revenues. Regalments from federal (i.e., SNPLMA) and local goweents (i.e.,

RTC) and bond proceeds finance solar energy psjedhe General Capital Projects Fund, building amd improvements,
mainly in the Parks and Leisure Activities and Gigcilities capital projects funds.

Multiple—Employer Cost—Sharing Defined Benefit Pasion Plan

The City's employees are covered by the Public Bygas' Retirement System of Nevada (PERS), whichestablished by
The Nevada Legislature in 1947, effective July, &9RERS is governed by the Public Employees RetintrBoard (the
PERS Board) whose seven members are appointecelgotrernor. The City does not exercise any comyvel PERS. NRS
286.110 states that "The respective participatirgip employers are not liable for any obligatiarighe sytem."

A. Plan Description
PERS administers a cost-sharing, multiple-emplogefined benefit public employees’ retirement systehich includes
both Regular and Police/Fire members. PERS is ddi@ird to provide a reasonable base income tdfigdaémployees

who have been employed by a public employer andse/t@arnings capacities have been removed or stibByaimpaired
by age or disability.
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Multiple—Employer Cost—Sharing Defined Benefit Pasion Plan (continued)
B. Benefits Provided

Benefits, as required by the Nevada Revised S®{BS or statute), are determined by the numbegeafs of accredited
service at time of retirement and the member’s ésgtaverage compensation in any 36 consecutivehmamth special

provisions for members entering PERS on or aftewudey 1, 2010. Benefit payments to which partictpaar their

beneficiaries may be entitled under the plan inelpdnsion benefits, disability benefits, and swwivenefits.

Monthly benefit allowances for members are compate®.5% of average compensation for each accdegétar of service
prior to July 1, 2001. For service earned on arerafuly 1, 2001, this multiplier is 2.67% of avggacompensation. For
members entering the System on or after Janua2@110, there is a 2.5% multiplier. PERS offers salvalternatives to the
unmodified service retirement allowance which, @megral, allow the retired employee to accept agedservice retirement
allowance payable monthly during his or her lifetiand various optional monthly payments to a nabeggtficiary after his
or her death.

Post-retirement increases are provided by authofilyRS 286.575-.579.
C. Vesting

Regular members are eligible for retirement at@y&vith five years of service, at age 60 with 1@rgeof service, or at any
age with thirty years of service. Regular membeatsring PERS on or after January 1, 2010, arebdidor retirement at age
65 with five years of service, or age 62 with 1@ngeof service, or any age with thirty years o¥/ier. Police/Fire members
are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five ggeaf service, at age 55 with ten years of senat@ge 50 with twenty years
of service, or at any age with twenty-five yearsefvice. Police/Fire members entering PERS aaiiter January 1, 2010,
are eligible for retirement at 65 with five yearsservice, or age 60 with ten years of serviceage 50 with twenty years of
service, or at any age with thirty years of servi€nly service performed in a position as a potiffecer or firefighter may
be counted towards eligibility for retirement adi€gFire accredited service.

The normal ceiling limitation on monthly benefitéoavances is 75% of average compensation. Howeverember who has
an effective date of membership before July 1, 188éntitled to a benefit of up to 90% of averagenpensation. Both
Regular and Police/Fire members become fully veatetd benefits upon completion of five years o¥ise.

D. Contributions

The authority for establishing and amending theagaltion to make contributions and member contrinutiates is set by
statute. New hires, in agencies which did nottettee Employer-Pay Contribution (EPC) plan priodtdy 1, 1983, have the
option of selecting one of two contribution pla@antributions are shared equally by employer angdleyee. Employees
can take a reduced salary and have contributiordenby the employer (EPC) or can make contributiopsa payroll
deduction matched by the employer.

PERS basic funding policy provides for periodic ttitnutions at a level pattern of cost as a pergmiaf salary throughout
an employee’s working lifetime in order to accuntelaufficient assets to pay benefits when due.

PERS receives an actuarial valuation on an anragis indicating the contribution rates requiredutad the System on an
actuarial reserve basis. Contributions actually enace in accordance with the required rates estaddi by the Nevada
Legislature. These statutory rates are increasetfdsed pursuant to NRS 286.421 and 286.450.

The actuary funding method used is the Entry Agentdb Cost Method. It is intended to meet the fagdobjective and
result in a relatively level long-term contribut®nequirement as a percentage of salary. For $iealfyear ended June 30,
2016 the Statutory Employer/employee matching vete 14.50% for Regular and 20.75% for Police/Fifdhe Employer-
pay contribution (EPC) rate was 28.00% for Regalad 40.50% for Police/Fire. For the fiscal yeadeshJune 30, 2015 the
Statutory Employer/employee matching rate was ¥8.Z6r Regular and 20.75% for Police/Fire. The Eoypl-pay
contribution (EPC) rate was 25.75% for Regular 40¢0% for Police/Fire.
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Multiple—Employer Cost—Sharing Defined Benefit Pasion Plan (continued)

E. Basis of Accounting

The City participates in PERS cost sharing multgiieployer defined benefit plans and is requiredréport pension
information in its financial statements for fiscperiods beginning on or after June 30, 2014, inoatance with

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)eBtant No. 68Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions

The underlying financial information used to preptire pension allocation schedules is based on RiBRRial statements.
PERS financial statements are prepared in accoedaitic GAAP that apply to governmental accountiogfiduciary funds.

Contributions for employer pay dates that fall WitiPERS fiscal year endingune 30, 201, are used as the basis for
determining each employer’s proportionate shath@tollective pension amounts.

The total pension liability is calculated by PERftuary. The plan’s fiduciary net position is repd in PERS financial
statements and the net pension liability is dissdomn PERS notes to the financial statements. mual report containing
financial statements and required information far System may be obtained by writing to PERS, 693y¢ Lane, Carson
City, Nevada 89703-1599, or by calling (775) 681@2

F. Investment Policy

PERS policies which determine the investment phbotfarget asset allocation are established byPlERS Board. The asset
allocation is reviewed annually and is designechéet the future risk and return needs of the PERS.

The following was the PERS Board adopted policgeaasset allocation as &ine 30, 201.

Long-Term Geometr
Expected Real Rate

Asset Clas Target Allocatiol Return’
Domestic Equit 42% 5.50%
International Equit 18% 5.75%
Domestic Fixed Incon 30% 0.25Y%
Private Market 10% 6.80%

*As of June 30, 2015 PERS' long-term inflation asption was 3.5%
G. Pension Liability
1. NetPension Liability

PERS collective net pension liability was measwasafJune 30, 201, and the total pension liability used to calculate
the net pension liability was determined by an @Gt valuation as of that date. The employer altion percentage of
the net pension liability was based on the totaitioutions due on wages paid during the measurepeind. Each
employer’s proportion of the net pension liability based on their combined employer and memberribations
relative to the total combined employer and mengoetributions for all employers for the period eddene 30, 201.

2. Pension Liability Discount Rate Sensitivity
The following presents the City's net pension ligbof PERS as oflune 30, 201, calculated using the discount rate of

8.00%, as well as what the PERS net pension lighilould be if it were calculated using a discouate that is 1-
percentage-point lower (7.00%) or 1- percentagetgugher (9.00%) than the current discount rate:

1% Decrease 1% Increase i
Net Pension Liabilit Discount Rate (7.009 Discount Rate (8.009 Discount Rate (9.009
Regular fund $ 697,085,16 $ 457,421,555 $ 258,120,31
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Multiple—Employer Cost—Sharing Defined Benefit Pasion Plan (continued)

3. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan's fidoc net position is available in the PERS Compnshe Annual
Report, available on the PERS website.

4. Actuarial Assumptions

PERS net pension liability was measured adurfe 30, 201, and the total pension liability used to calcultte net
pension liability was determined by an actuariduation as of that date. The total pension liapilitas determined
using the following actuarial assumptions, apptedll periods included in the measurement:

Inflation rate 3.50%

Payroll growt! 5.00%, including inflatio

Investment rate of retu 8.00%

Discount rat 8.00%

Productivity pay increa: 0.75%

Projected salary increa Regular: 4.60% to 9.75%, depending on ser

Police/Fire: 5.25% to 14.5%, depending on set
Rates include inflation and productivity incree
Consumer price indt 3.50%

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2015atiah were based on the results of the experiemgew completed
in 2014, applied to all periods included in the mweament.

The projection of cash flows used to determinediseount rate assumed that employee and employgfilmations will
be made at the rate specified in statute. Basetthairassumption, the pension plan’s fiduciary redition at June 30,
2015, was projected to be available to make aljegted future benefit payments of current activel amactive
employees. Therefore, the long-term expected ratetarn on pension plan investments was appliedlltperiods of
projected benefit payments to determine the taakjpn liability as of June 30, 2015.

At June 30, 2015, assumed mortality rates and gtexjdife expectancies for selected ages werelmsvin

Regular Members

Expected Years

Mortality Rates of Life Remaining
Age Males Females Males Females
40 0.10% 0.05% 41.1 44.4
50 0.17% 0.12% 31.€ 34.7
60 0.55% 0.42% 22.4 25.4
70 1.82% 1.39% 14.2 17.C
80 5.65% 3.79% 7.7 10.1
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8. Multiple—~Employer Cost—Sharing Defined Benefit Pasion Plan (continued)

4.  Actuarial Assumptions (continued)
Police/Fire Members

Expected Years

Mortality Rates of Life Remaining
Age Males Females Males Females
40 0.10% 0.06% 40.z 42k
50 0.19% 0.15% 30.7 32.¢
60 0.63% 0.54% 21.t 23.€
70 2.02% 1.72% 13.5 15.5
80 6.41% 4.63% 7.1 9.C

These mortality rates and projected life expectmare based on the following:

For non-disabled male regular members - RP-2000 btwed Health Mortality Table, projected to 2013 hwit
Scale AA

For non-disabled female regular members - RP-208@kihed Healthy Mortality Table, projected to 204ish
Scale AA, set back one year

For all non-disabled police/fire members - RP-2@mbined Healthy Mortality Table projected to 204ih
Scale AA, set forward one year

For all disabled regular members and all disabldit@/fire members - RP-2000 Disabled Retiree Miytd able
projected to 2013 with Scale AA, set forward thyears

5. Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred | nflows of Resources Related to Pensions

As of June 30, 207, the total employer pension expens§58,342,79. At June 30, 201, the measurement date, PERS
reported deferred outflows of resources and dalemdlows of resources related to pensions from fisiowing

sources:
Deferrec Deferrec
Outflows o Inflows of
Resourc Resource
Differences between expected and actual expe! $ $ 34,383,81
Change of assumptic
Net difference between projected and actual easmnn
investment 24,783,05
Changes in proportion and differences between k
contributions and proportionate share of contrifme 14,167,56.
Contributions subsequent to the measuremen 66,019,66

Average expected remaining service lives: 6.70/ear
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8. Multiple—~Employer Cost—Sharing Defined Benefit Pasion Plan (continued)

5.  Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
(continued)

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensimssilting from contributions subsequent to the meament date
totaling $66,019,664 will be recognized as a reidacof the net pension liability in the year endihgne 30, 2017.
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows ardwsfof resources related to pensions will be raecagl in pension
expense as follows:

2017 13,993,722
201¢ 13,993,722
201¢ 13,993,722
202( (2,653,283
2021 4,317,69:
Thereafte 1,353,701

Changes in the City's net pension liability werdadiews:

Net pension liability, beginning of ye $ 408,470,87
Pension expen 53,342,79
Employer contributior (61,278,05¢
Net new deferred inflows and outflows

resource 56,885,94

Net pension liability, end of ye $ 457,421,55

As of June 30, 201, the required contribution to PERS was $4,843,86@ is included in benefits payable in the
Employee Benefit Internal Service Fund.
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Lease commitments

The City (lessor) leases various buildings andrasatery under non-cancelable operating leases. Hjerrasset class
and accumulated depreciationJahe 30, 201 are as follows:

Accumulate:
Cos Depreciatiol Net Book Valu
Woodlawn Cemete
Lanc $ 2381( $ $ 23,81(
Building and improvemen 1,244,833 1,233,51! 11,32:
1,268,64 1,233,511 35,13:
Atrium Building
Lanc 2,600,00! 2,600,00!
Building and improvemen 35,231,97 6,175,50. 29,056,46
37,831,97 6,175,50: 31,656,46
Carson Parking Gara
Lanc 1,457,501 1,457,501
Building and improvemen 1,322,20: 1,322,20:
2,779,70: 1,322,20: 1,457,50
Ogden Parking Gara
Lanc 783,58: 783,58:
Building and improvemen 1,370,64. 1,370,64.
2,154,22! 1,370,64. 783,58:
Historic Westside Scha
Lanc 25,00( 25,00(
Buildings and Improvemer 1,444,03 687,27 756,76:
1,469,03 687,27. 781,76.

$ 4550358 $ 10,789,13 $ 34,714,44

1.  Woodlawn Cemetery

On May 19, 2000, the City (lessor) entered intoystesns lease agreement with a private company tmageand
operate Woodlawn Cemetery. The initial term of diggeement was for 10 years, which expired on May2030. The
City agreed to two of three five-year renewal opsideginning on May 14, 2010 and expiring on May 2Q0. The
following is a schedule of future rental income tioe years ending June 30:

Year Endini
June 3 Amounti
2017 $ 69,60(
201¢ 69,60(
201¢ 69,60(
202( 63,80(

The above rental income is subject to a yearlyeiase based on the consumer price index. Per theragnt, the City
will bear responsibility for the first $50,000 irater charges and one-half of the water charges&h@®,000.
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9. Lease commitments (continued)
2. Ogden and Carson Parking Garages:
The City (lessor) leases two off-street parkingages in the downtown area to private companieslongterm basis.
The agreements require monthly payments. The leasefr 50 years from their inception and rentdks are subject
to change at five-year intervals based on changdisel consumer price index. The Ogden lease wagjotiated and

extended to 2058.

The following is a schedule of future rental incofoethe years ending June 30:

Year Endini Year Endini

June 3 Amoun June 3i Amounti

2017 $ 1,124,72 2022-202¢ $ 6,170,98!

201¢ 1,124,72. 2027-2031 6,170,98!

201¢ 1,124,72. 2032-203¢ 6,170,98!

202( 1,161,21; 20372041 6,170,98!

2021 1,234,19 2042-204¢ 6,170,98!
2047-2051 4,631,54,
2052-205¢ 2,750,001
2057-205¢ 1,100,001

3. Atrium Building:

The City (lessor) owns an office building and leas#fice space and areas on the roof for cell tsw€he lease terms
vary in length from two to fifteen years and thate¢ income is adjusted annually based on vari@usgntages.

The following is a schedule of future rental incofoethe year ending June 30:

Year Endiny

June 3i Amount
2017 $331,19:
201¢ 273,63(
201¢ 222,27¢
202(C 137,59¢
2021 76,48
Thereafte 1,759,111

4. Historic Westside School

In December 2014, the City entered into a facilagse agreement with Historic Westside School Qatmm. In
exchange for the possession and use of the prerigsteric Westside School Corporation shall payadumance rental
fee of $700,000. The term of the lease shall conu@®n December 19, 2014 and shall remain in fontié December
31, 2074, unless the lease is extended or soomeingges. The following is a schedule of futuretaéincome:

Year Endini

June 3 Amounti
2017 $ 11,66
201¢ 11,66¢
201¢ 11,66¢
202( 11,66¢
2021 11,66¢
Thereafte 624,16
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9. Lease commitments (continued)

4. Historic Westside School (continued)

JUNE 30, 201

In December 2014 the City leased back from thedristWestside School Corporation site and improvesief the
Westside School for the use and occupancy and mejolyof the school. The lease commences in Decetildet and
shall end on December 2046. The following schedetails the annual lease payment the city will @ak

Year Ending June : Amouni

5. Parking Lots

$ 135,66
136,87:
138,11
139,38
140,70!

Thereafte 13,857,90

The City (lessor) leases fifteen parking lots unden-cancelable operating leases. The parkingdates range from
19 up to 524 per lot. The terms of the rental egrents range from 1.5 to 3 years, with the eariggtement expiring
in January 2017 and the latest in September 20&8se payments vary per contract and are setetcamiage of gross
revenue in excess of certain thresholds. Parkinfgés for the year endddne 30, 201 totaled $731,523.

10. Long-term liabilities and debt service requiremats to maturity

During fiscal year, 2016, the City issued the failog bonds:

* General Obligation Medium Term Recreation Projgonds, Series 2015A for $26,000,000. The bondg®ds will be
used for park improvements, community center imprnognts and swimming pool demolition and new consbn.

* Sales Tax Increment Revenue Bonds, Series 20162dr800,000. The bond proceeds will be used twstecact a
parking garage in Symphony Park and develop nenastriucture.

The city also issued several refunding bonds, whiehdiscussed in Note 10C.

A. Changes in long-term liabilities

Original
Governmental Activities: ISsu¢

Balanct Balanci Due Withir
July 1, 201! Additions Reduction June 30, 201 One Yea

Bonds payabli

General obligatio
Revenue Bonc

Variable rate general obligati
various purpose refundi
Bonds Series 2013, d

06/01/203! $ 30,025,00

28,540,00 $ $ (800,000 $ 27,740,000 $ 840,00(
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10. Long-term liabilities and debt service requiremats to maturity (continued)

A. Changes in long-term liabilities (continued)
Original Balanct Balanci Due Withir
Governmental Activities: ISsu¢ July 1, 201! Additions Reduction June 30, 201 One Yea

3.0% to 5.0% Various purpc

General Obligation Refundil

Bonds Series 2005B, paid

full'in July 201 21,295,00 7,430,001 (7,430,000

.10% to 3.3% Taxable varic

purpose General Obligati

Refunding Bonds Seri

2015B, due 06/01/20: 11,090,00 11,090,00 11,090,00 1,390,001

4.0% to 5.0% Genel
Obligation City Hall Bond:
Series 2015C, due 09/01/2( 160,805,00 160,805,00 160,805,00

5.6% to 5.9% Taxable varic

purpose General Obligati

Bonds Series 2006A, refunc

by Series 2015B refundi

bond: 18,000,00 11,385,00 (11,385,00C

4.0% to 5.0% Various purpc

General Obligation Boni

Series 2006B, refunded

Series 2016B refunding bor 50,745,00 48,365,00 (48,365,00C

5.0% to 7.0% Genel

Obligation Performing Ar

Center Bonds Series 2009,

04/01/201! 101,220,00 94,495,00 (88,010,00C 6,485,00! 2,015,00!

2.0% General Obligatic

Fremont Street Experier

refunding bonds Series 201.

fully repaid on 07/01/201 4,020,00! 1,395,001 (1,395,000

3.0% to 5.0% Genel

Obligation Performing Ar

Center Refunding Bonc

Series 2016A, due 06/01/2( 90,100,00 90,100,00 90,100,00

3.0% to 5.0% Genel

Obligation various purpos

Refunding Bonds Seri

2016B, due 06/01/20: 42,590,00 42,590,00 42,590,00 1,050,001

191,610,00 304,585,00 (157,385,00( 338,810,00 5,295,001

General Obligatio

Medium-Term Bond

2.5% to 5.0% Genel

Obligation medium-teri

Bonds Series 2011A, d

12/01/202: 27,590,00 20,350,00 (2,615,000 17,735,00 2,700,00t
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10. Long-term liabilities and debt service requiremats to maturity (continued)

A. Changes in long-term liabilities (continued)
Original Balanct Balanci Due Withir
Governmental Activities: ISsu¢ July 1, 201! Additions Reduction June 30, 201 One Yea

2.5% to 3.5% Genel

Obligation medium-teri

Bonds Series 2011B, d

12/01/201! 3,545,001 2,310,00! (435,000 1,875,001 450,00(

2.0% to 3.0% Genel

Obligation medium-teri

Bonds Series 2012A, d

05/01/202; 8,115,001 5,850,00! (785,000 5,065,00! 800,00(

2.0% to 5.0% Recreati

General Obligation mediur

term Bonds Series 2015A, ¢

09/01/202! 26,000,00 26,000,00 26,000,00 2,150,00t

4.0% to 4.3% Neighborho

Services General Obligati

medium-term Bond Seri

2007, due 11/01/20: 12,500,00 4,295,001 (1,375,000 2,920,001 1,430,001

4.0% to 4.3% Fire Safe

General Obligation mediur

term Bond Series 2007, ¢

11/01/201 10,000,00 3,425,00! (2,095,000 2,330,00t 1,140,001

36,230,00 26,000,00 (6,305,000 55,925,00 8,670,001

Certificates of Participatio
(COPs)

Certificates of Participatic

4.0% to 5.0% Tax exemr

Certificates of Participatic

(City Hall Project) Serie

2009A, due 09/01/20: 13,770,00 13,755,00 (15,000 13,740,00 4,295,001

6.1% to 7.8% Taxab

Certificates of Participatic

(City Hall Project) Serie

20098, due 09/01/20: 174,500,00 174,500,00 174,500,00

188,255,00 (15,000 188,240,00 4,295,001

Installment Purchas

6.07% Installment Purche

Clean Renewable Enel

Bonds Series 2011, d

05/01/2021 4,974,001 3,818,96! (306,079 3,512,891 313,70(
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10. Long-term liabilities and debt service requiremats to maturity (continued)

A. Changes in long-term liabilities (continued)
Original Balanct Balanci Due Withir
Governmental Activities: ISsu¢ July 1, 201! Additions Reduction June 30, 201 One Yea

6.1% Installment Purcha

Qualified Energy Conservati

Bonds Series 2011, d

05/01/2021 5,874,301 4,509,84. (361,450 4,148,39. 370,45(

8,328,81. (667,529 7,661,28 684,15(

Revenue Bonc

3.0% Energy Conservati
Revenue Bonds Series 2(
due 07/30/202 251,00( 243,72: (14,888 228,83! 15,337

3.0% Energy Conservati
Revenue Bonds Series 2(
due 07/30/202 463,40( 449,96 (27,486 422 47" 28,311

3.0% Energy Conservati
Revenue Bonds Series 2(
due 07/30/202 529,60( 514,24 (31,413 482,82¢ 32,36

1,207,92: (73,787 1,134,13i 76,01¢

Sales Tax Increme
Revenue Bon:

2.8% t04.4% Sales T
Increment Revenue Bon:
Series 2016, due 06/15/2( 24,800,000 24,800,00 24,800,00!

24,800,00 24,800,00

General Obligation Te

Increment Revenue Bon

6.0% to 8.0% Redevelopm:

Agency Tax Increme

Revenue Bonds Series 200

refunded by the Series 2016

increment revenue refundi

bond: 85,000,00 81,965,00 (81,965,00C

3.0% to 5.0% Redevelopm

Agency Tax Increme

Revenue Refunding Bon

Series 2016, due 06/15/2( 83,400,00 83,400,00 83,400,00

81,965,00 83,400,00 (81,965,00C 83,400,00

Special Assessmi
Improvement Bond

4.1% Special Assessment Ic

improvement Bonds, d
12/01/2011 444,00( 34,00( (17,000 17,00( 17,00(
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Long-term liabilities and debt service requiremats to maturity (continued)

A. Changes in long-term liabilities (continued)

o Original Balanct Balanci Due Withir
Governmental Activities: Issut July 1, 201! Additions Reduction June 30, 201 One Yea
3.6% to 5.0% Speci
Assessment local improvem
Bonds Series 2003, d
12/01/202: 4,245,001 1,270,00! (145,000 1,125,001 140,00(
3.3% to 4.9% Speci
Assessment local improvem
Bonds, due 06/01/20: 1,975,001 720,00( (85,000 635,00( 85,00(
4.0% Special Assessment Ic
improvement Bonds, ful
repaid on 12/01/20: 818,00( 35,00( (35,000
4.3% Special Assessment Ic
improvement Bonds, d
06/01/202 1,724,00( 1,207,00! (103,000 1,104,001 82,00(
4.5% Special Assessment Ic
improvement Bonds du
06/01/201 320,00( 51,00( (25,000 26,00( 26,00(
4.7% Special Assessment Ic
improvement Bonds, d
06/01/203: 1,777,85: 1,491,87! (77,910 1,413,96! 60,83¢

4,808,87! (487,910 4,320,96! 410,83t

Bonds payable subto 512,405,61 438,785,00 (246,899,22¢ 704,291,38 19,431,00
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10. Long-term liabilities and debt service requiremats to maturity (continued)

A. Changes in long-term liabilities (continued)

Original Balanct Balanci Due Withir
Governmental Activities: ISsu¢ July 1, 201! Additions Reduction June 30, 201 One Yea
Deferred amoun
Add: Issuance premiur 3,878,21: 47,634,63 (3,436,126 48,076,72 4,130,73!
Less: Issuance discou (3,095,361 (163,175 393,01( (2,865,526 (195,342

513,188,46 486,256,46 (249,942,34: 749,502,58  23,366,39

Compensated absen 41,679,13 33,052,89 (30,284,09¢€ 44,447,93  29,557,87
Heart lung presumpti
liability
(Note 16D 65,960,86 (15,967,914 49,992,94 3,967,59:
OPERB liability 48,007,04 2,413,13 (2,144,210 48,275,96
Net pension liabilit 361,377,15 71,035,58 (27,793,802 404,618,93
Government activity long-ter
liabilities $1,030,212,65 $592,758,07 $ (326,132,36¢ $1,296,838,35 $56,891,86.

Variable rate debtin July 2013, the City issued $30,025,000 of Gan®bligation (limited tax) Adjustable Rate Var®u
Purpose Refunding Bonds Series 2013 to refund tigugt 2006 outstanding $30,025,000 General Obtigaiidjusted Rate
Various Purpose Bonds Series 2006C, which boreédsitet a variable rate. Pursuant to the bond andie, the new bonds
have their interest rate determined on a dailyshashis daily rate is determined by the remarketiggnt (Merrill Lynch),
under the then existing market conditions, thatld@asult in the sale of the bonds at a price etmu#he principal amount,
thereof, plus interest, if any accrued throughdineent date.

The interest requirements for the variable ratet deds computed using the maximum allowable ratecéiffe atJune 3(C
201¢.

Compensated absencéscluded in the City’s governmental long-term ghlions is$44,447,93 of accrued compensated
absences, of which41,240,52 relates to the General furéR,842,88 to the Internal Service fund$331,53! to the Special
Revenue funds ars32,98¢ to the Capital Project funds.

Special Assessment DeBpecial assessment local improvement bonds aqgieimibligations of the City, payable primarily

from the assessments levied in each district, @edrslly from pledged and general fund revenues.spleeial assessment
receivable balance dtine 30, 207, is $4,823,93.
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10. Long-term liabilities and debt service requiremats to maturity (continued)

B. Changes in long-term liabilities - business typactivities

Balanct
July 1, 201

Original

ISsue Additions

Balanct

Reduction June 30, 201

Due Withir
One Yea

Business-type Activities

Major Funds:

Bonds payabl

Sanitation:
General obligation Reven
Bonds

4.0% Sewer genel
obligation Refunding Bont
Series 2016C, di
06/01/202: $ 16,145,000 $ $ 16,145,00
4.0% to 5.0% Sanita
Sewer general obligati
Refunding Bonds Seri
2006A, refunded by Seri
2016C refunding bon 31,920,00 20,845,00
3.0% to 5.0% Genel
Obligation Sewer ar
Refunding Bonds Seri
2014A, due 05/01/20:

74,765,00 74,765,00

$ $ 16,145,00

(20,845,00C

(4,470,00C 70,295,00

$ 2,940,001

4,695,001

95,610,00 16,145,00
Business-type Activities
Non-Major Funds:
Parking:
2.0% to 5.0% Genel
Obligation Parkin
Refunding bond Seri
2014B, due 05/01/20:
Golf Course
2.0% to 3.3% Golf Cour:
refunding gener.
obligation Revenue Bon
Series 2012B, dt
06/01/202:

8,985,001 8,985,001

8,230,001 5,975,001

(25,315,00C 86,440,00

(340,000 8,645,001

(790,000 5,185,001

7,635,001

355,00(

810,00(

14,960,00

(1,130,00C 13,830,00!

1,165,00!

110,570,00 16,145,00

Deferred amount
Add: Issuanc

Premium

Compensated absen
OPERB liability

Net pension liabilit
Business-type activity lon
term liabilities

8,659,71

1,478,33

(26,445,00C 100,270,00

(1,844,53C 8,293,51!

8,800,001

1,461,911

119,229,71

4,993,40:
8,975,87
47,093,72

17,623,33

3,634,95
537,75
9,279,74.

(28,289,53C  108,563,51
(3,496,521

(369,318
(3,570,848

5,131,83!
9,144,31:
52,802,62

10,261,91

3,412,67:

$180,292,71

$ 31,075,78

$ (35,726,217 $175,642,28

$13,674,58
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10. Long-term liabilities and debt service requiremats to maturity (continued)
B. Changes in long-term liabilities - business typactivities (continued)

The nonprofit corporations have interfund loansgidg to the Municipal Parking enterprise fund$@r781,44, the General
Fund for$12,378,56 and Redevelopment Agency Special Revenue funfiZy00t.

Interfund loans payable between the Non-Profit @oapons and the Municipal Parking Fund were elat®a in the
Government-wide Statement of Net Position. Theriantel loans payable to the General fund and Redewent Agency
Special Revenue fund are reflected in the intdoaddnces in the Statement of Net Position.

Interfund 0.5% Redevelopment Agency Tax IncremestdRue Subordinate Lien Bond Series 2011, due Bepiw, 2027,
for $15,472,19 payable between the Redevelopment Agency and #iméalion Enterprise fund was eliminated in the
Statement of Net Position.

C. Current refundings and advanced refundings

In April 2016, the City issued $90,100,000 in Gehébligation Performing Arts Center Refunding BerfBeries 2016A

with interest ranging from 3.0% to 5.0%. The pexd®were used to advance refund $85,687,166 dbodisg Series 2009
General Obligation Performing Arts Center Bondsichthad interest rates ranging from 5.0% to 7.0Bke net proceeds of
$98,297,021 (including a $9,066,390 bond premiuch a&iter payments of $869,369 in underwriting feed ather issuance
costs) were deposited in an irrevocable trust aittescrow agent to provide funds for the future debvice payments on the
refunded bonds. As a result, a portion of thee3e2il009 General Obligation Performing Arts Centends are considered
defeased and the liability for those bonds has Wemoved from the City's Statement of Net Positidfhe reacquisition

price exceeded the net carrying amount of the S&@99 debt by $11,981,364. This amount is beingrézed over the

remaining life of the old debt as deferred chargéhe City advance refnded the Series 2009 Bondabtain an economic
savings (difference between the present valueeofiébt service payments on the old and new deb$)8447,100.

In April 2016, the City issued $42,590,000 in Gehé@bligation Various Purpose Refunding Bonds Se2i@16B. Proceeds
of the 2016B bonds were used to current refund 1847000 of General Obligation Various Purpose BoSdsies 2006B.

The 2006B Bonds were redeemed on their call datelag 2016. The refunding was undertaken to achmventerest

savings of $9,031,000.

In April 2016, the City issued $16,145,000 in Gehédbligation Sewer Refunding Bonds Series 2016C€oceeds of the
2016C bonds and other city funding were used toeotirefund $17,500,227 of General Obligation SeRefunding Bonds
Series 2006A. The 2006A Bonds were redeemed ondak date in May 2016. The refunding was undkeeh to achieve
an interest savings of $309,000.

In September 2015, the City issued $11,090,000ene@al Obligation Taxable Various Purpose Refundogds Series
2015B. Proceeds of the 2015B bonds were used rterturefund $10,325,000 of the City's General @dilon Taxable
Various Purpose Bonds Series 2006A. The 2006A Bovete redeemed on their call date in May 2016e rEfunding was
undertaken to achieve an interest savings of $095,0

In April 2016, the Agency (a component unit of tB#y) issued $83,400,000 in Tax Increment Refunddamds, Series
2016, with interest rates ranging from 3.0% to 5.0¥he proceeds were used to advance refund $74,6F @f outstanding
Series 2009A Tax Increment Revenue bonds, whichiftadest rates ranging fromm 6.0% to 8.0%. Thepmeceeds of
$95,500,825 (including $10,111,844 bond premium,9%$2,218 excess reserves and after payment of B21in
underwriting fees and other issuance costs) wepedited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow aderprovide funds for
the future debt service payments on the refundedidio As a result, the Series 2009A Tax IncremeveRue Bonds are
considered defeased and the liability for thosedisdras been removed from the statement of neiqsit

The reaquisition price exceeded the net carryinguarnof the old Series 2009A debt by $16,008,20kis amount is being
amortized over the remaining life of the old debidaferred charges. The Agency advance refunde8dhes 2009A bonds
to reduce its annual debt service payment by ekigritie bond payment term by 15 years and to olataiaconomic savings
(difference betweent the present value of the debtie payments on the old and new debt less ffexafice in the reserve
requirements) of $3,784,828.
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10. Long-term liabilities and debt service requiremats to maturity (continued)

D. Payment requirements for debt service

The annual debt service requirements for all bandstanding are as follows:
GOVERNMENTAL AND BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIE!

General Obligatio General Obligatio LVRA Tax Incremer Special Assessment Lo
Revenue Bonc Medium-Term Bonc Revenue Bonc Improvement Bonc

June 3 Principa Interes Principa Interes Principa Interes Principa Interes
2017 $ 14,095,00 $ 18,189,82 $ 8,670,000 $ 1,718,06! $ $ 4,343,100 $ 410,83t $ 195,66t
201¢ 14,915,00 17,111,18 9,015,000 1,372,65! 3,822,78. 383,89 177,36
201¢ 13,025,00 16,468,40 6,595,000 1,056,08! 3,822,78. 381,10: 159,85¢
202( 14,005,00 15,913,24 6,850,001 805,92¢ 1,765,001 3,822,78. 403,45! 141,99(
2021 19,480,00  15,243,00 6,580,001 566,04« 1,815,001 3,769,83. 410,96: 122,97:

2022-202 84,025,00 64,603,64 18,215,00 902,85t 10,435,00 17,493,15 1,559,422 351,77:
2027-203.  102,495,00 44,664,76 13,315,00 14,610,90 651,11: 108,73(
2032-2031 114,340,00 22,248,67 16,370,00 11,560,55 120,18: 5,58¢
2037-204. 62,700,00 4,793,28: 19,895,00 8,032,501

204z 19,805,00 2,536,001
Total $439,080,00 $219,236,03 $ 55,925,00 $ 6,421,631 $83,400,00 $ 73,814,39 $ 4,320,96' $ 1,263,94.

Certificates of Participatic Installment Purcha: Sales Tax Increment Rever
Bond: Bond: Revenue Bonc Bond:

June 3 Principa Interes Principa Interes Principa Interes Principa Interes
2017 $ 4,295,001 $ 13,774,08 $ 684,15( $ 465,04( $ 76,01 $ 3345 $ $ 927,14:
201¢ 4,505,000  13,554,08 701,18t 423,51: 78,31« 31,16 961,87!
201¢ 4,735,000  13,323,08 718,64t 380,95( 80,68: 28,79 961,87!
202( 4,970,000  13,054,63 736,54( 337,32¢ 83,12( 26,35¢ 961,87!
2021 5,220,000  12,740,54 754,87¢ 292,62: 85,63: 23,84: 5,100,001 961,87!

2022-202¢  29,715,00 58,046,90 4,065,88. 752,53t 468,58 78,78¢ 4,600,001 3,947,12!
2027-203.  37,765,00 45,469,96 261,79 11,89¢ 3,303,12!
2032-2031  48,485,00 28,767,37 15,100,00 2,642,501

2037-204.  48,550,00 7,810,92i
204z

Total  $188,240,00 $206,541,60 $ 7,661,28' $2,651,98 $ 1,134,131 $ 234,29 $ 24,800,00 $ 14,667,39
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10. Long-term liabilities and debt service requiremats to maturity (continued)

D. Payment requirements for debt service (continued)
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

TOTAL BONDS TOTAL BONDS
June 3 Principa Interes Principa Interes
2017 $ 1943100 $ 3531926 $ 8,800,000 $ 4,327,11.
201¢ 20,348,39 33,564,04 9,250,001 3,890,58:
201¢ 18,450,42 32,717,75 7,085,001 3,484,08:
202( 21,418,11 31,879,77 7,395,001 3,184,36:
2021 31,746,47 30,839,29 7,700,001 2,881,44!
2022-202 133,188,89 135,193,23 19,895,00 10,983,54
2027-203. 130,957,90 101,777,00 23,530,00 6,392,38.
2032-203! 177,800,18 63,887,42 16,615,00 1,337,26.
2037-204. 131,145,00 20,636,70
2042-2041 19,805,00 2,536,001
Total $ 704,291,38 $ 488,350,50 ~$ 100,270,00 $ 36,480,77

E. Pledged Revenues

The City has pledged certain revenues for the paywfedebt principal and interest. The followingeaues were pledged as
of June 30, 201.

1. General Obligation Consolidated Tax Supported Bonds
These bonds are secured by a pledge of up to 158teofonsolidated taxes allocable to the City. €hesnds also

constitute direct and general obligations of thiy,Gind the full faith and credit of the City issgged for the payment of
principal and interest. The following debt issuanaee consolidated tax supported.

Maturity
Bonds Issued (Length of Pledge)
Taxable Various Purpose Refunding Bonds SeriesB 06/01/202.
Adjustable Rate Various Purpose Refunding BondeS&01. 06/01/2031
Various Purpose Refunding Bonds Series 2( 06/01/2031
City Hall Bonds Series 201! 09/01/203!

2. General Obligation Medium-Term Supported Bonds

These bonds are secured by a pledge of generakéwedues (primarily consolidated and property $ax&hese bonds
constitute direct and general obligations of thy,Gind the full faith and credit of the City issdged for the payment of
principal and interest. The ad valorem tax levyilalde to pay on the bonds is limited to the Cityiaximum operating

levy.
Maturity
Bonds Issued (Length of Pledge)
Medium Term Cultural/Stupak Community Center 2 11/01/201
Medium Term Public Safety Bonds 2( 11/01/201
Medium Term Various Purpose Bonds Series 2( 12/01/202:
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10. Long-term liabilities and debt service requiremats to maturity (continued)

E.

Pledged Revenues (continued)

2. General Obligation Medium-Term Supported Bonds (continued)

Maturity
Bonds Issued (Length of Pledge)
Medium Term Various Purpose Bonds Series 2011 EBaliia 12/01/201!
Medium Term Bonds Series 2012A (F Str 05/01/202:
Medium Term Recreation Project Bonds Series 2( 09/01/202!

3. General Obligation Sanitation and Flood Control Supported Bonds

These bonds are general obligation bonds additioratured by an irrevocable pledge of the netmegeaeceived by
the City in connection with the ownership and ofiereof the City’'s sewer system. Pledged revenuesist of all fees,
rates and other charges for the use of the sewtFrayemaining after deduction of operation anchteaance expenses
in the sewer system.

The City covenants in its bond ordinances to fixl @ollect rates and other charges for the serndcesommodities
pertaining to the sewer system in amounts suffidieipay the operation and maintenance expenses.

Maturity
Bonds Issued (Length of Pledge)
Sewer Refunding Bonds Series 20. 06/01/202:
Sewer Refunding Bonds Series 20: 05/01/203

4. General Obligation Golf Course Supported Bonds

The Golf Course Refunding Bonds Series 2012B bandssecured by a pledge of revenue derived fronopleeation
and use of the City’s Durango Hills Golf Course.

The City covenants in its bond ordinance to setsr@ind charges for the use of the golf coursesaffiient level to
produce gross revenues, which together with angrationies available therefore, will be sufficiemtpay the operation
and maintenance expenses of the golf course arfi b®@ebt service on the Golf Course Bonds in gaetn.

Maturity
Bonds Issued (Length of Pledge)
Golf Course Refunding Bonds Series 20 06/01/202:

5.  General Obligation Performing Arts Center Supported Bonds

The General Obligation Performing Arts Center SupggbBonds (Series 2009) revenue bonds are sebyradpledge
of revenues defined in the bond ordinance as thedtfed Rental Car Fees,” as that term is definethenSecond
Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement Regattim@istribution of Taxes for a Performing Artsrier dated as
of April 1, 2008, between the City and Clark Coufthe “Interlocal Agreement”).

The Interlocal Agreement defines “Rental Car Feeadee imposed by Clark County (“the County”) uplom lease of a
passenger car by a short-term lessor in the Canrttye amount of not more than 2% of the total amdar which the
passenger car was leased, excluding any taxeser feees imposed by a governmental entity.

The County imposed the Rental Car Fee in the anaf# pursuant to NRS 244A.860 and Sections 428tABrough
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10. Long-term liabilities and debt service requiremats to maturity (continued)

E.

Pledged Revenues (continued)

5. General Obligation Performing Arts Center Supported Bonds (continued)

4.28.050 of the County Code (the “Rental Car Fedir@nce”), effective July 1, 2005. The “Pledged Refar Fees”
are amounts remaining after (i) a required distrdyuby the County of the initial $3 million of Reh Car Fee proceeds
was made to the Culinary and Hospitality Academizad Vegas (the “Culinary Academy”) for the plargidesign and
construction of a facility for vocational trainirig southern Nevada; and (ii) the reimbursemenhef3tate Department
of Taxation for its expense in collecting and adstaring the Rental Car Fee. The required distidimuto the Culinary
Academy has been made.

Maturity
Bonds Issued (Length of Pledge)
General Obligation Performing Arts Center SuppoBedd:
Series 200 04/01/201!
General Obligation Performing Arts Center Refundiund:
Series 2016. 06/01/203!

6. General Obligation Special Assessment Bonds

Special Assessment Bonds are secured by propeggseents within the individual districts.

Maturity
Bonds Issued (Length of Pledge)
Special Assessment Bonds 1 06/01/203:
Special Assessment Bonds 1463, 1470, 12/01/202:
Special Assessment Bonds 1 06/01/202
Special Assessment Bonds 1 06/01/202
Special Assessment Bank Loan 1 12/01/2011
Special Assessment Bonds 1 06/01/201

7. Certificates of Participation (COPS)

The City is using an Installment Purchase to fieatfe new City Hall project. Certificates of Pagation (COPS) were
sold to investors as Build America Bonds under American Recovery and Reinvestment Act, which methes
effective interest rate, after federal rebategpiproximatelys.2 percent. The bonds are supported by consolidated t
revenue, with a potential secondary payment supipom the Redevelopment Agency tax increment regevia an
Interlocal Agreement between the City and the Ageftrough the Interlocal Agreement, the Agency agseed to
consider using future increment revenue (to therdxtevenue is available) to make a partial payr@mard the COPS
payment.

Maturity
Bonds Issued (Length of Pledge)
COPS Tax Exempt City Hall Project Series 20 09/01/201!
COPS Taxable City Hall Project Series 2009B (Difeay Builc
America Bonds 09/01/203!
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10. Long-term liabilities and debt service requiremats to maturity (continued)

E.

Pledged Revenues (continued)
8. General Obligation Tax I ncrement Revenue Supported Bonds

The bonds are supported by pledged property taacuess from the property located within the Redgplent Agency.

Maturity
Bonds Issued (Length of Pledge)
Redevelopment Agency Tax Increment Revenue RefgriBiand:
Series 201 06/15/204!

9. Installment Purchase Agreements

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 208RRA) provided the City with low-cost financing tond
energy conservation and renewable energy projébes City was designated by the U.S. Department@fTireasury to
receive an allocation of Qualified Energy ConsdoratBonds (QECB) and New Clean Renewable EnergydBon
(NCREB) to finance energy projects. The Treasunvigled a subsidy of approximately 70% (based ooradila) of
the amount of interest due on QECB and NCREB bonls.bonds will be used on lighting improvement®utdoor
streetlights and energy conservation retrofits itg buildings and solar panel installations at was city facilities,
which are expected to reduce utility costs genegagavings sufficient to repay the debt servicéghenAgreements.

Maturity
Bonds Issued (Length of Pledge)
Taxable Direct Pay Qualified Energy Conservationsad 05/01/2021
Taxable Direct Pay New Clean Renewable Energy E 05/01/2021

10. Revenue Bonds

The City received funds from the State of Nevadhe Bonds were from the State’s Renewable Energgrgyn
Efficiency and Energy Conservation loan funding.eTBonds are authorized to defray in part the cosadquire,

improve and equip building projects as defined RIN268.676, including without limitation, the prgp@ent of solar

energy electricity for city buildings under the laatity of, and in full conformity with, the constiion and laws of the
State of Nevada. The City does not pledge itsfaith and credit for the payment of the bonds. Boads are a special
obligation of the City, payable and collectibleedglout of and secured by the City’s consolidated t

Maturity
Bonds Issued (Length of Pledge)
Revenue Bond Series 2( 07/30/2021

11. General Obligation Parking Supported Bonds

These bonds are general obligation refunding baaditionally secured by a pledge of the net reverafethe City's
Main Street Parking facility refinanced by the bsrahd additionally secured by 15% of all income ageknues
derived by and distributed to the City pursuani®S 360.698 (Consolidated tax).

Maturity
Bonds Issued (Length of Pledge)
General Obligation Parking Refunding Bonds Ser&:AR 05/01/203
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10. Long-term liabilities and debt service requiremats to maturity (continued)
E. Pledged Revenues (continued)
12. Sales Tax Increment Revenue Bonds
These bonds were issued to finance the acquisitijgrovement and equipping of real and persongbgnty, within the
City of Las Vegas, Nevada Tourism Improvement is{{Symphony Park) suitable for retail, tourismemtertainment
purposes. The bonds are secured by Net Sales ®a&nRe (portion of the retail sales taxes imposétirwthe

district). The bonds constitute a special obligatdf the City payable solely from the net salesrevenues. The full
faith and credit of the City is not pledged to gayment of the bonds.

Maturity
Bonds Issued (Length of Pledge)
Sales Tax Increment Revenue Bc 06/01/203!

11. Developer special assessment debt

In May 1996, the City created Special Improvemeistrizt No. 707 for the Summerlin development aleaJuly 1996, the
City issued $40,000,000 in tax-exempt bonds on Ibelfidhe property owners. The City is not liabler frepayment of the
debt and is prohibited from assuming the debt énethent of default by the property owners. The &dis as an agent for the
property owners in collecting the assessment amdafaling the collections to the bondholders. Theaesactions are
accounted for in an agency fund. The Summerlingmtogonsists of the acquisition of certain improeeis developed by
Howard Hughes Properties, Ltd. These improvemevitish are accounted for in a capital projects fundlude construction
of streets, water distribution systems, sanitavyess, storm sewers, curbs and gutters, sidewalkalited drainage facilities,
and landscaping. As qfune 30, 201, the City had released approximat&¥5,135,15 of the construction funds for
improvements, which include$b,407,20 of interest income used. The bonds were paid wfind the year endedune 3(
201¢.

In February 2001, the City created Special ImpraseinDistrict No. 808 for the Summerlin developmardga. In May 2001,
the City issued $46,000,000 in tax-exempt localrompment bonds on behalf of the property ownerg CHy is not liable
for repayment of the debt and is prohibited frorsuasing the debt in the event of default by the propowners. The City
acts as an agent for the property owners in caligthe assessment and forwarding the collectionbe bondholders. These
transactions are accounted for in an agency fuhd. Jummerlin project consists of the acquisitioartain improvements
developed by Howard Hughes Properties, Ltd. Thegerdvements, which are accounted for in a capitaejepts fund,
include street improvements (including grading,ipgyvbase, street lights, curbs and gutters, sitksveand striping), together
with traffic signals, sanitary sewers, water lin&srm drains, and related facilities. AsJoie 30, 201, the City has released
$43,037,17 of the construction funds, which includ®3,126,74 of interest income. The outstanding balance orbtivels
payable wa$8,340,00 atJune 30, 201.

In May 2003, the City created Special Improvemeistrizt No. 809 for the Summerlin development aiealune 2003, the
City issued $10,000,000 in tax-exempt local improgat bonds on behalf of the property owners. Thg i€inot liable for
repayment of the debt and is prohibited from asegrttie debt in the event of default by the propewtyers. The City acts
as an agent for the property owners in collecthmgy assessment and forwarding the collections tdotimelholders. These
transactions are accounted for in an agency fuhd. Jummerlin project consists of the acquisitioartain improvements
developed by Howard Hughes Properties, Ltd. Thegerdvements, which are accounted for in a capitajepts fund,
include street improvements (including grading,ipgyvbase, street lights, curbs and gutters, sitksveand striping), together
with traffic signals, sanitary sewers, water lingsrm drains, and related facilities. AsJoie 30, 201, the City has released
$10,797,53 of the construction funds, which includ$g97,53( in interest income used. The outstanding balancé¢he
bonds payable w&k3,585,00 atJune 30, 201.

In May 2004, the City created Special Improvemeistrizt No. 607 for the Providence development aheaune 2004, the

City issued $51,185,000 in tax-exempt local improgat bonds on behalf of the property owners. Thg i€inot liable for
repayment of the debt and is prohibited from asegrttie debt in the event of default by the propewtyers. The City acts
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11. Developer special assessment debt (continued)
as the agent for the property owners in collecthregy assessments and forwarding the collectionédotind holders. These
transactions are accounted for in an agency fuhd.Arovidence project consists of the acquisitiboeotain improvements
developed by Cliffs Edge, LLC. These improvemewtsich are accounted for in a capital projects fundlude street, water,
sewer, storm drainage and other improvements. Titetamding balance on the bonds payable $285340,00 at June 3(
201¢.

In July 2007, the City created Special Improvenierstrict No. 810 for the Summerlin development arkaSeptember
2007, the City issued $23,625,000 in tax-exempallaoprovement bonds on behalf of the property aan€he City is not
liable for repayment of the debt and is prohibitien assuming the debt in the event of defaulth®ygroperty owners. The
City acts as an agent for the property owners Ilecting the assessment and forwarding the cobtlestito the bondholders.
These transactions are accounted for in an agemny. fThe Summerlin project consists of the acqaisiof certain
improvements developed by Howard Hughes Propertitl, These improvements, which are accounted rfoa icapital
projects fund, include street improvements (inatgdgrading, paving, base, street lights, curbs gutters, sidewalks and
striping), together with traffic signals, sanitaagwers, water lines, storm drains, and relateditfasi As of June 30, 201,
the City has release$ll0,447,72 of the construction funds, which includes $220,81Bterest income use88,090,75 for
refunding of District No. 808, an®4,460,10 for bond costs and reserves. The outstanding t@lan the bonds payable was
$17,275,00 atJune 30, 201.

In October 2015, the City created Special Improvenméstrict No. 812 for the Summerlin developmergaa In December
2015, the City issued $29,500,000 in tax-exempalldoprovement bonds on behalf of the property aanéhe City is not
liable for repayment of the debt and is prohibitexin assuming the debt in the event of defaulthgygroperty owners. The
City acts as an agent for the property owners Ilecting the assessment and forwarding the cobtlestito the bondholders.
These transactions are accounted for in an agamwy. f The Summerlin project consists of the actjaisiof certain
improvements developed by Howard Hughes Propettiies, These improvements, which are accountedirfaa capital
projects fund, include street improvements (inalgdgrading, paving, base, water lines, curbs ariteigy sidewalks and
striping), together with traffic signals, sanitagwers, water lines, storm drains, and relateditfasi As ofJune 30, 201,
the City has released $5,467,733 of constructiodguwhich includes $46,598 in interest income pysed $3,033,510 for
bond costs and reserves. The outstanding balantedonds payable was $29,500,000usie 30, 201.
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12. Unearned Revenues and deferred inflows of resatgs

The following schedule details unearned revenudsra 30, 201, and the reasons for each:

Major Governmental Fun

Nonmajor Governmental Fur

City of Las
Vega:
Specia Redevelopme Total Tota
Debt Servic Revenu Agency Capital Project Government: Business-Typ GASB 3¢
Genere Fund: Fund: Component Un Fund: Fund: Activities Adjustment
Deferred inflows:
Property taxe $ 1,197,831 $ 351 $ 182,87 $ 412,28. $ $ 1,793,34 $ $ (1,793,340
Related to Pensio 6,774,91 52,520,05
Gain on Refundir 5,58¢
Record sale of O
City Hall 15,000,00 15,000,00 (15,000,00C
Special Assessmel 4,801,97 4,801,97 (4,801,976
Fremont Experienc
loar 4,690,66. 4,690,66: (4,690,663
5th Street School loi 5,521,26 5,521,26 (5,221,264
$ 16,197,83 $ 351 ¢ 18287¢($ 10,62420 $ 4,801,97 $ 31,807,24 $ 6,78049 $ (21,012,807
Unearned revenue
Prepaid tuition $ 824,71 $ 824,71t $
Prepaid ret 1,50(C 694,16 695,66
Prepaid Corp fc
National an
Community service
gran 26,65¢ 26,65¢
Gift certificate: 7,220
Prepaid parking gara
renta 517,12!
Prepaid buildin
permits 1,080,98
$ 826,21t $ $ 720,82 % $ $ 154704 $ 160533 $
Total
Government: Business-typ Primary
Activities Activities _Governmer
Deferred inflows:
Property taxe $ $ $
Related to Pensio 52,520,05 6,774,91 59,294,96
Gain on Refundir 5,58¢ 5,58¢
Record sale of O
City Hall
Special Assessmel
Fremont Experienc
loar
5th Street School loi
$ 52,520,05 $ 6,780,49 $ 59,300,54
Unearned revenue
Prepaid tuition $ 824,71t $ $ 824,71
Prepaid ret 695,66! 695,66¢
Prepaid Corp fc
National an
Community service
gran 26,65¢ 26,65¢
Gift certificate: 7,22( 7,22(
Prepaid parking gara
renta 517,12! 517,12!
Prepaid buildin
permite 1,080,98 1,080,98
$ 154704 $ 1,60533. $ 3,152,37
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Encumbrances / Commitments

Encumbrances:

Encumbrances for purchase orders, contracts, d&ed commitments for expenditures are recorded imonandum accounts
of the City’'s governmental funds. Encumbrance badannclude contracts that span over multiple Figears.

The following schedule details encumbrances outistgrfor the year endetline 30, 201

General Fun $ 897,15:
Special Revenue Fur 11,246,07
Capital Projects Fun 120,276,13

$ 132,419,36

Commitments:

In October 1998, the City and Clark County enteirgd the Regional Justice Center Financing Agre¢méhe County
constructed a Regional Justice Center (RJC) forHigath Judicial District Court of the State of Nela, the Las Vegas
Justice Court, and the Municipal Court of the Cityexchange for leasing a portion of the RJC,Gitg agreed to pay 25%
of the project cost limited to a maximum of $29,@@. On March 1, 1999, on behalf of the City, @eunty issued the
$29,000,000 of Clark County, Nevada General OhbgafLimited Tax) Public Facilities Bonds (Additially Secured by
Interlocal Agreement Pledged Revenues) Series 1999@se bonds were subsequently refunded by th&2@Rublic
Facilities bonds and the 2009C Public Facilitiesd® Pursuant to the financing agreement, the @Baies semi-annual
payments to the County on December 1 and June ithwalne in-substance rent. For the year enllew 30, 201, the City
made$1,995,47 of in-substance lease payments per the agreement.

Interfund transactions
A. Due to/from other funds

The following schedule details the amounts due ftomther funds alune 30, 201

Receivable Fur Payable Fun Amouni
General Fun Redevelopment Agen $ 6,97
Nonprofit corporatior 2,01¢
8,99¢
Debt Servic Redevelopment Agen 1,000,001
Non-major government Redevelopment Agen 51,64¢
1,051,64!
Total $ 1,060,641

The outstanding balances between funds result yn&ioin the time lag between the dates that (1)rfatel goods and
services are provided or reimbursable expenditapesir, (2) transactions are recorded in the acaugirglystem, and (3)
payments between funds are made. These balance#nelsde the amount of working capital advanceslent various
funds that the general fund expects to collechensubsequent year.

B. Interfund transfers

Interfund transfers are legally authorized trarssfesm a fund receiving revenue to the fund throwdiich the resources are
to be expended. Transfers between fund types dthiemgear endedune 30, 201, were as follows:
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JUNE 30, 201
Interfund transactions (continued)
B. Interfund transfers (continued)
TRANSFERS OU
Road an Non-Majol Interna

TRANSFERS I General Fun Flooc Government: Service
General Fun $ 10,021,25 $ $ $ 10,021,25 $
Debt Servic 34,911,41 15,100,00 18,827,20 984,21(
Road and Floc 2,814,63i 2,814,63:
Non-Major Government 45,096,44 9,555,51! 2,442,89. 33,083,04 15,00(
Non-Major Proprietat 1,480,001 1,200,001 280,00(
Internal Servic 2,454,43! 2,175,43! 279,00(
Total $ 96,778,19 $ 28,030,95 $ 2,442,89. $ 65,305,14 $  999,21(

Transfers are used to move revenues from the fuiitths collection authorization to other funds wherependitures are
recorded. These include debt service principal iatetest payments, voter-approved fire safetyatiite expenditures for
operating and capital costs, residential conswudtixes and hotel/motel room taxes for capitajgats. Unrestricted general
fund revenues are moved to finance various programdscapital projects that the City must accountirioother funds in

accordance with budgetary authorizations, includgingpunts provided as subsidies for various programmatching funds

for various grant programs.

Segment information
In a prior fiscal year, the City issued generaligdtion revenue bonds to finance construction gbl course. Summary

financial information for the Municipal Golf Cour&nterprise Fund as of and for the years endinge 30, 201 and201£ is
presented below.

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

201¢ 201t

Assets

Current asse $ 1,576,24! $ 1,077,12

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreci 7,158,48! 7,865,34!
Total Asset 8,734,73! 8,942,47
Liabilities:

Current liabilitie 919,70° 817,21

Noncurrent liabilitie 4,423,42! 5,238,98!
Total Liabilities 5,343,13; 6,056,19!
Deferred inflows of resource

Deferred gain on refundii 5,58¢ 6,517
Net asset

Net investment in capital ass 1,924,041 1,832,66:

Unrestricte: 1,461,97 1,047,09!
Total Net Positio $ 3,386,01° $ 2,879,76.

97



CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENT
JUNE 30, 201

15. Segment information (continued)

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

201¢€ 201¢

Charges for servic $ 1,097,69! $ 1,098,02
Miscellaneous reven 725,89: 485,31¢
Depreciation expen (706,864 (718,834
Other operating expens (1,659,654 (1,666,866

Operating los (542,928 (802,353
Non-Operating revenue (expens

Interest revent 22,59: 9,481

Interest expen: (138,611 (154,137

Contributions to other governme (34,797 (20,318

Loss before transfe (693,744 (967,321
Transfers i 1,200,001 1,200,001
Change in net positic 506,25t 232,67¢
Beginning net position, July 2,879,76. 2,647,08.
Ending net position, June $ 3,386,01° $ 2,879,76.
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

201€ 201¢

Net cash provided (used)

Operating activitie $ 176,38¢ $ (136,123

Noncapital financing activitit 1,165,20! 1,179,68:

Capital and related financing activit (940,417 (939,600

Investing activitie 21,982 8,945

Net increase in cash and cash equiva 423,15¢ 112,90:

Beginning cash and cash equival 891,10¢ 778,20(
Ending cash and cash equivalt $ 1,314,26: $ 891,10¢

16. Risk management and contingent liabilities

State and local governments are subject to margstgp claims; such as those arising out of worl@sipensation claims,
contractual actions, claims for delays or inadegustecifications, damage to privately owned vebiddg City-owned
vehicles, and claims relating to personal injueed property damage.

Claims against state and local governments areactaized by the followng conditions that could mastimation of the
ultimate liability extremely difficult:

a. Certain types of claims may be filed in amouatsdreater than those that can reasonably be edétbe
agreed on by the City and the claimant or awardea tourt.

b. The time permitted between the occurrence ofvamtecausing a claim and the actual filing of thens may
be lengthy.

C. The time that may elapse between filing and atensettlement and payment of a claim may be erigem

lengthy. Similarly, the adjudicated loss may bedpaier a period of years after a settlement.
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16. Risk management and contingent liabilities (comued)

A liability for claims will be reported if inform&in is available prior to issuance of the basiaficial statements and
indicates it is probable that a liability has bé®eurred at the date of the basic financial statémand the amount of the loss
can be reasonably estimated. In addition, thersitrations in which incidents occur before theabak sheet date but claims
are not reported or asserted when the basic fiabatdtements are prepared. These "incurred butepeotted” claims have
been estimated based upon the City's past experi@ujusted for current trends and an inflatiortdiacThe claims are
included in the appropriate liability accounts.

A. Self-Insurance programs

The City operates two self-insured programs - amdidbility and property damage purposes and enefployee benefits
including workers' compensation and group insurasxc®llows:

1. Liability Insurance and Property Damage I nternal Service Fund

The fund was established December 15, 2004, by Cdyncil Resolution. It is a consolidation of théakility
Insurance Internal Service Fund, established July®39, by City Council Resolution and modified A7, 1985, and
the Property Damage Insurance Fund, establisheob@&c®, 1993, by City Council Resolution. The fgnaboled cash
and investments balance w§3,491,52 atJune 30, 201, and charges for services $1,850,99 were made to the
consolidated funds during the year endade 30, 201. The purpose of the fund is to pay for self-asqlitoeses. As of
June 30, 201, $435,97( has been accrued for claims and judgments payatdkiding incurred, but not reported
claims, which are estimated to be payable withia year.

Changes in the balance of claims and judgmentaglfiscal years ended June 30 were as follows:

Current yee

Balance ¢ claims ani Claims ani Balance ¢
beginning o change Claim end o Due withir
Fiscal Yea fiscal yea in estimate payment fiscal yea one yea
201¢ $ 359,14t $ 965,84. $ (1,040,877 $ 284,11: $ 284,11
201¢€ 284,11: 1,448,33! (1,296,474 435,97t 435,97t

2. Employees Benefit Internal Service Fund

The fund was established December 15, 2004, by Cdyncil Resolution. It is a consolidation of theokkers’
Compensation Insurance Internal Service Fund éstegal August 21, 1985, by City Council Resolutiowl ghe Group
Insurance Internal Service Fund. The resolutioaldishes a minimum cash balance not less than yvimet percent of
the prior year expenditures. The purpose of the fisrto provide employees and beneficiaries witmgensation for
occupational accidents and diseases and otheamseibenefits, and is funded by an adjustable pagltocation and
payroll deductions. The City's maximum paymentifmtustrial injuries as ofune 30, 201, ranges from $350,000 to
$5,000,000 per claim, with excess insurance coeegagvided by an insurance company. Settled cldimge not
exceeded this commercial coverage over the pase tfiscal years. The City will be reimbursed $1,08% by an
insurance company for payments on settled claimsxitess of the self-insurance limits in effectla time of the
claims. The fund's pooled cash and investmentsodinel investments alune 30, 201, was$28,421,60 with a net
position balance 0f$1,701,85. Current benefits payable totaled $7,298,531 whichude $1,206,424 in accrued
judgements payable, PERS contribution liability$&f107,406 and employee withholding payable of $234. The
current portion of the heart lung presumptive cklmbility totaled $3,967,593 dune 30, 201.

Noncurrent liabilities consisted of heart lung (kens’ compensation) presumptive liability &f14,901,43 and

$597,93: of accrued general workers' compensation clainyalga. There were charges for service$57,797,14
made to the fund during the current year.
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD/
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENT
JUNE 30, 201
16. Risk management and contingent liabilities (comued)

A. Self-Insurance programs (continued)

The City operates two self-insured programs - amdi&bility and property damage purposes and eneefmployee benefits
including workers' compensation and group insurasc®llows:r

2. Employees Benefit I nternal Service Fund (continued)
Changes in the balance of workers’ compensatiamslduring fiscal years ended June 30 were asvisllo

Current yee

Balance ¢ claims ani Balance ¢
beginning o changesi Claim end o Due withir
Fiscal Yea fiscal yea estimate payment fiscal yea one yea
201¢ $ 14,766,45 $ 10,785,48 $ (4,697,612 $ 20,854,32 $ 7,211,95!
201¢€ 20,854,32 5,593,05 (5,003,825  21,443,55 5,944,18.

B. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Plan
1. Background:

The City accounts for and reports its costs anehastd future liability related to postemploymeeglihcare and other non-
pension benefits. Historically, the City’s subsiggis funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. The City masuas the cost of the
retiree health subsidy and other postemploymengfiitenduring the period of employees’ active empieynt, while the
benefits are being earned, and discloses the uefuadtuarial accrued liability in order to acculaiccount for the total
future cost of postemployment benefits and theniina impact on the City. The net OPEB liabilityreduced each year by
the amount of employee contributions. Employee rifouions equal the claim payments, administratiiiarges and state
charged subsidies paid on behalf of retirees,daggetiree contribution premiums.

2. Plan Description:

The City sponsors a single-employer defined bemhefiithcare plan. The plan options are: United tHeahre (PPO), Sierra
Health and Life (PPO Plus); Health Plan of Nevad®Q or Point of Service); and dental (MetLife) avidion plans (VSP).

Each City plan provides medical, prescription drdgntal and vision benefits to retirees and theweced dependents.
Retirees are eligible to participate at age 55 Witfears of service or at any age with 30 yeaseofice. Those retiring on or
before September 1, 2008, also had the optionaofsterring to the State of Nevada Plan. This pla@,Public Employee
Benefit Program (PEBP), is an agent multiple empitpdefined benefit plan. PEBP benefit provisioresestablished by the
Nevada State Legislature. For those retirees wisztegl the PEBP Plan, the City is obligated to @ayonthly subsidy to the
PEBP for the coverage on those transferees. Infavman the State plan can be obtained at Publipl&yee Benefits Plan,
901 South Stewart Street, Suite 101, Carson Cityada 89701, 1-800- 326-5496.

3. Funding Policy

The City has a six-member Insurance Committee étlabor and three management) that reviews theansea needs of the
City. They make recommendations to City managemehtp then determines funding requirements and plptions.

Insurance funding for the Las Vegas Police Officgssociation/Correction Officers (POA), the Las ¥ed?olice Protection
Association Marshals (PPA) and the Internationakoksation of Firefighters Local 1285 are governed dollective

bargaining association contracts. The associatiomsr the OPEB insurance needs of these organi®atiased on contract
funding with the City, therefore they are not irddd in the City OPEB liability and cost. The Cityrequired to pay the
PEBP a monthly subsidy based on the number of yedassrvice with the City at retirement. The sdlydevels payable by
the City differ based upon Medicare status. Ft&raes not on Medicare who retired prior to Janugr§994 the subsidy is
$462 and does not vary by years of service aeratnt. Otherwise, the subsidy level does varydays/of service, except in
those instances where greater than 20 years dtedsvattained. The subsidy contribution rangemf5 years of service at
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENT
JUNE 30, 201

16. Risk management and contingent liabilities (comued)
B. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Plan (contimed)

3. Funding Policy (continued)
$116 per month to 20 or more years of serviced6%er month. For those on Medicare, the subsidsi ranges from
$55 (5 years of service) to $220 (20 or more yeérervice). The level is $165 for all Medicaréinees that retired prior to
January 1, 1994. Approximately 469 retirees arth Wie State Plan as of the most recent valuatibhe City’s current
funding policy for its OPEB liability is pay as yqo.

4. Annual OPEB Cost:

The annual OPEB cost for the City plan is calculdtased on the annual required contribution (ARGhe City, an amount
actuarially determined in accordance with the patans of GASB Statement No. Ascounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits other than Pensidi& ARC represents a level of funding that, ifdpah an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover normal costs each year and twtara any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or fungiexcess) over a period
not to exceed thirty years. The City’s annual ORIBB! for the current year and the related inforomais as follows:

City PEBP Total
Annual Required Contribution (AR $ 2,783,53' % 1,120,72. % 3,904,26.
Interest on net OPEB obligati 2,136,03 (27,666 2,108,36:
Adjustments to AR (3,103,218 40,19: (3,063,025
Annual OPEB co: 1,816,35! 1,133,25. 2,949,601
Contribution: (991,000 (1,521,250 (2,512,250
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB oblig: 825,35! (387,999 437,35t
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of yt 57,730,64 (747,721 56,982,92
Net OPEB obligation, end of ye $ 58,556,00 $ (1,135,720  $ 57,420,28

The City’'s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of an®fPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the HEB obligation, as
of and for the years ended June 30, is as follows:
Percentage of Annt

Annua OPEB Cos Net OPEE
Plar Year Enc OPEB Cos Contributior Obligation/(Asse!

City of Las Vega June 30, 201 $ 3,077,21! 44.0% $ 56,331,63
City of Las Vega June 30, 201 3,050,01; 54.1% 57,730,64
City of Las Vega June 30, 201 1,816,35! 54.6% 58,556,00
PEBF June 30, 201 1,328,52 133.4% 37,93
PEBF June 30, 201 1,335,52! 158.8% (747,721
PEBF June 30, 201 1,133,25. 134.2% (1,135,72C
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD/
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENT
JUNE 30, 201
16. Risk management and contingent liabilities (comued)
B. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Plan (contimed)

5.  Funding Status and Funding Progress:

The funding status of the plan as of the most reaetuarial valuation date, July 1, 2013 is asofel:

City PEBP Total
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) (e $ 32,167,13 $ 26,113,75 $ 58,280,89
Actuarial value of Plan assets (7,401,061 (6,008,292 (13,409,352
Unfunded actuarial accrued liabil
(UAAL)=(a)-(b) $ 24,766,07 $ 20,105,46 $ 44,871,53
Funded ratio (b)/(: 23.0% 23.0% 23.0%
Covered payroll (¢ $ 118,882,52 * $ 118,882,52
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll ([(a)-(@)] 20.8% 0.0% 37.7%

*PEBP closed to City participants as of Septemh&0D8, therefore covered payroll is zero
Annualized pay of active employees as of the vadnadate.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involveimsites of the value of reported amounts and assongpabout the
probability of occurrence of events far into theufe. Examples include assumptions about futurd@mpent, mortality, and
the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined déggthe funded status of the plan and annual redquiontributions of the
employer are subject to continual revision as daesults are compared with past expectations @&wdastimates are made
about the future. The schedule of funding progresssented as required supplementary informatiowiges multiyear trend
information that shows whether the actuarial vaitiplan assets is increasing or decreasing over t@fative to the actuarial
accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: Projections ehddits for financial reporting purposes are basedhe substantive
plans (the plans as understood by the employepirdmembers) and include the types of benefitsigea at the time of
each valuation and the historical pattern of slyaoh benefit costs between the City and plan membérthat point. The
actuarial methods and assumptions used includenitpgds that are designed to reduce short-term ilitflah actuarial
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of esssmnsistent with the long-term perspective efehlculations.

Significant methods and assumptions are as follows:

City PEBP Total
Actuarial valuation da July 1, 201! July 1, 201
Actuarial cost methc Projected unit co Projected unit co
Amortization metho Level dollar on an open peri Level dollar on an open peri
amortization bas amortization bas

Remaining amortization peri 30 year 30 year
Actuarial value of asse $7,401,06 $6,008,29 $13,409,35
Valuation rate of retul 3.70% 3.70%

(Investment ratt
Inflation rate 2.8% 2.8%
Healthcare inflation trend rate ye 1 through ! 1 through !

from measurement d:

6.5% initial through 4.5¢ First year based on actual 2nd »

Increase over prior ye unltimate 6.5% through 4.5% ultima

The City uses the Employee Benefit Internal Serfurel to allocate OPEB cost to each fund based payeoll benefit rate.
Each fund incurs a charge for the service.
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENT
JUNE 30, 201

16. Risk management and contingent liabilities (comued)
C. OPEB Trust Fund

In a prior fiscal year, the City approved the c@abf an OPEB Trust Fund. The assets of the OPERBtTre intended to be
invested in the Retirement Benefits Investment F(RBIF), which is managed through an intrastateriotal agreement
with the Retirement Benefits Investment Board, tedaat 693 W. Nye Lane, Carson City, Nevada 8970 trust was
established pursuant to NRS 355.220 and the inesdmare not allowed to violate Section 10 of Aeti® of the
Constitution of the State of Nevada. The trusnhterided to provide the means to fund post-retir¢renefits provided by
the employee benefit plans. The assets to fundeestiealth benefits are to be held in trust anatéce as wholly separate
from the City’s assets and are for the benefitatipipants and beneficiaries. There are no taxseguences to the trust, and
the income of the trust is tax exempt. The trusfubject to the usual rules applicable to healthefieplans. During the
Fiscal Year endedune 30, 201, the City made no contribution to the trust. Tlke¢ market value of the trust atine 3(
201¢€, was$13,619,09.

D. Heart, Lung Presumptive Liability
The City has estimated the potential exposure éstscof indemnity (wage replacement) benefits aedioal benefits for

disability of public safety employees (police, Jirgho develop heart disease, lung disease, candexpatitis. The estimated
liability is the sum of two components:

. The outstanding benefit costs due to reported sldmwhich the City is currently paying benefits.

. The outstanding benefit costs for future claimsuined but not reported (IBNR) by the City (current
population of active and retired public safety emyplkes who may meet future eligibility requiremefus
awards under Nevada revised statutes).

The claims liability currently payable for indemnitlaims is$3,967,59. Reported as noncurrent$46,025,35 consisting
of $14,901,43 of case reserves for existing claims &3d,123,91 of IBNR claims. IBNR is discounted and amortizeio
a 20 year period.

E. Litigation

The City is currently involved in litigation inclimg tort actions, condemnations and civil righttegdtions. The City
Attorney is vigorously contesting each case. Sittee minimum probable loss, if any, cannot be reablynestimated, no
provision for loss has been recorded in the accosipg basic financial statements.

F. Unfunded Metropolitan Police (Metro) OPEB Liability and Net Pension Liability

The City and the County jointly fund Metro. The \Cftinds37.6% and is liable f01$28,899,56 of the Metro net OPEB
obligation. A liability has been established in t®/ernment-wide statement of net position for @iy’s portion (see Note
6A).

For the fiscal year endedune 30, 201, in connection with the adoption of GASB No. 6Be tCity has recorded its
percentage share of Metro's net pension liabifit$304,322,205, in accordance with the City fuedgentage.
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENT
JUNE 30, 201

16. Risk management and contingent liabilities (comued)

G. Tax Increment Notes of the Redevelopment Agency

The Agency has entered into tax increment suboteliieen notes as part of various owner participagreements related to
development of land included in the various redewelent districts. The indebtedness representechdynotes has been
allocated to the land and improvements and is gaysdlely and exclusively from a predetermined petage of site tax

increment received by the Agency on the parceld,isnot payable from any other source. Becauseetiigrements to repay
the notes are contingent on the Agency receivirificBnt site tax increment on the specific parcelad the obligation is

subordinate to the Agency’s pre-existing and futleét, the potential future obligation of the Aggihas not been reflected
in the basic financial statements. The following isummary of the terms of the various notes:

Simon/Chelsea Las Vegas Development, LLC Note -ablxtax increment subordinate Lien Note entered
into June 30, 2004, in the amount of $1,837,360]¢ore 18, 2008, the note was modified to add artiadal
$756,095 for a total of $2,593,455). The notes neatuin June 2016, and the outstanding balance of
$3,015,820 is no longer owed. The final paymeaseld upon tax increment revenue for Fiscal Yea6 20&s
paid August 2016 in the amount of $207,227.

WMCV Phase I, LLC Note — Taxable tax increment sdbwate Lien Note entered into June 30, 2005, & th
amount of $1,696,622. Payments started June 3@ 200 continue until June 30, 2025. Interest accaie
8.07 percent per annum, beginning July 1, 2005. gdreentage of site tax increment from which theens
paid is 41%. All unpaid principal and interest thatnains due on the maturity date will cease towed and
the Agency will owe no additional money after thatuamity date. During the year, the Agency receisigd tax
increment revenue and paid $136,917 in intere®WMCV Phase |, LLC, which was charged to economic
development and assistance. The outstanding balamse$1,833,53 at June 30, 201, which includes
$136,91 of accrued interest.

WMCV Phase Il, LLC Note — Taxable tax increment@ainate Lien Note entered into June 30, 2006hén t
amount of $8,725,545. Payments started June 3@ 200 continue until June 30, 2025. Interest accaie
8.04 percent per annum, beginning July 1, 2005. gdreentage of site tax increment from which theens
paid is 41%. All unpaid principal and interest thatnains due on the maturity date will cease towed and
the Agency will owe no additional money after thatuamity date. During the year, the Agency receisigd tax
increment revenue and pak80,63: in interest to WMCV Phase Il, LLC, which was chedgto economic
development and assistance. The outstanding balanse$16,846,91 at June 30, 201, which includes
$8,121,37. of accrued interest.

WMCV Phase Il, LLC Note — Taxable tax increment@ainate Lien Note entered into June 18, 2008hén t
amount of $14,268,157. Payments started June 3B a0d continue until June 30, 2025. Interest ascat
7.90 percent per annum, beginning June 30, 2008.pEhcentage of site tax increment from which thie s
paid is 41%. All unpaid principal and interest thatnains due on the maturity date will cease towed and
the Agency will owe no additional money after thatamity date. During the year, the Agency receisigd tax
increment revenue and paid $312,993 in intere®WkCV Phase lll, LLC, which was charged to economic
development and assistance. The outstanding balaase$19,415,350 atune 30, 201, which includes
$5,588,458 of accrued interest.
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENT
JUNE 30, 201

16. Risk management and contingent liabilities (comued)
G. Tax Increment Notes of the Redevelopment Agencgdntinued)

. SP Sahara Development, LLC Note — Taxable tax merd subordinate Lien Note entered into June 30820
in the amount of $20,912,094. Payments started 30n2008 and continue for nineteen years untieJ3M,
2027. Interest accrues at 7.9 percent beginning 30n2008. The percentage of site tax increment fivhich
the note is paid is 41%. All unpaid principal anterest that remains due on the maturity dateogiise to be
owed and the Agency will owe no additional moneterathe maturity date. During the year, the Agency
received site tax increment revenue and $2i@8,39: in interest to SP Sahara Development, LLC, whiels w
charged to economic and development assistanceodtseanding balance atine 30, 201 was$33,268,99
which includes$12,657,31 in accrued interest.

. PH ASA, LLC Note — Taxable tax increment subordénlaien Note entered into April 24, 2006, in the amio
of $995,510. Payments started June 30, 2006 artthaeruntil June 30, 2026. Interest accrues atrZgue per
annum, beginning April 24, 2006. The percentagsiteftax increment from which the note is paid1&# All
unpaid principal and interest that remains duehennaturity date will cease to be owed and the Agaeill
owe no additional money after the maturity daterimyithe year, the Agency received site tax incrgme
revenue and pai®38,03: in interest to PH ASA, LLC, which was charged wmmomic development and
assistance. The outstanding balancduate 30, 201 was $1,472,91, which includes$477,39: of accrued
interest.

. WMCYV Phase lll, LLC Note—Taxable tax increment sudipate Lien Note entered into June 17, 2009, én th

amount of $12,321,620. Payments started June 3® a0d continue until June 30, 2025. Interest acAt
7.57% per annum, beginning June 30, 2009. The ptage of site tax increment from which the noteasl is
41%. All unpaid principal and interest that remathge on the maturity date will cease to be owed thed
Agency will owe no additional money after the méatudate. During the year, the Agency received &ite
increment revenue and pa#d21,28! in interest to WMCV Phase lll, LLC, which was chad to economic
development and assistance. The outstanding balaase$15,167,04 at June 30, 201, which includes
$2,845,42 of accrued interest.

. WMCII Associates, LLC Note — Taxable tax incremsnbordinate Lien Note entered into June 17, 2009, i
the amount of $2,663,073, payments started Jun2®® upon the payment of property taxes and coatior
seventeen years until June 30, 2025. Interest es@t7.57% beginning June 30, 2009. The percenfagjte
tax increment from which the note is paid is 419%. ukpaid principal and interest that remains duettee
maturity date will cease to be owed and the Agenilyowe no additional money after the maturity elat
During the year, the Agency received site tax im@et revenue and pai#36,41" in interest to WMCII
Associates, LLC, which was charged to economic ldgweent and assistance. The outstanding balance was
$3,802,42 atJune 30, 201, which includes$1,139,35 of accrued interest.
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENT
JUNE 30, 201

17. Nonprofit Corporations

The corporations were established to promote tlzdtthand welfare of the City through the acquisitend disposition of
property located within the City. The following stlule presents the financial information for eadhthe nonprofit
corporations that comprise the nonprofit corporaion the Statement of Net Position-ProprietarydSuor the year ended

June 30, 201:
Las Vega
Community Las Vega
City Parkwa: 495 Mair Investmer  Medical Distric
V, Inc. Corporatiol  Corporatiol Inc. Total
Assets
Pooled cash, ca
equivalents ar
investments, unrestrict $ 18,676,53 $ 4,04 $ 240,120 % 2,47t $ 18,923,17
Accounts receivab 71,64 1,23z 72,87¢
Prepaid insurant 60,78¢ 11,37¢ 72,16:
Deposit: 300,00( 300,00(
Loans 9,443,92! 9,443,92!
Lanc 29,658,36 576,02t 30,234,39
Total asse $57,839,61 $ 4,04: $ 311,76¢ $ 891,11: $ 59,046,53
Liabilities and Net Positic
Accounts payab $ 20,36¢ $ $ 2196 % 907 $ 43,24
Deposits payab 499,89¢ 499,89¢
Due to other func 2,01¢ 2,01¢
Loans payab 15,185,01 15,185,01
Net positiol 42,132,31 4,04 289,79¢ 890,20« 43,316,36
Total Liabilities and Ne¢
Positior $57,839,61 $ 4,04: $ 311,76« $ 891,11: $ 59,046,53
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENT

JUNE 30, 201
Nonprofit Corporations (continued)
Las Vega
Community Las Vega
City Parkwa: 495 Mair Investmer  Medical Distric
V, Inc. Corporatiol  Corporatiol Inc. Total
Changes in Net Positi
Revenue
Rental: $ 81,04¢ $ $ $ $ 81,04¢
Other reimbursemer 8,500,001 93¢ 578,06¢ 896,04 9,975,05!
Total revenue 8,581,04 93¢ 578,06¢ 896,04 10,056,10
Expense!
Association fee 36,821 36,82]
Premiums paid (insuranc 33,823 88¢ 34,71¢
Professional servic 115,10: 301,23 416,33¢
Legal service 151,49:. 33,07: 184,56!
Other services and supp! 26,354 50 12,20« 5,84: 44,45’
Total operating expens 363,60« 93¢ 346,51. 5,84: 716,89¢
Operating income (los 8,217,44. 231,55 890,20« 9,339,20.
Nonoperating revenu
(expenses
Interest revent 101,12 101,12
Interest expen: (11,019 (11,019
Gain (loss) on sale of la (318,571 (318,571
Net nonoperating revent (228,466 (228,466
Changes in net positi 7,988,971 231,55 890,20« 9,110,73
Net Position - July : 201t 34,143,34 4,04: 58,24 34,205,62
Net Position - June 2201¢ $42,132,31 $ 4,04 $ 289,79 $ 890,20: $ 43,316,36

Prior period adjustment

During the Fiscal Year 2016 a physical inventoryswanducted of city owned assets. As a resulhefitventory it was
determined that assets that had been previousposisl of were still recorded as City owned asselfie assets of
$14,132,534 less accumulated depreciation of $29860for a net amount of $11,271,544. The adjustmeduced the
beginning net position on the Statement of Net tRwsi Government Wide, for governmental activit@mdy, and had no
effect on the City's fund financial statements.

Subsequent events

On November 29, 2016, the City issued $22,930,00General Obligation (limited tax) medium-term Maus Purpose
Bonds Series 2016D. Interest ranges from 3.0 petoes.0 percent and is payable semi-annuallyume 1 and December 1,
commencing June 1, 2017. The bonds mature Decemi2&26.



CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENT
JUNE 30, 201

20. Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In March 2016, the GASB issued Statement No.Rgfhsion Issues--an amendment of GASB Statemen6v Ndo. 68 and
No. 73 effective for periods begining after June 15, 20T his Statement addresses issues regarding Présentation of
payroll-related measures in required supplementaigrmation, 2) the selection of assumptions and tleatement of
deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial Stadd# Practice for financial reporting purposesi &) the classification of
payments made by employers to satisfy employeen (pl@mber) contribution requirements. Managemest fat yet
completed its assessment of this statement.

In March 2016, the GASB issued Statement No.I8&yocable Split-Interest Agreementffective for periods beginning
after December 15, 2016. This Statement requiraisat government that receives resources pursoiam irrevocable split-
interest agreement recognize assets, liabilities] deferred inflows of resources at the inceptidnttee agreement.
Furthermore, this Statement requires that a govenhrrecognize assets representing its beneficiatdst in irrevocable
split-interest agreements that are administred thyird party, if the government controls the pressarvice capacity of the
beneficial interests. This Statement requires ghgovernment recognize revenue when the resobexesme applicable to
the reporting period. Management does not expecatoption of this statement to have a significaupiact on the City's
financial statements.

In June 2016, the GASB issued Statement NoB&Nhding Requirements for Certain Component Unitas amendment of
GASB Statement No. J14ffective for periods beginning after June 151&0 This Statement amends the blending
requirements for the financial statement presemadf component units of all state and local gorents. Management has
completed is assessment of this statement anchadatat that it will not have a material effect oe #ity's financial position
or changes therin.

In December 2015, the GASB issued Statement NoP@8sions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employsfinied

Benefit Pension Plan®ffective for periods beginning after Decembey 2815. This Statement addresses a practice issue

regarding the scope and applicability of Statenidmt 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensionganagement
has completed its assessment of this statementleedmined that it will not have a material effect the City's financial
position or changes therein.

In August 2015, the GASB issues Statement No.T&k Abatement Disclosuresffective for periods beginning after
December 15, 2015. This statement addresses #ikfoefinancial statements prepared by state acal lgovernmenets in
conformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States to provide citizens txgpayers, legislative
and oversight bodies, municipal bond analysts, ethers with information they need to evaluate timarfcial health of
governments, make decisions, and assess accoitgtabianagement has not yet completed its assagsofi¢his statement.

In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No AtBpunting and Financial Reporting by Employers Rarstemployment

Benefits Other Than Pensiqreffective for periods beginning after June 15120 This statement addresses the accounting

and financial reporting by state and local govemtsidor postemployment benefits other than pens{@REB) and the
information provided by state and local governmemiployers about financial support for OPEB thaprisvided by other
entities. Management has not yet completed issagsent of this statement.

In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No.Fidancial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Blabther Than
Pension Planseffective for periods beginning after June 151@0 This statement addresses the usefulnessarfriafion

about OPEB included in the general purpose exteinahcial reports of state and local governme@&EB plans for
making decisions and assessing accountability. agament has completed its assessment of this statend determined
that it will not have a mterial effect on the Gitfinancial position or changes therein.
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATIOI
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR THE CITY OF LASGAS
POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAI
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Actuaria UAAL a
Actuarial Value Accruec Unfunded AAL percentage |
of Asset Liability (AAL) (UAAL) Funded Rati Covered Payrc covered payro
(@) (b) (b-a, (alb; (©) (b-a)lc
City July1,2011 $ 2,572,13°' $ 32,373,70 $ 29,801,57 7.9% $ 117,958,81 25.3%
PEBF July 1,2011 2,677,111 33,864,22 31,187,10 7.8
$ 524924 $ 66,237,93 $ 60,988,68 7.9% $ 117,958,81 51.7%
City July 1,201: $ 6,271,996 $ 37,285,39. $ 31,013,42 16.8% $ 113,476,55 27.3%
PEBF July 1,201: 4,700,98! 27,946,26 23,245,27 16.€
$ 10,972,95 $ 6523165 $ 54,258,70 16.8% $ 113,476,55 47.8%
City July 1,201t $ 7,401,06. $ 32,167,13 $ 24,766,07 23.0% $ 118,882,52 20.8%
PEBF July 1,201¢ 6,008,29: 26,113,75 20,105,46 23.C
$ 13,409,35 $ 58,280,89 $ 44,871,53 23.0% $ 118,882,52 37.7%

The Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) calculated der GASB 45 has decreased from $201 million (Sepéezr, 2006 valuation)
to $58.3 million (July 1, 2015 valuation). The nuentof City retirees that may elect coverage with BEBP was closed as of
September 1, 2008, in accordance with Senate B4l &ffective July 1, 2011, all City retirees iretREBP eligible for Medicare
are in the HRA Individual Medicare Exchange whdre City contributions are lower. The City has dyfilsured program for
retirees not in the PEBP effective January 1, 20d8re no age subsidy applies to post 65 coveiHyese plan changes, along
with assumption changes including a reduction émaksumed enroliment rate and a change in thbuitm method, have resulted
in a reduction in the AAL.

The City has acturial valuations biannually. Th&tnaluation will be for fiscal year ended June 3018, as of July 2017.
Information will be presented as it becomes avéglabfuture years.

City = City of Las Vegas (see Footndté.B. pagesl00 thru 10)
PEBP = Public Employee Benefits Plan (See Footh6iB. pages 100 thru 103)
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILIT

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Net Pension Liability
City's proportion of the net pension liability (a§
City's proportionate share of the net pension liigl $
City's covered-employee payt
City's proportionate share of the ned pensionlligitas a percentage
its covered-employee payr
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage otdked pension liabilit

CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Contractually required contributi $
Contributions in relation to the contractually reqd contributio

Contribution deficiency (exces

City's covered-employee payt $
Contributions as a percentage of covered-emploggefl

Note:

201¢ 201¢
3.92 % 3.9¢ %
408,470,87 $ 457,421,555
191,098,63 198,086,60
213.7: % 230.9! %
76.3( % 75.1C %
201¢ 201¢
61,656,96 $  66,019,66
(61,656,96¢ (66,019,664
198,086,60 $  202,797,80
31.17 % 32.5¢ %

Only two years of information is available from ogfing changes starting in Fiscal Year 2015 for BAB reporting.

112



COMBINING & INDIVIDUAL

FUND STATEMENTS & SCHEDULE SECTION

COMBINING & INDIVIDUAL

FUND STATEMENTS & SCHEDULE SECTION

v







MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS

SANNAS TVLININNAIAOD JOIvVIN






MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is the primary operating fundhef €ity. The fund is supported by a variety of rewe
sources and is used to finance a wide range ofithesi traditionally associated with government evhare
not legally or by sound financial management tabeounted for in another fund. General Fund ressurc
are ordinarily expended and replenished on an dfrasss.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
ROAD AND FLOOD FUND

This fund is used to account for major infrastruetimprovements to the City's arterial street syséend
floodwater conveyance systems. Financing is praviggimarily by Clark County, the Regional
Transportation Commission and the Clark County &eai Flood Control District.

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
CITY OF LAS VEGAS FUND

This fund is used to account for the annual payroéprincipal, interest and other fiscal chargesassary
to retire the City's general obligation long-terebd




CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
GENERAL FUNLC

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES RUND BALANCES-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Revenue
Taxes
Ad valorem property te
Room ta:
Total taxe

Licenses and permi
Business licens
Liquor license
City gaming license
Franchise fee

Gas utility
Electric utility
Sanitation utility
Telephone utilit
Garbage collectic
Cable televisio
Ambulanct
Animal permit:
Building permit:
Off-site permit
Total licenses and permr

Intergovernmente
Consolidated te
Other state revenu
County gaming licenses (City she
Other local government reveni

Other local units payment in lieu of ta

Other federal revenu
Total intergovernment

Charges for service
General governmel
Intracity reimbursable charc
Planning and development char
Business license application fi
Othel

Total general governme

Judicial
Financial counseling fe
Court counseling fe
Traffic school fee
Assessment center f
Court fee
Collection:
Othel

Total judicia

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl

Original Final Actual Final Budge
85,000,000 $ 85,000,000 $ 84,50581 $ (494,181
2,537,501 2,537,50! 2,872,50: 335,00
87,537,50 87,537,50 87,378,32 (159,178
19,270,00 19,270,00 19,533,27 263,27!
2,865,00! 2,865,00! 2,648,02 (216,974
3,387,07. 3,387,07. 3,339,83! (47,241
5,850,00! 5,850,00! 5,748,56 (101,433
29,174,61 29,174,61 29,048,55 (126,060
4,350,001 4,350,00! 4,281,08: (68,917
7,373,001 7,373,00! 7,496,11. 123,11
3,529,201 3,529,20! 3,587,14. 57,94«
6,652,801 6,652,80! 6,746,61. 93,81«
438,75t 438,75t 473,87¢ 35,12(
308,97: 308,97: 294,09 (14,878
2,435,02! 2,435,02! 2,232,17. (202,855
1,207,501 1,207,501 1,038,13 (169,366
86,841,93 86,841,93 86,467,48 (374,455
274,600,00 274,600,00 271,991,65 (2,608,347
242,50( 242,50(

3,267,001 3,267,00! 3,380,141 113,14(
276,21t 276,21t 99,92( (176,296
155,00( 155,00( 180,16! 25,16t
2,079,59:. 2,079,59:.
278,298,21 278,298,21 277,973,97 (324,246
4,075,98. 4,075,98. 4,809,23! 733,25:
824,00( 824,00( 860,45 36,45"
460,00( 460,00( 472,94: 12,94:
558,58: 558,58: 701,68t 143,10«
5,918,56! 5,918,56! 6,844,31! 925,75:
759,06 759,06 691,07- (67,988
801,03° 801,03° 835,07: 34,03«
414,36( 414,36( 357,99: (56,367
33,19: 33,19: 43,36¢ 10,17:
3,965,48! 3,965,48! 4,279,30! 313,81
644,51 644,51 605,16 (39,346
15,36 15,36 48,57¢ 33,21¢
6,633,01 6,633,01 6,860,54 227,53!

11¢€

Continued



CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
GENERAL FUNLC

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES RUND BALANCES-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Charges for services (continue

Public safety
Intracity reimbursable charc
EMS transpol
Inmate housin
Othel
Total public safet

Public works
Intracity reimbursable charc
Othel

Total public work

Health
Financial counseling fe
Animal shelter fee
Total healtl

Culture and recreatic
Intracity reimbursable charc
Recreation fee
Swimming pool fee
Othe
Total culture and recreati

Economic development and assista
Intracity reimbursable charc

Total charges for servic

Fines and forfeit:
Court fine!
Forfeited ba
Total fines and forfei

Interes

Miscellaneou
Rents and royaltit
Contributions and donatio
Othe
Total miscellaneot
Total revenue

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl

Original Final Actual Final Budge
486,81 486,81 534,76° 47,95«
9,400,001 9,400,00! 9,462,04 62,04¢
9,000,00t 9,000,00! 9,632,141 632,14t
2,721,94 2,721,94! 2,816,48: 94,53¢
21,608,76 21,608,76 22,445,45 836,68
3,727,791 3,727,791 3,235,32. (492,466
162,65« 162,65« 133,95t (28,698
3,890,44. 3,890,44. 3,369,28! (521,164
22,03t 22,03t

15,94! 15,94: 19,20: 3,261
15,94: 15,94: 41,23} 25,29¢
1,88¢ 1,88¢ 1,28: (606,
2,495,19 2,495,19 2,388,98! (106,202
258,67¢ 258,67¢ 177,93! (80,743
59,05% 59,05% 65,04 5,98¢
2,814,81! 2,814,81! 2,633,25! (181,565
32,524 32,524 88,54¢ 56,024
40,914,06 40,914,06 42,282,63 1,368,57!
14,250,12 14,250,12 12,364,12 (1,885,996
819,00( 819,00( 689,71 (129,281
15,069,12 15,069,12 13,053,84 (2,015,277
746,00( 746,00( 1,237,88! 491,88(
1,750,001 1,750,001 2,003,85! 253,85t
106,02( 106,02( 28,01¢ (78,002
628,98: 628,98: 1,150,71 521,72¢
2,485,00. 2,485,00. 3,182,58. 697,58
511,891,83 511,891,83 511,576,71 (315,123

Continued



CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
GENERAL FUNLC
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES RUND BALANCES-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY (CONTINUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge
Expenditures By Function and Activ
General governme
Legislative
City council
Salaries and wag $ 167118 $ 1,671,18 $ 1,657,75. $ 13,427
Employee benefi 1,112,68! 1,112,68! 1,046,60: 66,07¢
Services and suppli 918,32: 918,32: 874,07: 44,25(
Total legislativi 3,702,18. 3,702,18 3,578,42 123,75!
Elections
City clerk:
Executive
City manage
Salaries and wag 1,634,421 1,634,421 1,511,88: 122,53t
Employee benefi 1,242,151 1,242,15I 1,096,311 145,83
Services and suppli 802,52. 802,52. 437,06¢ 365,45¢
Total city manage 3,679,09. 3,679,09. 3,045,261 633,82t
Communication:
Salaries and wag 1,699,171 1,699,171 1,822,72. (123,554
Employee benefi 1,270,111 1,270,111 1,262,99 7,11¢
Services and suppli 828,87t 828,87t 855,65¢ (26,778
Capital outla 19,70( 19,70( 1,51¢ 18,18
Total communicatio 3,817,85! 3,817,85! 3,942,89 (125,035
Administrative service
Salaries and wag 1,395,83I 1,395,83I 1,168,60: 227,22¢
Employee benefi 1,035,111 1,035,11 802,54: 232,56°
Services and suppli 984,55¢ 984,55¢ 996,39! (11,839
Total administrative servic 3,415,491 3,415,491 2,967,541 447,95t
Total executiv 10,912,44 10,912,44 9,955,69 956,74
Financial administratio
City attorney
Salaries and wag 2,275,82 2,275,821 2,388,35: (112,533
Employee benefi 1,723,741 1,723,741 1,720,28! 3,45¢
Services and suppli 681,95: 681,95: 448,08t 233,86!
Total city attorne 4,681,51. 4,681,51 4,556,72 124,78t
City clerk:
Salaries and wag 1,165,78! 1,165,78! 1,122,011 43,76¢
Employee benefi 872,15( 872,15( 801,25: 70,89¢
Services and suppli 900,00( 900,00( 594,78. 305,21¢
Capital outla 27,71( (27,710
Total city clerl 2,937,93 2,937,93 2,545,76! 392,17(
Internal audi
Salaries and wag 618,64( 618,64( 534,11! 84,52¢
Employee benefi 458,57( 458,57( 391,54« 67,02¢
Services and suppli 134,21 134,21 129,62¢ 4,58¢€
Total internal aud 1,211,42. 1,211,42. 1,055,28 156,13
Continued
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

GENERAL FUNLC

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES RUND BALANCES-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

General government (continue

Human resource
Salaries and wag
Employee benefi
Services and suppli

Total human resourc
Finance
Salaries and wag
Employee benefi
Services and suppli

Total financ
Purchasing and contrac
Salaries and wag
Employee benefi
Services and suppli

Total purchasing and contra

Total financial administratic
Other
Planning and developme
Salaries and wag
Employee benefi
Services and suppli

Total planning and developmi

Information technologie
Salaries and wag
Employee benefi

Services and suppli

Total information technologi
Special event
Salaries and wag
Employee benefi
Services and suppli

Total special even
Non-departmente
Services and suppli
Operations and maintenance administra
Salaries and wag
Employee benefi
Services and suppli

Total operations and maintena

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl

Original Final Actual Final Budge
1,750,58! 1,750,58! 1,685,99 64,58¢
1,324,28! 1,324,28 1,205,871 118,40«
669,71( 669,71( 619,74( 49,97(
3,744,57 3,744,571 3,511,611 232,96(
2,178,98! 2,178,98! 2,012,52 166,45
1,635,891 1,635,891 1,435,94! 199,94:
1,142,64. 1,142,64. 944,57 198,06
4,957,51: 4,957,51 4,393,04! 564,46:
1,527,191 1,527,191 1,429,661 97,524
1,160,65! 1,160,65! 1,029,241 131,41(
311,85! 311,85! 307,94t 3,90¢
2,999,69! 2,999,69! 2,766,85. 232,84:
20,532,64 20,532,64 18,829,28 1,703,35!
4,875,58I 4,575,58I 4,523,32 52,25
3,671,391 3,371,391 3,196,10. 175,28t
1,589,18. 1,589,18. 1,623,41. (34,231
10,136,15 9,536,15. 9,342,84. 193,30¢
3,477,741 3,177,741 3,073,78 103,95¢
2,643,091 2,343,091 2,149,09: 193,99°
1,116,501 1,116,501 1,313,86. (197,362
7,237,33 6,637,33 6,536,74. 100,58t
422,76( 422,76( 219,14¢ 203,61.
266,23( 266,23( 144,96: 121,26°
177,84( 177,84( 106,62: 71,21¢
866,83( 866,83( 470,73: 396,09¢
4,000,001 3,400,00! 903,62( 2,496,38!
314,36( 314,36( 261,62: 52,73¢
238,91( 238,91( 188,49 50,41¢
95,00( 95,00( 95,30¢ (308
648,27( 648,27( 545,42: 102,84

Continued

121



CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

GENERAL FUNLC

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES RUND BALANCES-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY (CONTINUED)

General government (continue

Graffiti response
Salaries and wag
Employee benefi
Services and suppli

Total graffiti respons

Facilities managemel
Salaries and wag
Employee benefi
Services and suppli
Capital outla

Total facilities manageme
Total othe

Total general governme

Judicial

Municipal courts
Municipal courts
Salaries and wag
Employee benefi
Services and suppli

Total municipal cou

City attorney-criminal divisiot

Salaries and wag
Employee benefi
Services and suppli

Total city attorney-criminal divisic

Public defende
Salaries and wag
Employee benefi
Services and suppli

Total public defendt

Total judicia

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge
969,66( 969,66( 1,018,69! (49,035
721,72 721,72 655,98: 65,73¢
409,13! 409,13! 429,34! (20,210
2,100,51! 2,100,51 2,104,02. (3,506
263,74( 263,74( 257,78! 5,95¢
200,44( 200,44( 183,73 16,70:
475,00( 475,00( 462,49: 12,50¢
1,96t (1,965
939,18( 939,18( 905,97¢ 33,20:
25,928,27 24,128,27 20,809,35 3,318,91.
61,075,54 59,275,54 53,172,76 6,102,77!
10,761,08 10,761,08 10,432,59 328,48:
8,168,80! 7,768,80! 7,509,711 259,09(
3,760,58: 3,760,58: 3,357,95! 402,63¢
22,690,46 22,290,46 21,300,25 990,21:
2,060,03 2,060,03 2,016,441 43,58¢
1,565,61! 1,565,611 1,395,17. 170,43t
544,64 544,64 544,58: 64
4,170,28 4,170,28 3,956,20. 214,08:
1,23( (1,230
20¢ (209;
728,58. 728,58. 851,65: (123,072
728,58. 728,58. 853,09: (124,511
27,589,33 27,189,33 26,109,55 1,079,78
Continued
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
GENERAL FUNLC

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES RUND BALANCES-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY (CONTINUED)

Public safety

Police

Metro police departmet
Services and suppli

City marshals
Salaries and wag
Employee benefi
Services and suppli
Capital outla

Total city marsha
Total police

Fire:

Fire and rescu
Salaries and wag
Employee benefi
Services and suppli

Total fire

Corrections

Detention and correctional servic

Salaries and wag
Employee benefi
Services and suppli
Capital outla

Total correction

Protective inspectio
Building and safet
Salaries and wag
Employee benefi
Services and suppli
Total protective inspectic

Other protectior
Traffic engineering
Salaries and wag
Employee benefi
Services and suppli
Capital outla

Total traffic engineerin

Total public safet

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl

Original Final Actual Final Budge
136,131,27 136,571,27 136,564,88 6,387
4,289,52! 4,289,52 4,673,61. (384,094
3,933,122 3,933,121 4,183,19! (250,076
1,103,21! 1,103,21! 1,115,89 (12,682
2,58¢ (2,588
9,325,85! 9,325,85! 9,975,29! (649,440
145,457,13 145,897,13 146,540,18 (643,053
56,425,09 60,225,09 60,853,34 (628,255
47,235,46 47,235,46 46,877,84 357,62(
16,880,311 16,880,31 16,152,88 727,43(
120,540,86 124,340,86 123,884,06 456,79!
22,222,42 22,922,42 22,784,01 138,40«
19,194,92 19,194,92 17,909,29 1,285,62!
13,521,46 13,521,46 13,103,38 418,08(
21,81« (21,814

54,938,80 55,638,80 53,818,50 1,820,29!
2,991,701 2,591,701 2,577,51. 14,187
2,210,98I 1,810,98I 1,793,08! 17,89
940,33t 940,33t 892,97 47,367
6,143,01! 5,343,01! 5,263,56! 79,44¢
6,499,87! 6,499,87! 6,392,41. 107,45
4,939,93I 4,939,93I 4,485,86. 454,06°
5,565,89! 5,565,89! 4,640,68. 925,21
26,14( (26,140

17,005,69 17,005,69 15,545,09 1,460,59
344,085,50 348,225,50 345,051,422 3,174,08:

12¢

Continued



CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
GENERAL FUNLC
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES RUND BALANCES-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY (CONTINUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge
Public works
Administration
Public works administratio
Salaries and wag $ 337,12( $ 337,12( $ 311,24 $ 25,87:
Employee benefi 256,22( 256,22( 232,21 24,00¢
Services and suppli 112,05( 112,05( 74,56( 37,49(
Capital outla 99¢€ (996
Total administratio 705,39( 705,39( 619,01 86,37:
Engineerinc
Engineering and plannir
Salaries and wag 4,128,22 4,128,22 3,976,39! 151,82:
Employee benefi 3,106,501 2,866,501 2,794,86. 71,637
Services and suppli 1,164,25. 1,164,25. 1,192,301 (28,046
Capital outla 45,89/ (45,894
Total engineering and planni 8,398,97. 8,158,97. 8,009,45! 149,51¢
Right of way
Salaries and wag 565,58 565,58 553,00« 12,57¢
Employee benefi 429,85( 429,85( 392,63¢ 37,21
Services and suppli 74,14( 74,14( 57,18( 16,96(
Total right of wa 1,069,571 1,069,57! 1,002,82: 66,74"
Total engineerin 9,468,54 9,228,54 9,012,27! 216,26!
Paved street
Street maintenanc
Salaries and wag 577,45( 577,45( 643,20¢ (65,758
Employee benefi 438,87( 438,87( 423,34. 15,52¢
Services and suppli 397,00( 397,00( 384,61: 12,38
Total paved stree 1,413,32! 1,413,32 1,451,16: (37,843
Total public work 11,587,25 11,347,25 11,082,45 264,79!
Health
Animal control
Animal care and contrc
Salaries and wag 933,96( 933,96( 847,63( 86,33(
Employee benefi 628,60( 628,60( 556,32: 72,27,
Services and suppli 2,924,22. 2,924,22. 2,663,59! 260,62
Total animal contrc 4,486,78. 4,486,78. 4,067,55: 419,23:
Cemetery operatio
Woodlawn cemeter
Services and suppli 150,00( 150,00( 56,12: 93,87¢
Communicable disease cont
Services and suppli 25,00( 25,00( 26,24 (1,245
Total healtl 4,661,78. 4,661,78: 4,149,91 511,86
Continued
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
GENERAL FUNLC
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES RUND BALANCES-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY (CONTINUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge
Culture and recreatic
Culture and recreation administrati
Administration
Salaries and wag 3,412,521 3,412,521 3,094,67 317,84t
Employee benefi 2,323,251 2,323,25I 2,089,23! 234,01!
Services and suppli 1,845,25. 1,845,25! 1,501,06: 344,18¢
Total culture and recreation administra 7,581,02. 7,581,02. 6,684,97. 896,05(
Participant recreatio
Recreation and adaptive programm
Salaries and wag 6,338,74l 6,338,74l 6,216,79 121,94°
Employee benefi 3,357,211 3,357,21l 3,106,03: 251,17¢
Services and suppli 7,937,68 7,237,68 6,818,85: 418,83:
Capital outla 102,83 (102,838
Total participant recreatis 17,633,63 16,933,63 16,244,51 689,12!
Parks
Parks and open spac
Salaries and wag 7,213,06! 7,213,06! 6,983,25! 229,80°
Employee benefi 5,481,901 4,981,90! 4,876,78. 105,11°
Services and suppli 10,007,27 9,507,27! 9,250,05! 257,21°
Capital outla 131,66 (131,664
Total park 22,702,23 21,702,23 21,241,75 460,47"
Total culture and recreati 47,916,89 46,216,89 44,171,24 2,045,641
Economic development and assista
Business developme
Salaries and wag 322,09( 322,09( 335,06( (22,970
Employee benefi 244,78( 244,78( 247,36¢ (2,588
Services and suppli 549,75t 549,75t 327,90¢ 221,85(
Capital outla 46,88 (46,882
Total office of business developm 1,116,62 1,116,62 957,21t 159,41(
Neighborhood service
Neighborhood service
Salaries and wag 1,365,95! 1,365,95! 1,204,42: 161,52¢
Employee benefi 936,95( 936,95( 791,77: 145,17¢
Services and suppli 1,473,06 1,473,06 1,618,441 (145,376
Total neighborhood servic 3,775,96: 3,775,96: 3,614,633 161,32¢
Total economic development and assist 4,892,59 4,892,59 4,571,85: 320,73t
Total expenditure 501,808,90 501,808,90 488,309,21 13,499,69
Excess of revenues over expendit $ 10,08293 $ 10,082,93 $ 23,267,49 $ 13,184,56

12t



CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
RECONCILIATION TO COMBINE GENERAL FUND ANI
FISCAL STABILIZATION FUND
TO GENERAL FUND AS REPORTED ON THE STATEMENT OF REMUES
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

With the implementation of Governmental Account®tgndards Board (GASB)
Statement 54Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund TyggniRions the
budgetary basis of accounting for the General Hliffdrs from generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP). GASB 54 requires atamounts reported in special
revenue funds that do not meet the new definitioam 8pecial Revenue Fund from
proceeds of specific revenue sources to be inclidéte General Fund, or other related
governmental funds.

Under the new definition, the Fiscal Stabilizatapecial revenue fund did not qualify as
a special revenue fund and was combined with tiy&s general fund as follows:

Special Revenue Fu

General Fun Fiscal Stabilizatio Total General Fur
Revenues
Taxes 87,378,32 $ $ 87,378,32
Licenses and permits 86,467,48 86,467,48
Intergovernmental 277,973,97 277,973,97
Charges for services 42,282,63 42,282,63
Fines and forfeits 13,053,84 13,053,84
Interest 1,237,88I 223,08! 1,460,96!
Miscellaneous 3,182,58. 3,182,58.
Total revenues 511,576,71 223,08! 511,799,80
Expenditures
General government 53,172,76 10,80: 53,183,56
Judicial 26,109,55 26,109,55
Public safety 345,051,42 345,051,42
Public works 11,082,45 11,082,45
Health 4,149,91! 4,149,91!
Culture and recreation 44,171,24 44,171,24
Economic development a
assistance 4,571,85: 4,571,85.
Total expenditures 488,309,21 10,80: 488,320,02
Excess of revenues over expenditures 23,267,49 212,28: 23,479,78
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 10,021,26 10,021,26
Transfers out (28,030,95C (28,030,95C
Total other financing sources (uses) (18,009,69C (18,009,69C
Net changes in fund balan 5,257,80: 212,28: 5,470,099
Fund balances, July 1 107,830,06 12,999,18 120,829,25
Fund balances, June 30 113,087,87 $ 13,211,46  $ 126,299,34
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Revenue:
Intergovernment;
Charges for servic
Miscellaneou

Total revenue

Expenditures
Current
Public work:
Capital outlay
Public work:
Total expenditure

CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

ROAD AND FLOOL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNI
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AN

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAI

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Deficiency of revenues under expenditi

Other financing sources (us¢

Transfers i
Transfers ot

Total other financing sources (us

Net changes in fund balan:

Fund balances, July

Fund balances, June

Variance witl

Original Final Actual Final Budge

$ 165,084,23 $ 165,084,23 $ 50,011,95 $(115,072,27¢
1,00(¢ 1,00(¢ (1,000

55,69¢ 55,69¢

165,085,23  165,085,23 50,067,65 (115,017,577
2,714,38. 2,714,38. 4,333,47. (1,619,087
175,771,440  174,871,40 50,801,07 124,070,32
178,485,78  177,585,78 55,134,55 122,451,23
(13,400,554 (12,500,554 (5,066,897 7,433,65
5,330,941 5,330,94 2,814,63 (2,516,302
(1,637,702 (2,537,702 (2,442,892 94,81(
3,693,23: 2,793,23 371,74t (2,421,492
(9,707,316 (9,707,316 (4,695,151 5,012,16!
11,889,19 11,889,19 14,875,61 2,986,41.

$ 2,18187 $ 2,181,87¢ $ 1018045 $ 7,998,58




CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

DEBT SERVICE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAI

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Revenue:
Intergovernment
Interes
Miscellaneou

Total revenue

Expenditures
Current
Principal retiremel
Payment to current bond refunding ag
Interest and fiscal charg
Total expenditure

Deficiency of revenues under expenditi
Other financing sources (us¢
Transfers i
Payment to refunded bond escrow a
Premium on bond issu
Proceeds from refunding bonds iss
Total other financing sources (us
Net changes in fund balan:

Fund balances, July

Fund balances, June

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl

Original Final Actual Final Budge
558391 $ 558391 $ 457069 $ (1,013,219
633,00( 633,00( 1,898,72. 1,265,72.

500,00( 500,00( 500,00(

6,716,91. 6,716,91. 6,969,41! 252,50!
32,674,22 32,674,22 21,812,06 10,862,16
57,435,00 (57,435,00C
26,448.80 26,448.80 28,866.54 (2,417,736
59,123,02 59,123,02 108,113,60 (48,990,572
(52,406,115 (52,406,115 (101,144,182 (48,738,067
34,944,71 34,944,71 34,911,41 (33,301
(173,281,56€ (173,281,56¢ (98,297,021 74,984,54
36,380,51 36,380,51

183,805,00  183,805,00 143,780,00 (40,025,00C
45,468,15 45,468,15 116,774,91 71,306,76
(6,937,964 (6,937,964 15,630,72 22,568,69
26,654,20 26,654,20 26,215,93 (438,271
19,716,24 $ 19,716,224 $ 41846,66 $ 22,130,442
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for theogeeds of specific revenue sources that
are legally restricted for expenditure for specifiel purposes.

Multipurpose Fund -- This fund accounts for a vigrief small programs of a specific nature. Eaclerae
source has a designated purpose restricted by @nantl and/or Council resolution and action.

Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority Fund'his fund accounts for monies received from the La
Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority and subsequransfers to community programs. The City
annually receives a restricted grant which musaided for recreational purposes.

Fremont Street Room Tax Fund -- This fund accotmtsnonies received from a special 1% downtown
room tax. The revenues are to be used exclusiwlythfe purpose of constructing or improving urban
projects of the central business area located wntmwn Las Vegas.

Special Improvement District Administration FundThis fund accounts for monies received from a 1%
administrative fee assessed property owners undeadd Revised Statute 271.415. The revenues ade use
to administer the billing and collection of assesstn, as well as parcel apportionments on developme
assessments.

Transportation Programs Fund -- This fund accotortsevenues received from a 1% motel/hotel room ta
to be used exclusively for transportation improvehgojects in the downtown areas.

Street Maintenance Fund -- This fund accounts dgemues received from the City's portion of theanot
vehicle fuel tax to be used for maintenance ofiegistreets and roadways.

Housing Program Fund -- This fund is used to fimatiee City's affordable housing needs. public/peva
partnerships are coordinated via federal grantrarag, public fundraising and private foundationgrp

Housing and Urban Development Fund -- This fundsied to account for monies received by the Citg as
grantee participant in the federal Community Depeient Block Grant and Home Investment in Affordable
Housing programs which must be used for qualifypngjects.

Fire Safety Initiative Fund -- This fund accounts & supplemental property tax levy approved by the
voters. The revenue will be used for fire stationgtruction, equipment acquisition and additiomaircs.

Symphony Park Tourism Improvement District (TID)This fund was established to collect the sales tax
revenue within the district to sevice outstandiegtd

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accwlation of resources for, and the
payment of, long-term debt principal and interest fom governmental resources and special
assessment bond principal and interest from specialssessment levies when the government is
obligated in some manner for the debt payments.

City of Las Vegas Redevelopment Agency Fund -- Gamept Unit -- This fund is used to account for the
annual payment of principal, interest and othecdischarges necessary to retire the Agency's lemg-t
debt.




Nonmajor Governmental Funds - Continue

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for th@urchase or construction of major facilities
which are not financed by proprietary funds.

General Capital Projects Fund -- This fund accodatsthe financing and construction of general-msg
public facilities. Financing is provided primariljfrom bond proceeds and the Housing and Urban
Development/Community Development Block Grant af@ME Grant programs.

City Facilities Fund -- This fund is used to accoian the costs of capital improvements which agegically
required at the City Hall Complex, its satellitecifsies and the maintenance yards. Revenues atigede
primarily from General Fund transfers and bond peats.

Fire Service Fund -- This fund accounts for co$tsamstructing new fire stations and making improeats to
existing stations. Financing is provided by bondceeds, interest earnings and transfers from tiee Jafety
Initiative Special Revenue Fund.

Public Works Fund -- This fund is used to accoumtthe financing of street rehabilitation and néigthood
drainage improvement programs with revenues pravigaémarily from the Street Maintenance Special
Revenue Fund.

Traffic Improvement Fund -- This fund is used te@ant for the costs of traffic capacity improvensestich as
installing street signs, traffic signals and stiegiting. Financing is provided primarily by théag of Nevada
Department of Transportation, the Regional Transpion Commission and developer donations.

Parks and Leisure Activities Fund -- This fund s&d to account for the costs construction new @rawing
existing parks, recreation centers and senior etitifacilities. Financing is provided by transferenii the
General Fund, the Las Vegas Convention and Visharthority Special Revenue Fund, bond proceeds)tgra
and park impact fees.

Detention and Enforcement Fund -- This fund is usedccount for the costs incurred in the expansion
improvement of the existing detention facilitiegndncing is provided by bond proceeds and intexastings.

Special Assessments Fund -- This fund is used ¢oust for the costs of major infrastructure impnoests
which benefit particular taxpayers whose properdiesbeing developed through a special assessnsgrittd
Funding is provided by bond proceeds and assesgagntents from property owners.

Capital Improvements Fund -- This fund is used d¢ooant for the City's share of a countywide 5 cadht
valorem property tax levy for capital improvements.

Green Building Fund -- This fund is used to accdonfprograms and incentives to encourage the dpwednt
and implementation of "green building" practiceschhare energy efficient and environmentally frignd

PERMANENT FUND

Permanent funds are used to report resources thatra legally restricted to the extent that only
earnings, not principal, may be used for purposeshtat support the reporting government's
programs.

Cemetery Operations Permanent Fund -- This funésl to account for principal trust amounts reakivde
interest earned on the trust principal is usechycemetery operator to maintain Woodlawn cemetery.
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ASSET¢

Pooled cash, cash equivalents and investn

unrestricte
Property ta
Account:

Interes

Loans

Special assessme
Intergovernment:

Due from other funds
Property held for resale

Land held for resale
Prepaid items

Restricted investments

Total asse’

LIABILITIES
Accounts payab
Salaries payab
Due to other func
Deposits payab
Contracts payab

Intergovernmental payat

Unearned reveni
Total liabilities

CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND:!
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 201
Specia
Las Vega Specia
Conventiol Fremon Improvemer
and Visitor:  Street Roor District Transportatio
Multipurpos¢  Authority Tax Administratior Program
$11,546,66 $ $ 182,68t $ 14,49353 $ 1,061,88
42,681 282,91
25,23¢ 10 27,31¢ 1,847
6,20:
6,834,411 1,285,59
36,93
750,00(

$19,23593 $ 1,28559. $§ 182,69¢ $ 14,527,05 $ 1,346,64i

$ 1,117,761 $ 826,90( $ $ 29,837 $ 223,25¢
50,45: 11,28¢
22,79:
1,445,04:
720,82;
3,356,86! 826,90( 41,122 223,254

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCI

Unavailable revenue - property
Unavailable revenue - loans

Total deferred inflows of resources

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources  3,356,86! 826,90( 41,122 223,254
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendab 786,93:
Restricted 9,549,63! 458,69 1,123,39:
Committed 14,485,93
Assigned 5,432,38I
Unassigned 110,11; 182,69¢
Total fund balances 15,879,06 458,69 182,69¢ 14,485,93 1,123,39:
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resourced
fund balances $19,23593 $ 1,28559. $ 182,69t $ 1452705 $ 1,346,64
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Revenue Fun(

City of Las
Symphon' Vega:
Park Redevelopmel
Housing an Tourism Agency
Stree Housing Urbar Fire Safet Improvemer Componer
Maintenanc Progran Developmer _Initiative District Unit Totals
$21,409,00 $ 9,918,66. $ 9,15¢ $ 273,39 $ $ 7,840,821 $ 66,735,82
254,11: 699,19 953,30¢
4,087 49 329,74(
39,89 18,22¢ 724 2,75t 116,00°
11,104,14 11,104,14
6,20:
1,703,53 125,10¢ 1,752,761 422,94¢ 12,124,35
51,64t 51,64t
16,129,06 16,129,06
573,40: 3,549,65! 4,123,06:
36,93
750,00(

$ 23,152,43 $ 26,816,10 $ 1,766,000 $ 528,23( $ 422,94t $ 23,196,63 $ 112,460,28

$ 95679°$  373,62¢ $ 159652 $ $ $ 23221 $ 5,356,910
6,42¢€ 11,96¢ 80,13:

1,058,62: 1,058,62

4,78¢ 395,72 423,30t

68,124 68,124
1,445,042

720,823

1,024,921 380,055 1,613,280 1,686,551 9,152,959
182,878 412,28: 595,159

10,211,92 10,211,927

182,878 10,624,20 10,807,086

1,024,921 380,055 1,613,280 182,878 12,310,76 19,960,045
16,702,46 4,386,19:  21,875,59

22,127,51  9,733,58 152,72 34535, 422,94t 43,913,84
14,485,93

6,499,67.  11,932,05

292,80°

22,127,51 __ 26,436,04 152,72 345,35, 422,94t _ 10,88586 __ 92,500,24

$ 23,152,43 $ 26,816,10 $ 1,766,000 $ 528,23( $ 422,94t $ 23,196,63 $ 112,460,28

Continued
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND:!
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 201
Debt Servic
Fund:
City of Las
Vega:
Redevelopmel
Agency
ASSET¢
Pooled cash, cash equivalents $ 14,93¢
Interest 1,112
Restricted investments 5,588,68!
Total asse’ $ 5,604,73.
LIABILITIES
Accounts payab $ 4,30(
FUND BALANCES
Restricted 5,588,68!
Assigned 11,74¢
Total fund balances 5,600,43
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 5,604,73
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ASSETS
Pooled cash, cash equivalents
investments, unrestricted
Receivables (net of allowances
uncollectibles
Property tax
Accounts
Interest
Loans
Special assessments
Intergovernmental
Due from other funds
Property held for resale
Land held for resale
Prepaid items
Restricted investments

Total asse’

LIABILITIES

Accounts payab
Salaries payab

Due to other func
Deposits payab
Contracts payab
Intergovernmental payat
Unearned reven!

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS O
RESOURCE:
Unavailable revenue - property
Unavailable revenue - log
Unavailable revenue - spec
assessments

Total deferred inflows of resources
Total liabilities and deferred infloy

of resources

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendab
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows
resources and fund balances

CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND:!
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 201
Capita
Parks an
Traffic Leisure
Genere City Facilities Fire Service Public Work: Improvement  Activities
$ 26,840,65 $19,532,55 $10,330,50 $ 4,536,26- $ 8,942,05 $57,221,36
7,14t 2,22:
1,01¢ 33,30¢ 10,827 8,56t 16,317 57,59«
338,26 880,58¢ 1,540,381 1,973,60:
$26,841,67 $19,565,85 $10,686,74 $ 5,425,411 $10,498,75 $59,254,78
$ 313208 $ 24293 $ 217,99C $ 932,25. $ 360,62! $ 2,50057
4,98¢
10,00(
224 457 43,57¢ 104,97¢ 33,76
318,19 253,15¢ 218,44 975,83( 465,60:¢ 2,534,33
318,19 253,15¢ 218,44 975,83( 465,60¢ 2,534,33
23,581,37 3,660,43! 442,44 4,121,74;  33,337,34
5,955,36:
2,942,100 19,312,70 6,807,86:. 4,007,14 5,911,40. 17,427,74
26,523,47. 19,312,70 _ 10,468,29 4,449,58.  10,033,14  56,720,44
$26,841,67 $19,565,85 $10,686,74 $ 5,425,411 $10,498,75 $59,254,78
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND:!
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 201

Permaner
Projects Func Func

Total Non
majol

Detention an Specia Capita Greel Cemeter Governmentz
Enforcemer Assessmen Improvement  Building Totals Operation Fund

$ 9,217,16! $39,144,99 $ $ 655590 $ 176,421,14 $ $ 243,171,90

953,30¢

9,36¢ 339,10¢

16,14« 27,57¢ 11¢ 1,23¢ 172,70: 289,82:
11,104,14

4,817,73. 4,817,73. 4,823,93
363,45¢ 5,096,29! 17,220,65

51,64t

16,129,06

4,123,06:

36,93

1,838,73: 8,177,41!

$ 9,233,31" $43,990,29 $ 36357¢ $ 656,83. $ 186,517,24 $ 1,838,73. $ 306,420,99

$ 1,531,01 $ $ 31585t $ $ 6,414,45. $ $ 11,775,66
4,98¢ 85,12:

1,058,62:

10,47¢ 20,47 443,77¢

163,18¢ 346,18¢ 414,318
1,445,04:

720,82;

1,694,20. 10,47¢ 315,85t¢ 6,786,10. 15,943,36
595,15¢

10,211,92

4,801,971 4,801,971 4,801,971

4,801,971 4,801,971 15,609,06

1,694,20. 4,812,44! 315,85t 11,588,07 31,552,42

1,838,73: 23,714,32

39,177,84 439,80° 104,760,99 154,263,52

47,72( 6,003,08: 20,489,01

7,539,11. 217,02¢ 64,165,09 76,108,90
292,80°

7,539,11. 39,177,84 47,72( 656,83: 174,929,17 1,838,73: 274,868,57

$ 9,233,331 $43,990,29 $ 36357¢ $ 656,83. $ 186,517,24 $ 1,838,73. $ 306,420,99




CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND:!
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE:

Specia
Las Vega Specia
Conventiol Improvemer
and Visitor:  Fremont Stre: District Transportatio
Multipurpose Authority Room Ta:  Administratior  Program
Revenues:
Taxe: $ $ $ $ $
Licenses and perm 205,12
Intergovernment. 10,913,28 6,667,73! 2,778,44.
Charges for servic 6,099,18: 106,82¢
Special assessme 1,629,97.
Fines and forfeir 151,36(
Interes 190,81¢ 2,597 241,96: 18,22¢
Miscellaneou 9,567,69! 2,49(
Total revenue 27,127,46 6,667,73! 5,081 1,978,76: 2,796,66!
Expenditures:
Current:
General governme 2,271,68. 1,569,141
Public safet 1,239,29:
Public work:
Judicia 2,605,98:
Welfare 305,33!
Culture and recreati 6,226,51
Economic development and assiste 5,453,91! 1,169,40°
Debt service
Interest and fiscal charg 7,25(
Capital outlay:
Public safet 49,98¢
Economic development and assiste
Total expenditures 18,152,72 1,169,40 1,576,390
Excess of revenues over expendit 8,974,741 6,667,73! (1,164,320 402,36¢ 2,796,66:
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers il 2,420,96! 448,30(
Transfers ot (7,423,019 (7,407,455 (1,408,950 (2,155,000
Proceeds from sale of capital as
Total other financing sources (us (5,002,059 (7,407,455 (1,408,950 4438,30( (2,155,000
Net changes in fund balan 3,972,68: (739,716 (2,573,270 850,66¢ 641,66¢
Fund balances, July 11,906,38 1,198,41( 2,755,96! 13,635,26 481,72¢

Fund balances, June

$ 15,879,06 $ 458,69: $ 182,69¢ $ 14,485,93 $ 1,123,39.
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Revenue Fun(

Symphon City of Las
Part Vegas
Housing an Tourism  Redevelopmel
Stree Housin¢ Urbar Fire Safet Improvemer  Agency
Maintenanc Progran Developmer Initiative District Component Un Totals

$ 9,806,060 $ $ $ 12,451,557 $ $ 15,344,84 $ 37,602,48
205,12
1,589,931 8,370,08! 2,201,55! 32,521,03
25,00( 305,27¢ 171,40: 6,707,69.
1,629,97
151,36(
348,61( 161,64¢ 10,80: 53,91¢ 1,028,57
2,420,90. 21,67¢ 657,76¢ 12,670,53
10,179,67 4,477,76! 8,563,16. 12,462,37  2,201,55! 16,056,53 92,516,77
3,840,82!
6432 1,239,93
4,839,91 4,839,91
2,605,98:i
305,33!
6,226,51
6,198,60: 6,839,24: 4,222,92¢  23,884,11
7,25(
49,98¢
1,067,10: 1,067,10:
4,839,91° 7,265,71. 6,839,24! 643 4,222,92! 44,066,97
5,339,75. (2,787,946 1,723,91. 12,461,73 2,201,55( 11,833,60 48,449,80
2,762,07. 2,000,00t 7,631,33:
(53,650 (750,000 (1,751,442 (12,353,554 (1,778,602 (17,412,07% (52,493,74%
85,93 85,93
(53,650 2,012,07: (1,751,442 (12,353,554 (1,778,602 (15,326,141 (44,776,48C
5,286,10: (775,873 (27,529 108,17¢ 422,94¢ (3,492,534 3,673,32:
16,841,41 27,211,92 180,25! 237,17 14,378,40 88,826,91

$ 22,127,51 $26,436,04 $ 152,72¢ $

34535. % 42294t $

10,885,86 $ 92,500,24

141
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND:!
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE:

Debt Servic
Fund:
City of Las
Vega:
Redevelopmel
Agency
Revenues:
Interes $ 2,04(
Miscellaneou 1,500,001
Total revenue 1,502,041
Expenditures:
Current:
Debt service
Principal retiremer 2,285,58!
Interest and fiscal charg 8,504,05!
Capital outlay:
Total expenditures 10,789,64

Deficiency of revenues under expenditt (9,287,608

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers il 13,650,00
Payment to advance refunding bond es:
agen (95,500,82¢
Premium on bond issu 10,111,84
Proceeds of refunding bonds iss 83,400,00
Total other financing sources (us 11,661,01
Net changes in fund balan 2,373,41.
Fund balances, July 3,227,02.
Fund Balances, June $ 5,600,43.
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Revenues:

Taxe:
Licenses and perm
Intergovernment
Charges for servic
Special assessme
Fines and forfeir
Interes
Miscellaneou

Total revenue

Expenditures:

Current:
General governme
Public safet
Public work:
Judicia
Healtt
Welfare
Culture and recreatic

Economic development and assiste

Debt service
Principal retiremer
Interest and fiscal charg
Capital outlay:
General governme
Public safet
Public work:
Culture and recreatit

Economic development and assiste

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (un

expenditure

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers il
Transfers ot
Proceeds from sale of capital as

Payment to refunded bond escrow a

Proceeds from bonds isst
Premium on bond issu
Discounts on bond issu
Proceeds of refunding bonds iss
Total other financing sources (us

Net changes in fund balan
Fund balances, July

Fund balances, June

CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND:!
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE:

Capita
Parks an
Traffic Leisure
Genere City Facilities  Fire Service  Public Work: Improvement Activities
$ $ $ $ $ $ 1,079,96:
520,46¢
39,20¢ 1,351,18! 2,276,53. 3,869,31:
917 1,91t
12,18( 312,79¢ 101,00 68,34« 144,36 503,77"
9,16(
13,09 321,95¢ 142,12 1,419,52! 2,941,36. 5,453,05!
742,65¢ 916,20:
742,18° 850,66¢
127,69¢
2,266,18.
482,99: 3,00( 369,41°
1,842,64.
422,71¢ 2,988,37!
1,930,57
12,623,52
1,858
1,227,501 2,761,841 1,164,90! 2,058,27! 3,839,04. 15,259,12
(1,214,409 (2,439,890 (1,022,778 (638,746 (897,677 (9,806,079
1,735,05 4,877,101 2,357,741 813,76 2,808,884t 9,279,10:
(2,517,533 (795,325 (53,823 (4,389,348 (1,009,789 (876,254
66,94
24,800,00 26,000,00
1,142,27
(163,175
23,854,34 4,081,77! 2,370,86:i (3,575,587 1,799,05: 35,545,12
22,639,93 1,641,88! 1,348,09 (4,214,333 901,37« 25,739,04
3,883,54. 17,670,81 9,120,20: 8,663,92. 9,131,77! 30,981,39
$ 26,523,47. $ 19,312,70 $ 10,468,29 $ 4,449,58! $ 10,033,14 $ 56,720,44




CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND:!
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE:

Permaner
Projects Func Func

Total Non

majol
Detention an Specia Capita Greel Cemeter Governmentz

Enforcemer  Assessmen Improvement Building Totals Operation Fund:
$ $ $ $ $ 1,079,96 $ $ 38,682,44
520,46¢ 725,59:.
1,805,83: 9,342,07. 41,863,10
2,832 70,68( 6,781,20-
28,783,12. 28,783,12. 30,413,09
151,36(
152,96: 224,62( 3,282 9,44¢ 1,5632,77! (44,204 2,519,18:
4,70C 13,86( 14,184,39
152,96: 29,007,74 1,809,11. 14,14¢ 41,275,09 26,47¢ 135,320,38
82,12¢ 1,740,98! 5,581,81.
19,93¢ 1,612,79: 2,852,721
500,66 628,35° 5,468,27.
2,605,98:
309,29¢ 309,29¢
305,33!
2,266,18. 8,492,70:
23,884,11
2,285,58!
702,40: 1,557,81: 10,069,12
22,624 1,865,26' 1,865,26'
3,839,81! 7,250,91: 7,300,90:
7,075,77: 9,006,35 9,006,35
12,623,52 12,623,52
1,858 1,068,95!
3,859,75! 8,278,84. 104,74° 38,554,04 309,29¢ 93,719,96
(3,706,797 _ 20,728,90 1,809,11. (90,598 2,721,04. (282,822 41,600,41
1,882,82. 20,223 40,46: 23,815,11 45,096,45
(10,511 (1,123,789 (2,023,850 (11,280 (12,811,40Z (65,305,147
66,94 152,87"
(95,500,82¢
50,800,00 50,800,00
1,142,27 11,254,12
(163,175 (163,175
83,400,00
1,872,31: (1,103,562 (2,023,850 29,28 62,849,76. 29,734,30
(1,834,484 19,625,34 (214,736 (61,315 65,570,80 (282,822 71,334,71
9,373,59! 19,552,50 262,45¢ 718,14° 109,358,36 2,121,55! 203,533,85
$ 7,539,11. $ 39,17784 $ 47,72( $ 656,83: $174,929,17 $ 1,838,73. $ 274,868,57




CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
MULTIPURPOSE SPECIAL REVENUE FUNI
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAI
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge
Revenue:
Licenses and perm $ 350,00 $ 350,00( 205,12: $ (144,876
Intergovernment 14,558,74 14,558,74 10,913,28 (3,645,464
Charges for servic 7,499,18 7,499,18 6,099,18: (1,400,004
Interes 79,44¢ 79,44¢ 190,81t 111,36¢
Fines and forfei 200,00( 200,00( 151,36( (48,640
Miscellaneou 2,130,12! 2,130,12! 9,567,69! 7,437,57.
Total revenue 24,817,50 24,817,50 27,127,46 2,309,95!
Expenditures
Current
General governme 2,879,76! 2,879,76! 2,271,68: 608,08t
Judicia 2,799,27! 2,799,27! 2,605,98: 193,28
Public safet 2,274,20 2,274,20! 1,239,29 1,034,91
Welfare 498,89! 498,89! 305,33! 193,56(
Culture and recreatit 6,574,533l 6,574,53! 6,226,51 348,01:
Economic development and assiste 1,080,631 1,080,63! 5,453,91! (4,373,289
Capital outlay
Public safet 49,98¢ (49,989
Total expenditure 16,107,30 16,107,30 18,152,722 (2,045,412
Excess of revenues over expendit 8,710,19 8,710,19 8,974,741 264,54
Other financing sources (us¢
Transfers i 400,00( 400,00( 2,420,96! 2,020,96!
Transfers ot (11,023,01¢ (11,023,01¢ (7,423,019 3,600,00!
Total other financing sources (us (10,623,01¢ (10,623,01¢ (5,002,059 5,620,96!
Net changes in fund balan: (1,912,822 (1,912,822 3,972,68. 5,885,50:
Fund balances, July 11,658,10 11,658,10 11,906,38 248,27¢
Fund balances, June $ 9,74528. $ 9,745,228, $ 15,879,06 $ 6,133,78

14¢€



CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORIT SPECIAL REVENUE FUNI
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAI
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge
Revenue

Intergovernment; $ 6,503,050 $§ 6,503,050 $§ 6,667,73 $ 164,68¢

Other financing use
Transfers ot (7,520,000 (7,520,000 (7,407,455 112,54!
Net changes in fund balan: (1,016,950 (1,016,950 (739,716 277,23:
Fund balances, July 1,177,77 1,177,77. 1,198,411 20,63¢
Fund balances, June $ 160,82: $ 160,82: $ 458,69« $ 297,87(




CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

FREMONT STREET ROOM TA! SPECIAL REVENUE FUNI
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAI
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge
Revenue:
Interes $ 107 $ 107 $ 2597 $ 2,49(
Miscellaneou 2,49( 2,49(
Total revenue 107 107 5,087 4,98(
Expenditures
Current
Economic development and assiste 1,102,271 1,177,271 1,169,40 7,86:
Deficiency of revenues under expenditi (1,102,163 (1,177,163 (1,164,320 12,84:
Other financing use
Transfers ot (1,408,950 (1,408,950 (1,408,950
Net changes in fund balan: (2,511,113 (2,586,113 (2,573,270 12,84:
Fund balances, July 2,557,79 2,632,79i 2,755,961 123,16¢
Fund balances, June $ 46,68 $ 46,68¢ $ 182,69t $ 136,01:

14¢



CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
SPECIAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUNI
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAI
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge
Revenue

Charges for servic $ $ $ 106,82¢ $ 106,82¢

Special assessme 1,217,501 1,217,501 1,629,97. 412,47

Interes 116,53t 116,53t 241,96. 125,42t
Total revenue 1,334,03 1,334,03 1,978,76 644,72¢
Expenditures

Current

General governme 2,696,69. 2,696,69. 1,569,14! 1,127,54.

Debt service

Interest and fiscal charg 10,00( 10,00( 7,25( 2,75(
Total expenditure 2,706,69. 2,706,69. 1,576,39 1,130,29:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (un
expenditure (1,372,656 (1,372,656 402,36t 1,775,02.
Other financing sources (us¢

Transfers i 448,30( 448,30( 448,30(

Transfers ot (64,579 (64,579 64,57¢
Total other financing sources (us 383,72: 383,72: 448,30( 64,57¢
Net changes in fund balan (988,935 (988,935 850,66¢ 1,839,60:
Fund balances, July 13,529,13 13,529,13 13,635,26 106,13t
Fund balances, June $ 12,540,19 $ 12,540,19 $ 14,48593 $ 1,945,73

14¢



CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM SPECIAL REVENUE FUNI

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AN

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAI

Revenue:

Intergovernment

Interes
Total revenue
Expenditures

Current

Public work:

Excess of revenues over expendit

Other financing use
Transfers ot

Net changes in fund balan:
Fund balances, July

Fund balances, June

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl

Original Final Actual Final Budge

$ 2,292,07. $ 229207 $ 2,778,44. $ 486,37:

694 694 18,22¢ 17,53:

2,292,76! 2,292,76! 2,796,66! 503,90:

45C 45C 45C

2,292,311 2,292,311 2,796,66! 504,35:
(2,155,000 (2,155,000 (2,155,000

137,31t 137,31t 641,66¢ 504,35:

381,55( 381,55( 481,72t 100,17t

$ 518,86t $ 518,86t $ 1,123,339 $ 604,52¢

15C



CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

STREET MAINTENANCE SPECIAL REVENUE FUNI
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAI
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge
Revenue:
Taxe: $ 7,690,800 $ 7,690,800 $ 9,806,060 $ 2,115,25.
Charges for servic 25,00( 25,00(
Interes 130,97: 130,97: 348,61( 217,63t
Total revenue 7,821,77. 7,821,77 10,179,67 2,357,89.
Expenditures
Current
Public work: 15,000,00 14,900,00 4,839,91 10,060,08
Other financing use
Transfers ot (100,000 (53,650 46,35(
Net changes in fund balan: (7,178,222 (7,178,222 5,286,10: 12,464,32
Fund balances, July 13,197,29 13,197,29 16,841,41 3,644,12.
Fund balances, June $ 6,019,070 $ 6,019,070 $ 22,127,551 $ 16,108,44

151



CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

HOUSING PROGRAN SPECIAL REVENUE FUNI

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AN

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAI

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Revenue:
Intergovernment
Charges for servic
Interes
Miscellaneou

Total revenue

Expenditures
Current
Economic development and assiste
Capital outlay
Economic development and assiste
Total expenditure

Deficiency of revenues under expenditi
Other financing use
Transfers i
Transfers ot
Total other financing sources (us
Net changes in fund balan:

Fund balances, July

Fund balances, June

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl

Original Final Actual Final Budge
6,593,811 6,593,811 $ 1,589,93 (5,003,874
505,57( 505,57( 305,27¢ (200,291
76,64( 76,64( 161,64t 85,00¢
4,000,001 4,000,00! 2,420,90. (1,579,098
11,176,02 11,176,02 4,477,76! (6,698,255
17,451,43 17,451,43 6,198,60: 11,252,82
1,067,10: (1,067,103

17,451,43 17,451,43 7,265,71. 10,185,72
(6,275,415 (6,275,415 (2,787,946 3,487,46!
2,762,07. 2,762,07.

(5,248,000 (5,248,000 (750,000 4,498,00!
(5,248,000 (5,248,000 2,012,07. 7,260,07.
(11,523,41¢ (11,523,41¢ (775,873 10,747,54
28,598,43 28,598,43 27,211,92 (1,386,509
$ 17,07501 $ 17,07501 $ 26,436,04 $ 9,361,03

152



CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMEN" SPECIAL REVENUE FUNI
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAI
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge

Revenue

Intergovernment: $ 17,830,15 $ 17,830,15 $ 8,370,08 $ (9,460,070

Charges for servic 373,00( 373,00( 171,40: (201,598

Miscellaneou 103,02( 103,02( 21,67« (81,346
Total revenue 18,306,17 18,306,17 8,563,16. (9,743,014
Expenditures

Current

Economic development and assiste 12,154,53 12,154,53 6,839,241 5,315,28

Excess of revenues over expendit 6,151,64! 6,151,64! 1,723,991 (4,427,727

Other financing use
Transfers ot

(6,221,965 (6,221,965 (1,751,442 4,470,52.

Net changes in fund balan: (70,325 (70,325 (27,529 42,79¢

Fund balances, July

Fund balances, June

679,40¢ 679,40¢ 180,25! (499,153

$ 609,08{ $ 609,08{ $ 152,72t $ (456,357

15¢



CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

FIRE SAFETY INITIATIVE SPECIAL REVENUE FUNI
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAI
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge
Revenue
Taxe: $ 12,525,000 $ 12,525,000 $ 12,451,57 $ (73,425
Interes 8,00( 8,00( 10,80: 2,801
Total revenue 12,533,00 12,533,00 12,462,37 (70,624
Expenditures
Current
Public safet 2,00( 2,00( 643 1,35i
Excess of revenues over expendit 12,531,00 12,531,00 12,461,73 (69,267
Other financing use
Transfers ot (12,426,40C (12,426,40C (12,353,554 72,84¢
Net changes in fund balan: 104,60( 104,60( 108,17¢ 3,57¢
Fund balances, July 223,97¢ 223,97¢ 237,17 13,19¢
Fund balances, June $ 328,57¢ $ 328,57¢ $ 345,35. $ 16,77

154



CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
SYMPHONY PARK TOURISM IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT - SPECIAREVENUE FUNL
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAI
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge
Revenue
Intergovernment $ - $ - $ 2,201,551 $ 2,201,55!
Other Financing Sources (Us
Transfers ot - - (1,778,602 (1,778,602
Net changes in fund balan: - - 422,94¢ 422,94¢
Fund balances, July - - - -
Fund balances, June $ - $ - $ 42294t $ 422 ,94¢

15¢



CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

CITY OF LAS VEGAS REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - COMPONENUNIT SPECIAL REVENUE FUNI

Revenue:

Taxe:

Intergovernment

Interes
Miscellaneou

Total revenue

Expenditures
Economic development and assiste

Debt service

Total expenditure
Excess of revenues over expendit

Other financing sources (us¢

Transfers i
Transfers ot

Proceeds from sale of capital as
Total other financing sources (us

Net changes in fund balan:
Fund balances, July

Fund balances, June

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAI
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl

Original Final Actual Final Budge
15,759,336 $ 15,759,36 $ 15,344,84 $ (414,512
2,000,00t 2,000,00! (2,000,000
24,37¢ 24,37¢ 53,91¢ 29,54:
700,40« 700,40« 657,76! (42,635
18,484,14 18,484,14 16,056,53 (2,427,605
9,914,72 9,914,72 4,222,92! 5,691,79i
9,914,72 9,914,72 4,222,92! 5,691,79
8,569,41. 8,569,41. 11,833,60 3,264,19.
2,200,00! 2,200,00! 2,000,00! (200,000
(9,034,488 (9,034,488 (17,412,073 (8,377,585
800,00( 800,00( 85,93: (714,068
(6,034,488 (6,034,488 (15,326,141 (9,291,653
2,534,92 2,534,92 (3,492,534 (6,027,460
14,445,90 14,445,90 14,378,40 (67,501
16,980,82 ¢ 16,980,82 $ 10,885,86 $ (6,094,961

15¢€



CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

CITY OF LAS VEGAS REDEVELOPMENT AGENC DEBT SERVICE FUNIL
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAI
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge
Revenue
Interes $ $ $ 2,040 $ 2,04(
Miscellaneou 2,000,001 2,000,001 1,500,001 (500,000
Total revenue 2,000,001 2,000,001 1,502,041 (497,960
Expenditures
Debt service
Principal retiremel 3,215,001 3,215,001 2,285,58! 929,41:
Interest and fiscal charg 8,245,01! 8,245,01! 8,504,05! (259,044
Total expenditure 11,460,01 11,460,01 10,789,64 670,36
Deficiency of revenues under expenditi (9,460,015 (9,460,015 (9,287,608 172,40°
Other financing sources (us¢
Transfers i 9,034,48: 9,034,48: 13,650,00 4,615,51.
Payment to advance refunding bond escrow i (95,500,82¢ (95,500,82¢
Premium on bond issu 10,111,84 10,111,84
Total other financing sources (us 9,034,48! 9,034,48i (71,738,981 (80,773,46¢
Net changes in fund balan (425,527 (425,527 (81,026,58¢ (80,601,062
Fund balances, July 3,515,96. 3,515,96: 3,227,02. (288,942

Fund balances, June

$ 3,090,443 $ 3,090,431 $ (77,799,56¢

$ (80,890,004




FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Revenue:
Intergovernment
Charges for servic
Interes

Total revenue

Expenditures
Current
General governme
Debt service
Interest and fiscal charg
Capital outlay
General governme
Economic development and assiste
Total expenditure

Deficiency of revenues under expenditi
Other financing sources (us¢
Transfers i
Transfers ot
Proceeds from bonds iss!
Discounts on bond issu
Total other financing sources (us
Net changes in fund balan:

Fund balances, July

Fund balances, June

CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
GENERAL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNI

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAI

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl

Original Final Actual Final Budge
$ 199,00 $ 199,00 $ $ (199,000
917 917

98 98 12,18( 12,08:
199,09¢ 199,09¢ 13,097 (186,001
465,84( 465,84( 742,65¢ (276,819
482,99: (482,994

2,066,85! 2,066,85! 2,066,85!
9,636,13! 7,836,13 1,85 7,834,28.
12,168,83 10,368,83 1,227,501 9,141,32
(11,969,73€ (10,169,73€ (1,214,409 8,955,32
4,160,60. 4,160,60. 1,735,05: (2,425,550
(1,800,000 (2,517,533 (717,533

20,000,00 20,000,00 24,800,00 4,800,00!
(163,175 (163,175
24,160,60 22,360,60 23,854,34 1,493,74.
12,190,86 12,190,86 22,639,93 10,449,06
2,618,90: 2,618,90: 3,883,54. 1,264,63!
$ 14,809,777 $ 14,809,77 $ 26,523,447 $ 11,713,70

15¢



Revenue:
Interes

CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

CITY FACILITIES CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNI
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAI
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Miscellaneou
Total revenue

Expenditures
Current
General governme
Debt service
Interest and fiscal charg
Capital outlay
General governme
Total expenditure

Deficiency of revenues under expenditi
Other financing sources (us¢
Transfers i
Transfers ot
Total other financing sources (us
Net changes in fund balan:

Fund balances, July

Fund balances, June

Variance witl

Original Final Actual Final Budge

$ 114,08¢ $ 114,08¢ $ 312,79t $ 198,70°
9,16( 9,16(

114,08¢ 114,08¢ 321,95¢ 207,86
10,74: 10,74: 916,20: (905,461
3,00¢( (3,000

19,041,46 18,541,46 1,842,64. 16,698,82
19,052,20 18,552,20 2,761,84 15,790,36
(18,938,12C (18,438,12C (2,439,890 15,998,23
4,303,601 4,303,60! 4,877,101 573,50(
(455,325 (955,325 (795,325 160,00(
3,848,27! 3,348,27! 4,081,77! 733,50(
(15,089,84¢ (15,089,84¢ 1,641,88! 16,731,73
17,654,02 17,654,02 17,670,81 16,781

$ 2564,18 $ 2,564,18. $ 19,312,70 $ 16,748,51




Revenue:
Intergovernment
Charges for servic
Interes

Total revenue

Expenditures
Current
Public safet
Capital outlay
Public safet
Total expenditure

Deficiency of revenues under expenditi

Other financing sources (us¢

Transfers i
Transfers ot

Proceeds from sale of capital as
Total other financing sources (us

Net changes in fund balan:

Fund balances, July

Fund balances, June

CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

FIRE SERVICE!CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNI
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAI
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl

Original Final Actual Final Budge

$ $ $ 39,20¢ $ 39,20¢
1,91 1,91t

38,22} 38,22% 101,00: 62,77¢

38,22} 38,22} 142,12 103,90(
3,512 3,512 742,18 (738,675
7,672,87. 7,672,87. 422,71¢ 7,250,15.
7,676,38. 7,676,38. 1,164,90! 6,511,47
(7,638,156 (7,638,156 (1,022,778 6,615,37!
556,74t 556,74t 2,357,741 1,801,001

(53,823 (53,823 (53,823

66,94¢ 66,94¢

502,92: 502,92: 2,370,86: 1,867,94!
(7,135,233 (7,135,233 1,348,091 8,483,32.
8,288,98: 8,288,98: 9,120,20: 831,22t

$ 1,153,74 $ 1,153,74 $ 10,468,29 $ 9,314,54

16C



Revenue:
Intergovernment
Interes
Miscellaneou

Total revenue

Expenditures
Current
Public work:
Capital outlay
Public work:
Total expenditure

Deficiency of revenues under expenditi

Other financing sources (us¢

Transfers i
Transfers ot

Total other financing sources (us

Net changes in fund balan:

Fund balances, July

Fund balances, June

CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
PUBLIC WORKES CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNI

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AN

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAI
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl

Original Final Actual Final Budge

$ 2,892,900 $ 2,892,900 $ 1,351,18 $ (1,541,723
91,88¢ 91,88¢ 68,34« (23,542
160,00( 160,00( (160,000
3,144,79. 3,144,79. 1,419,52! (1,725,265
127,69t (127,696

6,386,37! 5,586,37! 1,930,57! 3,655,79!
6,386,37! 5,586,37! 2,058,27! 3,528,10:
(3,241,584 (2,441,584 (638,746 1,802,83
1,210,001 1,210,001 813,76: (396,239
(3,639,348 (4,439,348 (4,389,348 50,00(
(2,429,348 (3,229,348 (3,575,587 (346,239
(5,670,932 (5,670,932 (4,214,333 1,456,59!
9,540,28! 9,540,28! 8,663,92. (876,364

$ 3,869,35. $§ 3,869,35 $ 4,44958i $ 580,23!

161



CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

TRAFFIC IMPROVEMENT¢ CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNI
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAI
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge
Revenue:
Licenses and perm $ 250,000 $ 250,000 $ 520,46¢ $ 270,46¢
Intergovernment 17,577,94 17,577,94 2,276,53. (15,301,412
Interes 87,40¢ 87,40¢ 144,36: 56,95¢
Total revenue 17,915,35 17,915,35 2,941,36- (14,973,98¢€
Expenditures
Current
Public safet 677,35 677,35 850,66¢ (173,312
Capital outlay
Public safet 24,005,822 23,605,82 2,988,37! 20,617,44
Total expenditure 24,683,17 24,283,17 3,839,04. 20,444,13
Deficiency of revenues under expenditi (6,767,828 (6,367,828 (897,677 5,470,15.
Other financing sources (us¢
Transfers i 1,700,001 1,700,001 2,808,84 1,108,84t
Transfers ot (709,789 (1,109,789 (1,009,789 100,00(
Total other financing sources (us 990,21: 590,21: 1,799,05. 1,208,841
Net changes in fund balan: (5,777,617 (5,777,617 901,37- 6,678,99:
Fund balances, July 7,205,35. 7,205,35. 9,131,77! 1,926,42.
Fund balances, June $ 142773 $ 1,427,73. $ 10,033,14 $ 8,605,41!
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

PARKS AND LEISURE ACTIVITIES CAPITAL PROJECTS FUN!
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAI
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge
Revenue:
Taxe: 264,00( 264,000 $ 1,079,96. $ 815,96:
Intergovernment 3,000,001 3,000,001 3,869,31. 869,31.
Interes 267,60( 267,60( 503,77 236,17
Total revenue 3,531,601 3,531,601 5,453,05! 1,921,451
Expenditures
Current
Public work: 583 583 582
Culture and recreatit 25,14 25,14 2,266,18 (2,241,040
Debt service
Interest and fiscal charg 369,41 (369,417
Capital outlay
Culture and recreatit 51,688,62 50,788,62 12,623,52 38,165,09
Total expenditure 51,714,34 50,814,34 15,259,12 35,555,21
Deficiency of revenues under expenditi (48,182,74¢ (47,282,74¢€ (9,806,079 37,476,66
Other financing sources (us¢
Transfers i 9,050,00! 9,050,00! 9,279,10: 229,10:
Transfers ot (118,272 (1,018,272 (876,254 142,01¢
Proceeds from bonds isst 50,000,00 50,000,00 26,000,00 (24,000,00C
Premium on bond issu 1,142,227 1,142,27!
Total other financing sources (us 58,931,72 58,031,72 35,545,12 (22,486,601
Net changes in fund balan: 10,748,98 10,748,98 25,739,04 14,990,06
Fund balances, July 17,874,15 17,874,15 30,981,39 13,107,24
Fund balances, June 28,623,13 $ 28,623,13 $ 56,720,44 $ 28,097,30
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

DETENTION AND ENFORCEMEN" CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNI
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAI
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge
Revenue
Interes $ 110,63° $ 110,63 $ 152,96. $ 42,32¢
Expenditures
Current
Public safet 10,50( 10,50( 19,93¢ (9,439
Capital outlay
Public safet 7,926,00! 7,926,00! 3,839,81! 4,086,18:
Total expenditure 7,936,501 7,936,501 3,859,75i 4,076,74.
Deficiency of revenues under expenditi (7,825,863 (7,825,863 (3,706,797 4,119,06!
Other financing sources (us¢
Transfers i 526,00( 526,00( 1,882,82. 1,356,82
Transfers ot (10,511 (10,511 (10,511
Total other financing sources (us 515,48 515,48¢ 1,872,311 1,356,82
Net changes in fund balan: (7,310,374 (7,310,374 (1,834,484 5,475,89
Fund balances, July 9,185,93! 9,185,93! 9,373,591 187,66:
Fund balances, June $ 1,87556. $ 1,87556. $ 7,539,111 $ 5,663,55.
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNI
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AN

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAI

Revenue:
Special assessme
Interes

Total revenue

Expenditures
Current
Public work:
Debt service
Interest and fiscal charg
Capital outlay
Public safet
Public work:
Total expenditure

Excess of revenues over expendit
Other financing sources (us¢
Transfers i
Transfers ot
Total other financing sources (us
Net changes in fund balan:

Fund balances, July

Fund balances, June

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl

Original Final Actual Final Budge
30,668,000 $ 30,668,00 $ 28,783,122 $ (1,884,876
48,37 48,37 224,62( 176,24
30,716,37 30,716,37 29,007,74 (1,708,627
8,50( 8,50( 500,66: (492,161
702,40: (702,402
250,10( (649,900 (649,900
12,008,69 12,908,69 7,075,77. 5,832,92
12,267,29 12,267,29 8,278,84. 3,988,45
18,449,07 18,449,07 20,728,90 2,279,83
64,57¢ 64,57¢ 20,227 (44,352
(1,103,563 (1,103,563 (1,123,789 (20,226
(1,038,984 (1,038,984 (1,103,562 (64,578
17,410,08 17,410,08 19,625,34 2,215,25:
18,800,12 18,800,12 19,552,50 752,38(
$ 36,210,21 $ 36,210,21 $ 39,177,84 $ 2,967,63
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CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNI
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AN

CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAI

Revenue:

Intergovernment

Interes
Total revenue
Expenditures

Current

General governme

Excess of revenues over expendit

Other financing use
Transfers ot

Net changes in fund balan:
Fund balances, July

Fund balances, June

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE

Budgeted Amoun

30, 201

Variance witl

Original Final Actual Final Budge

$ 1,74752¢ $ 174752 $ 1,80583 $ 58,30:
2,90: 2,90: 3,28 37¢
1,750,43. 1,750,43. 1,809,11. 58,68:

27¢ 27¢ 27¢

1,750,15 1,750,15 1,809,11. 58,957

(2,023,850 (2,023,850 (2,023,850

(273,693 (273,693 (214,736 58,95"
295,25¢ 295,25¢ 262,45t (32,798

$ 21,56 $ 21,56 $ 47,72 $ 26,15¢
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

GREEN BUILDING CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNI
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAI
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge
Revenue
Intergovernment; $ 6,682,000 $ 6,682,000 $ $ (6,682,000
Interes 20,30: 20,30: 9,44¢ (20,853
Miscellaneou 4,70( 4,70(
Total revenue 6,702,30. 6,702,30. 14,14¢ (6,688,153
Expenditures
Current
General governme 20,00( 20,00( 82,12¢ (62,123
Capital outlay
General governme 7,656,59 7,656,59 22,62¢ 7,633,97.
Total expenditure 7,676,59 7,676,59 104,74 7,571,85!
Deficiency of revenues under expenditi (974,295 (974,295 (90,598 883,69
Other financing sources (us¢
Transfers i 40,46 40,46
Transfers ot (11,180 (11,180 (11,180
Total other financing sources (us (11,180 (11,180 29,28: 40,46:
Net changes in fund balan: (985,475 (985,475 (61,315 924,16(
Fund balances, July 2,381,21. 2,381,21. 718,14 (1,663,064

Fund balances, June

$ 1,39573t $ 1,395,731 $ 656,83. $ (738,904




Revenue:
Charges for servic
Interes

Total revenue

Expenditures
Current
Healtf
Net changes in fund balan:

Fund balances, July

Fund balances, June

CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

CEMETERY OPERATION: PERMANENT FUNEL

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAI

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl

Original Final Actual Final Budge

$ 50,00( $ 50,00C $ 70,68C $ 20,68(
310,00( 310,00( (44,204 (354,204
360,00( 360,00( 26,47¢ (333,524
310,00( 310,00( 309,29¢ 70z
50,00( 50,00( (282,822 (332,822
2,378,44. 2,378,44. 2,121,55! (256,887
$ 2,428,44. $ 242844, $ 1,838,733 $ (589,709
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

FISCAL STABILIZATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUNIL
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AN
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAI
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge
Revenue
Interes $ 121,16¢ $ 121,16¢ $ 223,08 $ 101,91¢
Expenditures
Current
General governme 11,50( 11,50( 10,80¢ 697
Excess of revenues over expendit 109,66 109,66 212,28: (102,613
Net changes in fund balan: 109,66¢ 109,66¢ 212,28: (102,613
Fund balances, July 13,013,83 13,013,83 12,999,18 (14,651
Fund balances, June $ 13,123,550 $ 13,123,50 $ 13,211,46 $ 87,96:
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Major Proprietary Funds
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operationga) that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises wher the intent of the governing body is that
the costs (expenses including depreciation) of priing goods or services to the general public
on a continuing basis be financed or recovered priarily through user charges; or (b) where
the governing body has decided that periodic determation of revenues earned, expenses
incurred and/or net income is appropriate for capil maintenance, public policy,
management control, accountability or other purposs.

SANITATION FUND

This fund is used to account for the operation ted City's water pollution control facilities andeth
construction and maintenance of sanity sewer fioethe residents of Las Vegas and North Las Vegas.




CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
SANITATION ENTERPRISE FUNI

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, Al

CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUA

Operating revenue
Charges for service
Sewer charges to citize
Othel
Miscellaneou
Total revenue

Operating expense¢
Salaries and employee bene
Services and suppli
Depreciatiol

Total operating expens

Operating los
Nonoperating revenues (expens
Interest revent
Interest expen:
Sewer connection char
Gain (loss) on sale of capital as:
Intergovernmental reven
Intergovernmental exper
Total nonoperating revenues (expen
Income before capital contributic
Capital contributions - sewer lir
Changes in net positi

Fund balances, July

Net position, June

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge
$ 87,088,06 $ 87,088,06 $ 8569594 $ (1,392,116
1,094,44. 1,094,44. 3,073,041 1,978,60:
40,80( 40,80( 47,76¢ 6,96¢€
88,223,30 88,223,30 88,816,76 593,45:
28,824,52 28,824,52 24,496,58 4,327,941
39,477,60 39,477,60 38,709,15 768,45t
27,112,84 27,112,84 27,660,13 (547,294
95,414,96 95,414,96 90,865,86 4,549,10:
(7,191,661 (7,191,661 (2,049,107 5,142,55.
984,47( 984,47( 2,191,411 1,206,941
(4,048,705 (4,048,705 (2,851,552 1,197,15:
6,000,00! 6,000,00! 10,384,86 4,384,86
(3,874 (3,874
8,330,00! 8,330,00! 7,522,17! (807,830
(70,000 (70,000 (65,079 4,921
11,195,76 11,195,76 17,177,94 5,982,17
4,004,10. 4,004,10. 15,128,83 11,124,73
6,000,00! 6,000,00! 10,861,02 4,861,02!
10,004,10 10,004,10 25,989,86 15,985,75
689,641,93 689,641,93 689,641,93
$ 699,646,03 $ 699,646,03 $ 715,631,79 $ 15,985,75
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Nonmajor Proprietary Funds

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operationga) that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises wher the intent of the governing body is that
the costs (expenses including depreciation) of th@oviding goods or services to the general
public on a continuing basis be financed or recoved primarily through user charges; or (b)
where the governing body has decided that periodidetermination of revenues earned,
expenses incurred and/or net income is appropriatéor capital maintenance, public policy,
management control, accountability or other purposs.

Municipal Golf Course Fund -- This fund is usedatcount for the revenues and costs associated with
constructing, operating and leasing public golfrees.

Municipal Parking Fund -- This fund is used to agtiofor the revenues and expenses of providingipubl
parking. This includes the leasing of two downtoparking garages owned by the City, all parking
enforcement and parking ticket collection actithyoughout the City, and the construction and djp@maof
downtown parking facilities.

Building and Safety Fund -- This fund is used tocamt for the costs of safeguarding people andetgp
by providing reasonable controls for the constaugtuse and occupancy of buildings.

Nonprofit Corporations -- The purpose of the cogtions is to promote the health and welfare ofGhg of
Las Vegas and its citizens through the acquisitimil disposition of property, exclusively for public
purposes.




CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITIOI

JUNE 30, 201
Municipal Gol Municipal Building anc  Nonprofit
Courst Parking Safet Corporation Total
ASSETS
Current asset
Pooled cash, cash equivalents and investmentsstunted $ 1,314,26; $ 6,344,741 $ 8,608,621 $ 18,923,17 $ 35,190,79
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles)
Accounts 5,09( 258,49! 72,87 336,46(
Interest 2,43¢ 11,47¢ 16,14: 30,05¢
Loans 2,781,44: 9,443,92! 12,225,37
Inventories 78,997 78,997
Prepaid items 149,27: 72,16: 221,43¢
Deposits 26,19 300,00( 326,19
Total current assets 1,576,24! 9,396,16: 8,624,76.  28,812,13 48,409,31
Capital asset
Land 795,04° 38,978,34 30,234,39 70,007,78
Land improvements 13,762,83 348,87 14,111,70
Buildings 4,414,01. 42,615,43 47,029,44
Building improvements 123,20 744,09( 68,00( 935,29¢
Machinery and equipment 534,49¢ 2,101,65: 53,61t 2,689,76.
Construction in progress 211,47 211,47
Less accumulated depreciation (12,471,105 (15,316,073 (21,513 (27,808,691
Total capital assets (net of accumulated deprecipti 7,158,48! 69,683,79 100,10: 30,234,39  107,176,77
Total assets 8,734,73! 79,079,95 8,724,86.  59,046,53 155,586,08
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURC
Deferred charges on refunding 7,63¢ 7,63t
Deferred amounts related to pensions 772,674 1,738,66. 2,511,34,
Total deferred outflows of resources 780,31« 1,738,66. 2,518,97
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable $ 86,45, $ 205,26( $ 41,21¢ $ 4324, $ 376,16¢
Salaries payable 64,47( 138,82! 203,29t
Deposits payable 2,324 19,38¢ 499,89¢ 521,61(
Compensated absences payable 179,12! 914,75¢ 1,093,88:
Due to other funds 2,01¢ 2,01¢
General obligation revenue bonds payable 818,24 361,05¢ 1,179,29!
Interest payable 11,07¢ 48,46¢ 59,54«
Intergovernmental payable 1,61¢€ 1,61¢€
Total current liabilities 919,70° 877,77( 1,094,79 545,15° 3,437,43.
Noncurrent liabilities
Compensated absences payable 90,23¢ 460,81" 551,05!
General obligation revenue bonds payable 4,416,20! 8,344,57: 12,760,78
Loans payable 15,185,01 15,185,01
Unearned revenue 7,22 517,12} 1,080,98 1,605,33:
OPEB liability 633,54 1,984,84. 2,618,38.
Net pension liabilit 4,383,82. 9,791,70. 14,175,52
Total noncurrent liabilities 4,423,42! 13,969,30. 13,318,34 15,185,01 46,896,08
Total liabilities 5,343,13. 14,847,07.  14,413,14 15,730,16 50,333,51
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCI
Deferred gain on refunding 5,58¢ 5,58¢
Deferred amounts related to pensions 544,03¢ 1,110,121 1,654,15
Total deferred inflows of resources 5,58¢ 544,03¢ 1,110,121 1,659,74.
NET POSITIOM
Net investment in capital ass 1,924,041 60,978,16' 100,10: 30,234,39 93,236,69
Unrestricted 1,461,97 3,491,00: (5,159,840 13,081,96 12,875,10
Total net position $ 3,386,01° $ 64,469,16 $ (5,059,738% 43,316,36 $106,111,80
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUND

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AN
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITIO|
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Operating revenues:

Licenses and perm
Charges for servic
Fines and forfeit
Miscellaneou

Total operating revenu

Operating expenses:

Salaries and employee bene
Services and suppli
Cost of stores issu
Depreciatiol

Total operating expens

Operating income (los
Nonoperating revenues (expens
Interest revent
Interest expen:
Gain (loss) on sale of capital as:
Intergovernmental exper
Total nonoperating revenues (expen
Income (loss) before transf
Transfers il
Changes in net positir

Net position, July 1 as previously repol

Net position, June !

Municipal Municipal Building anc Nonprofil
Golf Courst Parkinc Safety Corporation Total

$ $ 10,586,09 $ 10,586,09
1,097,69! 5,176,861 788,62: 7,063,18!
2,829,50. 2,829,50.
725,89: 1,178,39: 10,056,10 11,960,39
1,823,59 9,184,76! 11,374,71 10,056,10 32,439,17
3,102,45! 6,940,10. 10,042,55
1,569,38! 3,347,37. 2,638,92! 716,89¢ 8,272,58.
90,26¢ 90,26¢
706,86¢ 1,259,32 11,85( 1,978,04.
2,366,51! 7,709,15! 9,590,87! 716,89t 20,383,45
(542,928 1,475,61i 1,783,84! 9,339,20: 12,055,72
22,59: 108,16! 141,59¢ 101,12: 373,47¢
(138,611 (295,646 (11,019 (445,276
(1,118 (318,571 (319,689
(34,795 (34,795
(150,814 (188,599 141,59¢ (228,466 (426,281
(693,742 1,287,01. 1,925,43: 9,110,73 11,629,44
1,200,001 280,00( 1,480,001
506,25¢ 1,567,01. 1,925,43 9,110,73 13,109,44
2,879,75! 62,902,15 (6,985,176  34,205,62 93,002,36

$ 3,386,01 $ 64,469,16 $

(5,059,738 % 43,316,36 $106,111,80




CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Municipal Gol Municipal Building anc Nonprofit
Courst Parkin¢ Safety Corporation Totals
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from custom $ 1,827,63. $ 9,328,44. $10,607,57 $ 10,110,87 $ 31,874,52
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and sel (1,652,557 (3,353,976 (2,659,210 (777,263 (8,443,006
Cash payments to employees for sen (3,177,724 (7,030,177 (10,207,901
Net cash provided by operating activi 175,07! 2,796,74. 918,18¢ 9,333,61. 13,223,61
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers in from other fun 1,200,001 280,00( 1,480,001
Cash paid to other fun (4,065,717 (4,065,717
Contributions to other governme (34,795 (34,795
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital finan
activities 1,165,20! 280,00( (4,065,717 (2,620,512
Cash flows from capital and related financing
activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital as (250,921 (7,463 (258,384
Purchase of lar (576,028 (576,028
Proceeds from sale of la 118,25: 118,25:
Principal paid on bon (790,000 (340,000 (1,130,000
Arbitrage rebate pa (403, (403,
Interest paid on bon (148,700 (307,813 (11,019 (467,532
Net cash used in capital and related finar
activities (939,103 (898,734 (7,463 (468,794 (2,314,094
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest and dividends on investme 21,98 96,68¢ 145,13: 101,12 364,92!
Net increase in pooled cash, cash equivalent
investments 423,15¢ 2,274,691 1,055,85! 4,900,22. 8,653,93
Pooled cash, cash equivalents and investmentsl 891,10: 4,070,04. 7,552,76. 14,022,94 26,536,85

Pooled CaSh, cash eqUiValentS and inVestmentS,aDJﬂe $ 1,314.26° $ 6,344,740 $ 8,608,621 $ 1892317 $ 35.190.79

Continued
18C



CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW (CONTINUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Municipal Gol Municipal Building anc Nonprofit
Courst Parkin¢ Safety Corporation Totals
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net ca
used in operating activities:
Operating income (los $ (542,928 $ 1,475,611 $ 1,783,841 $ 9,339,200 $ 12,055,72
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciatiol 706,86« 1,259,32' 11,85( 1,978,04.
Change in assets and liabilitie:
(Increase) decrease in accounts recei (962 167,03! (70,125 95,94¢
Increase in loans receiva (84,237 (84,237
Increase in inventori (25,526 (25,526
(Increase) decrease in prepaid it (48,864 2,13¢ (46,728
Increase in depos (300,000 (300,000
Increase (decrease) in accounts pa) 81,69« 30,93: (20,285 (18,408 73,93
Increase in salaries paya 15,44: 41,40: 56,84¢
Increase in customer depo 2,324 144 424,89¢ 427,36¢
Increase (decrease) in intergovernmental pa (207, (37,534 (37,741
Decrease in due from other fui 40,14+ 40,14+
Increase in compensated absences pe 6,29( 169,53: 175,82:
Increase (decrease) in unearned rev 2,68( (23,500 (767,143 (787,963
Decrease in PERS pension liabi (120,779 (291,400 (412,179
Increase (decrease) in OPEB liab 23,77 (9,606 14,17
Net cash provided by operating activi $ 175,07 $ 2,796,74. $ 918,18¢ $ 9,333,61. $ 13,223,61
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Operating revenue
Charges for servic

CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

MUNICIPAL GOLF COURSEENTERPRISE FUNI
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, Al
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUA
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge

$ 1,176,26- $ 1,176,16. $ 1,097,69' $ (78,465

Miscellaneou 485,00( 485,00( 725,89: 240,89:
Total operating revenu 1,661,16 1,661,16 1,823,59! 162,42¢
Operating expenst

Services and suppli 1,562,28: 1,682,28. 1,569,38! 112,89°

Cost of stores issu 149,08t 149,08t 90,26¢ 58,81¢

Depreciatiol 719,73t 719,73t 706,86« 12,87:
Total operating expens 2,431,101 2,551,101 2,366,51! 184,58¢
Operating los (769,942 (889,942 (542,928 347,01
Nonoperating revenues (expens

Interest revent 8,33¢ 8,33¢ 22,59: 14,25]

Interest expen: (151,161 (151,161 (138,611 12,55(

Intergovernmental exper (37,000 (37,000 (34,795 2,20¢
Total nonoperating revenues (expen (179,826 (179,826 (150,814 29,01:
Loss before transfe (949,768 (1,069,768 (693,742 376,02t

Transfers i 1,200,001 1,200,001 1,200,001
Changes in net positi 250,23: 130,23 506,25¢ 376,02¢
Net position, July 2,879,76: 2,879,76 2,879,76

Net position, June

$ 3,129,99: $§ 3,009,99. $ 3,386,01t $ 376,02¢
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

MUNICIPAL PARKING ENTERPRISE FUNI
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AN

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAI

Operating revenue
Charges for servic
Fines and forfei
Miscellaneou

Total operating revenu

Operating expense¢
Salaries and employee bene
Services and suppli
Depreciatiol

Total operating expens

Operating incorr
Nonoperating revenues (expens
Interest revent
Interest expen:
Gain (loss) on sale of capital as:
Total nonoperating revenues (expen

Income (loss) before transfi

Other Financing Sources (Us
Transfers i

Net changes in fund balan:
Fund balances, July

Net position, June

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl
Final Budge
Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative
$ 3,857,88 $ 3,857,88 5,176,86/ $ 1,318,97
3,083,10! 3,083,101 2,829,50: (253,599
1,182,79 1,182,79 1,178,399 (4,398
8,123,78! 8,123,78! 9,184,76! 1,060,98!
3,377,89 3,377,891 3,102,45! 275,43!
3,075,23. 3,213,23 3,347,37. (134,134

197,33: 1,259,32 1,259,32 -
6,650,45! 7,850,45! 7,709,15! 141,30:
1,473,32! 273,32¢ 1,475,611 1,202,28.
25,00( 25,00( 108,16! 83,16t
(1,057,813 (357,813 (295,646 62,167
- - (1,118 (1,118
(1,032,813 (332,813 (188,599 144,21:
440,51¢ (59,484 1,287,01. 1,346,49!
2,000,00! 2,000,001 280,00( (1,720,000
2,440,511 1,940,511 1,567,01. (373,505
62,902,15 62,902,15 62,902,15 -

$65,342,66 $ 64,842,66 $ 64,469,16 $ (373,505
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

BUILDING AND SAFETY ENTERPRISE FUNI
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, Al
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUA
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge

Operating revenue

Licenses and perm $ 10,348,75 $ 10,348,75 $ 10,586,09 $ 237,34:

Charges for servic 696,61: 696,61 788,62. 92,01:
Total operating revenu 11,045,36 11,045,36 11,374,71 329,35!
Operating expenst

Salaries and employee bene 7,712,111 7,712,111 6,940,10: 772,00t

Services and suppli 2,917,471 2,917,47. 2,638,92! 278,54¢

Depreciatiol 11,85( (11,850
Total operating expens 10,629,58 10,629,58 9,590,87! 1,038,70:
Operating incorr 415,78: 415,78: 1,783,841 1,368,05!
Nonoperating revenue

Interest revent 80,75¢ 80,75¢ 141,59¢ 60,84:
Changes in net positi 496,53 496,53 1,925,43 1,428,90:
Fund balances, July (6,985,175 (6,985,175 (6,985,175
Net position, June ¢ $ (6,488,638 $ (6,488,638 $ (5,059,737 $  1,428,90.

184



CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

NONPROFIT CORPORATION ENTERPRISE FUNI
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, Al
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUA
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge
Operating revenue
Miscellaneou $ 348,93( $ 348,93( $ 10,056,10 $ 9,707,17.
Operating expenst
Services and suppli 3,067,80 3,067,80 716,89¢ 2,350,90!
Operating income (los (2,718,877 (2,718,877 9,339,20. 12,058,08
Nonoperating revenues (expens
Interest revent 101,12 101,12
Interest expen: (11,019 (11,019
Gain (loss) on sale of capital as: (318,571 (318,571
Total nonoperating revenues (expen (228,466 (228,466
Changes in net positi (2,718,877 (2,718,877 9,110,73 11,829,61
Net position, July 34,205,62 34,205,62 34,205,62
Net position, June ¢ $ 31.486,74 $ 31,486,74 $ 43,316,36 $ 11,829,61
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds are used to account for théinancing of goods and services provided
by one department or agency of a government to othedlepartments or agencies on a cost
reimbursement basis. Accounting for Internal Servie Funds as a proprietary fund type is
designed to accumulate the total cost (including geeciation) of providing a particular
service. Costs of services are reimbursed by the girtments or agencies to which the service
is provided.

Reimbursable Expense Fund -- This fund is use@d¢ouwnt for miscellaneous costs of services andlggp
which are incurred on behalf of private enterpriaed other governmental entities.

Fire Communications Fund -- This fund is used tooaat for the costs of providing emergency dispatch
services for the entire Las Vegas valley area. Udinoan interlocal agreement, the costs of operatawa
shared by the City and other governmental entities are billed quarterly.

Print Media Fund -- This fund is used to account floe costs of materials, supplies and graphic
reproduction services to City departments and agemehich are charged at cost plus a handling fee.

Computer Services Fund -- This fund is used to aecdor the purchase, software licensing, and
maintenance of personal computers.

Automotive Operations Fund -- This fund is useddtoount for the acquisition, replacement, mainteaan
and repair of the City’s fleet of vehicles and gupeént as well as the operating costs of the cegalge
and its satellites. City departments and agencislzarged monthly fees to allow recovery of costs.

Employee Benefit Fund -- This fund is used to aotoior monies collected from City departments,
employees and former employees and dependents &xfmEnded for premiums and claims for health
insurance and other employee benefits providedrpl@yees and their dependents. The fund includes th
City’'s Workers’ Compensation self-insurance progratrich expends payment of claims, as required by
law, to employees injured by accident at work.

Liability Insurance and Property Damage Fund --sThind is used to account for monies collectedtier
self-insurance program from City departments t@kgended for payment of claims, to certain legalt§,
for casualty and accident insurance and to coverade and loss of City-owned assets.

City Facilities Fund -- This fund is used to accbtor all costs associated with the utilities, ntamance,
custodial and remodeling services for City-owneddlifites.




COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITIOI

ASSET¢

CURRENT ASSETS
Pooled cash, cash equivalents and investn
unrestricted
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectit
Accounts
Interest
Inventories
Total current assets

NONCURRENT ASSET¢
Capital asset
Land improvements
Buildings
Building improvements
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Less accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets (net of accumulated deprecipti
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURC
Deferred amounts related to pensions

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Salaries payable
Compensated absences payable
Deposits payable
Benefits payable
Claims and judgments payable
Heart lung presumptive liability
Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Compensated absences payable
Benefits payable
OPEB liability
Heart lung presumptive liability
Net pension liabilit

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCI
Deferred amounts related to pensions

NET POSITIOM
Net investment in capital ass
Unassigned

Total net position

CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND¢

JUNE 30, 201

Reimbursabl Fire Compute Automotive
Expense  Communication Print Medi: Service Operation

$ 586,21¢ $ 1,526,15. $ 817,74 $ 12,654,96 $ 16,101,41
254,30° 62,77¢

1,06¢ 1,49( 23,56: 26,49:

30,01: 557,30° 275,30¢

586,21¢ 1,781,52! 849,24t 13,235,83 16,465,98
257,07"

3,486,89!

4,349,41. 56,88

1,653,42! 326,41¢ 3,226,68: 332,67:

37,119,35.
(5,853,419 (210,636 (1,751,303 (29,864,01€

149,42: 115,78( 1,475,37! 11,388,86

586,21¢ 1,930,95: 965,02¢ 14,711,21 27,854,85
661,47: 1,852,12: 66,147 926,06 661,47:
16,447 59,31 30,112 1,117,89: 1,153,74
41,93¢ 147,57¢ 3,09t 74,074 56,757
171,86¢ 435,03! 3,862 296,44. 247,89
230,25¢ 641,92 37,06¢ 1,488,40: 1,458,391
86,58! 219,15: 1,94¢ 149,33t 124,87¢
332,79! 682,04: 113,54 375,85! 956,76
3,772,60: 10,563,28 377,26( 5,281,64 3,772,60:
4,191,97! 11,464,48 492,75( 5,806,83! 4,854,24.
4,422,23. 12,106,41 529,81¢ 7,295,24. 6,312,63!
496,67° 1,390,691 49,66¢ 695,34" 496,67°
149,42: 115,78( 1,475,37 11,388,86

(3,671,218 (9,863,454 335,90¢ 6,171,30: 10,318,14

$ (3,671,218 $  (9,714,03C $ 451,68t $ 7,646,68 $ 21,707,01
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Liability
Insurance ar

Employet Propert

Benefii Damag City Facilities Total
$ 28,421,60 $ 3,491,520 $ 3,666,400 $ 67,266,03
1,085,74 96,49¢ 30,35¢ 1,529,68!
53,30: 5,24t 5,104 116,26°
862,62¢
29,560,65 3,593,26: 3,701,86! 69,774,60
257,07"
100,08° 3,586,98!
2,21( 1,294 4,409,801
5,67( 159,74 5,704,611
63,987 37,183,34
(7,880 (88,065 (37,775,31¢
237,05( 13,366,50
29,560,65 3,593,26. 3,938,91! 83,141,11
132,29: 132,29: 2,182,85i 6,614,72.
146,28' 93,82¢ 496,82 3,114,451
69,36( 6,10¢ 164,01« 562,92¢
10,83t 15,54« 709,03¢ 1,890,51
6,67t 6,67t
7,298,53. 7,298,53.
435,97! 435,97!
3,967,59: 3,967,59:
11,492,60 551,45! 1,376,55: 17,276,66
5,45¢ 7,831 357,18¢ 952,36¢
597,93: 597,93:
139,80° 144,72( 2,769,68! 5,515,201
14,901,43 14,901,43
754,52: 754,52: 12,449,58 37,726,02
16,399,15 907,07: 15,576,45 59,692,97
27,891,76 1,458,52' 16,953,00 76,969,64
99,33t 99,33t 1,639,03: 4,966,76!
237,05( 13,366,50
1,701,85: 2,167,69! (12,707,31% (5,547,079
$ 1,701,85. $ 2,167,69' $(12,470,26% $ 7,819,42:

191



CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND¢
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, Al
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITIO|
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Reimbursabl Fire Compute
Expense Communication Print Medi: Service

Operating revenue

Charges for servic $ 3,090,090 $ 10,160,04 $ 1,150,16- $ 13,728,26

Miscellaneou 582
Total operating revenu 3,090,09: 10,160,62 1,150,16: 13,728,26
Operating expens¢

Salaries and employee bene 2,446,46: 7,524,56! 123,85¢ 3,501,16.

Services and suppli 696,45+ 2,169,72: 664,40 8,707,21!

Cost of stores issu 170,22(

Insurance clain

Insurance premiur

Depreciatiol 23,75¢ 38,15¢ 269,51¢
Total operating expens 3,142,991 9,718,04! 996,63 12,477,89.
Operating income (los (52,823 442 58 153,52¢ 1,250,37:
Nonoperating revenues (expens

Interest revent 6,51: 13,37 211,23:

Gain (loss) on sale of capital as: (7,419 (107,166

Intergovernmental exper
Total nonoperating revenues (expen (906 (93,789 211,23:
Income (loss) before transf (52,823 441,67 59,74( 1,461,601

Transfers il 307,43!
Transfers ot (15,000

Changes in net positi (52,823 441,67 59,74( 1,754,04.
Net position, July (3,618,395 (10,155,707 391,94¢ 5,892,64!
Net position, June { $ (3,671,218 $ (9,714,030 $ 451,68t $ 7,646,68
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Liability Insuranci

Automotive Employet and Propert

Operation Benefi Damag City Facilities Total
$10,333,35 $ 157,797,14 $ 1,850,99' $18,967,74 $ 217,077,80
7,201 569,22! 547,84¢ 1,124,86.
10,340,56 158,366,36 1,850,99' 19,515,59 218,202,66
2,483,85! 129,979,29 395,55: 8,054,11. 154,508,86
984,88 1,915,33! 300,72°  11,100,47 26,539,20
2,310,33. 2,480,55.
3,721,91! 1,448,33 5,170,25
30,533,68 837,85t 31,371,53
1,741,941 21,63( 2,095,00:
7,521,011 166,150,22 2,982,47.  19,176,22 222,165,41
2,819,55: (7,783,859 (1,131,478 339,37: (3,962,753
240,31° 479,29: 58,30¢ 44,957 1,053,991
678,75: 564,16¢
(1,521,260 (1,521,260
919,07( (1,041,969 58,30¢ 44,95] 96,90
3,738,62 (8,825,828 (2,073,170 384,32¢ (3,865,849
147,00( 2,000,00! 2,454,43!
(984,210 (999,210
3,885,62: (6,825,828 (2,073,170 (599,882 (2,410,624
17,821,39 8,527,67! 3,240,86! (11,870,381 10,230,04
$21,70701. $ 1,701,85 $ 2,167,69 $(12,470,265 $ 7,819,42:
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND¢
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Reimbursabl Fire
Expense Communication Print Medi:
Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from customers $ $ 5,878,770 $
Cash received from internal services provided 3,090,09. 4,228,31! 1,150,44
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (682,951 (2,241,561 (837,834
Cash payments to employees for services (2,451,420 (7,729,333 (162,961

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activ (44,277 136,18t 149,65:

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers in from other funds
Transfers out to other funds
Subsidies paid to other governments

Net cash provided by (used in) noncaj
financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing dtits:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (33,493 1)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Net cash used in capital and related finar
activities (33,493 (1)

Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest and dividends on investments 7,068 13,21
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (44,277 109,75t 162,86¢
Pooled cash, cash equivalents and investments1July 630,49¢ 1,416,39 654,87¢
Pooled cash, cash equivalents and investments,3une $ 586,21¢ $ 1,526,15. $ 817,74:
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Liability

Compute Automotive Employe: Insurance ar
Service Operation Benefii Property Dama¢  City Facilities Totals
$ $ 220,05¢ $ 3,127,99° $ 324,57, $ 537,67¢ $ 10,089,07
13,728,26 10,099,52 155,030,39 1,623,62: 18,967,74 207,918,40
(8,194,306 (3,196,906 (35,212,67¢€ (2,374,835 (11,282,22C (64,023,28¢
(3,593,045 (2,544,876 (129,969,76¢€ (409,011 (8,296,184 (155,156,59¢
1,940,91 4,577,79! (7,024,048 (835,653 (72,982 (1,172,406
307,43! 147,00( 2,000,00t 2,454.,43!
(15,000 (984,210 (999,210
(1,521,260 (1,521,260
292,43! 147,00( 478,74( (984,210 (66,035
(644,289 (2,911,383 (105,197 (3,694,363
746,86¢ 746,86¢
(644,289 (2,164,514 (105,197 (2,947,494
208,39: 239,01¢ 498,94¢ 65,84+ 48,61« 1,081,09:
1,797,45! 2,799,30- (6,046,360 (769,809 (1,113,775 (3,104,842
10,857,51 13,302,10 34,467,96 4,261,33. 4,780,18. 70,370,87

$ 1265496 $ 16,101,41 $ 2842160 $ 3,491,52. $ 3,666,400 $ 67,266,03

Continued
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND¢
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW (CONTINUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Reimbursabl Fire
Expense Communication Print Medi:
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to neth
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ (52,823 $ 44258. $ 153,52¢
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (los
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Depreciation 23,75: 38,15¢
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
Increase in intergovernmental receivable (53,543
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds 287
Decrease in inventories 18,647
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 13,50¢ (71,839 (21,858
Increase (decrease) in salaries payable 3,701 28,14( (1,251
Increase (decrease) in compensated abs
payable 66,57( 66,41: (20,482
Increase (decrease) in benefits payable
Increase (decrease) in claims and judgn
payable
Increase (decrease) in OPEB liability 22,83¢ (24,719 (7,564
Increase (decrease) in PERS pension liability (98,072 (274,600 (9,807
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activ $ (44,277 $ 136,18t $ 149,65:
Noncash investing, capital, and financing actisgi
Decrease in fair value of investments (5,107 (7,118
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Liability

Compute Automotive Employe: Insurance ar

Service Operation Benefii Property Dama¢  City Facilities Totals
$ 1,250,37. $ 2,819,55. $ (7,783,859 $ (1,131,478 $ 339,37 $ (3,962,753
269,51¢ 1,741,94! 21,63( 2,095,00:
(20,981 (207,973 97,19¢ (20,170 (141,926
(53,543
28¢
(193,188 69,45 (105,090
706,09¢ 28,85¢ (26,940 60,22 (181,742 506,30:
15,17: 22,85 24,27 (1,894 45,39« 136,39¢
1,33¢ 5,30¢ 10,10¢ 2,55¢ (15,113 116,68t
985,19¢ 985,19:
151,86! 151,86!
28,90« 8,891 (5,239 5,49¢ 51,28t 79,89:
(137,300 (98,072 (19,613 (19,614 (323,637 (980,715
$ 1,94091 $ 4,577,79' $ (7,024,048 $ (835,653 $ (72,982 $ (1,172,406
(112,533 (126,528 (247,566 $ (11,765 (24,378 % (534,995



Operating revenue
Charges for servic

Operating expense

Services and suppli
Total operating expens

CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
REIMBURSABLE EXPENSE INTERNAL SERVICE FUNL
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, Al
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUA
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge

$ 3,398,88: $§ 3,398,88 $ 3,090,09- $ (308,794

Salaries and employee bene 2,692,171 2,692,171 2,446,46. 245,70°
706,71 706,71 696,45- 10,26

3,398,88: 3,398,88: 3,142,91 255,97:

(52,823 (52,823

Changes in net positi

Fund balances, July

Net position, June

(3,618,395 (3,618,395 (3,618,395

$ (3,618,395 $ (3,618,395 $ (3,671,218 $ (52,823
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
FIRE COMMUNICATIONS INTERNAL SERVICE FUNL

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,

EXPENSES, Al

CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUA
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Operating revenue
Charges for servic
Miscellaneou

Total operating revenu

Operating expense¢
Salaries and employee bene
Services and suppli
Depreciatiol

Total operating expens

Operating income (los
Nonoperating revenues (expens
Interest revent
Gain (loss) on sale of capital as:
Total nonoperating revenues (expen
Changes in net positi

Fund balances, July

Net position, June

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl

Original Final Actual Final Budge

$ 10,277,22 $ 10,277,22 $ 10,160,04 $ (117,187

582 582

10,277,22 10,277,22 10,160,62 (116,605

7,688,75! 7,798,75 7,524,56! 274,18!

2,520,65! 2,520,65! 2,169,72: 350,93t

34,08¢ 34,08¢ 23,75 10,33:

10,243,49 10,353,49 9,718,04 635,45!

33,73¢ (76,265 442,58 518,84¢

4,257 4,257 6,51 2,25¢

(7,419 (7,419

4,257 4,257 (906 (5,163

37,99. (72,008 441,67" 513,68!
(10,155,707 (10,155,707 (10,155,707

$ (10,117,71£ $ (10,227,715 $ (9,714,030 513,68!




CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

PRINT MEDIA INTERNAL SERVICE FUNL
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, Al
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUA
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge

Operating revenue

Charges for servic $ 1,000,000 $ 1,000,000 $ 1,150,16. $ 150,16¢
Operating expense¢

Salaries and employee bene 286,14( 286,14( 123,85¢ 162,28

Services and suppli 541,05! 1,151,05! 664,40: 486,65

Cost of stores issu 50,00( 200,00( 170,22( 29,78(

Depreciatiol 48,00( 48,00( 38,154 9,84¢
Total operating expens 925,19! 1,685,19! 996,63! 688,56(
Operating income (los 74,80¢ (685,195 153,52¢ 838,72
Nonoperating revenues (expens

Interest revent 3,95( 3,95( 13,371 9,42

Gain (loss) on sale of capital as: (107,166 107,16¢
Total nonoperating revenues (expen 3,95( 3,95( (93,789 (97,739
Changes in net positi 78,75¢ (681,245 59,74( 740,98!
Net position, July 391,94¢ 391,94¢ 391,94¢
Net position, June ! $ 470,70. $ (289,299 $ 451,68t $ 740,98!
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

COMPUTER SERVICE INTERNAL SERVICE FUNL
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, Al
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUA
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge
Operating revenue
Charges for servic $ 14,409,63 $ 14,409,63 $ 13,728,26 $ (681,363
Operating expenst
Salaries and employee bene 4,174,18! 4,174,18! 3,501,16: 673,01¢
Services and suppli 16,444,12 16,444,12 8,707,21! 7,736,90!
Cost of stores issu 300,00( 300,00( 300,00(
Depreciatiol 220,00( 220,00( 269,51¢ (49,518
Total operating expens 21,138,30. 21,138,30. 12,477,89 8,660,41!
Operating income (los (6,728,674 (6,728,674 1,250,37: 7,979,04
Nonoperating revenue
Interest revent 55,00( 55,00( 211,23 156,23(
Income (loss) before transfi (6,673,674 (6,673,674 1,461,601 8,135,28I
Transfers i 307,43! 307,43!
Transfers ot (15,000 (15,000
292,43! 292,43!
Changes in net positi (6,673,674 (6,673,674 1,754,04. 8,427,71!
Fund balances, July 5,892,641 5,892,641 5,892,641
Net position, June : $ (781,028 $ (781,028 $§ 7,646,668 $ 8,427,71
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
AUTOMOTIVE OPERATIONS INTERNAL SERVICE FUNL
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, Al
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUA
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge

Operating revenue

Charges for servic $ 10,725,000 $ 10,725,000 $ 10,333,35 $ (391,645

Miscellaneou 35,00( 35,00( 7,207 (27,793
Total operating revenu 10,760,00 10,760,00 10,340,56 (419,438
Operating expenst

Salaries and employee bene 2,895,16! 2,895,16! 2,483,85I 411,31(

Services and suppli 1,504,03 1,504,03 984,88: 519,15:

Cost of stores issu 3,453,733l 3,453,73l 2,310,33 1,143,391

Depreciatiol 2,557,191 2,557,191 1,741,941 815,24«
Total operating expens 10,410,11 10,410,11 7,521,01. 2,889,10.
Operating incomr 349,88t 349,88t 2,819,55! 2,469,66!
Nonoperating revenue

Interest revent 102,90( 102,90( 240,31 137,41

Gain (loss) on sale of capital as: 150,00( 150,00( 678,75: 528,75:
Total nonoperating revent 252,90( 252,90( 919,07( 666,17(
Income before transfe 602,78t 602,78t 3,738,62. 3,135,83!

Transfers i 147,00( 147,00(
Changes in net positi 602,78t 602,78t 3,885,62: 3,282,83!
Net position, July 17,821,39 17,821,39 17,821,39
Net position, June ! $ 18,424,17 $ 18,424,17 $ 21,707,01 $ 3,282,83!
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

EMPLOYEE BENEFITINTERNAL SERVICE FUNL

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, Al

CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUA

Operating revenue
Charges for servic
Miscellaneou

Total operating revenu
Operating expenst
Salaries and employee bene
Services and suppli
Insurance clair
Insurance premiun
Total operating expens
Operating income (los
Nonoperating revenues (expens
Interest revent
Intergovernmental exper
Total nonoperating revenues (expen
Income (loss) before transfi
Transfers i

Changes in net positi

Net position, July

Net position, June

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge
$ 160,665,000 $ 160,665,00 $ 157,797,14 $ (2,867,858
1,50(¢ 1,50(¢ 569,22! 567,72!
160,666,50 160,666,50 158,366,36 (2,300,133
124,842,68 131,642,68 129,979,29 1,663,38:
3,198,991 3,198,991 1,915,331 1,283,66!
2,511,201 2,511,201 3,721,91 (1,210,719
26,176,10 26,176,10 30,533,68 (4,357,580
156,728,97 163,528,97 166,150,22 (2,621,256
3,937,53 (2,862,470 (7,783,859 (4,921,389
363,00( 363,00( 479,29: 116,29:
3,144,001 3,144,00! (1,521,260 1,622,741
2,781,00! 2,781,00! (1,041,969 (1,739,031
1,156,531 (5,643,470 (8,825,828 (3,182,358
1,572,001 1,572,001 2,000,00! 428,00(
2,728,53 (4,071,470 (6,825,828 (2,754,358
8,527,67! 8,527,67! 8,527,67!
$ 11,256,200 $ 4,456,200 $ 1,701,85 $ (2,754,358
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
LIABILITY INSURANCE AND PROPERTY DAMAGE INTERNAL SERVICE FUNL
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, Al
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUA
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge
Operating revenue
Charges for servic $ 2,011,600 $ 2,011,600 $ 1,850,99 $ (160,605
Operating expenst
Salaries and employee bene 560,22( 560,22( 395,55 164,66¢
Services and suppli 421,34( 421,34( 300,72 120,61:
Insurance clairr 1,220,001 1,220,001 1,448,331 (228,338
Insurance premiun 1,000,00! 1,000,001 837,85t¢ 162,14
Total operating expens 3,201,561 3,201,56! 2,982,47. 219,08
Operating los (1,189,960 (1,189,960 (1,131,478 58,48:
Nonoperating revenue
Interest revent 33,05( 33,05( 58,30¢ 25,25¢
Changes in net positi (1,156,910 (1,156,910 (1,073,170 83,74(
Fund balances, July 3,240,86! 3,240,86! 3,240,86!
Net position, June ¢ $ 2,08395 $ 208395 $ 2,167,69! $ 83,74(
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

CITY FACILITIES INTERNAL SERVICE FUNL
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, Al
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUA
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Budgeted Amoun

Variance witl
Original Final Actual Final Budge
Operating revenue
Charges for servic 19,000,000 $ 19,000,000 $ 18,967,74 $ (32,257
Miscellaneou 470,00( 470,00( 547,84¢ 77,84¢
Total operating revenu 19,470,00 19,470,00 19,515,59 45,59:
Operating expenst
Salaries and employee bene 8,691,66! 8,691,66! 8,054,11. 637,54t
Services and suppli 12,587,07 12,587,07 11,100,47 1,486,59:
Depreciatiol 25,00( 25,00( 21,63( 3,37(
Total operating expens 21,303,73 21,303,73 19,176,22 2,127,50!
Operating income (los (1,833,730 (1,833,730 339,37: 2,173,10:
Nonoperating revenue
Interest revent 47,80( 47,80( 44,957 (2,843
Income (loss) before transfi (1,785,930 (1,785,930 384,32¢ 2,170,25!
Transfers ot (984,210 (984,210 (984,210
Changes in net positi (2,770,140 (2,770,140 (599,882 2,170,25!
Fund balances, July (11,870,381 (11,870,381 (11,870,381
Net position, June : $ (14,640,521 $ (14,640,521 $ (12,470,265 $ 2,170,25!
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS






Fiduciary Funds
AGENCY FUNDS

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held lfle government as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, and other govenments. These funds are custodial in
nature and do not involve measurement of operationsAgency Funds are merely clearing
accounts and have no fund equity.

Deposits Fund -- This fund is used to account ffier ¢ollection and disbursement of monies deposiidu
the City. Monies collected and disbursed from thiad include room tax, local gaming tax, payroll
deductions, unclaimed monies, water planning feesvarious other deposits.

Municipal Court Bail Fund -- This fund is used tecaunt for the collection and disbursement of menie
deposited by individuals awaiting trial and findjadication of the charges filed against them.

Developer Special Assessment Fund -- This fundseduto account for the debt service, collection of
assessments and arbitrage payments for developeiabpmprovement districts on behalf of the praper
owners. The City is not obligated in any mannerthar debt and is only acting as an agent for tsessed
property owners and the bondholders.




CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITIOI

ASSET¢
Pooled cash, cash equivalents and investn
unrestricted

Interes

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Deposits payable
Outstanding bail payable

Unclaimed monies payable

Total liabilities

JUNE 30, 201
Agency Fund
Develope
Municipal Specia
Deposit: Court Bai Assessme) Total

$ 4,299,71! $ 1,143,411 $14,678,79 $ 20,121,91
581 581
$ 4,299,71! $ 1,143,411 $14,679,37 $ 20,122,50
4,261,85. 14,679,37 18,941,22
1,143,411 1,143,411
37,86 37,86
$ 4,299,71! $ 1,143,411 $14,679,37 $ 20,122,50
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AN
LIABILITIES -ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

DEPOSITS FUNL

ASSET¢
Pooled cash, cash equivalents and investn
unrestricted

LIABILITIES
Salaries payable
Deposits payable
Intergovernmental payable
Payroll liabilities payable
Unclaimed monies payable
Total liabilities

MUNICIPAL COURT BAIL FUND:

ASSET¢
Pooled cash, cash equivalents and investn
unrestricted

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Intergovernmental payable
Outstanding bail payable
Total liabilities

Balanct Balanct
July 01, 201 Additions Deduction June 30, 201
5,007,291 $ 31,812,74 $ 32,520,32. $ 4,299,71
256,878,95 256,878,95
4,819,13. 33,567,55 34,124,83 4,261,85.
121,46 30,710,94 30,832,41
57,377,53 57,377,53
66,70: 83,33t 112,17¢ 37,86
5,007,291 $ 378,618,33 $ 379,32591 $ 4,299,71
1,342,13. $ 759708 $ 7,79580 $ 1,1434L
$ 6,134,700 $ 6,134,70. $
559,25( 6,458,76! 7,018,01!
782,88 4,305,39! 3,944,87. 1,143,411
1,342,13- $ 16,898,86 $ 17,097,58 $ 1,143,441
Continued
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AN
LIABILITIES -ALL AGENCY FUNDS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDELJUNE 30, 201

Balanct Balanct
July 01, 201 Additions Deduction June 30, 201
DEVELOPER SPECIAL ASSESSMENT FUN
ASSET¢
Pooled cash, cash equivalents and investn
unrestricted $ 12,243,266 $ 33,428,95 $ 30,993,42 $ 14,678,79
Interest 76 581 76 581
Total assets $ 12,243,34 $ 33,42953 $ 30,993,49 $ 14,679,37
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ $ 568,617 $ 568,61 $
Deposits payable 12,021,39 19,512,27 16,854,29 14,679,37
Arbitrage rebate payable 221,94¢ 221,94¢
Total liabilities $ 12,243,344 $ 20,080,890 $ 17,644,85 $ 14,679,37
TOTAL - ALL AGENCY FUNDS
ASSET¢
Pooled cash, cash equivalents and investn
unrestricted $ 18,592,69 $ 72,838,77 $ 71,309,555 $ 20,121,91
Interest 76 581 76 581
Total assets $ 18,592,777 $ 72,839,35 $ 71,309,62 $ 20,122,50
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ $ 6,703,311 $ 6,703,31i $
Salaries payable 256,878,95 256,878,95
Deposits payable 16,840,52 53,079,82 50,979,12 18,941,22
Intergovernmental payable 680,71: 37,169,71 37,850,42
Payroll liabilities payable 57,377,53 57,377,53
Outstanding bail payable 782,88 4,305,39! 3,944,87. 1,143,411
Unclaimed monies payable 66,70: 83,33¢ 112,17¢ 37,86!
Arbitrage rebate payable 221,94¢ 221,94¢
Total liabilities $ 18,592,77 $ 415,598,08 $ 414,068,35 $ 20,122,50
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Las Vegas’ Comprehensive Anual Financial Report presents detailed
information as context for understanding what the nformation in the financial statements,
note disclosures, and required supplementary informtion says about the government’s
overall financial health.

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to Hedpréader understand how the ¢
of Las Vegas' financial performances and well-béiage changed over time.

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help thdeeassess the City of Las Ve
most significant local revenue source, the conatdid tax.

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help théereassess the affordability of
City of Las Vegas' current levels of outstandingptdand the City's ability to iss
additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economiccdtats to help the reac
understand the environment within which the Citiylancial activities take place.

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructata to help the reader underst
how the information in the City of Las Vegas' fical report related to the servi
the City provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the informatiothese schedules is derived from
Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports for theviaaie year.




Governmental activitie
Net investment in capital ass
Restricte
Unrestricter

Total governmental activities net as:

Business-type activitit
Net investment in capital ass
Unrestricte:

Total business-type activities net as

Primary governme
Net investment in capital ass
Restricte
Unrestricte:

Total primary government net as¢

CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
NET ASSETS BY COMPONEN
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

(UNAUDITED)
(AMOUNTS EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS)

Fiscal Year
2007 200¢ 200¢ 201(C 2011 201z 201z 201¢ 201t 201¢
2,475,411 $ 2,690,89. $ 2,859,751 $ 3,059,631 $ 3,218,01. $ 3,276,05 $ 3,248,05. $ 3,243,151 $ 3,238,04 $ 3,033,55!
115,47¢ 80,50¢ 231,24! 36,71( 264,88° 91,42: 96,39¢ 137,91¢ 130,57( 324,67
310,30¢ 325,68: 180,25¢ 246,01¢ (18,565 110,92 103,93t 115,08: (560,866 (542,727
2,901,20: $ 3,097,08 $ 327125 $§ 334235 $ 3,464,331 $ 347840 $ 3,448,38 $ 3,496,15' $ 2,807,75. $ 2,815,50:
428,71: $ 450,26 $ 471,23. $ 479,20: $ 498,05 $ 542,56. $ 587,91( $ 650,62t $ 741,02 $ 733,64¢
156,94 165,19: 178,42¢ 216,97. 225,58¢ 198,13t 161,72( 98,81( 40,95¢ 88,35(
585,65¢ $ 615,46( $ 649,66( $ 696,17¢ $ 723,64( $ 740,70( $ 749,63( $ 749,43t $ 781,98. $ 821,99¢
2,904,12¢ $ 3,141,15 $ 3,330,98' $ 3,538,83. $ 3,716,060 $ 3,818,621 $ 3,83596: $ 3,893,78 $ 3,979,07. $ 3,767,20
115,47¢ 80,50¢ 231,24! 36,71( 264,88° 91,42: 96,39¢ 137,91¢ 130,57( 324,67
467,25! 490,87¢ 358,68¢ 462,98¢ 207,02: 309,06! 265,65¢ 213,89: (519,908 (454,377
3,486,86. $ 3,712,554, $ 392091 $ 4,03853. $ 4,187,971 $ 4,219,100 $ 4,198,01. $ 4,24559. $ 3,589,73. $ 3,637,50
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Expense
Governmental activitie
General governme
Judicia
Public safet
Public work:
Welfare
Healtt
Culture and recreati
Economic development and assist:
Intergovernment.
Transit systen
Interest on long-term de
Total governmental activities expen
Business-type activitie
Sanitatiol
Development servici
Parking
Golf courst
Video productio
Land developme
Total business-type activiti
Total primary government expen

Program Revenue
Governmental activitie
Charges for service
General governme
Judicia
Public safet
Public work:
Welfare
Healtt
Culture and recreatit

Economic development and assist:

Transit systen
Operating grants and contributic
Capital grants and contributic

Total governmental activities program rever

CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
CHANGES IN NET POSITIOI

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
(UNAUDITED)
(AMOUNTS EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS)

Fiscal Year
2001 200¢ 200¢ 201(C 2011 2012 201: 201« 201¢ 201¢

112,57- $ 124,30 $ 94,98( $ 69,68 $ 69,37¢ $ 84,19¢ 85,95¢ $ 71,82¢ 72,28¢ $ 75,14(
25,29: 30,83¢ 27,16¢ 27,79 25,89: 24,39: 26,41( 27,85¢ 27,46( 28,49¢
314,22 372,47: 359,45 381,98 365,18! 335,42 322,70! 289,74« 275,51 378,36!
73,59¢ 81,74« 71,50« 73,20: 72,43¢ 72,83: 78,20¢ 79,29: 79,77: 82,16¢
1,104 1,22 1,117 3,45¢ 1,057 841 29¢ 50z 28( 30t
2,751 3,11z 3,63 1,027 3,22¢ 3,715 3,80: 3,84 4,31¢ 4,371
56,35 98,29: 66,19( 69,25: 63,20 72,51t 82,69( 82,72: 80,98¢ 84,80:
25,917 27,77 30,08: 33,94: 32,61« 29,99: 34,13: 22,957 24,84t 30,79¢
1,21¢ 1,36: 1,20¢ 181 15 14 1 1 1 1
14,11( 12,15 14,12: 40,27( 38,30: 39,63( 36,49 31,88¢ 34,55 39,77:
627,14 753,27 669,45! 700,78: 671,30 663,55: 670,70: 610,63 600,02 724,21
83,27: 95,28 83,45: 88,06( 83,37" 87,28: 84,66: 91,06( 90,25¢ 92,80
16,96¢ 16,25( 9,93t 7,761 6,72( 7,03¢ 6,94¢ 7,75¢ 10,71¢ 9,65¢
3,83¢ 4,11¢ 4,10¢ 3,93¢ 3,69¢ 3,73¢ 4,36: 4,83¢ 7,371 8,00¢
3,03¢ 3,32¢ 2,970 2,69: 2,65¢ 2,75¢ 3,132 2,28: 2,56( 2,54(

1,772 1,84¢ 1,782 2,362
1,68( 4,91« 4,04¢ 59¢ 2,064 7,49( 504 51¢ 1,49t 1,04¢
110,56 125,73¢ 106,29t 105,41 98,51: 108,29! 99,60¢ 106,44! 112,39 114,05!
737,71 $ 879,01t $ 775,75 $ 806,19: $ 769,820 $ 771,84t 770,31 $ 717,07 712,420 $ 838,26¢
120,15¢ $ 122,84. $ 117,76t $ 94,73 $ 99,10: $ 97,96¢ 104,71 $ 91,25« 99,61¢ $ 101,55:
22,65° 25,107 28,73¢ 28,63¢ 30,65¢ 31,167 29,11¢ 24,47¢ 24,13: 21,28!
17,73t 17,81( 22,87: 19,94: 26,91¢ 23,72: 28,53° 27,00¢ 31,96: 33,217
8,71¢ 6,35¢ 5,08¢ 5,48¢ 4,93¢ 3,88¢ 3,89¢ 4,01 3,98¢ 3,68t
55 45 64 20¢ 672 591 7 3
132 124 21¢ 33€ 34t 361 39t 53( 464 53z
10,90: 12,85: 10,72: 15,64¢ 15,15( 14,19( 15,46: 16,70( 18,26" 20,44
1,52¢ 1,781 1,06t 2,691 10,52¢ 5,951 8,68¢ 6,27¢ 4,091 4,831

34¢ 89¢ 79¢€ 18C 1

13,82: 57,09 10,15: 20,57: 25,49¢ 25,61( 26,75¢ 16,33¢ 13,09¢ 17,62:
111,08! 250,14: 213,34 206,81 222,59( 118,48t 67,32: 86,15¢ 144,08: 135,96:
307,14t 495,06( 410,82 395,25 436,39t 321,93 284,88« 272,75: 339,71 339,13




Business-type activitie
Charges for service
Sanitatiol
Development servic
Parking
Golf courst
Video productio
Land developme
Operating grants and contributic
Capital grants and contributic
Total business-type activities program reve
Total primary government program rever

Net (expense)/reven
Governmental activitie
Business-type activitit
Total primary government net expe
General Revenues and Other Changes in N
Positior
Governmental activitie
Taxe:
Consolidated te
Property taxe
Room ta:
Residential construction t
Motor vehicle fuel ta
Unrestricted investment earni
Contributions not restricted to specific progr:
Gain on disposal of capital ass
Transfer
Total governmental activiti
Business-type activitie
Unrestricted investment earni
Gain on disposal of capital ass
Transfer
Total business-type activiti
Total primary governme
Change in Net Positiol
Governmental activitie
Business-type activitit
Total primary governme

CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
CHANGES IN NET POSITIOI
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

(UNAUDITED)
(AMOUNTS EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS)
Fiscal Year
2001 200¢ 200¢ 201(C 2011 2012 201: 201« 201¢ 201¢
83,04¢ $ 88,37: $ 94,40 $ 97,46¢ $ 94,15 $ 79,78( $ 80,83t $ 54,12: $ 85,81 $ 88,81"
15,64¢ 11,018 9,53¢ 7,51¢ 7,301 5,07¢ 6,72¢ 8,60: 10,32¢ 11,37¢
6,147 6,67t 7,41¢ 6,66¢ 6,40¢ 5,43 5,39¢ 6,39: 7,68% 9,18¢
1,431 1,49: 1,31¢ 1,28: 1,19¢ 1,41( 1,28( 1,44¢ 1,58: 1,82¢
2,14¢ 2,22 2,472 2,48¢
132 1,252 28 1,10¢ 1,101 44 7€ 22t 55¢ 10,05¢
61F 89( 624 4C 7,27C 15,75' 23,56 14,28¢ 17,90
32,62 35,79¢ 30,29¢ 21,65¢ 18,15¢ 26,08 3,19¢ 8,711 12,56¢ 10,86:
141,79: 146,82¢ 146,36: 138,81: 128,35¢ 125,09¢ 113,26t 103,06 132,82: 150,02!
448,93 641,88 557,19: 534,07( 564,75t 447,03: 398,15( 375,81 472,53 489,15!
(319,999 (258,219 (258,627 (305,525 (234,911 (341,618 (385,818 (337,878 (260,311 (385,084
31,22 21,09( 40,06¢ 33,40: 29,84 16,80: 13,65¢ (3,384 20,42¢ 35,97(
(288,775 (237,129 (218,561 (272,122 (205,064 (324,815 (372,160 (341,262 (239,887 (349,114
263,250 $ 250,91« $ 219,96! $ 201,51¢ $ 207,96 $ 221,31t $ 232,87 $ 245,70; $ 261,54: $ 271,99:
138,42¢ 153,14! 166,53¢ 158,78: 122,48 110,25: 102,82 103,17¢ 106,57¢ 112,26:
4,187 4,51¢ 3,36¢ 2,89¢ 3,02¢ 3,41 3,49¢ 4,028 4,552 2,87
2,041 1,721 652 864 37z 1,21( 987 85¢ 96° 1,08(
8,80¢ 8,27¢ 7,64¢ 7,18¢ 7,31¢ 7,33¢ 7,34¢ 7,732 8,821 9,80¢
27,37¢ 28,01¢ 20,11: 13,06¢ 7,91¢ 6,70( 2,29¢ 5,36¢ 3,33 6,937
107,42¢ 2,49: 364 5¢ 43 3,331
77t 1,77: 20¢ 112 1,272 2,03( 51¢ 55¢ 1,85¢ 65(C
(5,764 3,232 13,95! (7,857 6,497 3,425 3,052 1,00¢ (63,627 (1,480
546,53: 454,09! 432,80« 376,62 356,89: 355,68t 353,39t 371,75! 324,02: 404,11
7,39 9,46¢ 8,08¢ 5,251 4,111 3,68¢ 1,01¢ 1,72¢ 1,06¢ 2,56¢
2,47t 1,02¢ 2,467
5,764 (3,232 (13,953 7,851 (6,497 (3,427 (3,053 (1,004 63,62 1,48(
13,15¢ 8,71z (5,867 13,11 (2,386 257 (1,008 3,18¢ 64,69¢ 4,04t
559,68t 462,80° 426,93 389,73t 354,50° 355,94! 352,38t 374,94: 388,71 408,16:
226,53 195,87t 174,17 71,09¢ 121,98: 14,07( (32,422 33,87¢ 63,71: 19,03:
44,38( 29,80: 34,19¢ 46,51° 27,46 17,06( 12,65( (195 85,12( 40,01¢
270,91 $ 225,67¢ $ 208,37t $ 117,61t $ 149,44: $ 31,13C $ (19,772 $ 33,68( $ 148,83. $ 59,04
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES TAX REVENUES BY SOURC

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
(UNAUDITED)
(AMOUNTS EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS)

City of Las Redevelopmel

Fiscal Consolidate Vega: Agency Propert Residentic ~ Motor Vehicle

Year Tax Property Tat Tax Room Ta; Tax Fuel Ta Total
2007 $ 26325 $ 138,42t % $ 4,187 $ 2,041 % 8,80¢ 416,71«
200¢ 250,91 131,67¢ 4,51¢ 1,721 8,27¢ 397,10t
200¢ 219,96! 139,24( 3,36¢ 652 7,64¢€ 370,86°
201c¢ 201,51¢ 130,50: 2,89¢ 864 7,18¢ 342,96!
2011 207,96 104,70t 3,02¢ 37z 7,31¢€ 323,38
2012 221,31¢ 110,25 3,41: 1,21¢( 7,33¢ 343,53:
201z 232,87 90,917 3,49¢ 987 7,344 335,61¢
201¢ 245,70: 90,47: 12,70¢ 4,02t 85t 7,732 361,49:
201t 261,54. 93,157 13,857 4,55% 962 8,827 382,89¢
201¢ 271,99: 96,957 15,34¢ 2,87: 1,08( 9,80¢ 398,05!

Notes:

1The amount for the City of Las Vegas includes tlemé&al Fund and the Fire Safety Initiative leviedi\Valorem for the fiscal year.
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUND:
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

(UNAUDITED)
(AMOUNTS EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS)
Fiscal Year
2007 200¢ 200¢ 201C 2011 2012 2013 201< 201% 201¢€
General func
Reserve $ 4,46¢ $ 19,45 $ 1,66¢ $ 1,63t $ $ $ $ $
Unreserve(
Undesignate 84,92¢ 77,34% 91,02¢ 73,13¢
1Nonspendab 29,52¢ 20,04: 29,52¢ 29,81¢ 29,92: 29,73 30,307
1Assigned 51,33( 50,56! 51,33( 12,76: 12,89¢ 12,99¢ 13,21:
1Unassigned 70,05 81,35¢ 70,05 77,164 78,85¢ 78,09¢ 82,78
Total general fun 240,30 96,79¢ 92,69¢ 74,77 151,96: 150,91: 119,74« 121,67 120,82¢ 126,29¢
All other governmental func
Reserve 11,87¢ 11,87¢ 16,23¢ 11,03¢
Unreserved, reported
Designate
Construction Projec
Special revenue funds 48,10: 48,10: 49,49t 48,94;
Capital projects funds 245,12 245,12 238,58: 419,48¢
Redevelopment projec
Redevelopment projects 13,62¢
Special revenue funds 13,62¢ 12,49: 11,86"
Debt service funds 3,44¢
Undesignate
Other governmental fun
Special revenue fun 54,59: 54,59: 58,96¢ 82,63¢
Debt service func 3,06t 43¢ 5,39: 49t
INonspendab 8,36: 9,187 8,48t 27,65¢ 26,09¢ 23,71«
IRestricted 264,16: 186,78: 135,73. 131,63( 118,91 362,30:
1committed 22,24¢ 23,87t 22,16: 20,92( 22,49: 20,48¢
1assigned 123,81¢ 81,98( 103,44¢ 80,77¢ 77,16% 80,90:
1Unassigned (2,471 (2,241 2,927 (40) 292
Total all other governmental fur 376,38! 373,75¢ 381,16( 577,91. 416,11¢ 299,58: 272,744 260,98¢ 244,62} 487,70:
Total Fund Balances of Governmental FL $ 616,68¢ $ 470,55 $ 473,85 $ 652,68. $ 568,07¢ $ 450,49 $ 392,49( 382,660 $ 365,45« $ 614,00(

Notes:

1 Due to the reporting change with GASB 54 for FY201
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Revenue
Taxe:
Licenses and perm
Intergovernment.
Charges for servic
Fines and forfei
Special assessme
Interes
Miscellaneou
Total revenue
Expenditures
General governme
Judicia
Public safet
Public work:
Healtt
Welfare
Culture and recreatit
Economic development and assist:
Transit systen
Capital outla
Debt Servic
Principal retiremel
Payment to current bond refunding ar
Interest and fiscal charc
Refunding Bond issuance cc
Capital outla
General governme
Judicia
Public safet
Public work:
Culture and recreatit
Economic development and assist:
Total expenditure
Excess (Deficiency) of revenues over (un
expenditure

Other financing sources (use:
Transfers i

Transfer ot

Sale of capital asst

Bond escrow refunding to defeased
General obligation bond iss

General obligation bond proce:
Premium/(Discoun

Issuance cos

Special assessment bonds and interim warrantses

and (use

Net changes in fund balan

Debt service as a percentage of noncapital expeat

CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

(UNAUDITED)
(AMOUNTS EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS)
Fiscal Year
2001 200¢ 200¢ 201(C 2011 201z 201: 201« 201¢ 201¢

143,58¢ $ 158,27¢ $ 169,88t $ 161,57 $ 126,66t $ 115,64« $ 115,75 $ 115,83t $ 121,35 $ 126,06:
84,86¢ 85,18: 80,45¢ 77,72) 77,36 75,07¢ 78,89’ 76,63¢ 85,42¢ 87,19
386,47t 433,21 416,90: 390,501 376,35! 364,77: 331,22t 347,000 381,54 374,42
36,07" 36,80« 38,67« 38,38( 40,45! 39,31« 44,79¢ 42,62! 49,36¢ 49,06
6,34% 17,44¢ 3,79¢ 20,50¢ 20,16( 20,68t¢ 20,18 17,01¢ 15,20: 13,20¢
16,68 18,21t 22,02° 3,77¢ 3,43¢ 3,64¢ 3,25¢ 3,09¢ 3,66¢ 30,41¢
22,30¢ 21,78: 15,58t 10,547 6,14¢ 5,122 1,30: 3,55¢ 2,73¢ 5,87¢
6,947 12,27 6,062 5,271 87,93. 16,11« 19,320 13,42: 13,27¢ 17,92
703,29( 783,19t 753,39: 708,29: 738,51: 640,38( 614,74( 619,18 672,58: 704,15t
101,83¢ 101,69t 64,10: 58,44¢ 54,98" 75,77 67,61 55,99: 57,32t 58,73¢
25,54. 28,05( 27,26 26,51% 24,96¢ 24,87¢ 25,93« 27,25¢ 28,03( 28,71¢
301,39¢ 298,32: 330,69t 326,49t 311,50: 302,51 305,20¢ 314,37: 332,26 347,85:
33,43¢ 38,03° 29,43’ 28,93¢ 26,04° 23,20¢ 24,40¢ 22,64’ 21,36¢ 20,83’
1,11¢ 1,11¢ 1,12¢ 3,46( 3,31( 3,511 3,741 3,80¢ 4,31( 4,45¢
2,75¢ 2,901 3,63¢ 1,03/ 1,04( 907 31¢ 501 28€ 30t
48,69( 85,59¢ 58,07¢ 54,98 47,93¢ 52,35¢ 53,46¢ 51,15¢ 48,40¢ 52,42¢
24,79¢ 25,39( 28,48¢ 31,75( 30,81¢ 28,23t 27,72¢ 21,03t 23,07« 28,40¢

1,271 1,291 1,257 23€ 14 13

170,84(
22,87¢ 23,32¢ 24,79¢ 24,864 19,96 25,36 24,69¢ 25,31« 22,61( 24,09°
8,87t
12,62( 11,25( 11,46: 27,44¢ 37,46¢ 38,51° 36,03! 35,38 35,13¢ 38,93¢
3,37 63 (47,635
32,89: 8,54¢ 33,04¢ 86,25¢ 80,46¢ 24,74: 1,21¢ 2,24¢ 1,89¢
3¢ 28

31,82( 10,63¢ 7,97¢ 6,09¢ 16,69: 10,73( 15,59: 14,57: 7,351
62,84¢ 88,67¢ 101,77! 78,70( 72,29t 47,43t 49,60: 81,65¢ 59,85:
49,51¢ 76,51¢ 182,07 138,88: 47,23¢ 16,68¢ 22,75¢ 7,892 12,85'
17,62: 15,68( 7,85¢ 2,594 6,561 1,218 1,13Z 1,69¢ 1,11¢
747,18: 811,71 783,78t 916,90! 870,57 798,59 669,95! 647,80: 689,741 640,21!
(43,892 (28,520 (30,396 (208,613 (132,066 (158,213 (55,215 (28,613 (17,164 63,94:
100,86: 102,21: 85,03t 244,27: 107,44: 143,26¢ 142,47! 84,96¢ 111,61« 92,84«
(104,895 (102,519 (81,366 (210,868 (114,278 (123,656 (144,048 (81,594 (113,817 (95,779
1,447 33 1,47¢ 1,681 337 271 2,15¢ 152
(44,505 (30,025 (193,798
93,53: 32,00( 1,24¢ 211,60!
22,50( 186,22( 204,50¢ 26,32: 30,02¢ 227,18

(108

34z 1,391 (50)

32(

46,44( 31,72% 28,30¢ 221,01! 197,67: 47,46: (1,236 4,892 (44) 242,20!
254t $ 3,200 $ (2,091 $ 12,40 $ 65,60¢ $ (110,751 $ (56,451 $ (23,721 % (17,208 $ 306,14t
6.1€ % 4.2€% 6.21% 8.9t % 10.2¢ % 11.1(% 10.61% 10.8¢ % 9.9t % - %
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABIE PROPERT®
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

(AMOUNTS EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS)

Persone
Real Proper Propert
Fiscal Assessed Value
Year Less: Ta a2 Assessed Value a
Ended Residentie Industria Commercie Personal Prc  Exempt Re: Total Taxabl Total Direc  Estimated Actus Percentage « 3Percentage
June 30 Propert# Propert# Propert# Vacan?! Tax Rol Propert# Assessed Val* Tax Rat Taxable Valu2  Taxable Assess Actual Value
2007 $ 16,481,77 $ 188,80( $ 4,584,41: $ 2,897,34. $ 569,01¢ $ 2,296,94i $ 22,424,40 0.771¢ $ 64,069,72 35.00 % 38.5¢ %
200¢ 18,415,50 227,68. 5,294,18! 3,548,51! 481,89¢ 2,815,69. 25,152,09 0.771¢ 71,863,12 35.00 % 38.92 %
200¢ 18,175,71 244,13( 5,686,55: 3,367,01. 401,46: 2,905,86. 24,969,00 0.771¢ 71,340,02 35.00 % 39.071 %
201C 12,840,77 242,62° 5,680,11! 2,302,171 422,41; 2,481,871 19,006,22 0.771¢ 54,303,51 35.00 % 39.51%
2011 10,021,89 188,33 4,835,89! 1,066,51 385,26: 1,845,599 14,652,30 0.771¢ 41,863,722 35.00 % 39.41%
201z 9,795,56! 157,85 4,027,61! 569,43¢ 395,26¢ 1,592,47. 13,353,27 0.771¢ 38,152,22 35.00 % 39.17%
2013 8,871,06! 147,22: 3,829,05! 468,21! 381,88t¢ 1,549,171 12,148,28 0.771¢ 34,709,37 35.00 % 39.4¢€ %
201< 9,084,11: 143,26° 3,647,32! 411,10: 252,54° 1,541,033 11,997,32 0.771¢ 34,278,05 35.00 % 39.5( %
201t 10,554,81 147,65¢ 3,774,39 513,35( 492,66 1,624,33. 13,858,55 0.771¢ 39,595,85 35.00 % 39.1( %
201¢€ 12,149,27 149,49¢ 4,036,78: 690,29: 509,82° 1,844,08. 15,691,59 0.771¢ 44,833,13 35.00 % 39.11%

Source: Clark County Assessor's Office

Notes:

Property in the County is reassessed annually.cbhaty assesses property at approximately 35%toékealue for all types of real and personal prope
1 Vacant parcels include those with minor improvetsen

2 Estimated Taxable Actual Value is calculated hydiing Total Taxable Assessed Value by the curB&sb tax rate.
8 Includes Tax-Exempt Property

4 The Net Assessed value that is used in this seutilbvary to the amount utilized in the Annual et book for the City of Las Vegas due to thergnif data from the
Clark County Assessor and the State of Nevada, fapat of Taxation.
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
PROPERTY TAX RATES (PER $100 OF ASSESSED VAL
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENT

(UNAUDITED)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Overlapping Rate

City of Las Vega County School Distric State Total Direc

Total anc
Total City 2 Special  Overlappini  Overlappin

Fiscal Year ! Operating Debt Servic Tax Rat Operating Debt Servic Total Count  Operating Debt Servic Total Schoc  Total Stat Districts Rate: Rate:
2007 0.771¢ 0.006: 0.777 0.616: 0.025¢ 0.641¢ 0.750( 0.553¢ 1.303¢ 0.170( 0.387¢ 2.502¢ 3.280:
200¢ 0.771¢ - 0.771¢ 0.616: 0.022¢ 0.639: 0.750( 0.553¢ 1.303¢ 0.170( 0.387¢ 2.499¢ 3.271¢
200¢ 0.771¢ 0.000( 0.771¢ 0.626: 0.012¢ 0.639: 0.750( 0.553¢ 1.303¢ 0.170( 0.387¢ 2.499¢ 3.271¢
201C 0.771¢ 0.000( 0.771¢ 0.626: 0.012¢ 0.639: 0.750( 0.553¢ 1.303¢ 0.170( 0.392( 2.504¢ 3.276(
2011 0.771¢ 0.000( 0.771¢ 0.626: 0.012¢ 0.639: 0.750( 0.553¢ 1.303¢ 0.170( 0.402¢ 2.515! 3.286¢
201z 0.771¢ 0.000( 0.771¢ 0.641: 0.012¢ 0.654: 0.750( 0.553¢ 1.303¢ 0.170( 0.379: 2.506" 3.278:
201z 0.771¢ 0.000( 0.771¢ 0.641: 0.012¢ 0.654: 0.750( 0.553¢ 1.303¢ 0.170( 0.379: 2.506" 3.278:
201¢ 0.771¢ 0.000( 0.771¢ 0.641: 0.012¢ 0.654: 0.750( 0.553¢ 1.303¢ 0.170( 0.379: 2.506 3.278:
201t 0.771¢ 0.000( 0.771¢ 0.641: 0.012¢ 0.654: 0.750( 0.553¢ 1.303¢ 0.170( 0.379: 2.506 3.278:
201¢ 0.771¢ 0.000( 0.771¢ 0.641: 0.012¢ 0.654: 0.750( 0.553¢ 1.303¢ 0.170( 0.379: 2.506 3.278:

Source: Clark County Treasurer's Office

Notes:

The State Constitution has a maximum rate lim®fper $100 assessed value and Nevada ReviseteStather lower the limit to a total combined tate of $3.64.

The overlapping rates include the County, Schostrigt, State and Special Districts (LVMPD 911, LY Manpower, Library and Artesian Basin). Theseapp
taxpayers whose property is located within the 6ftikas Vegas boundaries.

1 City of Las Vegas operating tax rate includes 68fbr regular operating and .0950 Fire initiatis® which is distributed at 80% and 20% capital.

2 The Special Districts include the Library, LVMPQRB®and LVMPD Manpower.
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
PRINCIPLE PROPERTY TAXPAYER
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AG(
(UNAUDITED)

(AMOUNTS EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS)

201¢ 2007
Percentage Percentage
Taxable Total Taxabl Taxable Total Taxabl
Taxpaye Assessed Vall Ranl Assessed Valt  Assessed Vall Ranl Assessed Valt
Howard Hughes Corporati $ 154,39 1 1.0z %
Universal Health Services It 130,93: 2 0.8¢% $ 83,40: 8 0.5C %
World Market Center Las Veg 124,10: 3 0.82 % 93,32¢ 7 0.5€ %
Boyd Gaming Corporatic 108,08¢ 4 0.71% 141,98: 3 0.8t %
Station Casinos Incorporal 102,27¢ 5 0.67 % 111,83¢ 5 0.67 %
Landry's Restaurants Incorpore 80,19¢ 6 0.5 % 71,10: 9 0.4:%
American Casino & Entertainme 60,20¢ 7 0.4C % 116,24 4 0.7C %
HCA-The Healthcare Compa 54,44¢ 8 0.3¢ %
Molasky Group of Compani 50,83t 9 0.3: %
Olen Residential Realty Cc 45,57: 10 0.3C %
Picerne Real Estate Grc 45,54 11 0.3C %
Camden Property Tri 44,16 12 0.2€ % 103,25( 6 0.6z %
General Growth Properties-AKA Howard Hug 889,56¢ 1 5.32%
Focus Propertie 214,41! 2 1.2€ %
Tamares Grot 67,54" 10 0.41%
Lennar Corporatic 65,96¢ 11 0.4C %
Astoria Northwest 40 LL 65,64( 12 0.3¢ %
Totals $ 1,000,76. $ 2,024,27!
Total Assessed Value for City of Las Ve FY 201¢ $ 15,181,76 FY 2007 $ 16,671,26

Source: Clark County Assessor
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
PROPERTY TAXES LEVIES AND COLLECTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

(AMOUNTS EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS)

Collected Within th

Fiscal Year 1!Total Ta Fiscal Year of the Le\ Total Collections to Da

Ended Levy for 2Collections il SCurrent/Subseque 4Percentage

June 30  Fiscal Yea Amouni Percentage of Ler Subsequent Yee Amount Current Year Lev
2007 $ 11464 $ 113,30: 988:% $ 1,11€ $ 114,41 99.8( %
200¢ 126,58 124,31t 98.21 % 2,00z 126,31¢ 99.7¢ %
200¢ 133,45: 131,00! 98.17 % 1,89¢ 132,89¢ 99.5¢ %
201c¢ 124,44! 122,64: 98.5t % 2,14( 124,78: 100.2° %
2011 99,33¢ 97,79: 98.4¢ % 1,67¢ 99,46¢ 100.1: %
2012 93,04¢ 91,74¢ 98.6( % 1,542 93,28t 100.2¢ %
201z 85,14 84,32: 99.0¢ % 1,04« 85,36¢ 100.2¢ %
201¢ 85,33t 84,51¢ 99.0¢ % 911 85,42¢ 100.1: %
201t 87,77¢ 87,52¢ 99.71 % 87,52¢ 99.71 %
201¢ 91,27: 90,64 99.31 % 90,64 99.31 %

Notes:
1 Levy includes general fund and fire safety butsdioet include personal property.
2 The County Treasurer will collect the delinquenxets under NRS 361.482.

8 Total collected includes the current levy andmiglient taxes collected during the current fiscal yahich can exceed the amount levied by the Gotrgasurer for the
current year.
4 Collected to date percentage includes the cuamrthtdelinquent taxes which may exceed the totslfievthe current fiscal year.

Values pertaining to the City of Las Vegas Redgwalent Agency have not been included in the abowedide in accordance with the City of Las Vegasrigha
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Governmental Activitie

CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYP
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

(AMOUNTS EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS)

Business-Type Activitie

Total Genere Genere Total
Redevel Govern Genere  Obligatior  Obligatior ~ Business
Genere opmen  |nstallmen Certificate: Specia menta  Obligatior  Municipal Parking Type Total Percentac
Fiscal Obligatior ~Agency Purchas of Revenu Assessme TID Sale: Activities Sanitatiol  Golf Coursi  Garag Activities  Outstandin Of Personé Pe
Year Bonds Bondg2 Agreement Participatior  Bonc t Bond: Tax Bond Debi Bonds Bond: Bonds Debit Debt Incomé Populatiol Capite2
2007 $ 210,450 $ 26,92t $ $ $ 8,587 $ $ 24596: $ 96,32( $ 10,47C $ $ 106,79 $ 352,75. 6.64 % 602,69 $ 58E
200¢ 214,00! 23,24¢ 8,20: 245,45; 85,70¢ 10,01t 95,72( 341,17 6.2& % 599,08° 56¢
200¢ 295,76(  104,35! 7,50z 407,61° 74,64( 9,53¢ 84,17¢ 491,79: 9.2€ % 607,87t 80¢
201C 290,01¢  100,84( 188,27( 6,90: 586,02: 66,37( 9,02t 75,39¢ 661,41¢ 12.9¢% 567,61( 1,165
2011 274,38 97,16( 10,84¢ 188,27( 6,25( 576,90¢ 57,76¢ 8,49( 66,25¢ 643,16« 12.6€ % 586,53¢ 1,097
2012 293,47t 93,28¢ 10,23t 188,27( 5,617 590,88: 48,62( 8,23( 56,85( 647,73: 13.7¢ % 588,27 1,101
2013 274,98( 89,24( 9,61¢ 188,27( 5,85¢ 567,96 39,13( 7,50¢ 46,63 614,59¢ 12.9¢ % 589,15¢ 1,043
201¢ 255,07! 85,00( 8,98( 188,27( 1,244 5,322 543,89: 34,00( 6,75( 40,75( 584,64 11.11% 598,52( 977
201t 224,53t 81,96¢ 8,32¢ 188,25! 4,51C 4,80¢ 512,40¢ 95,61( 5,97¢ 8,98t 110,57( 622,97t 12.3¢% 610,63° 1,02
201¢ 394,73! 83,40( 7,661 188,24( 1,134 4,321 24,80( 704,29: 86,44( 5,18¢ 8,64~ 100,27( 804,56: 16.2( % 620,93! 1,29¢
Notes:

! The Redevelopment Agency/Component Unit includageeal obligation tax increment revenue bonds amit&ion Fund loan

2 See the Schedule of Demographic and Economicsftatfor personal income and population data
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDIN
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
(AMOUNTS EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS)

Percentage
Government:  Business-Typ Less: Amount Estimate:
Activities Activities Available ir Total Actual Taxabl
Outstandin Outstandin Debt Servic Outstandin Net Premiun Value o
Fiscal Year Debf4 Debt* Func® Debi (Discount$ Total Propert+ Per Capit?
2007 $ 245,96. $ 106,790 $ 7,23¢ 345,51¢ $ 5,68¢ 351,20« 0.55 % 58¢
200¢ 245,45; 95,72( 5,78 335,38t 5,39( 340,77t 0.47 % 56¢
200¢ 407,61 84,17¢ 5,39:¢ 486,39¢ 6,13¢ 492,53 0.6€ % 81C
201C 586,02: 75,39¢ 53¢ 660,88( 7,06( 667,94( 1.2 % 34z
2011 576,90¢ 66,25¢ 4,131 639,03: 6,431 645,46 1.5% 48¢
2012 590,88: 56,85( 2,481 645,25: 7,54¢ 652,79¢ 1.71% 78€
2013 567,96: 46,63¢ 29,91 584,68 6,78¢ 591,47- 1.7C% 1,00¢
201¢ 543,89: 40,75( 31,03: 553,60¢ 2,012 555,62( 1.6z % 92¢
201t 512,40t 110,57( 29,44: 593,53! 9,44: 602,97¢ 1.52 % 987
201¢ 704,29: 100,27( 208,25: 596,30¢ 9,07¢ 605,38! 1.3t % 97t

Notes: Details regarding the City's outstandingt@eln be found in the notes to the financial stet@sand the City's Debt Policy.

1 See the schedule of Assessed Value and EstimatedlA/alue of Taxable Property for property vailada.

2 Population data can be found in the Schedule afiddgaphic and Economic Statistics.

3 Debt pertaining to the City of Las Vegas Redevalept Agency/Component Unit have been includedératiove schedule.

4 This is the outstanding debt of both governmeatal business-type activities before Premium/(Distou
5 Debt Service fund balance includes the City of Yagas Redevelopment Agency/Component Unit
6In FY2014, Premium/(Discount) was included in sebedule



CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEB’
AS OF JUNE 30, 201
(UNAUDITED)
(AMOUNTS EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS)

Estimate:

Percentac Estimated Share
Governmental Un Debt Outstandir 15 Applicable 23 Overlapping Det
City of Las Vega $ 704,29: 100.0(% $ 704,29:
Total Direct Dek 704,29:
4 Clark Count 2,596,07 24.1( % 625,65!
Clark County School Distri 2,590,80! 31.65% 819,99(
Las Vegas-Clark County Library Distr 20,77 28.0( % 5,817
State of Nevac 1,358,43I 16.7( % 226,85¢
Total Overlapping Debt 1,678,32!
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 2,382,61.

Sources: Debt amounts are acquired from the vagatiges; percentage applicable is derived froenabsessed value in the State of Nevada Departh&€akation's
'Redbook' and the Clark County Assessor SegregRimort. Clark County School District percentage teken from the annual report. The Library Distisdrom the annual
report.

Notes: Overlapping governments are those thatm®gnat least in part, with the geographic boutedanf the city. This schedule estimates the pontif the outstanding debt
of those overlapping governments that is bornenbyrésidents and businesses of the City of Las 8/éigas process recognizes that, when considenmgadvernment's ability
to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire bdetiten borne by the residents and businesses sheuétke into account. However, this does notyrtipdt every taxpayer is
a resident, and therefore responsible for repayiaglebt, of each overlapping government.

1 This is the outstanding debt of governmental #@&#y, net of original issuance discounts and poensi

2 The percentage of overlapping debt applicablstisnated using taxable assessed property valugdicAple percentages were estimated by determthimgortion of the
City's taxable assessed value that is within then§¢s boundaries and dividing it by the Countgtalttaxable assessed value and the State'sdgtdlle assessed value.

3 The percentage of the School District is the tethlools in the City of Las Vegas divided by thmltschools in the District. Library percentagéhis total of branches in the
City of Las Vegas divided by the total number cdrmhes in the District.

4 The Clark County debt includes the Las Vegas Yal&ater District.
5 Debt pertaining to the City of Las Vegas Redevalept Agency/Component Unit are included in the &wshedule
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

(AMOUNTS EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS)

Fiscal Year
2007 200¢ 200¢ 201C 2011 2012 2013 201< 201% 201¢€
Debt limit (20% of Assessed Valt $ 329551 $ 4944271 $ 559355 $ 557497. % 429762 $ 3,29957' $ 2,910,009 $ 2,663,11 $ 2,657,16. $ 3,405,17
Total net debt applicable to lir 345,51t 327,18: 486,39¢ 653,97 433,66! 441,13( 380,56: 266,03t 294,70: 287,88
Legal debt margin $ 2,949,99' $ 4,617,08 $ 5,107,151 $ 492099 $ 3,86395 $ 285844 $ 252953 $ 2,397,07 $ 2,362,45 $ 3,117,28
Total net debt applicable to the lii
as a percentage of debt i 10.4¢% 6.62 % 8.7C % 11.7: % 10.0¢ % 13.31% 13.0¢ % 9.9¢ % 11.0¢ % 8.45 %
Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Yeat
Assessed Valt $ 15,181,76
Add back: exempt real prope 1,844,08:
$ 17,025,85
Debt limit (20% of total assessed va $ 3,405,17
Debt applicable to limi
1Total Outstanding De 804,56
2Less
Installment Purchase Agreeme (7,661
Certificate(s) of Participatic (188,240
Special Assessment Bor (4,321
Redevelopment Agen (83,400
TID Sales Tax Bor (24,800
Amount Available for Repayme (208,252
Total net debt applicable to lir 287,88"
Legal debt margi $ 3,117,28

Notes:
Per City Charter, the City of Las Vegas' bonded dahnot exceed 20 percent of total assessed fyodue.

Per NRS 244A.059, the general obligation debt sulijethe limitation may be offset by outstandiegenue bonds, special assessment bonds, any pdwalobligation
and amounts set aside for repaying general oligdionds.

1 This is the outstanding debt of both governmeautal business-type activities, net of original issgadiscounts and premiums
2 This debt is excluded in the calculation under N8



CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
PLEDGED-REVENUE COVERAG
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
(AMOUNTS EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS)

1Sewe 2Less Net 3Debt Servic
and Othe Opearting Available
Fiscal Yea Charge Expense Revenu Principa Interes Coverag

Sewer Revenue Bonds

2007 $ 117,02¢ $ 50,047 $ 66,98, $ 10,00C $ 4,80z 4.5 %
200¢ 103,33« 51,75¢ 51,57¢ 10,61¢ 4,05¢ 3.52
200¢ 103,00! 54,40¢ 48,59¢ 11,06¢ 3,511 3.3¢
201( 103,05¢ 56,74¢ 46,31: 8,27( 2,997 4.11
2011 98,25¢ 55,69¢ 42,56( 8,60¢ 2,65t 3.7¢
201z 84,39¢ 59,94 24,45 9,14t 2,29t 2.14
201z 86,83¢t 55,51t 31,32: 9,49( 1,93¢ 2.74
201< 60,75¢ 62,62¢ (1,868 5,13( 1,65¢ (0.28
201t 92,69 59,79 32,89¢ 5,34( 3,132 3.8¢
201¢€ 99,15« 63,20¢ 35,94¢ 7,81¢ 3,431 3.2C
1Golf Course Fet 2Less Net 3Debt Servic
and Othe Operating Available
Fiscal Yea Charge Expense Revenu Principa Interes Coverag

Municipal Golf Course Enterprise Fund

2007 $ 11¢ $ (960, $ 1,07¢ $ 428 $ 617 1.04%
200¢ 1,49/ 1,931 (437, 45¢E 587 0.42;
200¢ 1,31¢ 1,60¢ (285, 48C 562 0.27;
201( 1,28 1,34¢ (63) 51C 532 (0.06
2011 1,19¢ 1,341 (142, 53¢ 501 0.14
201z 1,41C 1,48( (70) 56& 471 (0.07;
201z 1,28( 2,14: (862, 72E 21C (0.92;
201¢ 1,44¢ 1,33 117 1,48( 17¢ 0.07
201t 1,58:¢ 1,54¢ 35 2,25t 164 0.01
201¢€ 1,82¢ 1,56¢ 25E 79C 14¢ 0.27
4Specia 3Debt Servic
Assessmel
Fiscal Yea Collections Principa Interes Coverag

Special Assessment Bonds

2007 $ 168t $ 56C $ 29z 1.9¢ %
200¢ 1,75¢ 384 371 2.3¢
200¢ 1,33¢ 701 344 1.2¢
201C 2,61¢ 59¢ 29€ 2.9¢
2011 2,25¢ 652 29€ 2.3¢
201z 2,31¢ 632 26¢ 2.57
201z 1,88¢ 71¢ 29z 1.87
201¢ 1,89¢ 512 26C 2.4¢€
201t 2,46¢ 47¢ 237 3.4E
201¢€ 1,19¢ 48¢ 21€ 1.7¢C

Notes:

1 Gross revenues include sewer connection chargéscaurse fees and miscellaneous fees, but exsliderest income
2 Operating expenses exclusive of depreciation.

3 Includes principal and interest of general obliyatevenue and refunding bonds.

4 SID collections are principal and interest plue lees.
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTIC
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

1 Educatione

1 Persone 1 Educatione Attainmen
Income (amoun 1Per Capit Attainmen Bachelor 3 Schoo
expressed Persong 1 Mediar High Schoc Degree ¢ Enrollmen 4 Unemploymer
Fiscal Year 2 Populatiol thousands Income Age Graduat Highel (thousands Rate
2007 602,69 $53,11: $ 26,77. 35.2 81.2% 20.8% 89 4.4%
200¢ 599,08 54,357 27,23¢ 36.C 81.4% 22.0% 93 6.1%
200¢ 607,87t 53,097 27,04t 35.7 81.1% 21.4% 94 9.2%
201 567,61( 50,93t 24,24¢ 337 79.9% 20.5% 94 13.5%
2011 586,53t 50,78: 24,36( 36.¢ 82.2% 20.3% 94 14.3%
201z 588,27: 46,99: 24,19¢ 35.¢ 82.6% 20.3% ¢ 13.0%
201z 589,15t 47,41t 24,89¢ 37.1 83.3% 21.8% 91 10.2%
201« 598,52( 52,60 26,09¢ 36.€ 82.1% 21.3% 96 8.2%
201t 610,63 50,29: 24,69¢ 35.¢ 83.1% 21.9% 96 7.2%
201¢ 620,93! 49,67¢ 26,53¢ 37.t 83.4% 23.0% 97 6.4%

Data Sources:

1 US Census Bureau

2 Nevada State Demographer and City of Las Vegag@&uslook

8 Clark County School District

4 State of Nevada-Dept of Employment, Training & Riilitation
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYER!
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AG(

(UNAUDITED)
201¢ 2007
Percentage Percentage
Total Count' Total Count'
Employe Employee Ranl Employment Employee Ranl Employment
Clark County School Distri 35,00( 1 3.3t % 34,00( 1 3.6 %
Clark Count 8,00( 2 0.7¢ % 10,50( 2 1.12 %
UNLV 5,00(C 3 0.4¢ % 5,00 4 0.5 %
Las Vegas Metropolitan Poli 4,50( 4 0.4 % 5,00( 5 0.5 %
State of Nevac 4,50( 5 0.4: % 5,50( 3 0.5¢ %
umcC 3,50(C 6 0.3 % 4,50( 6 0.4¢ %
City of Las Vega 2,50( 7 0.2¢2 % 3,20( 7 0.32%
Sunrise Hospiti 2,50( 8 0.22 % 3,00( 8 0.3z %
College of Southern N 2,50( 9 0.2¢2 % 1,00¢ 16 0.11%
Golden Nugget Hotel & Casil 2,00( 10 0.1¢ % 2,50( 11 0.27%
Sunrise Mountain View Hospit 1,50C 11 0.14 % 2,00( 12 0.21%
Stratosphere Tower / American Ca: 1,00¢ 12 0.1C % 2,50( 9 0.27 %
Terrible Hearb:s 1,00( 13 0.1C %
Summerlin Hospit: 1,00¢ 14 0.1C %
Valley Hospital Medical Cent 1,00¢ 15 0.1C %
Centennial Hills Hospiti 1,00¢ 16 0.1C %
Cox Communicatior 1,00( 17 0.1C %
Santa Fe Station Cas 1,00( 18 0.1C %
Capital One Services Il LL 1,00¢ 19 0.1C %
Sunset Hotel & Casir 1,00( 20 0.1C % 2,00 10
80,50( 7.71% 80,70( 8.4 %
Total County Employme FY 201¢ 1,051,501 FY 2007 937,31(
Source: Nevada Dept of Employment, Training andaRéttation
* Employment figures are for the greater Clark Cguarea, The City of Las Vegas is situated withiar€ICounty.
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT GOVERNMENT POSITIONS BY FUNCTON
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Full-time Equivalent Employees as of June 30

2007 200¢ 200¢ 201( 2011 201z 201% 201¢ 201¢ 201¢€

Functior
General Governme 604 604 58¢ 55E 482 484 49C

Full-Time 48C 49¢ 491

Part-Time 10 8 15
Judicia 22¢ 237 23¢ 214 184 187 193

Full-Time 18¢ 192 193

Part-Time 6 2 5
Public safet 1,32¢ 1,317 1,30( 1,26¢ 1,23¢ 1,19¢ 1,20¢

Full-Time 1,21z 1,28: 1,252

Part-Time 7 6 10
Public work: 20¢ 207 19C 183 13€ 13C 13C

Full-Time 132 121 124

Part-Time 2 12
Sanitatiol 20€ 207 203 20€ 191 182 182

Full-Time 181 187 181

Part-Time 1
Healtt 15 15 15 15 14 11 11

Full-Time 12 15 14

Part-Time 1
Welfare 10 11 11 11 11

Full-Time

Part-Time
Culture & Recreatia 501 50t 48¢ 654 59¢ 83t 83¢€

Full-Time 252 24¢€ 262

Part-Time 587 384 722
Economic Development & Assistar 95 98 96 97 62 51 51

Full-Time 44 60 47

Part-Time 7 21C 15
Transit Systern 12 12 9

Full-Time

Part-Time

Total Government 3,20¢ 3,21% 3,13t 3,201 2,912 3,07¢ 3,09¢ 3,12( 3,211 3,34¢€

Source: City of Las Vegas Final Budget Data and bluiResources Data
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Function

General Governme
Parking violation
Judicia
Traffic Case
Criminal Case
Total cases

Public Safet
Number of personn
Marshal:
Inmate bookings/releas
Fire
Fire and Medical Respor
Inspection
Public work:
Asphalt reconstructions (sq yar
Asphalt Overlay (sq yarc
Pavement surface treatment (sq ye
Sanitatiol
Number of service connectic
Daily average treatment in Million Gallc
per Da
Healtk
Animal contro
Number of pick-up
Citations issue
Culture and recreatic
Number safekey sit
Grant funds receive
Economic development & assista
Code enforcement inspectic
Number of citizen complair
Hotline calls
Website
Number of citizens assisted with pul
service gran
Transit Systernr

IRidership

Source: Various City of Las Vegas departments

CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTIOI
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDITED)
Fiscal Year

2007 200¢ 200¢ 201(C 2011 201z 201z 201¢ 201t 201¢
97,551 80,80¢ 95,20( 101,48° 81,541 65,60: 63,53: 66,04 79,04¢ 74,75¢
103,01¢ 176,97 189,27¢ 163,60 151,94: 139,50: 134,05: 113,60! 95,06 95,06
134,22¢ 37,89: 42,627 27,00« 41,53: 36,87« 33,66: 30,66( 29,56 29,56
237,24t 214,87( 231,90: 190,61 193,47 176,37! 167,71t 144,26} 124,63« 124,63«
1,32¢ 1,317 1,30 1,26¢€ 1,23¢ 1,19¢ 1,20t 1,21¢ 1,28¢ 1,28¢
28,65 40,35734,96: 34,99Y31,24. 31,17425,24¢ 35,97935,60¢ 32,10¢32,027 29,649Y29,53: 35,227/28,49. 28,46428,58:
73,00¢ 80,08 79,99( 78,64 90,39: 94,64¢ 99,99¢ 101,93¢ 108,82¢ 113,72(
25,14¢ 27,98: 24,28: 25,29¢ 17,30¢ 20,17« 24,62« 25,61¢ 24,747 24,747
173,28 304,61¢ 124,49¢ 66,26 78,35¢ 82,02: 196,85! 83,29: 127,39 121,20:
305,95: 401,55: 226,03:. 381,12¢ 193,85¢ 297,63: 393,71(
2,237,16:i 5,106,43. 3,176,93. 1,920,45: 3,660,42 4,070,97. 3,777,98 3,434,74. 2,190,58. 2,196,46.
184,05¢ 198,90( 203,13¢ 207,42: 206,87« 207,17 203,23t 203,23t 206,51° 207,95¢
70 70 68 66 43 43 44 44 44 44
10,69¢ 10,46¢ 26,48 17,14¢ 10,06: 7,43¢ 6,94¢ 8,08¢ 8,56( 7,621
317 484 681 49¢ 437 11C 324 29C 434 37t
56 69 70 6,96¢ 68 68 69 68 69 72
164,08t 121,06( 94,48( 85,27¢ 254,40: 379,80° 132,44 101,32( 18,89¢ 36,25¢
28,86 30,40( 24,86( 30,71¢ 27,43¢ 26,29« 23,54« 24,92t 31,90: 34,017
24,88: 25,03« 17,46¢ 25,74« 25,15 20,84( 15,37( 14,85¢ 6,83¢ 6,261
5,477 3,58¢ 2,322 2,291 2,30¢ 1,91(C 3,231
85,29( 96,15¢ 238,21: 40,507 41,61( 33,55¢ 28,78: 40,46 23,65 18,93:

336,43« 298,31« 225,57¢ -

1 The City transit program was transferred to theCREginning with FY2010.
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVAD#
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTIOI
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDITED)
Fiscal Year
Function 2001 200¢ 200¢ 201(C 2011 201z 201: 201« 201¢ 201¢
General governme
General government buildir 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Parking patrol uni 23 23 21 15 16 20 23 25 23 20
Public safet
Detention & Enforceme
Detention Centt 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Marshal:
Patrol unit: 54 47 60 44 45 50 46 38 41 43
Fire
Fire station 16 17 17 17 17 18 18 20 21 21
Public Parkin
Number of parking garag 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1
Public work:
Number of public works building 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Streets (miles 1,29¢ 1,297 1,301 1,30¢ 1,31¢ 1,318 1,31¢ 1,32: 1,34t 1,35¢
Streetlight 52,00( 51,50( 50,34( 52,83t 53,45¢ 53,18( 55,00( 55,00( 53,31( 53,31(
2Traffic signals 3,17 3,17 3,181 3,181 3,181 704 74¢€ 74¢€ 86¢€ 94¢
Sanitatiol
Number of sanitation plar 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Miles of sanitary sewe 1,70z 1,71¢ 1,722 1,72 1,72¢ 1,72¢ 1,72 1,73¢ 1,74¢ 1,76
Miles of storm drain channe 381 35(C 43( 43¢ 43¢ 43¢ 44¢ 45C 46C 465
Healtt
Animal contro
Patrol unit: 18 14 14 11 9 13 13 12 19 20
Culture and recreatit
Parks acreay 909.8: 910.0( 927.0( 1,086.7! 1,101.8. 1,698.8. 1,700.3¢ 1,700.3¢ 1,700.3¢ 1,700.3¢
Park: 68 68 65 65 76 76 76 76 76 76
Golf Course 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Tennis court 65 65 65 66 66 66 66 66 66 66
Swimming Pool 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6
Community cente 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18
Economic development & assista
Number of newly constructed affordable hou
units 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transit systen
IFieet units 10 10 10 0

Source: Various City of Las Vegas departments; BtttgBrief publications

1 The City transit program was transferred to th&€REginning with FY2010.
2 The traffic signal count in the prior year(s) vths total lights and poles for the City, but in tiféicial count from Public Works it is the compgesystem. This includes the poles and signaldhfosystem.
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PIERCY BOWLER
TAYLOR & KERN

Certified Public Accountants
Business Advisors

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WI'H

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Members of the City Council
City of Las Vegas, Nevada

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Las
Vegas (the City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents, and have issued our report
thereon dated December 22, 2016.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting. In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements, we
considered the City's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the basic financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees,
in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely
basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City's basic financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies; and
therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did identify certain
deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items
2016 - 001 through 2016 - 002 that we consider to be material weaknesses.

Compliance and Other Matters. As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's basic financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of basic financial statement amounts, including whether the funds established by the City, as listed in
Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 354.624 (5)(a)(1 through 5), complied with the express purposes required by NRS
354.6241. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.




The City's Responses to Findings. The City's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The City's responses were not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

We noted certain matters that we reported to the City in a separate letter dated December 22, 2016.

Purpose of this Report. The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control
or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the City's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for
any other purpose.

Ry Bonsbir Toglec 3 beer

Las Vegas, Nevada
December 22, 2016
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS
SCHEDULE OF BUSINESS LICENSE FEES
SUBJECT TO THE PROVISIONS OF NRS 354.5989
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

FLAT/FIXED FEES:

06/30/16 06/30/16 AMOUNT
MAXIMUM ACTUAL OVER
BASE GROWTH ALLOWABLE REVENUE (UNDER)
06/30/15 * FACTOR = REVENUE RECEIVED ALLOWABLE
6,477,147 1.016864 6,586,380 7,696,435 * 1,110,055

Fee based on a flat rate (i.e. new business is assessed a flat $25 fee for opening a busines:

FEES CALCULATED ON A PERCENTAGE OF GROSS REVENUE:

06/30/16 06/30/16 AMOUNT
MAXIMUM ACTUAL OVER
BASE INCREASE ALLOWABLE REVENUE (UNDER)
06/30/15  * IN CPI = REVENUE RECEIVED ALLOWABLE
10,757,218 1.003581 10,795,743 11,809,663 * 1,013,920

Fee based on gross revenue a business generates over a one year period.

* Generated from the Business License Revenue Recap report for year ending 6/30/16
obtained from Department of Business License Activity. Point of contact: Denise Kaplan
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PIERCY BOWLER
TAYLOR & KERN

Certified Public Accountants
Business Advisors

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES

OF FEDERAL AXRDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Members of the City Council
City of Las Vegas, Nevada

We have audited the compliance of the City of Las Vegas (the City) with the types of compliance requirements described
in the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of the City's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016. The City's major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility. The City's management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City's major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (the Uniform Guidance). Those standards
and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program. In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of the City's major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Other Matters. The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as items 2016 - 003 and 2016 - 004. Our opinion on each major federal program is not modified with
respect to these matters.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance. The City's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City's internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each
major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over compliance.
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned Our consideration of internal control
over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly,
this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance. We have audited the
financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial
statements. We issued our report thereon dated December 22, 2016, which contained an unmodified opinion on those
basic financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards
is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a
whole.

PosegBrib g ke

Las Vegas, Nevada
December 22, 2016
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Federal Federal or Amount Passed Federal
Federal Grantor / Pass-through CFDA Pass-through Entity Through to Disbursements/
Grantor / Program Title Number Identifying Number Subrecipients Expenditures
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Direct Programs:
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 14.218 B-14-MC32-0001 $ $ 229,998
14.218 B-15-MC32-0001 797,247 2,998,557
14.218 B-11-MN-32-0002 315,542
Program Income / Expenses 14.218 775,535
797,247 4,319,633
Emergency Solutions Grant Program 14.231 E13-MC32-0001 34,668 40,853
14.231 E14-MC32-0001 10,122 10,122
14.231 E15-MC32-0001 365,736 396,652
410,526 447,627
Housing Opportunities for Persons with Aids 14.241 NV-H14F001 223,372 223,372
14.241 NV-HI15F001 675,098 709,469
898,470 932,841
Home Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 M-13-MC-32-0225 210,602 335,946
14.239 M-14-MC-32-0225 1,445,161 1,469,983
14.239 M-15-MC-32-0225 1,205,226 1,205,226
Program Income / Expenses 14.239 19,081
2,860,989 3,030,237
Passed through Nevada Dept. of Business and Industry, Housing
Division
Home Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 M13-SG-32-0100 107,984 107,984
14.239 M14-SG-32-0100 413,406 413,406
14.239 M15-SG-32-0100 228,517 228,517
749,906 749,906
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 5,717,139 9,480,244
U.S. Department of Transportation
Passed through Nevada Dept. of Transportation
Highway Planning and Construction
ITS Comm Infrastructure Ph II 20.205 P121-09-050 126,183
Charleston Median Landscaping 20.205 PR345-08-063 181,373
Federal Scenic Byway-LV Blvd Neon Signs on a Stick 20.205 PR082-09-063 348
Various Intersection Right Lane Turn Improvements 20.205 PR571-13-063 3,208
Nellis and Eastern Bus Turnouts 20.205 P194-12-063 12,292
West Charleston Bus Turnouts 20.205 PR247-12-063 18,619
Charleston & Lamb Intersection Improvements 20.205 PR060-09-063 417,522
Buffalo Intersection Improve at Charleston & Sahara 20.205 P248-12-063 63,086
Intersection Improvements at Charleston & Torrey Pines 20.205 PR575-13-63 26,536
Las Vegas Bike Lanes 20.205 PR516-13-063 1,503,630
Las Vegas Boulevard Neon Signs Phase 3 20.205 PR009-15-063 29,575
Downtown Bicycle Racks and Lockers 20.205 PRO10-14-063 73,537
Cimarron Pedestrian Bridge at Summerlin Parkway 20.205 PR517-13-063 165,395
Summerlin Parkway Cable Barrier Safety Project 20.205 P719-15-063 502,206
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 3,123,511
continued



CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Federal Federal or Amount Passed Federal
Federal Grantor / Pass-through CFDA Pass-through Entity Through to Disbursements/
Grantor / Program Title Number Identifying Number Subrecipients Expenditures
U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Direct Program:
Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response 97.083 EMW-2013-FH-00505 2,100,480
Passed through Nevada Dept. of Public Safety, Emergency
Management Division
Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 9704215 214,011
97.042 9704216 141,322
355,333
Homeland Security Grant Program
State Homeland Security - CERT 97.067 97067-HL4 16,695
State Homeland Security - CERT 97.067 97067-HLS5 22811
Urban Area Security Initiative - MMRS 97.067 97067-U14 70,561
Urban Area Security Initiative - MMRS 97.067 97067-U15 31,914
Urban Area Security Initiative - HAZMAT 97.067 97067-U14 73,613
Urban Area Security Initiative - CERT 97.067 97067-U14 119,364
Urban Area Security Initiative - CERT 97.067 97067-U15 14,303
Urban Area Security Initiative - WAF 97.067 97067-U15 110
349,369
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 2,805,183
U.S. Department of the Interior
Direct Programs:
Southern Nevada Public Land Management
Las Vegas Wash Trail LV20 15.235 LO7AC14876 103,789
Sandhill Owens Park (Private) LV24 15.235 L07AC13811 740,399
Pedestrian Bridge LV Wash LV25 15.235 L07AC14394 426,330
Sandhill Owens Park (City) LV26 15.235 L07AC14396 215,982
Las Vegas Springs Preserve LV31 15.235 LO8AC14129 2,245,167 2,245,167
Trail Markers LV37 15.235 L12AC20354 15,442
Subtotal U.S. Department of the Interior 2,245,167 3,747,108
Passed through Nevada Dept. of Conservation and Natural
Resources, State Historic Preservation Office
Historic Preservation Fund Grants-In-Aid 15.904 P15AS00020(3) 13,000
Total U.S. Department of the Interior 2,245,167 3,760,108
continued
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVADA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Federal Federal or Federal
Federal Grantor / Pass-through CFDA Pass-through Entity Disbursements/
Grantor / Program Title Number Identifying Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed through Nevada Dept. of Agriculture, Food and
Nutrition Division
Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 Cooperative Agreement 36,258
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 36,258
U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs
Passed through Nevada Dept. of Veterans Services
VA Grants for Adaptive Sports Programs for Disabled
Veterans and Disabled Members of the Armed Forces 64.034 VA-ASP-2015-01 13,682
Total U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs 13,682
U.S. Department of Commerce
Direct Program:
Economic Adjustment Assistance
Strong Cities, Strong Communities Challenge 11.307 0779 06918 77,209
Total U.S. Department of Commerce 77,209
U.S. Department of Justice
Passed through Clark County Dept. of Social Service,
Community Resources Management Division
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 2013-DJ-BX-1172 93,564
16.738 2014-DJ-BX-0554 49,978
143,542
Passed through Nevada Dept. of Public Safety, Office of
Criminal Justice Assistance
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 15-JAG-05 49,989
Total U.S. Department of Justice 193,531
National Endowment for the Arts
Passed through Nevada Dept. of Tourism and Cultural Affairs,
Nevada Arts Council Division
Promotion of the Arts Partnership Agreements 45.025 PIE 16:6:02 6,874
Passed through Western States Arts Federation
Promotion of the Arts Partnership Agreements 45.025 TW201500005 2,375
Total National Endowments for the Arts 9,249
continued
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Federal Federal or Amount Passed Federal
Federal Grantor / Pass-through CFDA Pass-through Entity Through to Disbursements/
Grantor / Program Title Number Identifying Number Subrecipients Expenditures
Corporation for National and Community Service
Direct Program:
Volunteers in Service to America 94.013 15VSPNV001 10,000
Passed through Cities of Service
Operation AmeriCorps 94.025 15LYB 3,345
Passed through University of Utah
Social Innovation Fund Pay for Success 94.024 15PFS 48,291
Total Corporation for National and Community Service 61,637
Total Federal Assistance $ 7,962,305 19,560,612
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Note 1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) includes the federal award activity of the

the City of Las Vegas, Nevada (the City) under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2016.

The information is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (the Uniform Guidance).
Because the SEFA presents only a selected portion of the operations of the City, it is not intended to, and does not, present
the financial position, changes in net positions, or cash flows of the City.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the SEFA are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized
following, as applicable, either the cost principles in Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations or the cost principles contained in the Uniform

Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative
amounts shown on the SEFA (if any) represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business

to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.
Note 3. Indirect Cost Rate

The City has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
Note 4. Relationship to Basic Financial Statements

Expenditures of federal awards are reported in the City's basic financial statements as follows:

Capital Project Funds $ 6,870,620
General Fund 2,100,480
Special Revenue Funds 10,589,512

5___ 19560612
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors' report issued Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting
Material weaknesses identified Yes
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses None reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements No
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs
Material weaknesses identified No
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses None reported
Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs Unmodified
Audit findings required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) Yes
Identification of major programs
CFDA number 14.218
Name of federal program or cluster Community Development Block Grants /
Entitlement Grants
CFDA number 20.205
Name of federal program or cluster Highway Planning and Construction
CFDA number 97.083
Name of federal program or cluster Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency

Response (SAFER)

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs $750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee Yes

(Continued)



CITY OF LAS VEGAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Section II — Findings relating to the financial statements, which are required to be reported in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States and Government Auditing Standards

2016 - 001

Criteria or specific requirement Monthly, quarterly, and annual closing checklists are utilized, which include lists of standard recurring

Condition and context

Effect

Cause

Recommendation

Management's response

journal entries and reconciliations to be prepared. Each individual reconciliation (and entry, if
applicable) is signed off by the assigned preparer to indicate that the requirement has been completed.
A supervisory individual responsible for oversight also signs off attesting that the required
reconciliations (and entries, if applicable) have been reviewed for completeness and accuracy (or an
equivalent sign off routine that documents the reviewer's timely involvement).

On an annual basis, an entry is recorded in the City's sanitation fund to reverse the prior year receivable
for June services billed in July. However, in fiscal 2016, the required reversing entry was not recorded
to reduce sewer service revenues (and the related receivable).

In addition, the City records a self-insurance liability for estimated heart, lung, hepatitis and cancer
claims (the "Heart lung presumptive liability.") As of June 30, 2016, the schedules used to calculate
the estimated Heart lung presumptive liability, which is recorded in the City's Employee Benefits
internal service fund, were not complete and accurate. This resulted in inaccurate journal entries that
caused the reported balance to be materially understated.

As of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, current assets and revenues were overstated by $7,676,980
in the City's sanitation fund.

In addition, the reported Heart lung presumptive liability in the City's Employee Benefits internal
service fund was understated by $7,762,722.

Annual, quarterly and month-end closing checklists, including lists of standard journal entries and
reconciliations to be prepared, are not being utilized effectively. In addition, the review of month-end
reconciliations (including the related journal entries, if applicable) appears to be ineffective.

A checklist of standard monthly journal entries and balance sheet account reconciliations should be
formally developed and utilized, with the various processes assigned to the responsible individuals.
Each individual reconciliation (and journal entry, if applicable) should be signed off by the
responsible individuals indicating the requirement has been completed. A supervisory individual
responsible for oversight should also sign off attesting that the required reconciliations and entries
have been reviewed for completeness and accuracy (or an equivalent sign off routine that documents
the reviewer's timely involvement).

Management informed us that they will utilize a standard checklist to insure balance sheet account
reconciliations and standard monthly journal entries are completed and approved by the appropriate
staff. In additional, they are working with the third party administrator for the Heart Lung
presumptive liability to correct their system limitation of only providing a single Self Insurance
Reserve (SIR) value in order for the City to calculate the presumptive liability for accuracy and
completeness.

(Continued)



CITY OF LAS VEGAS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Section II — Findings relating to the financial statements, which are required to be reported in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States and Government Auditing Standards (continued)

2016 - 002
Criteria or specific requirement

Condition and context

Effect

Cause

Recommendation

Management's response

Disposals of capital assets are approved by someone independent of asset custody. The supporting
documentation and circumstances for such transactions are also communicated timely to the finance
department to ensure that the disposal transaction is properly recorded in the City's accounting
records, and to ensure that the associated gain or loss on disposal is accurately calculated.

During fiscal year 2016, the City conducted a physical inventory of City-owned assets and discovered
that $11,271,544 of assets that had been disposed of prior to fiscal year 2016 were still recorded as
assets in the City's accounting records.

As of July 1, 2015, the City's reported assets for governmental activities were overstated by
$11,271,544.

Transactions involving the disposals of capital assets were not communicated timely to the finance
department. As a result, the transactions were not properly recorded in the City's accounting records.

The City should implement policies and procedures designed to ensure that transactions involving the
disposals of capital assets are communicated timely to the finance department, so the transactions are
properly recorded in the City's accounting records.

Management informed us that they will implement a procedure to provide an annual review of real

property assets to ensure recording of dispositions. The review will be performed in conjunction with
the Sensitive Item reporting requirement for Machinery and Equipment.

(Continued)
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Section III — Findings and questioned costs for federal awards, including audit findings required by 2 CFR 200.516(a)

2016 - 003
Federal program

Criteria or specific requirement

Condition and context

Questioned costs

Effect

Cause

Repeat finding

Recommendation

Management's response

Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants - CFDA #14.218

Supervisory review of grant reports is performed to ensure accuracy and completeness of data and
information included in the reports.

The fiscal year 2016 quarterly Federal Financial Reports (FFR) incorrectly reported cumulative cash
disbursements for the Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP) #1 and NSP #3 grant awards.
Specifically, the FFR attachment, which lists the cumulative federal cash disbursements, reported only
current quarter expenditures, rather than cumulative totals.

None

The City is not in compliance with the periodic reporting requirements related to the NSP #1 and NSP #3
grant awards.

The supervisory review of the City's authorized certifying official did not detect that the expenditures
reported in the quarterly FFRs were not being reported in accordance with the applicable
requirements.

No

Supervisory employees should review the required grant reports to ensure they comply with the
applicable reporting requirements.

Management informed us that corrections have been made to the supporting documentation used to
prepare the FFRs to include cumulative cash disbursements on the NSP #1 and NSP #3 grant awards.
FFRs will be reviewed by a Financial Analyst in Finance familiar with their preparation and approved
by a supervisor in the Office of Community Services prior to submission to ensure they comply with
applicable reporting requirements.

(Continued)
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Section III — Findings and questioned costs for federal awards, including audit findings required by 2 CFR 200.516(a) (continued)

2016 - 004
Federal program

Criteria or specific requirement

Condition and context

Questioned costs
Effect

Cause

Repeat finding

Recommendation

Management's response

Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER) - CFDA #97.083
The amounts reported in the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (SEFA) should be a complete
and accurate representation of the federal expenditures applicable to each federal program (or cluster

of programs).

The City's SEFA is presented on the accrual basis of accounting; however, the expenditures for the
SAFER grant were presented on the cash basis of accounting.

None
The expenditures reported in City's SEFA were understated by $21,188.

Expenditures were presented on the cash basis of accounting, and as a result, the applicable year-end
payroll accrual was not included.

No

Supervisory employees should review the expenditures reported in the City's SEFA to ensure they are
reported on the accrual basis of accounting, and that all necessary accrual adjustments have been
included.

Management informed us that going forward, the reconciliations on all grant awards will be reviewed by
a supervisory employee prior to listing on the SEFA to ensure they are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting, and all necessary accrual adjustments have been included. This review will be evidenced
by initialing and dating the reconciliation form.
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CITY OF LAS VEGAS
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Section II — Findings relating to the financial statements, which are required to be reported in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States and Government Auditing Standards

None reported

(Continued)



CITY OF LAS VEGAS
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Section III — Findings and questioned costs for federal awards, including audit findings as defined in Circular A-133 Section .510(a) and/or
findings required by 2 CFR 200.516(a)

None reported
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